
 

 

Ref: Samfin/BSE/43/2023-24                                                                                   August 25, 2023 

 

To,  

BSE Limited, 

Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, 

Dalal Street, 

Mumbai - 400 001 

 

Dear Sir/Madam, 

 

Subject: Submission of Notice of Ninth Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) along with Annual 

Report of the Company pursuant to Regulation 50(2) and 53(2)(a) of SEBI (Listing Obligations 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“LODR”) 

 

BSE Scrip Code: 958328 

 

This is to inform you that the Ninth Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the “Company will be held 

on Monday, September 18, 2023, at 12:00 P.M. IST through Video Conferencing (“VC”) / Other 

Audio-Visual Means (“OAVM”) to transact the businesses as stated in the Notice of the AGM. 

 

The Notice of the AGM and the Annual Report of the Company for the Financial year 2022-23 is sent 

today i.e., August 25, 2023, through electronic mode to the Shareholders of the Company and is 

also made available on the website of the Company at www.samunnati.com 

 

With reference to above, please find enclosed the Notice of AGM and Annual Report of the 

Company. 

 

This is for your information and records.  

 

Thanking you, 

Yours faithfully, 

 

For SAMUNNATI FINANCIAL INTERMEDIATION & SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED 

 

 

 

 

Gurunath N 

Wholetime Director 

DIN: 02799586 

 

 

Copy to: 

Debenture Trustee 

 

 

 

 

http://www.samunnati.com/


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SAMUNNATI FINANCIAL INTERMEDIATION & 

SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED 

 

CIN: U65990TN2014PTC096252 

 

 

 

Annual Report 

FY 2022-23 
 

 

  

1



Index 
 

 

S. No Particulars Page No 

1 Notice of the Annual General Meeting 3 

2 Directors’ Report 11 

Consolidated Financial Statements 

3 Independent Auditors’ Report 60 

4 Consolidated Balance Sheet 70 

5 Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss 71 

6 Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow 72 

7 
Consolidated Statement of Changes in 

Equity 
74 

8 
Notes forming part of the Consolidated 

Financial Statements 
75 

Standalone Financial Statements 

9 Independent Auditors’ Report 123 

10 Standalone Balance Sheet 135 

11 Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss 136 

12 Standalone Statement of Cash Flow 137 

13 
Standalone Statement of Changes in 

Equity 
139 

14 
Notes forming part of the Standalone 

Financial Statements 
140 

 

2



 

 

NOTICE OF THE NINTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE MEMBERS OF SAMUNNATI 

FINANCIAL INTERMEDIATION & SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED 

 

NOTICE is hereby given that the Ninth Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of Samunnati Financial 

Intermediation & Services Private Limited (the “Company”) will be held on Monday, September 18, 

2023, at 12:00 P.M. IST through Video Conferencing (“VC”) / Other Audio-Visual Means (“OAVM”) in 

compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder 

read with General Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, General Circular No. 17/2020 dated 

April 13, 2020, General Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020, General Circular No. 02/2021 

dated January 13, 2021, General Circular No. 21/2021 dated December 14, 2021, General Circular 

No. 02/2022 dated May 05, 2022, General Circular No. 10/2022 dated December 28, 2022 and other 

applicable circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) (hereinafter collectively 

referred to as “Circulars”), to transact the businesses set out below. Members participating 

through the VC / OAVM facility shall be reckoned for the purpose of quorum under Section 103 of 

the Companies Act, 2013. The proceedings of the AGM will be recorded at the Registered Office of 

the Company situated at Baid Hi Tech Park, 8th Floor, No 129B, East Coast Road, Thiruvanmiyur, 

Chennai - 600 041. 

 

In compliance with the Circulars issued by the MCA, the Notice of the AGM and the Audited 

Financial Statements for the Financial Year 2022-23 along with the Reports of the Board of 

Directors and Auditors thereon and other documents required to be attached thereon are being 

circulated to the Members of the Company through electronic mode. 

 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

 

ITEM NO. 1 – TO CONSIDER AND ADOPT THE AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023 ALONG WITH THE REPORTS  OF THE BOARD 

OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS THEREON  

 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following as an Ordinary 

Resolution: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company 

along with the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon for the Financial Year ended 

March 31, 2023, as circulated to the Members and laid before the Meeting, be and are hereby 

approved and adopted.” 

 

SPECIAL BUSINESSES: 

 

ITEM NO. 2 – TO CONSIDER AND APPROVE THE ALTERATION OF THE ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION OF 

THE COMPANY 

 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following as a Special 

Resolution: 
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“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Sections 5 and 14 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 

Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the 

time being in force), read with the rules made thereunder, the approval of the members of the 

Company be and is hereby accorded to the following alterations to the Articles of Association of the 

Company: 

 

 

1. The following Articles 2.35A and 2.35B be inserted after the existing Article 2.35 under the 

head “II. DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATIONS”: 

 

2.35A  “Debenture” means the non-convertible debentures or other kinds of debentures 

issued by the Company which are listed on any of the recognized stock exchange(s) 

in India. 

 

2.35B “Debenture Trustee” means the trustee appointed under a debenture trustee 

agreement in trust for, on behalf of and for the benefit of the holders of 

Debentures issued by the Company. 

 

2. The following Article 2.101A be inserted after the existing Article 2.101 under the head “II. 

DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATIONS”: 

 

2.101A “Nominee Director” means the director nominated by the Debenture Trustee and 

appointed by the Board in accordance with Article 100.3A 

 

3. The existing Article 100.1 shall stand modified as follows: 

 

100.1  On or after the Third Pre-Series E Closing Date, the Promoter and the Company 

shall ensure that with respect to Articles 100.2 and 100.3, the Board shall consist of 

not more than 9 (nine) members. Subject to the provisions of Article 100.3, the 

Board shall consist of 1 (one) TIAA Nominee Director, 1 (one) rA Nominee Director, 1 

(one) Elevar Nominee Director, 1 (one) Accel Nominee Director, 1 (one) Promoter 

Director, 1 (one) Promoter Nominee Director and 3 (three) Independent Directors. 

 

4. The existing Article 100.2 shall stand modified as follows: 

 

100.2 Only such individual (a) who, in the opinion of the Board and the Majority Lead 

Investors, is a person of integrity and possesses relevant expertise and experience in 

relation to the Business; and (b) qualifies all criteria to be considered as an 

independent director under Applicable Law, shall be eligible for the appointment as 

an “Independent Director.” The terms of appointment of an Independent Director 

shall be decided by the Board, in accordance with Applicable Law. Further, any 

vacancy on the Board with respect to an Independent Director shall be filled in the 

manner provided above. 

 

5. The following Article 100.3A (Nominee Director) be inserted after the existing Article 100.3: 

 

100.3A  Nominee Director 
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100.3A.1 Notwithstanding anything contained in this Articles, the Board shall, on 

receipt of the nomination by the Debenture Trustee, appoint a Nominee 

Director on the Board of the Company, within one month from date of receipt 

of such nomination, in the following circumstances: 

i. 2 (two) consecutive defaults in payment of interest to the debenture 

holders in respect of the relevant Debentures; or 

ii. default in creation of security for the relevant Debentures; or 

iii. default in redemption of the relevant Debentures. 

 

100.3A.2 Such Nominee Director shall not be liable to retire by rotation nor be 

required to hold any qualification shares.  

 

100.3A.3 The Nominee Director so appointed shall hold the said office only so long as the 

Company owes any money in relation to the Debentures on which any of the 

above said defaults (referred to in Article 100.3A.1) had occurred. 

 

100.3A.4 The Debenture Trustee may have the right to remove such Nominee Director so 

appointed and also in the case of death or resignation or vacancy for any reasons 

whatsoever of the Nominee Director so appointed, at any time appoint any other 

person as the Nominee Director.” 

 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution, the Board of 

Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred as the “Board” which term shall include any 

committee constituted / may be constituted by the Board or any other person(s), for the time 

being exercising the powers conferred on the Board by this resolution and as may be authorised by 

the Board in this regard) be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things 

as it may, in its absolute discretion, deem necessary, desirable or expedient, including without 

limitation issuing clarifications and resolving all questions of doubt, to authorize all such 

persons as may be necessary, in connection therewith and incidental thereto as the Board in its 

absolute discretion shall deem fit without being required to seek any further clarification, consent 

or approval of the Members and that the Members shall be deemed to have given their approval 

thereto expressly by the authority of this resolution, to settle all questions, difficulties or doubts 

that may arise in regard to the alteration of the Articles of Association and to take all other steps 

which may be incidental, consequential, relevant or ancillary in this connection and to effect any 

modification to the foregoing and the decision of the Board shall be final and conclusive.” 

 

ITEM NO. 3 – TO CONSIDER AND APPROVE APPOINTMENT OF MR. KRISHNAN K AS AN 

INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY  

 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following as an Ordinary 

Resolution: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152 and other applicable 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the Rules made thereunder (including any 

statutory modifications or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), Articles of 

Association of the Company, approval and recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee and that of the Board of Directors, Mr. Krishnan K (DIN: 01109189), be and is hereby 

appointed as an Independent Director, not liable to retire by rotation, for a period of five years 

with effect from September 18, 2023 up to September 17, 2028. 
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to 

settle any question or clarifications that may arise in giving effect to this resolution and to do all 

such acts, deeds and things as may be necessary, expedient, and desirable for the purpose of giving 

effect to this resolution. 

 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of  

Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited 

 

 

 

Sd/-  

Gurunath Neelamani  

Wholetime Director  

DIN: 02799586  

 

Place: Chennai 

Date:  August 11, 2023 
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NOTE: 

 

1) A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ALSO ENTITLED TO APPOINT A 

PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE ON HIS/HER BEHALF AND SUCH A PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER 

OF THE COMPANY SUBJECT TO PROVISIONS OF THE ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION. However, as per 

the Circulars issued by MCA, the entitlement for appointment of proxy has been dispensed with for 

the General Meetings conducted through VC / OAVM. Accordingly, the Attendance Slip, Proxy Form 

and Route Map have not been annexed to this Notice of AGM. 

 

2) Corporate Members intending to nominate their authorised representatives to attend the Meeting 

are requested to send a certified copy of the Board Resolution authorising their representative to 

attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting. 

 

3) The explanatory statement as required under Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 is annexed 

hereto and forms an integral part of the Notice. 

 

4) Members may kindly note that since the Annual General Meeting of the Company is scheduled to be 

held through VC / OAVM, the login credentials shall be shared with the Members along with the 

instructions for logging in, to their registered mail ids. In case of any clarifications in this regard, 

Members can reach out to us at secretarial@samunnati.com or 044-66762400.  

 

5) The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding, maintained under 

Section 170 and Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which Directors are interested, 

maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules issued thereunder shall 

be available electronically for inspection. 
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ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE 

 

A. EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

 

The following statement contains all the material facts relating to the Special Businesses as set out 

in this Notice: 

 

ITEM NO. 2 – TO CONSIDER AND APPROVE THE ALTERATION OF THE ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION 

OF THE COMPANY 

 

Pursuant to the SEBI (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) (Amendment) Regulations, 

2023 read with SEBI (Debenture Trustees) Regulations, 1993, companies whose debentures are 

listed on recognised stock exchange(s) are required to amend their Articles of Association on or 

before September 30, 2023 to include an enabling clause providing for appointment of a Nominee 

Director by the Debenture Trustee on the Board of the Company, in the event of 2 (two) 

consecutive defaults in payment of interest or default in security creation for the debentures, or 

default in redemption of debentures. As the Non-convertible Debentures of the Company are listed 

on BSE Limited, the Company proposes to amend its Articles of Association to include an enabling 

clause providing for appointment of a Nominee Director by the Debenture Trustee on the Board of 

the Company, in the event of 2 (two) consecutive defaults in payment of interest or default in 

security creation for the debentures, or default in redemption of debentures. 

 

Further, it is also proposed to remove reference to the names of the Directors from Article 100.2 of 

the Articles of Association of the Company for operational convenience. 

 

The provisions of Sections 5 and 14 of the Companies Act, 2013 require the Company to seek the 

approval of the Members by way of a special resolution for the proposed alteration of the Articles 

of Association of the Company, and accordingly, the Board of Directors recommends that the 

Members approve the resolution mentioned in Item no. 2 as a special resolution. 

 

A copy of the draft Articles of Association of the Company duly amended is available for inspection 

at the registered office of the Company on all working days between 11.00 AM to 4.00 PM and shall 

also be available for inspection electronically during the Meeting. 

 

None of the Directors of the Company or Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives are, in any 

way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution, except to the extent of 

their shareholding. 

 

The Board recommends the special resolution set out in Item No. 2 of this notice for approval by 

the Members.  

 

ITEM NO. 3 – TO CONSIDER AND APPROVE APPOINTMENT OF MR. KRISHNAN K AS AN 

INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY 

 

Dr. Venkatesh Tagat (DIN: 02728441) was appointed as an Independent Director of the Company at 

the Meeting of Board of Directors held on September 18, 2018, for a period of five years which was 

approved by Members at the Extraordinary General Meeting of the Company held on July 31, 2019. 

Accordingly, Dr. Venkatesh Tagat’s tenure as an Independent Director of the Company comes to an 

end on September 17, 2023.  Dr. Venkatesh Tagat, due to other commitments, has requested that 
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his current term as an Independent Director be not extended. 

 

Further to this and based on the feedback from the Directors on the need to have an Independent 

Director with finance background on the Board, the Company had identified Mr. Krishnan K (DIN 

01109189), Chartered Accountant and Cost Accountant based in Chennai for appointment as an 

Independent Director of the Company.  

 

Considering Mr. Krishnan’s qualification and experience and review of all the declarations given by 

him including the fit and proper declaration, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee had at 

its Meeting held on August 09, 2023, recommended to the Board, the appointment of Mr. Krishnan K 

as an Independent Director for a period of five consecutive years.  

 

The Board of Directors, based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee, has recommended the appointment of Mr. Krishnan K as an Independent Director, not 

liable to retire by rotation, for a period of five years with effect from September 18, 2023, up to 

September 17, 2028, after taking note of the consents and disclosures/declarations provided by 

him. 

 

In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Krishnan K fulfils the conditions specified in the Companies Act, 

2013 and the Rules framed thereunder and he is a fit and proper person for appointment as a 

Director as per the RBI regulations and is independent of the Management. The brief profile of Mr. 

Krishnan K and other information as required under the Secretarial Standards are disclosed under 

Para – B of this statement. 

 

The Board recommends the appointment of Mr. Krishnan K for a period of five years with effect 

from September 18, 2023, up to September 17, 2028. In compliance with the provisions of Section 

149 read with Schedule IV of the Act, the appointment of Mr. Krishnan K is being placed before the 

Members for their approval by means of an Ordinary Resolution.  

 

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives are concerned 

or interested in the resolution as set out in Item no. 3, except to the extent of their shareholding. 

 

DISCLOSURE UNDER SECRETARIAL STANDARDS 2 ON GENERAL MEETINGS 

 

Name of the Director Mr. Krishnan K 

DIN 01109189 

Date of Birth 15/02/1955 

Age 68 

Qualification(s) 
Chartered Accountant, Cost Accountant and Commerce 

Graduate 

Date of Appointment 

(Initial Appointment) 
Not Applicable 
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Nature of his expertise in specific 

functional areas 

A Chartered Accountant, Cost Accountant and 

Commerce Graduate having about 44 years of multi-

industry experience in both strategy and operations, in 

organizations like Airtel, RPG group, Murugappa Group & 

AF Ferguson, with firsthand knowledge of business 

challenges, investor expectation & change management 

and offering feasible & forward-looking advisory services 

to companies in different stages of the business 

lifecycle. 

Number of Board Meeting attended 

during FY 2022-23 
Not applicable 

Inter-se relationship with any other 

directors and KMPs of the Company 
None 

Directorships in other Companies 

• Thinksynq Solutions Private Limited 

• EM3 Agriservices Private Limited 

• Chennai Business School Limited 

Number of shares held in the Company  NIL 

Details of remuneration sought to be 

paid 
Not Applicable 

Details of remuneration last drawn NIL (only sitting fee is paid) 
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Dear Members, 

 

Your Directors’ are pleased to present the Ninth Annual Report together with the Audited Financial 
Statement of Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited (“the Company” or 
“Samunnati”) for the year ended March 31, 2023.  
 

A. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE  

 

The summarised Standalone results of your Company are given in the table below: 
                                                                                                                                     (INR MN)                                     

Particulars 
Year ended          

31st March 2023 

Year ended           

31st March 2022* 

Revenue from Operations (A) 1,972.28 1,733.17 

Other Income (B) 78.99 82.73 

Total Income (A+B) 2,051.27 1,815.90 

 

Operating Expenses 1,990.36 1,828.14 

Pre Provision Operating Profit / (Loss) 60.91 (12.24) 

Impairment / ECL provision 1,308.96 756.15 

Depreciation 49.32 47.61 

 

Profit / (Loss) before Tax (1,297.37) (816.00) 

Less: Tax expenses:   

1. Current tax 5.03 - 

2. Deferred tax (318.60) (149.81) 

Profit/ (Loss) after tax (983.80) (666.19) 

Other Comprehensive Income 0.66 2.07 

Total Comprehensive Income (983.14) (664.12) 

        *Previous year figures have been regrouped/rearranged wherever necessary 

 

The summarised consolidated results of your Company are given in the table below:                                                  
                                                                                                                                     (INR MN) 

Particulars 
Year ended           

31st March 2023 

Year ended          

31st March 2022* 

Revenue from Operations (A) 18,631.25 22,796.07 

Other Income (B) 366.47 191.07 

Total Income (A+B) 18,997.72 22,987.14 

 

Operating Expenses 19,516.01 23,242.73 

Pre Provision Operating Profit / (Loss) (518.29) (255.59) 

Impairment / ECL provision 1,308.96 1,006.72 

Depreciation 60.74 64.79 

 

Profit/(Loss) before Tax (1,887.99) (1,327.10) 

Less: Tax expenses:   

1. Current tax 5.10 - 

2. Deferred tax (427.72) (260.71) 

Profit/ (Loss) after tax (1,465.37) (1,066.39) 

Other Comprehensive Income  (0.73) (1.94) 

Total Comprehensive Income  (1,464.64) (1,064.45) 

        *Previous year figures have been regrouped/rearranged wherever necessary 
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Despite the challenging environment, Samunnati as a group registered an aggregate GTV of 
INR 27,758 MN in Agri finance business & INR 16,942 MN in Agri commerce business during FY 
2023. The AUM of the finance business as on March 31, 2023, stood at INR 11,512 MN with 
Average AUM of ~ INR 10,800 MN during FY 2023. Supported by better underwriting quality & 
assessment, the Company’s portfolio quality has improved significantly YOY post FY 2020 
wherein the OTRR has improved from 72% to 90%.  

 
During the year under review (as of April 2023), the Company raised Pre-Series E capital 
aggregating to INR 2,540 MN through issuance of Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative 
Preference Shares and Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares. The existing 
investors as well as some new individual investors participated in these rounds of capital raise 
which highlights the investor’s confidence in the Company’s business model.  

 
The equity raise during the year has improved the Net Worth significantly. With a cleaner and 
stronger balance sheet, the Company is fairly optimistic of turning profitable from FY 2024 
aided by improved portfolio quality. 

 
FY 2023 also saw significant developments in driving internal efficiencies through Technology. 
A new insights dashboard was launched which serves as a one-stop reference point for all key 
highlights across Business, Credit and Portfolio performance. Samunnati Group implemented 
ERP to strengthen the Agri Commerce Transactions. The same went live during October 2022 
and is now fully operational for the major solutions offered by Agri Commerce business. ERP 
implementation for Agri Finance business is underway and would be implemented during FY 
2024. During the year under review, the Company consolidated all the various workflows under 
Samunnati One and all the inter-department transactions will be 100% digital in the current 
financial year on this platform. This platform will also be the single point of entry for all 
Samunnati systems and solutions across stakeholders. 

 
Samunnati also undertook several measures to drive process efficiencies which resulted in 
enhanced first time right documentation from the customers directly contributing to reduction 
of TAT and customer satisfaction. Samunnati retained its ISO 9001 certification in the recently 
concluded Surveillance audit during March 2023.  

 
SamAgr – Inhouse Research Desk of Samunnati, plays a key role in Market Linkage transactions 
and publishes commodity research reports on a daily basis. With a revenue crossing INR 12 MN 
during FY 2023, this division has also started offering paid services to the ecosystem players 
and has published a Cotton report for a UK customer, has client on subscription model for 
Maize & Soybean. This team also undertook a large survey mandate for Viterra during Kharif. 
The team has plans to diversify and expand their offerings outside these commodities in the 
current financial year.   

 
During the year under review, Samunnati built up the rigour around employee engagement 
conducting several programs on mental and social well-being apart from refurbishing the 
employee connect program. Samunnati was recertified by Great Place to Work for the third 
year and had over 450 team members who participated in the survey. The Company also won 
the Well-being Award (Waw) conducted by HR Anexi and an award from Ambition Box for the 
Best Places to Work in India 2021. 

 

Growth driven by Digital Transformation 

 

The advent of digital technologies and the evolution of multiple Agtechs have put the farmer 
right at the heart of the entire ecosystem where historically, the market was centred around 
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mandis and farmer was just one of the stakeholders. Digitalisation offers an opportunity to 
combine digital and social aspects, thereby providing a hybrid strategy for resolving and 
mitigating challenges in agricultural value chains. There are various solutions which are now 
being made more farmer-centric in each part of the agri value chain that is digitizing, be it 
finance, inputs, outputs, market linkage or advisory. 

 
Samunnati’s vision to act as a window to the Small Holder Farmers / Farmer Collectives and 
for the entire ecosystem enabling access to these Farmers and Farmer Collectives by offer 
more touchpoints and broader portfolio of products and services across the value chain, 
encompassing both trade and finance solutions from market linkage and financing to advisory. 
In line therewith, Samunnati is focused on creating a digital marketplace which would be a 
one-stop solution for credit, inputs, outputs, market linkage and advisory and would satisfy 
the requirements of all stakeholders in the agri value chain. The said digital platform would 
be implemented during the current financial year and would drive the next stage of business 
growth of the Company going forward. 

 

B. SUMMARY OF OPERATIONS  

 

Standalone 

 

The Company’s Asset under Management (AUM) grew marginally by INR 98 MN to INR 11,512 
MN as of March 31, 2023, compared to INR 11,414 MN as of March 31, 2022. Revenue from 
operations grew by INR 239.11 MN (growth of 13.8%) to INR 1,972.28 MN during FY 2023 from 
INR 1,733.17 MN during FY 2022. Other Income reduced by INR 3.74 MN to INR 78.99 MN from 
INR 82.73 MN. The Pre-Provision Operating Profit / (Loss) improved significantly from a loss of 
INR 12.24 MN during FY 2022 to a profit of INR 60.91 MN during FY 2023. Total comprehensive 
loss after tax has increased from INR 664.12 MN to a loss of INR 983.14 MN primarily on account 
of accelerated provisioning. The Cash generated from operations before working capital 
changes also improved significantly from INR 1,052.40 MN during FY 2022 to INR 1,368.26 MN 
during FY 2023. 

 
During the year, the Company raised capital of INR 2,540 MN (including capital raised during 
April 2023) and debt funding of INR 4,557 MN (excluding Debentures and Commercial Papers) 
from Banks, NBFCs and foreign institutions, despite adverse financial market conditions. 

 
Summary of Operations of Subsidiaries 

 
• Samunnati Agro Solutions Private Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company 

which trades in Agro commodities. Although, the Gross Transaction Value / Sales of the 
subsidiary during FY 2023 decreased to INR 16,885.56 MN from INR 21,102.33 MN during 
FY 2022, the Gross Margin earned during FY 2023 significantly improved to INR 452 MN 
from INR 409 MN during FY 2022. In percentage terms, the gross margin increased from 
1.9% of sales to 2.8% during FY 2023.The improvement in gross margin by more than 47% 
was the outcome of discipline in pricing coupled with process improvement which helped 
to reduce the income leakages. 
 

• Samunnati Finance Private Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company 
incorporated on September 22, 2021. The wholly owned subsidiary is yet to commence its 
business operations and is awaiting the issuance of Non-Banking Finance Company license 
from the Reserve Bank of India. 
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• Samunnati Agri Innovations Lab Private Limited (“SAIL”) (formerly known as Kamatan Farm 
Tech Private Limited), which deals in trading of Agro commodities, was acquired as a 
wholly owned subsidiary on April 16, 2021. During the year under review, the name was 
changed in order to align the name with the strategic and innovation verticals handled by 
SAIL. Apart from trading in Agro Commodities, SAIL also strives to make markets work for 
small holder farmers through strategy, innovation, establishing non-linear business growth 
channels of crowd and community sourced rural franchisee network of Agri Entrepreneurs, 
Village Level Entrepreneurs, Farmer Financing, Agri value chain financing through anchor 
institutions like Agri startups, Business Correspondents and online debt marketplace 
channels. As a result of the internal restructuring and re-alignment of operating plans, 
the sales during FY 2023 was lower at INR 22.95 MN compared to INR 53.46 MN during FY 
2022. Net Income increased to INR 22.24 MN during FY 2023 compared to INR 2.8 MN during 
FY 2022.  

 
• Samunnati Foundation, a wholly owned subsidiary, is a not-for-profit company 

incorporated under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013. It was established to enable 
inclusive growth and create opportunities for the unserved/ underserved communities in 
the agricultural ecosystem in order to make a tangible difference to the livelihood of small 
holder farmers. Samunnati Foundation has been excluded from consolidation as its 
inclusion is not material to the Group and being not for profit organisation, impairs its 
ability to transfer any benefit to the Company. 

 
• Samunnati Investment Management Services Private Limited was incorporated as a wholly 

owned subsidiary of Samunnati Agro Solutions Private Limited on March 08, 2022, which 
will manage an Alternative Investment Fund (“AIF”) (Category 2 – Debt fund) with 
emphasis on Sustainability, Scalability and Impact. Samunnati Investment Management 
Services Private Limited is in the process of obtaining requisite license and approvals and 
is yet to commence its business operations. 

 
C. COMPANY OVERVIEW 
 

Your Company is a Non-Banking Finance Company (NBFC) registered with the Reserve Bank of 
India and is a specialised Agri Value Chain enabler that provides innovative and customised 
financial and non-financial solutions. 

 
Samunnati leverages on the ‘social capital’ and ‘trade capital’ in buyer-seller relationships via 
Samunnati Aggregators, through non-traditional sourcing, risk assessment and mitigation, 
aided by cutting edge technology and an experienced management team with deep domain 
expertise. All these contribute to building a quality business that is sustainable and inclusive 
growth. These values are embedded in the genetic code of Samunnati and demonstrated in 
the way the Company’s processes operate. 

 
With an aim to offer holistic, suitable solutions to the Agri-value chain players, Samunnati 
Agro Solutions Private Limited (“Samunnati Agro”) was incorporated on October 14, 2016 as a 
wholly owned subsidiary of Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited. 
Samunnati Agro offers trade facilities and market linkages to Agri-value chain players.  

 
Your Company acquired Samunnati Agri Innovations Lab Private Limited (“SAIL”) (formerly 
known as Kamatan Farm Tech Private Limited) as a wholly owned subsidiary with effect from 
April 16, 2021. Apart from trading in Agro Commodities, SAIL also strives to make markets 
work for small holder farmers through strategy, innovation, establishing non-linear business 
growth channels of crowd and community sourced rural franchisee network of Agri 
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Entrepreneurs, Village Level Entrepreneurs, Farmer Financing, Agri value chain financing 
through anchor institutions like Agri startups, Business Correspondents and online debt 
marketplace channels. 

 
Your Company has also incorporated Samunnati Finance Private Limited as a wholly owned 
Subsidiary on September 22, 2021. Samunnati Finance Private Limited will engage in the 
business of providing Financial Assistance and improving access to finance to underserved 
geographies and customer segments by providing or arranging loans and advances. Samunnati 
Finance Private Limited is in the process of making an application for obtaining 
Registration/License from the Reserve Bank of India (RBI), to operate as a Non-Banking Finance 
company (NBFC). The NBFC business of the Company would be transferred to Samunnati 
Finance Private Limited by way of a slump sale, as part of the Scheme of Arrangement. 

 
Samunnati Agro Solutions Private Limited has incorporated Samunnati Investment Management 
Services Private Limited on March 08, 2022, as a wholly owned subsidiary, which will manage 
an Alternative Investment Fund (“AIF”) (Category 2 – Debt fund) with emphasis on 
Sustainability, Scalability and Impact.  

 

D. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT  

 

I. Industry Structure and Key Trends 

 
Agriculture and allied sectors significantly contribute to India’s overall growth and development 
as it engages more than 50% of the workforce and contributes about 21% to the country’s Gross 
Value Added (GVA). The rapid population expansion in India is the main factor driving the 
industry. The rising income levels in rural and urban areas, have also contributed to an increase 
in the demand for agricultural products across the country. The total allocation to Ministry of 
Agriculture and Farmers Welfare in Budget 2023 stands at around INR 1.15 crore against last 
year's Budget of approximately INR 1.10 lakh crore, which represents a hike of around 4.6 per 
cent. This highlights the government’s commitment to promoting the growth and development 
of the agriculture sector. 

 
Also, facilitating the availability of hassle-free credit to the Agricultural sector has been the top 
priority for the Government of India as the same plays a vital role in farm sector development 
and facilitates adoption of new technologies. 

 
The Russia-Ukraine war which broke in February 2022 led to sharp rise in prices of food, fuel 
and fertilisers. As inflation accelerated, central banks across the world resorted to monetary 
policy tightening. Many developing countries, particularly in the South Asian region, faced 
severe economic stress as the combination of weaker currencies, higher import prices, the rising 
cost of living and a stronger dollar, which made debt servicing more expensive, proved too much 
to handle. 

 
The Reserve Bank of India (RBI) raised interest rates swiftly to prevent the second-round effects 
of the inflation shock from commodities from affecting economic activity. The same resulted in 
increase in the repo rate by about 250 basis points since May 2022 thereby resulting in high 
interest rates and economic slowdown, the impact of which could continue until the first half 
of current financial year. In view of this, Samunnati also experienced increased cost of 
borrowing/ impact on the fund raise plans and liquidity constraints for business expansion. 
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II. Opportunities and Threats 

 
As performance of the agriculture sector remains critical to growth and employment in the 
country, the Government has been supporting the sector through various interventions like 
providing income support, strengthening of institutional finance and insurance and the push 
given to access for credit. The Government has also been focusing on providing thrust towards 
allied sector so as to diversify the farmers’ income to make them more resilient to weather 
shocks.  

 
As part of the Budget 2023, the government has announced plans to raise the agriculture credit 
target to 20 lakh crore rupees, with a focus on the development of the animal husbandry, dairy, 
and fisheries sectors. This increase in credit will serve as a means of providing greater financial 
support to these industries, thereby promoting their growth and sustainability. The government 
also intends to implement a cluster-based approach and encourage cooperation between 
farmers, the state, and industry in order to facilitate the supply of inputs, provide extension 
services, and establish market connections. This collaborative approach is seen as a means of 
promoting sustainable growth and development in the agriculture sector. By working together, 
farmers, the state, and industry can collectively address challenges and create opportunities for 
improvement in the sector. The government has created the Agriculture Accelerator Fund to 
support young professionals in launching agriculture startups that provide affordable solutions 
to farmers’ challenges and increase productivity and profitability with modern technology.  

 
The key to transforming India into an agricultural powerhouse is the development of agricultural 
technology as India lags behind developed nations in agricultural technology. More than half of 
the farming community lack basic farming equipment, three of every four farms are at risk of 
crop damage from pests and weather and 50 percent of India’s farmers lack access to traditional 
financing sources. 

 
The advent of digital technologies and the evolution of multiple Agtechs have put the farmer 
right at the heart of the entire ecosystem where historically, the market was centred around 
mandis and farmer was just one of the stakeholders. There are various solutions which are now 
being made more farmer-centric in each part of the agri value chain that is digitizing, be it 
finance, inputs, outputs, market linkage or advisory. 

 
All these initiatives like increasing the availability of credit, facilitation of better quality inputs 
through a clean plant program, investments in digital infrastructure and skill development will 
all help in increasing farm-level productivity. The increased focus on driving millet cultivation, 
consumption and exports, higher investment in fisheries and promotion of natural farming are 
all helpful from a crop diversification, sustainability and nutrition standpoint. 

 
Samunnati’s approach to success in this competitive environment is to offer more touchpoints 
and broader portfolio of products and services across the value chain, encompassing both trade 
and finance solutions from market linkage and financing to advisory. In line therewith, 
Samunnati is also focused on creating a digital marketplace which would be a one-stop solution 
for credit, inputs, outputs, market linkage and advisory and would satisfy the requirements of 
all stakeholders in the agri value chain. 

 
III. Samunnati & the Agri Eco System 

 
Samunnati has a knowledge partnership with National Association of FPOs (NAFPO) and 
contributed to the “State of the Sector report on FPO 2023” on nurturing FPOs and making them 
successful. The Report was released on June 23, 2023, at the Light House FPO Conclave that 
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was conducted by Samunnati. Samunnati has also submitted recommendations on key Agri 
related Government Schemes like Agri Infrastructure Fund, Guarantees (e.g., Agri Infra Fund) 
to the Department(s). Samunnati is also actively working with Indian Institute of Millet Research 
to shape holistic policies related to millet sector. In addition, Samunnati’s recognition in the 
Agri Ecosystem for its thought leadership in the space is recognised across several forums: 
 

• Ministry of Agri & Farmers Welfare (MoAFW) - Working Group Committee to review 10K 
FPO scheme: In February 2023, the MoAFW constituted 3 working groups to review the 
10K FPO scheme. Samunnati plays a lead role as Chair in two of the Working Groups 
(Financial Linkages & Capacity Building/ Ecosystem & CBBOs) and is a member in the 
third one on Access to Markets.  
 

• Chair, FICCI Task force on FPOs: The primary objective of the FICCI Task Force on 
Farmer Producer Organisations (FPOs) is to analyse ground level issues faced by FPOs, 
particularly in respect to access to capital, technology and market. The Task Force aims 
to facilitate a comprehensive forum for dialogue with the widest spectrum of 
stakeholders to build consensus around solutions. 

 
• Chair, FICCI Task Force on Agri Finance: The key objectives of the task force is to bring 

together various stakeholders in the agricultural sector for facilitating the exchange of 
knowledge and innovative ideas by fostering regular dialogue/ interactions; enhancing 
outreach to create visibility on key issues and challenges; and shaping evidence-based 
policy and regulatory framework through proactive advocacy for enhanced financial 
inclusion particularly, for the smallholder farmers.  

 
• Member, FICCI Task force on Millets:  To provide thought leadership in consensus 

building among various stakeholders of the Millet value chain and develop short and 
medium-term interventions that FICCI needs to initiate, which can bring about a 
significant effect in pulling up India’s Millet’s sector.  

 
• Member, FICCI Task Force on Agri Startups: This taskforce will participate in facilitating 

the Agri-Food Start-up Policies & Framework and influence in framing start-up centric 
Schemes and investments. Samunnati’s long term plans are to:  

o Create and manage an Investment Fund for Agri Start-up on Seed Investment. 
o Influence the formation of new food clusters and collaborate with our FPO / AE 

/ Export houses who can use this facility to value add/market their products or 
services. 

o Creating positive mindshare among start-up founders since we are acting as a 
Voice of the Founder. 
 

• Member, CII – B20 Working Group, Task Forces under B20 on Financial Inclusion for 

Economic Empowerment: As India holds the Presidency of G20 for the year 2023, it will 
host the 18th G20 Summit. Established in 2010, B20 is among the most prominent 
Engagement Groups of G20, representing the priorities of businesses globally.  
 

• Member, Social Stock Exchange Advisory Committee (SSEAC): This Committee has been 
formed to advise SEBI on the issues pertaining to the development and growth of the 
Social Stock Exchange (SSE) and relevant eco-system; and also advise SEBI on the issues 
pertaining to Regulatory Framework for SSE including Social Enterprises and 
Intermediaries. 
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• Expert Panel, Agri Stack: Samunnati has been invited as a member of the Tech Panel 
and work is expected to begin during FY 2024. 

 

IV. Promoting Climate Smart Agriculture 

 
Samunnati raised its second Green Bond during FY 2023 in form of a debt fund of USD 7.5 Mn 
from the market access platform Symbiotics. This Green Bond comes to Samunnati at a time 
when India’s agri ecosystem is increasingly discovering the perils of climate change. The Green 
Bond is of 4-year tenor, senior, local currency loan facility – to be extended to eligible clientele 
of Samunnati, following Climate Bond Initiative (CBI) categorization, in accordance with the 
Green Bond Principles of Climate Smart Agriculture. These assets will be classified under three 
types of activities - food security, climate resilience and greenhouse gas management; and will 
include practices promoting sustainable agriculture and animal husbandry.  

 
Samunnati has till date disbursed INR 5,000+ Mn in the Climate Smart Agriculture space and 
made a direct impact on 1100+ Farmer Collectives, with major thrust on oilseeds, pulses, biofuel 
and millet crop groups. In addition, Samunnati has also provided interventions in thematic areas 
like organic cotton, post-harvest processing machinery for millets, sustainable animal feed and 
solar irrigation pumps. 
 
Samunnati is also a recipient of multiple guarantee programs from Sustainability & Gender 
aspects. The organizations include Rabo Foundation & USDFC with multiple other conversations 
in the pipeline for the current financial year. These covers are crucial for Samunnati to 
experiment & scale sustainable finance solutions across geographies, ranging from farmers to 
FPO and even startups deploying state-of-the-art solutions. 
 

V. Business Highlights 

 
Samunnati’s vision to act as a window to the Small Holder Farmers / Farmer Collectives and for 
the entire ecosystem got strengthened during FY 2023 through various initiatives and business 
results. These initiatives are detailed in this section. The performance of the portfolio quality 
of the Company has improved significantly YOY post FY 2020 wherein the OTRR has improved 
from 72% to 90% and the delinquency percentage has dropped from 8% to 3%. Further, the equity 
raised during the year has improved the Net Worth significantly. The equity raised during the 
year also reiterates the confidence reposed by the investors on the Company’s business. This 
section also provides brief highlights on the performance of the Farmer Collective and Agri 
Enterprises verticals apart from the financial performance of the Company both on standalone 
and consolidated basis wherein the Pre Provision Operating Profit of the Company improved 
during the year under review. The brief details of the various initiatives and projects being 
implemented by Samunnati Foundation to enable inclusive growth and create opportunities for 
the unserved/ underserved communities in the agricultural ecosystem, are also provided in this 
section. Further, the contribution of the Company’s research desk and the significant 
developments in Technology for driving internal efficiencies are also detailed. 

 

i. Powering Access 

 
Samunnati’s vision to act as a window to the Small Holder Farmers / Farmer Collectives 
and for the entire ecosystem enabling access to these Farmers and Farmer Collectives got 
strengthened during FY 2023 through various initiatives and business results. Samunnati 
was able to qualify its initiatives under one theme – Access. Samunnati’s success indicators 
are –  
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• Access to Finance, Market Linkage (commerce solutions) – for the players and the 
ecosystem 

• Access to Capacity Building for Farmer Collectives and Farmer Members 
• Access to new suppliers and new buyers (for the value chain) 
• Access to new technologies and practices and for the start-ups to various ecosystem 

players 
• Access to new systems 

 
Samunnati has repositioned its subsidiary Samunnati Agri Innovations Lab Private Limited 

(SAIL) (formerly known as Kamatan Farm Tech Private Limited) to focus on Research, 
Innovations and Pilot structures and to roll out new programs for various value chain 
players. SAIL has enabled access to start-ups and Samunnati has launched a Masterclass 
series for the start-ups to understand their current status and finalise plans for their future. 
In addition, through SAIL, Samunnati has also begun engagement with several new age 
players who have innovative offerings which will bring in efficiencies to the Agri value 
chain. 
 

ii. GLOBAL G.A.P, IND G.A.P & creating Access to Global Markets 
 

As part of promoting best practices, Samunnati joined the GLOBALG.A.P network as an 
Associate Community Member and is keen to support development of standards for major 
staples such as cereals, pulses and oilseeds, which are cultivated in large scale by hundreds 
of millions of farmers. These crops are of strategic importance to India for ensuring food 
and nutritional security and further augmenting its growing stature in the international 
Agro commodity trade as a reliable producer of safe and quality food complying with global 
standards. On INDG.A.P, Samunnati, together with eFresh, piloted the first certification 
for Foxtail Millet. Sri Rapthadu Mandala Raithu Utpatti Darula MACS Limited, a Farmer 
Producer Company in Anantapur district of Andhra Pradesh is certified and this feat assumes 
great importance particularly, in this International Year of Millets (IYoM 2023), under the 
ambitious “Make in India” initiative by the Government to ensure Indian millets have access 
to global markets. IndG.A.P certification is recognized as a credible and reliable 
certification program in India, and it is currently being benchmarked against global 
standards like GlobalG.A.P to further enhance its recognition and credibility in the 
international market covering 120 countries. 
 

iii. Portfolio Performance 

 
Despite the challenging environment, Samunnati as a group registered an aggregate GTV of 
INR 27,758 MN in Agri finance business & INR 16,942 MN in Agri commerce business during 
FY 2023. The AUM of the finance business as on March 31, 2023, stood at INR 11,512 MN 
with Average AUM of ~ INR 10,800 MN during FY 2023. Supported by better underwriting 
quality & assessment, the Company’s portfolio quality has improved significantly YOY post 
FY 2020 wherein the OTRR has improved from 72% to 90% and the delinquency percentage 
has dropped from 8% to 3%.  

 
iv. Funding / Equity Raise 

 
During the year under review (as of April 2023), the Company raised Pre-Series E capital 
aggregating to INR 2,540 MN through issuance of Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative 
Preference Shares and Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares. The existing 
investors as well as some new individual investors participated in these rounds of capital 
raise. The Company also made an additional investment of ~ INR 1,000 MN in Samunnati 
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Agro Solutions Private Limited and INR 50 MN in Samunnati Agri Innovations Lab Private 
Limited (SAIL) during the year to fund the business growth of the Subsidiaries.  
 

v. Transitioning to a stronger Balance Sheet 

 
The livelihoods of a section of the Company’s borrowers were severely impacted on account 
of the first and second wave of COVID pandemic which mirrored the impact on the overall 
economy. While the Company had provided support, including providing moratorium and in 
some cases restructuring of loans in line with the RBI directions, to stabilise and revive the 
businesses of these borrowers, some of the borrowers had not been able to recover from 
the Covid impact. In addition to COVID, some of the borrowers were also plagued with 
other issues such as difficulties in equity raise, internal management issues, etc., that had 
eroded their businesses completely. Many borrowers had exhausted their other financial 
means which they had used to service loans even when the business was under severe 
duress. Although the Company has been tracking these accounts that were in multiple 
overdue buckets closely, it was evident that, while there was an intent to repay, the clients 
had exhausted the means to do so; and future payments seemed unlikely, based on the 
Company’s assessment. Each loan has been assessed at the Management Credit Committee 
level individually and recommended that it would be prudent to fully provide for the loan 
since there was no further capacity to pay and there was no security in these loans either. 
Based on the same, the Company has accelerated the provisioning for these delinquent 
accounts. Notwithstanding the accelerated provisioning, the Company is continuing its 
efforts to recover money from such delinquent accounts.  

 
The equity raise during the year has improved the Net Worth significantly. With a cleaner 
and stronger balance sheet, the Company is fairly optimistic of turning profitable from FY 
2024 aided by improved portfolio quality. 
 

vi. Farmer Collectives 

 

Disbursement Milestone:  With over INR 5,000 MN of disbursement in FY 2023, Samunnati 
achieved a new milestone of INR 1,000 MN disbursements in Maharashtra. Similarly, rest of 
West and Central India (Rajasthan, Gujarat, MP) have also crossed disbursements of INR 
1,000 MN. 

 

MAGnet Project: Samunnati got a foot in the door into funding of FPOs in MAGnet - 
Maharashtra Agri Business Network project. This Asian Development Bank assisted project 
targets to support FPOs by improving a network of post-harvest marketing and value chains 
focusing on the horticulture crops. With clear guidelines around cost of funds, Samunnati 
has access to cheaper funds for specific commodities and has increased the portfolio yield 
by 1-1.5%. During FY 2023, Samunnati received a funding of INR 250 MN. 

 
FPO on TREDS: Samunnati enabled first FPO on RBI's TREDS platform and discounted INR 
35 MN of FPO's invoices for supplies.  

 

Instant Pre-Approved Loans (IPL): Launched during FY 2022, IPL played a significant role 

during this financial year in increasing the outreach of Samunnati’s Access to Finance. 784 
new FPOs were added under IPL during FY 2023 as against 567 in previous financial year. 
Maharashtra leads the IPL access with 273 FPOs followed by AP, UP, TN, TS and OR.  

 

21



 

 

Performance on past written-off portfolio: The Stressed Accounts Management team 

together with the field teams have recovered INR 50 MN from written off accounts of FPOs 

and FPO Network Partners segment.  
 

vii. Agri Enterprises 

 

Increase in Gross Margins: The Company recorded a gross margin of INR 452 MN from its 
Agri Commerce business during FY 2023 which was significantly higher than the gross margin 
of INR 409 MN during FY 2022 despite a lower GTV. In percentage terms, the Company’s 
gross margin increased from 1.9% of sales to 2.8% during FY 2023. The improvement in gross 
margin by more than 47% was the outcome of discipline in pricing coupled with process 
improvement which helped to reduce the income leakages.  

 
Due to liquidity constraints, the Company’s GTV had fallen during the first half of the 
financial year. However, aided by the equity raise, the Company managed to revive the 
same and ended the financial year with a GTV of INR 16,942 MN. As explained above, 
despite a lower GTV, the gross margin improved significantly to INR 452 MN during FY 2023 
compared to INR 409 MN during FY 2022. 
  
Launch of Small Ticket Solutions: Understanding the power of MSMEs in the Agri 
Enterprises landscape and their role in enabling the value chain, Samunnati rolled out three 
different Small Ticket Solutions during FY 2023 which will ramp up during FY 2024. These 
offerings will be done on platforms and through Network Partners thereby ensuring ease of 
access for the customers and also administration (including monitoring portfolio 
performance) for Samunnati.  

 

Scale of Market Linkages: The Market linkage (ML) program was piloted during FY 2022 
reaching new heights during FY 2023. During FY 2023, Samunnati extended the ML program 
to 102 FPOs from 10 states and procured total of 9 commodities of over 36,000 MT 
aggregating to INR 1,400 MN. There were 15 FPOs who clocked more than INR 20 MN of 
volume and 5 FPOs with more than INR 50 MN of volume during the year. The commodities 
covered under the program were Wheat, Chana, Turmeric, Cumin seed, Maize, Mustard 
seed, Soyabean, and Ground nut. 

 

viii. Samunnati Foundation 

 
Samunnati Foundation was established to enable inclusive growth and create opportunities 
for the unserved/ underserved communities in the agricultural ecosystem in order to make 
a tangible difference to livelihood of small holder farmers. During the year, the major 
Initiatives undertaken by / highlights of operation of Samunnati Foundation, were as given 
below: 
• Significant progress made in the SFAC promotion of 125 Women FPO in UP, MP & 

Jharkhand. Registration of FPOs has commenced and 85+ registrations have been 
completed.  

• CSR Grant of INR 11 MN received from CORTEVA to support 10 women FPOs on 
institution and capacity building.  

• MoU signed with DCM Shriram to strengthen FPOs promoted by them. The approved 
budget for the project is INR 5 Mn for the next 2 years.  

• 1st batch of Women Entrepreneur Development Program successfully completed in 
collaboration with University of Hyderabad.  

• MOU signed with Meghalaya State Investment Promotion Board 
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• Won the Assam Agribusiness and Rural Transformation Project (“APART”), a World 
Bank project on Agri Enterprises and received the first tranche of funding under this 
project.  
 

ix. Research Desk 

 
SamAgr – Inhouse Research Desk of Samunnati, plays a key role in Market Linkage 
transactions and publishes commodity research reports on a daily basis. With a revenue 
crossing INR 12 MN during FY 2023, this division has also started offering paid services to 
the ecosystem players and has published a Cotton report for a UK customer, has client on 
subscription model for Maize & Soybean. This team also undertook a large survey mandate 
for Viterra during Kharif. The team has plans to diversify and expand their offerings outside 
these commodities in the current financial year.   
 

x. Process & Technology 

 
FY 2023 also saw significant developments in driving internal efficiencies through 
Technology. Some key highlights are as given below: 
 
• New insights dashboard: Launched on the intranet portal, this dashboard has several 

elements and serves as a one-stop reference point for all key highlights across 
Business, Credit and Portfolio performance. 

• ERP: ERP to strengthen Agri Commerce Transactions went live during October 2022 
and is now fully operational for the major solutions offered by Agri Commerce 
business.  

• One.Samunnati.com: During FY 2023, the Company consolidated all the various 
workflows under this one platform referred to as Samunnati One and all the inter-
department transactions will be 100% digital in the current financial year on this 
platform. This platform will also be the single point of entry for all Samunnati systems 
and solutions across stakeholders. 

• Skillsedge: Launch of customised Learning Management System in Mar ’23. This will 
serve as a one-stop knowledge platform as well as Training Delivery platform for 
Samunnati. 

 
Samunnati also undertook several measures to drive process efficiencies which resulted in 
enhanced first time right documentation from the customers directly contributing to 
reduction of TAT and customer satisfaction. Samunnati retained its ISO 9001 certification 
in the recently concluded Surveillance audit during March 2023.  
 

xi. Awards & Recognitions 

 
During the year under review, the Company has received the following awards and 
recognitions: 

 
• Symbiotics and Samunnati won the Sustainable Bond of the Year at the Global AME 

Finance Awards 2022 (September 2022) for the Green Bond. 
• Samunnati was awarded the Banking Frontiers Finnoviti Award under the category 

Digital Agri Suit (May 2022). 
• Ranked #2 in the Best Places to Work 2022 - Employee Choice Awards by the Ambition 

Box (September 2022). 
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• Samunnati featured in the Top 10 winners at the WAW 2022: Wellbeing Awards for 
Workplaces, at the HR Anexi Summit 2022: The Great Rethink (September 2022). 

• Featured in the list of Future Ready Organisations 2022 – 2023, published by the 
Economic Times (July 2022). 

• Samunnati was certified as a Great Place to Work for the third time in a row during 
the year under review and also featured in the Top 25 Mid Size places to work in the 
Country. 

 

VI. Financial Performance 

 
Standalone Financial Performance 

 
On a Standalone basis, the Company recorded a total Income of INR 2,051.27 MN during FY 2023 
which was significantly better than the total income of INR 1,815.90 MN during FY 2022. The 
Company was able to maintain the Net Income at almost the same level as last year at INR 835.53 
MN during FY 2023 compared to INR 838.73 MN during FY 2022 inspite of increase in cost of funds 
due to the external environment. The Pre-Provision Operating Profit / (Loss) improved 
significantly from a loss of INR 12.24 MN during FY 2022 to a profit of INR 60.91 MN during FY 
2023. Impairment/ provision was INR 1,308.96 MN during FY 2023 compared to INR 756.15 MN 
during FY 2022. The Loss before tax on a standalone basis stood at INR 1,297.37 MN during FY 
2023 compared to Loss before tax INR 816 MN during FY 2022 and the Total Comprehensive Loss 
stood at INR 983.14 MN during FY 2023 compared to INR 664.12 MN during FY 2022. 
 
The Company’s Net Worth on a standalone basis stood at INR 5,601.46 MN, compared to INR 
5,343.54 MN as at March 31, 2022. The Company’s Net Worth as of April 2023 has improved 
further, on account of the equity raise of INR 1,340 MN during April 2023. The Cash generated 
from operations before working capital changes also improved significantly from INR 1,052.40 
MN during FY 2022 to INR 1,368.26 MN during FY 2023.Total Assets had reduced from INR 
16,169.56 MN as of March 31, 2022, to INR 15,323.57 MN as of March 31, 2023. The Company’s 
net portfolio had reduced from INR 12,481.26 MN as at March 31, 2022 to INR 10,448.04 MN as 
at March 31, 2023. 

 

Consolidated Financial Performance 

 
On a consolidated basis, the total income of the Company was INR 18,997.72 MN for FY 2023 
compared to INR 22,987.14 MN during FY 2022. The Impairment/ provision was INR 1,308.96 MN 
(PY: INR 1,006.72 MN). The Loss before tax on a consolidated basis stood at INR 1,887.99 MN (PY: 
INR 1,327.10 MN) and the total Comprehensive Loss stood at INR 1,464.64 MN (PY: INR 1,064.45 
MN). The Company’s consolidated Net Worth stood at INR 4,580.09 MN as at March 31, 2023 
compared to INR 4,806.74 MN as at March 31, 2022. 

 

E. COMPOSITE SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT 

 

The Board of Directors of the Company had, at the Meeting held on October 28, 2021, approved 
a Composite Scheme of Arrangement (“Scheme”) for: 
 
(a) the slump sale (i.e., transfer and vesting) of the NBFC business of the Company as a going 

concern to Samunnati Finance Private Limited; and 
(b) post giving effect to (a) above, the amalgamation of Samunnati Agro Solutions Private 

Limited into the Company.  
 

24



 

 

The Company had obtained the approval of all stakeholders for the Scheme and had, along 
with Samunnati Finance Private Limited and Samunnati Agro Solutions Private Limited, filed a 
joint petition before the National Company Law Tribunal, Chennai (“NCLT”) for approval for 
the Scheme. 
 
The NCLT heard the matter and took on record the NOCs submitted by the regulators and in 
view of the absence of any material objections from any statutory authorities and as all the 
requisite statutory compliances had been fulfilled, the NCLT sanctioned the Scheme and 
pronounced the order sanctioning the Scheme on December 23, 2022. 
 
The Effective Date of the Scheme is the date of receipt of the NBFC license by Samunnati 
Finance Private Limited or filing the copy of the NCLT order with the Registrar of Companies, 
whichever is later. 
 
The application filed by Samunnati Finance Private Limited seeking NBFC license has been 
returned by the RBI. Samunnati Finance Private Limited is in the process of liaising with RBI. 
 

F. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF 

THE COMPANY BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR AND DATE OF THE REPORT 

 

During April 2023, the Company raised further capital through issuance of 134,000 Pre-Series E 
Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares the details of which are given below: 
 

S. 

No. 
Date of Allotment Name of the Shareholder No of Shares 

1. 

April 06, 2023 

responsAbility Sustainable Food – Asia II, 
SLP through its general partner 

responsAbility Sustainable Food – Asia II 
(GP), S.À R.L. 

1,22,000 

2. Mr. Ramaraj Rajasekhar 4,000 

3. Mr. Vaidyanathan Shankar 4,000 

4. Mr. Venkataramani Srivathsan 2,000 

5. Mr. Colladi Venkatesan Janakiraman 1,000 

6. Mr. Muthukumar Neelamani 1,000 
 

Consequent to the same, the paid-up share capital as on the date of this report stands at, INR 
2,51,16,800/- (Rupees Two Crore Fifty One Lakhs Sixteen Thousand Eight Hundred Only) divided 
into 5,73,861 (Five Lakhs Seventy-Three Thousand Eight Hundred and Sixty-One only) Equity 
Shares of INR 10/- each and 19,37,819 (Nineteen Lakhs Thirty Seven Thousand Eight Hundred 
and Nineteen only) Preference shares of INR 10/- each. 
 
No other material change and commitment that affect the financial position of the Company 
has occurred between the end of the financial year to which the financial statements relate 
and the date of this report. 

 

G. ALTERATION OF ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION 

 
As part of the capital raise, the Articles of Association of the Company has been altered during 
the year under review by substituting the Articles of Association with new set of Articles of 
Association in order to capture the terms of the Pre-Series E Compulsorily Convertible 
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Cumulative Preference Shares and Pre-Series E Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference 
Shares. 

 

H. DIVIDEND 
 

Your Directors do not recommend any dividend for the year under review. 
 

I. TRANSFER TO RESERVES 

 

As the Company has not made profits during the financial year 2022-23, your Company has not 
transferred any amount to statutory reserve under Section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of India 
Act, 1934. 
 

J. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY 

 

There was no change in the nature of business of the Company during the financial year 2022-
23. 

 

K. NON-ACCEPTANCE OF DEPOSITS 

 

During the year under review, your Company has neither invited nor accepted any deposits 
from public in terms of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 and consequently, no amount 
on account of principal or interest on deposits from public was outstanding as on March 31, 
2023. 

 

L. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING  
 

The internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements are commensurate 
with the size and nature of business of the Company. Further, the internal financial control 
system of the Company is supplemented with internal audit, regular reviews by the 
management and checks by the Statutory Auditors. It provides reasonable assurance in respect 
of providing financial and operational information, complying with applicable statutes, 
safeguarding of assets of the Company, prevention and detection of frauds, accuracy and 
completeness of accounting records and ensuring compliance with the Company’s policies. The 
Audit Committee monitors this system and ensures adequacy of the same. The Statutory 
Auditors of the Company also provide their opinion on the internal financial control framework 
of the Company. 

 

During the year, no material or serious omissions and commissions have been observed by the 
Auditors, reflecting the efficiency and adequacy of internal financial controls.  

 

M. CHANGES TO SHARE CAPITAL 

 

During the year under review, the Company has increased the Authorised share capital, the 
details of which are given below: 
 

Date of 

change 
Particulars 

Revised Authorised Share 

Capital 

Amount 

(INR) 

October 06, 
2022 

Increase in Authorised 
share capital by creation 

of additional 1,50,000 
Preference shares 

7,50,000 equity shares of INR 10 
each 

75,00,000 

19,00,000 Preference Shares of 
INR 10 each 

1,90,00,000 

TOTAL 2,65,00,000 
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Date of 

change 
Particulars 

Revised Authorised Share 

Capital 

Amount 

(INR) 

March 15, 
2023 

Increase in Authorised 
share capital by creation 

of additional 4,00,000 
Preference shares 

7,50,000 equity shares of INR 10 
each 

75,00,000 

23,00,000 Preference Shares of 
INR 10 each 

2,30,00,000 

TOTAL 3,05,00,000 

 

During the year under review, the Company has issued 80,000 Pre-Series E Compulsorily 
Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares and 40,000 Pre-Series E Optionally Convertible 
Redeemable Preference Shares. The details of the same are given below: 
 

S. 

No 
Date of 

Allotment 
Name of the Shareholder Type of Shares 

No of 

Shares 

1. 
October 11, 

2022 

Teachers Insurance and 
Annuity Association of 

America 

Pre-Series E Compulsorily 
Convertible Cumulative 

Preference Shares 
40,000 

2. 
October 11, 

2022 

Vistra ITCL (India) Ltd., 
acting as the trustee for 

Elevar I-IV AIF 

Pre-Series E Compulsorily 
Convertible Cumulative 

Preference Shares 
30,000 

3. 
October 13, 

2022 
Accel India V (Mauritius) 

Ltd 

Pre-Series E Compulsorily 
Convertible Cumulative 

Preference Shares 
10,000 

4. 
December 
01, 2022 

EE-FI AIF 
Pre-Series E Optionally 

Convertible Redeemable 
Preference Shares 

40,000 

TOTAL 1,20,000 

 
Consequent to the same, the paid-up share capital as on March 31, 2023, was INR 2,37,76,800/- 
(Rupees Two Crore Thirty-Seven Lakhs Seventy-Six Thousand Eight Hundred Only) divided into 
5,73,861 (Five Lakhs Seventy-Three Thousand Eight Hundred and Sixty-One only) Equity Shares 
of INR 10/- each and 18,03,819 (Eighteen Lakhs Three Thousand Eight Hundred and Nineteen 
only) Preference shares of INR 10/- each. 

 
The details of the opening and closing Authorized and Paid-up capital of the Company is 
provided below: 

 

Particulars 
Opening 

(April 01, 2022) 

Closing 

(March 31, 2023) 

Authorized Capital (INR) INR 2,50,00,000/- INR 3,05,00,000/- 
Paid Up Capital (INR) INR 2,25,76,800/- INR 2,37,76,800/- 

 
N. DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION 67(3)(C) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 
 

The disclosure with regard to voting rights not exercised directly by the employees of the 
Company as required under proviso to Section 67(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
Rule 16(4) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 is not applicable to 
the Company.   
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O. DISCLOSURE REGARDING ISSUE OF EQUITY SHARES WITH DIFFERENTIAL RIGHTS 

 

The Company has not issued any Equity Shares with differential rights during the financial year 
2022-23.  

 
P. DISCLOSURE REGARDING ISSUE OF EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTIONS / SWEAT EQUITY SHARES 

 
The Company currently administers an Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP) which was initially 
constituted during 2015. The Board had approved the amended Employee Stock Option Plan 
2019, at its Meeting held on May 22, 2019, and the same was also approved by the Members at 
the Extraordinary General Meeting held on May 24, 2019. Further with a view to broaden the 
terms and conditions, including those on vesting, exercise, lapse and surrender, the Board has 
approved the Employee Stock Option Plan 2022 (“ESOP Scheme 2022”), at its Meeting held on 
February 10, 2022, and the same was approved by the Members in the Extraordinary General 
(EGM) Meeting held on March 07, 2022. 

 
The ESOP was introduced with the intention of motivating employees to contribute to the 
growth and profitability of the Company, as well as to create a sense of ownership and 
participation amongst the employees. 

 
In addition to the above, the Company administers Management Stock Option Plan (MSOP) 
constituted during 2019 to provide wealth creation opportunities to the Promoter of the 
Company. It is to be noted that the Company is a registered startup and has been issued a 
certificate of recognition as a ‘startup’ by the Government of India, with registration number 
DIPP6002. Further, as per applicable law (Rule 12(1), the Companies (Share Capital and 
Debentures) Rules, 2014), a startup is permitted to issue employee stock options to its 
Promoter.  

 
Q. DISCLOSURES UNDER RULE 12(9) OF THE COMPANIES (SHARE CAPITAL AND DEBENTURES) 

RULES, 2014 

 

Particulars Value 

Outstanding Options at the beginning of the 
year – April 01, 2022 

130,713 

Options Granted during FY 2023 - 

Options Vested during FY 2023 - 

Options Exercised during FY 2023 - 

Options Lapsed 11,259 

Total No. of Shares arising as a result of 
exercise of option during FY 2023 

No options exercised during FY 2023 

Exercise Price (Weighted) No options exercised during FY 2023 

Variation of terms of options 
No variation in the terms of the options 

during FY 2023 

Money realised by exercise of options No options exercised during FY 2023 

Total No. of Options in force as on March 31, 
2023 

119,454 

Employee wise details of options granted to:  

(1) key managerial personnel; Nil 
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Particulars Value 

(2) any other employee who has been granted 
options in any one year amounting to five 
percent or more of options granted during 
that year 

Nil 

(3) identified employees who were granted 
option, during any one year, equal to or 
exceeding one percent of the issued capital 
(excluding outstanding warrants and 
conversions) of the company at the time of 
grant 

Nil 

 

R. CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO 

 
The Company’s Capital Adequacy ratio stood at 20.18% as on March 31, 2023, which is well 
within the regulatory limits applicable for NBFC-ND-SI as stipulated by the Reserve Bank of 
India. 

 

S. EXTRACT OF THE ANNUAL RETURN 

 
In accordance with Section 134(3)(a) and Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’), 
the annual return in Form MGT-7 is placed on the website of the Company and is available on 
https://site.samunnati.com/annual-returns/ 

 

T. CHANGES IN DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL DURING THE YEAR 

 

S 

No. 
Name of the 

Director 
DIN/PAN Category 

Changes during the year, if 

any 

1. 
Mr. Narasimhan 
Srinivasan 

01501266 
Independent 

Director 
Nil 

2. 
Mr. Sunil Satyapal 
Gulati 

00016990 
Independent 

Director 

Re-appointed as Independent 
Director w.e.f. September 25, 

2022 

3. 
Dr. Venkatesh 
Tagat 

02728441 
Independent 

Director 
Nil 

4. 
Mr. Mahendran 
Balachandran 

00121640 
Nominee 
Director 

Nil 

5. 
Ms. Jyotsna 
Krishnan 

06572288 
Nominee 
Director 

Nil 

6. Mr. Akshay Dua 03144843 
Nominee 
Director 

Nil 

7. 
Ms. Rekha 
Unnithan 

08354141 
Nominee 
Director 

Nil 

8. Mr. Anil Kumar S G 01189011 Director & CEO Nil 

9. 
Mr. Gurunath 
Neelamani 

02799586 
Whole-time 

Director 
Re-appointed as Whole-time 
Director w.e.f. June 21, 2022 

10. 
Mr. Ashok 
Dhamankar 

AECPD4476R CFO (KMP) Cessation w.e.f. April 22, 2022 

11. Mr. Lalit Malik AKDPM0939K CFO (KMP) 
Appointed w.e.f. April 22, 2022 
Cessation w.e.f. May 29, 2023* 
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S 

No. 
Name of the 

Director 
DIN/PAN Category 

Changes during the year, if 

any 

12. Mr. S Arun Kumar AIPPA8757R 
Company 
Secretary 

Nil 

* Change post end of the financial year 

 
The Members at the Annual General Meeting held on September 05, 2022, approved the re-
appointment of Mr. Gurunath Neelamani (DIN: 02799586) as a Whole-time Director of the 
Company for a period of five years with effect from June 21, 2022 and the appointment of Mr. 
Sunil Satyapal Gulati (DIN:00016990), as an Independent Director, not liable to retire by 
rotation, for a second term of five years with effect from September 25, 2022. 

 
Dr. Venkatesh Tagat (DIN: 02728441) was appointed as an Independent Director for the first 
term of five years effective September 18, 2018. His office of directorship is due for retirement 
on September 17, 2023. Dr. Venkatesh Tagat, due to other commitments, has requested that 
his current term as an Independent Director be not extended. 

 
Further to this and based on the feedback from the Directors on the need to have an 
Independent Director with finance background on the Board, the Company has identified Mr. 
Krishnan K (DIN 01109189), Chartered Accountant and Cost Accountant, for appointment as an 
Independent Director of the Company.  

 
Considering Mr. Krishnan’s qualification and experience and review of all the declarations given 
by him including the fit and proper declaration, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
had at its Meeting held on August 09, 2023, recommended to the Board, the appointment of 
Mr. Krishnan K as an Independent Director for a period of five consecutive years.  

 
The Board of Directors, based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee, have recommended to the Members the appointment of Mr. Krishnan K as an 
Independent Director, not liable to retire by rotation, for a period of five years with effect 
from September 18, 2023, up to September 17, 2028. 

 
In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Krishnan K fulfils the conditions specified in the Companies 
Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder and he is a fit and proper person for appointment 
as a Independent Director as per the RBI regulations and is independent of the Management. 

 
The Board recommends the appointment of Mr. Krishnan K ((DIN 01109189) as an Independent 
Director to the shareholders. The notice convening the Annual General Meeting, sets out the 
details. 

 
U. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY 

 
The Nomination and Remuneration Policy, inter-alia, provides for criteria and qualifications for 
appointment of Director, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management, Board diversity, 
remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, etc. The policy can be accessed at the 
following link: https://site.samunnati.com/samunnati-financial-intermediation-and-services-
private-limited/  
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V. DETAILS OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD 

 
The Directors of the Company met 8 (Eight) times during the Financial Year 2022-23. The details 
of Board Meetings held during the year and the attendance of Directors at the said Meetings 
are given below: 
 

BOARD MEETINGS 

Sl. No Date of Meeting 
No. of Directors who 

attended the meeting 

1.  April 22, 2022 8/9 
2.  May 26, 2022 9/9 
3.  August 05, 2022 8/9 
4.  October 06, 2022 6/9 
5.  November 14, 2022 8/9 
6.  November 29, 2022 6/9 
7.  February 06, 2023 9/9 
8.  March 29, 2023 6/9 

 

W. LIST OF COMMITTEES 

 
The Constitution of the Board Committees as of March 31, 2023, are as below:  

 
1. Audit Committee 

 

The composition of the Audit Committee is as follows: 
a) Mr. Sunil Gulati           -          Chairman 
b) Mr. N. Srinivasan           –          Member  
c) Mr. Akshay Dua               –          Member 

 
2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

 

The composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is as follows: 
a) Mr. N. Srinivasan    –  Chairman 
b) Mr. Sunil Gulati    –  Member 
c) Dr. Venkatesh Tagat      -  Member 
d) Ms. Jyotsna Krishnan     –  Member     
e) Ms. Rekha Unnithan     –  Member     
f) Mr. Anil Kumar S G        –  Member 

 
3. Risk Management Committee 

 

               The composition of the Risk Management Committee is as follows: 
a) Mr. Sunil Gulati   -  Chairman 
b) Mr. N. Srinivasan   -  Member 
c) Mr. Akshay Dua   -  Member 
d) Mr. Anil Kumar S G   -  Member 
e) Mr. N. Gurunath   -  Member 
f) Mr. Madhu Varma Raja   –  Member  
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4. Stakeholders Relationship Committee 

 

                The composition of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee is as follows: 
a) Dr. Venkatesh Tagat  -  Chairman 

b) Mr. Anil Kumar S G   -  Member 
c) Mr. N. Gurunath   -  Member 

 

5. IT Strategy Committee 

 

               The composition of the IT Strategy Committee is as follows: 
a) Mr. Sunil Gulati   -       Chairman 
b) Mr. Anil Kumar S G   -      Member 
c) Mr. N. Gurunath   -       Member 
d) Mr. Raj Vallabhaneni  -       Member 
e) Mr. Chandra Sekhar Nallagonda -       Member 

 
6. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 

 

               The composition of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee is as follows: 
a) Dr. Venkatesh Tagat  -      Chairman 
b) Ms. Jyotsna Krishnan   -      Member 
c) Mr. Anil Kumar S G   -      Member 
d) Mr. N. Gurunath    -      Member  

 

7. Finance Committee 

 

               The composition of the Finance Committee is as follows: 
a) Mr. Anil Kumar S G   -     Member 
b) Mr. Gurunath N    -    Member  

 
8. Investment Committee 

 

               The composition of the Investment Committee is as follows: 
a) Mr. Anil Kumar S G   -     Member 
b) Mr. Gurunath N    -    Member  

 

X. DETAILS OF COMMITTEE MEETINGS 

 
The details of Committee Meetings held during the year and the attendance at the said Meetings 
are given below: 

 
AUDIT COMMITTEE 

S. No. Date of Meeting 
No. of Members who 

attended the Meeting 

1.  May 26, 2022 3/3 
2.  August 05, 2022 3/3 
3.  November 14, 2022 2/3 
4.  February 06, 2023 3/3 
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NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 

S. No. Date of Meeting 
No. of Members who 

attended the Meeting 

1. May 24, 2022 6/6 
2. August 03, 2022 6/6 
3. November 16, 2022 6/6 

 
 
 

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

S. No. Date of Meeting 
No. of Members who 

attended the Meeting 

1.  May 24, 2022 6/6 
2.  August 03, 2022 5/6 
3.  November 11, 2022 4/6 
4.  January 25, 2023 6/6 

 
STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE 

S. No. Date of Meeting 
No. of Members who 

attended the Meeting 

1. February 01, 2023 3/3 
 

IT STRATEGY COMMITTEE 

S. No. Date of Meeting 
No. of Members who 

attended the Meeting 

1. May 24, 2022 5/5 
2. August 03, 2022 5/5 
3. November 14, 2022 5/5  
4. February 03, 2023 5/5 

 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE 

S. No. Date of Meeting 
No. of Members who 

attended the Meeting 

1. May 24, 2022 3/4 
 

FINANCE COMMITTEE 

S. No. Date of Meeting 
No. of Members who 

attended the Meeting 

1.  April 20, 2022 2/2 
2.  May 09, 2022 2/2 
3.  May 30, 2022 2/2 
4.  June 15, 2022 2/2 
5.  June 25, 2022 2/2 
6.  June 29, 2022 2/2 
7.  July 27, 2022 2/2 
8.  August 24, 2022 2/2 
9.  September 08, 2022 2/2 
10.  September 26, 2022 2/2 
11.  October 14, 2022 2/2 
12.  October 19, 2022 2/2 
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FINANCE COMMITTEE 

S. No. Date of Meeting 
No. of Members who 

attended the Meeting 

13.  November 25, 2022 2/2 
14.  December 19, 2022 2/2 
15.  December 21, 2022 2/2 
16.  December 27, 2022 2/2 
17.  December 29, 2022 2/2 
18.  January 04, 2023 2/2 
19.  January 20, 2023 2/2 
20.  January 31, 2023 2/2 
21.  February 27, 2023 2/2 
22.  March 02, 2023 2/2 
23.  March 14, 2023 2/2 
24.  March 21, 2023 2/2 
25.  March 31, 2023 2/2 

 

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE 

S. No. Date of Meeting 
No. of Members who 

attended the Meeting 

1.  June 29, 2022 2/2 
2.  July 12, 2022 2/2 
3.  August 24, 2022 2/2 
4.  September 15, 2022 2/2 
5.  October 17, 2022 2/2 
6.  November 23, 2022 2/2 
7.  December 20, 2022 2/2 
8.  January 30, 2023 2/2 
9.  February 16, 2023 2/2 
10.  March 16, 2023 2/2 

 

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS MEETING 

S. No. Date of Meeting 
No. of Members who 

attended the Meeting 

1.  March 25, 2023 3/3 
 

Y. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS  

 
The particulars of loans, investments and guarantees for FY 2022-23 have been provided in the 
notes to the Financial Statements of the Company. 

 
Z. REGULATORY COMPLIANCE 

 
The Company has complied with all the mandatory regulatory requirements of the Reserve Bank 
of India guidelines, the Companies Act, 2013, Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, and other applicable statutes and 
regulations. 
 

AA. DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY/JOINT VENTURES/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES AS OF MARCH 31, 2023 

 

As of March 31, 2023, the Company has five wholly owned subsidiaries as given below: 
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(a) Samunnati Agro Solutions Private Limited, which offers trading facilities and market 
linkages to Agri value chain players. 

 
(b) Samunnati Foundation - It was established to enable inclusive growth and create 

opportunities for the unserved/ underserved communities in the agricultural ecosystem 
in order to make a tangible difference to livelihood of small holder farmers. 

 
(c) Samunnati Agri Innovations Lab Private Limited (formerly known as Kamatan Farm Tech 

Private Limited), apart from trading in Agri commodities, strives to make markets work 
for small holder farmers through strategy, innovation, establishing non-linear business 
growth channels of crowd and community sourced rural franchisee network of Agri 
Entrepreneurs (AE), Village Level Entrepreneurs (VLE), Farmer Financing, Agri value chain 
financing through anchor institutions like Agri startups, Business Correspondents (BC), 
online debt marketplace channels. 

 
(d) Samunnati Finance Private Limited, will engage in the Business of providing Financial 

Assistance and improving access to finance to underserved geographies and customer 
segments by providing or arranging loans and advances in the Agricultural Sector. It is in 
the process of making an application for obtaining NBFC license from the Reserve Bank 
of India. The NBFC business of the Company would be transferred to Samunnati Finance 
Private Limited as part of the Scheme of Arrangement. 

 

(e) Samunnati Investment Management Services Private Limited, will manage an 
Alternative Investment Fund (“AIF”) (Category 2 – Debt fund) with emphasis on 
Sustainability, Scalability, and Impact. Samunnati Investment Management Services 
Private Limited is a subsidiary of Samunnati Agro Solutions Private Limited and is a step-
down subsidiary of the Company.  

  
The information as required under the first proviso to sub-Section (3) of Section 129 is given 
in Form AOC - 1 in Annexure I. 

 

BB. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

 
As required under the Companies Act, 2013, the prescribed Form AOC-2 for the financial year 
2022-23 is appended as Annexure II to this Board’s report. 

 

Also, the Related Party Disclosures under Regulation 53(f) read with Part A of Schedule V of 
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 have been 
provided in Note 42 of the notes to the Financial Statements of the Company. 

 

CC. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS 

OR TRIBUNALS 

 

In relation to the Composite Scheme of Arrangement (“Scheme”) for (a) the slump sale of the 
NBFC business of the Company as a going concern to Samunnati Finance Private Limited; and 
(b) post giving effect to (a) above, the amalgamation of Samunnati Agro Solutions Private 
Limited into the Company, approval of all stakeholders for the Scheme has been obtained. 
Further to this, the Company had, along with Samunnati Finance Private Limited and Samunnati 
Agro Solutions Private Limited, filed a joint petition before the National Company Law Tribunal, 
Chennai (“NCLT”) for approval for the Scheme. 
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The NCLT heard the matter and took on record the NOCs submitted by the regulators and in 
view of the absence of any material objections from any statutory authorities and as all the 
requisite statutory compliances had been fulfilled, the NCLT sanctioned the Scheme and 
pronounced the order sanctioning the Scheme on December 23, 2022. 
 
The Effective Date of the Scheme is the date of receipt of the NBFC license by Samunnati 
Finance Private Limited or filing the copy of the NCLT order with the Registrar of Companies, 
whichever is later. 
 
The application filed by Samunnati Finance Private Limited seeking NBFC license has been 
returned by the RBI. Samunnati Finance Private Limited is in the process of liaising with RBI. 

 
DD. DETAILS OF CREDIT RATINGS OF THE COMPANY DURING FY 2022-23  

 
During the year under review, the Rating Agencies have revised the ratings to the Company, as 
given below: 
 

Rating agency 
Ratings as on April 

01, 2022 

Changes/revisions 

of rating during the 

year, if any 

Ratings as on March 

31, 2023 

CRISIL - Long term CRISIL BBB+ / Stable Yes CRISIL BBB / Stable 
CRISIL - Short term CRISIL A2+ Yes CRISIL A2 
CARE CARE BBB / Stable - CARE BBB / Stable 

 
EE. DETAILS OF DEBENTURE TRUSTEE OF LISTED DEBENTURES 

 
Name of the Debenture 

Trustee 
Complete Postal Address Email ID and Contact Number 

Catalyst Trusteeship 
Limited 

Windsor, 6th floor, Office no.604, 
CST Road, Kalina, Santacruz, 

Mumbai – 400098 

E mail ID: 

nidhi.vasa@ctltrustee.com 

Contact No: 022-4922 0555 
 

FF. DECLARATION FROM INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

 

The Independent Directors of the Company have submitted declarations as required under 
Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) stating that they meet the criteria of 
independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Act. In the opinion of the Board, the 
Independent Directors fulfil the conditions specified in the Act and the rules made thereunder 
for appointment as Independent Directors including their integrity, expertise and experience 
and confirm that they are independent of the Management.  

 
GG. RECEIPT OF ANY COMMISSION BY MD/WTD FROM A COMPANY OR RECEIPT OF 

COMMISSION/REMUNERATION FROM ITS HOLDING OR SUBSIDIARY 

 
The Company’s Directors have not received any commission/ remuneration from the Subsidiary 
Companies. 
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HH. DISCLOSURE UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, 

PROHIBITION & REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 

 
The Company has complied with the provisions relating to the constitution of Internal 
Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 
Redressal) Act, 2013. Your Company believes in providing a safe and harassment free workplace 
for every individual and endeavors to create and provide an environment that is free from 
discrimination and harassment including sexual harassment. The policy on Sexual Harassment 
of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013, can be accessed at 
the following link: https://site.samunnati.com/samunnati-financial-intermediation-and-
services-private-limited/  

 
During the financial year 2022-23, your Company has not received any complaints pertaining to 
sexual harassment.  

 

II. STATUTORY AUDITORS, THEIR REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

 

The report of the Statutory Auditors along with the Financial Statements together with the 
Notes to the Financial Statements are enclosed to this report. The observations made in the 
Auditors’ Report are self-explanatory, contain no qualification, reservations, adverse remarks 
and disclaimers and therefore do not call for any further comments. 

  
The Board of Directors at its Meeting held on July 29, 2021, recommended the appointment of 
M/s PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP, Chartered Accountants (Registration No. 003990S/S200018) 
as Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of 3 (three) consecutive years. Subsequently, 
the Members, at the 7th Annual General Meeting held on August 31, 2021, had approved the 
appointment of M/s PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP, Chartered Accountants as the Statutory 
Auditors from the conclusion of the 7th Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of 10th Annual 
General Meeting (i.e. FY 2021-22 to FY 2023-24). 
 

JJ. DETAILS OF FRAUDS REPORTED BY THE STATUTORY AUDITORS 

 
During the year under review, the Statutory Auditors of the Company have examined the books 
as required under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 and have not identified any 
employee related frauds. 

 
KK. DETAILS OF PENALTIES/ FINES/ LATE FEES PAID BY THE COMPANY 

 
The Company had inadvertently missed giving prior intimation to BSE regarding the interest 
payment date in respect of one ISIN for the quarter ended June 30, 2022 as per Regulation 
57(4) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. BSE had 
levied a fine of Rs. 1,180 (Indian Rupees One Thousand One Hundred Eighty Only) on account 
of the non-intimation, which has been paid. 
 
Details of the fine levied and the steps taken to prevent recurrence of such non-intimation 
were tabled to the Board of Directors at the Meeting held on November 14, 2022. 
 

LL. COST AUDITOR AND COST AUDIT REPORT 
 

Maintenance of cost records and requirement of cost audit as prescribed under the provisions 
of Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable for the business activities 
carried out by the Company. 
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MM. SECRETARIAL AUDIT AND SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

 
Pursuant to Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder, the Board 
of Directors had appointed Ms. Jayashree S Iyer, Practicing Company Secretary (Membership 
No.10394/Certificate of Practice No.21403), to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company 
for the financial year 2022-23. The Secretarial Audit Report in the prescribed Form MR-3 is 
annexed as Annexure III.  
 
There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks or adverse disclaimers made by 
the Secretarial Auditor in her Report dated June 05, 2023. 

 

NN. COMPLIANCE WITH THE SECRETARIAL STANDARDS 

 

The Company has complied with all the applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute 
of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI). 

 

OO. INTERNAL AUDIT 

 
The Company has an Internal Audit department, and the Head of the department has a dotted 
line reporting to the Audit Committee of the Company.  

 
In line with the requirement of Section 138 of Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 13 of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014, the Board of Directors, based on the recommendation of the 
Audit Committee, had appointed M/s. RGN Price & Co LLP (Firm Registration Number – 002785S) 
as the Internal Auditors of the Company for FY 2022-23.  
 
The Internal Auditors (both external and in-house) of the Company carried out the Audit and 
have confirmed that the checks and control systems prevalent are commensurate with the size 
and turnover of the Company. The significant observations from the Internal Audit were tabled 
to the Audit Committee on a quarterly basis. 

 
PP. INFORMATION SYSTEM AUDIT 
 

In line with the requirements of RBI’s Master Direction on Information Technology Framework 
for the NBFC Sector, 2017, the Company is required to appoint Information Systems (IS) Auditors 
to examine and confirm the effectiveness of controls that are in place to ensure confidentiality, 
integrity and availability of the Company’s IT infrastructure. 

 
Accordingly, the Board had appointed M/s RSM Astute Consulting Group as Information Systems 
Auditors of the Company for FY 2022-23. The Information Systems Auditors conducted the 
Information System audit and confirmed that the Company is in compliance with all applicable 
regulations as prescribed by the RBI. The observations from the IS Audit are tabled to the Audit 
Committee on an annual basis. 

 
QQ. DISCLOSURE ON ESTABLISHMENT OF VIGIL MECHANISM/WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY 

 

The Company believes in the conduct of the affairs in a fair and transparent manner by adopting 
highest standards of professionalism, honesty, integrity and ethical behavior. The Company has 
implemented a vigil mechanism to provide a framework for the Company’s employees and 
Directors to promote responsible and secure whistle blowing.  

 

38



 

 

The Company has established a Board approved policy on whistle blowing and separate email 
addresses are designated wherein the employees or the stakeholders can report the matters 
falling under the purview of Vigil Mechanism. There was no complaint received under this 
category during the financial year ended March 31, 2023.  

 
RR. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) 

 

In compliance with the requirements of Section 135 and Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, as amended, 
the Board of Directors has adopted a policy on CSR as recommended by the CSR committee and 
the said policy is available on the Company’s website, at 
https://site.samunnati.com/samunnati-financial-intermediation-and-services-privatelimited/ 
 
Due to losses, the Company was not under an obligation under Section 135 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 to spend for CSR activities during FY 2022-23. The annual report on CSR activities is 
provided in Annexure-IV to this report. 

 
SS. SAMUNNATI’S ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL POLICY 

 
Your Company maintains a systematic and comprehensive Enterprise Risk management (ERM) 
approach to proactively identify and address potential risks, leading to enhanced decision 
making and improving the overall resilience across businesses. The Company has risk 
management and internal controls to monitor, and manage the various risks associated with 
the business. The key objectives of the ERM of Samunnati are: 

 
• to establish methodologies and lay down a multi-tier governance structure; 
• to build a profitable and sustainable business with conservative risk management approach; 
• to have risk management as an integral part of the organization’s business strategy; and 
• to undertake business activities that are well understood and within acceptable risk 

appetite.   
 
The ERM embeds an Environmental and Social Management System (ESMS) with an aim to ensure 
that Samunnati’s business activities consider and address environmental and social risks and 
also impacts associated with the projects or business that Samunnati finances.  

 
To achieve long-term value through sustainability, Samunnati has rolled out its Environmental 
and Social Management System (ESMS) to implement the E&S Policy and Operational Principles.  

 
Accordingly, Samunnati shall:  

 
• not extend loans to any activity that features in Samunnati’s ‘Exclusion List’ or is 

prohibited by local, national or international laws, as applicable;  
• Assess and identify potential environmental and social risk and impacts associated with 

borrower’s activities; 
• influence borrowers to comply with national environmental and social legal requirements;  
• encourage borrowers to adopt international good practices and safeguards, as relevant;  
• promote prevention and control of pollution to protect the environment;  
• promote resource use efficiency and sustainable production of living and 

natural resources;   
• promote safe and healthy work environment and treating all workers fairly;  
• proactively engage with the stakeholders towards timely redressal of grievances; and  
• protect its borrower through robust processes and effective communication. 
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TT. HUMAN RESOURCES 

 

The Company had 236 employees on payroll as on March 31, 2023 (on standalone basis). The 
management team of the Company comprises of passionate professionals committed to achieve 
the organizational goals. 

 

During the year, Samunnati built up the rigour around employee engagement conducting 
several programs on mental and social well-being apart from refurbishing the employee connect 
program – DILSE through structured employee connects. As part of connects, employee 
experience around the adoption to new initiatives and other Digital applications such as the 
Insights dashboard were surveyed. Regional coordinators were also deployed to act as conduits 
of communication between their respective locations and management and were also 
responsible for the engagement initiatives within their location. 
 
Samunnati partnered with the See change team and organised a training for Agri Enterprise RMs 
called Project Amrut, which was attended by a total of 60 participants. The first batch of 
training, was conducted for two-days focusing on role plays and case studies to motivate RMs 
and encourage the team to plan their day, prepare better for customer meetings and focus on 
the value add from Samunnati while offering solutions. In the second batch the training focused 
on the various products of Samunnati on day one and the remaining two days focused on the 
sales training. 
 
Samunnati was recertified by Great Place to Work for the third year and had over 450 team 
members who participated in the survey. The Company also won the Well-being Award (Waw) 
conducted by HR Anexi and an award from Ambition Box for the Best Places to Work in India 
2021. 
 
Samunnati Nakshatra is the Company’s inhouse talent pool created for select employees who 
have demonstrated past performance and future potential to be able to take on greater 
responsibilities within Samunnati. The nomination is through the respective line manager or 
Zonal Head and less than 10% of the employees across the organization are chosen to be part 
of this pool. 
 
The Talent Pool offers a host of programs such as Offline & Online learning and development 
programs, Interactive sessions with senior leadership, Mentoring opportunities and an 
opportunity to work on projects in other teams that help the select team members to upskill. 
Samunnati conducted regular companywide meetings / PAN India townhalls and had smaller 
focused group discussions with regional teams.  
 
Samunnati rolled out a Learning Management System (Skillsedge) to administer training 
programs online for its employee. Skillsedge was accessible on the go through mobile 
applications and apart from the inhouse training content, also provided access to external 
library of valuable materials.  

 

As on March 31, 2023, Samunnati Group (the Company and its subsidiaries) had a total of 570 
employees on its rolls. 
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UU. TECHNOLOGY RELATED UPDATES 

 

1. Technology initiatives 

 
Samunnati’s Tech initiatives for FY 2023 were focused on digitizing the Company’s 
processes and integrations, aligned to the Technology roadmap created in the previous 
year. All the new, upgraded features and integrations are aimed to reduce the Turn 
Around Time and improve the end user efficiency. Most of the internal stakeholder tasks 
and processes were taken for digitization and automation. 
 

2. Core systems updates 

 

SAM Custopedia (Loan Origination system): 

 
Loan origination system was enhanced with the modules like Credit Committee, CAD and 
Credit Ops which further reduced multiple manual reviews and approval, thereby reducing 
errors, and improving the efficiency of the entire process. The other key features include 
bank integrations for payments and payment through virtual accounts. Approach for API 
based integrations within LMS is concluded and implementation is in progress.  
 
All the digital modules built for Samunnati’s internal teams like field force, credit managers 
etc. were integrated and a single portal One.Samunnati was launched. This portal serves 
as the single user interface enabled with SSO.  
 
One.Samunnati houses modules like generic ticketing system, internal audit, Samunnati 
Associate onboarding, Tele Calling, Lead Management, etc. This portal also hosts the 
Insights Dashboard. 
 

Loan Management System: 

 

Encore, the LMS system which is offered in a SaaS model to Samunnati has undergone few 
enhancements based on Samunnati’s Key requirements and is fully functional as the LMS 
for all the Company’s products. 
 
Analytics and insights 

 

A first version of a consolidated and scalable data platform has been implemented and data 
from various digital systems are channelized to this platform. The platform integrates, 
cleans, processes, and transforms both near-real time and batch data, serving as a single 
source of truth on business and customer metrics. This has helped in standardization of 
Products, Customer and Commodity Classification with a business buy-in. This 
standardization has ensured data integrity across various Samunnati’s digital solutions like 
LOS, LMS, One.Samunnati, etc.  
 
The Insights dashboard portal currently has 80+ customized dashboards for the Company, 
serving the needs of business leaders, support teams and field force. Role-based access has 
been enabled for these dashboards and reports, with user training for self-service. This will 
be an on-going activity to drive data driven decisions and products. 
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Unnati 

 

Unnati was implemented to cater to the B2B2C segment for one loan product. In this, the 
credit line is sanctioned to farmers/members of FPOs or partners. The portal captures the 
customer data and evaluates eligibility using the product rules. Different external APIs 

like Highmark, Karza and Leegality are integrated. 

 

Sun-Infor 

 

Sun-Infor is planned to be sunset. All the supported processes are enabled in NetSuite ERP. 
Data migration to ERP is planned.   

 
3. Information Security 

 
The Company has further strengthened the information and cyber security infrastructure 
through the following activities. 

 
a. Comprehensive Endpoint Security  

• Device Management and Protection 
• Anti-Virus/Spyware/Malware/Ransomware Protection 
• File/Web/Network Threat Protection 
• Programme/Windows Application Control 
• Web Access Control and Content Filtering 

 
b. Data Loss Prevention for company owned devices 

• Device Protection 
• Drive Encryption 

 
c. Additional Security Measures 

• Cloud Apps Protection 
• Added Azure Cloud Servers to Security Operation Centre (WatchGuard SOC) 

Dashboard for real-time monitoring. 
• Location-based access restrictions. Work emails/apps are accessible only 

from Indian locations and exceptions are provided on need basis for short-
term 

• Work Profile Creation in Personal Mobile Devices 
• Work Email/Apps are accessible only from company owned devices or work 

profile in personal mobile devices. 
 

d. e-Waste processing through empanelled vendor for secure disposal 
 

e. Annual Vulnerability and Penetration Test (VAPT) for Infra/Network at Chennai HO 

 

VV. RISK MANAGEMENT 

 
Samunnati has implemented comprehensive risk management practices to effectively identify, 
assess, and mitigate risks in order to safeguard financial stability, ensuring prudent lending 
practices and protecting interest of all stakeholders. 
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The risk management approaches followed are:   
 
a) Account Acquisition - This involves careful selection of customers based on its defined 

credit policy. Clear definition of prudential norms in terms of client wise exposures, sector 
wise exposures are defined and monitored through a strong governance mechanism. 
 

b) Account Management - Considering the nature of customers who are repeat borrowers 
under revolving credit facility, the account management is done through periodic visits to 
ensure completion of post sanction covenants, ascertaining end use of funds and assessing 
early warning signals. 

 
c) Portfolio Management – A strong follow-up and collections team and Risk Monitoring 

department, supported by daily MIS on the portfolio performance aid the Company’s 
efforts to have a satisfactory loan book, in tune with the risk appetite. 
 

d) Risk Framework – Samunnati follows a structured approach to identify, assess and manage 
risk.  The key components of the framework are as under: 

 
a. Risk Governance: A clear governance structure that defines roles, responsibilities 

for risk management. 
  

b. Risk Identification: Identifying and categorizing various types of risk that Samunnati 
faces including credit risk, market risk, liquidity risk, operational risk, legal and 
regulatory risk, and strategic risk. 

 
c. Risk Assessment: Assess the magnitude and likelihood of identified risks using 

various risk metrices using both quantitative and qualitative methods. 
 

d. Risk appetite and Tolerance: Samunnati has defined risk appetite, which represents 
the level of risk that Samunnati is willing to take to achieve its objectives. Risk 
tolerance limits to determine the acceptable level of risk exposure under each risk 
category, which effectively guides risk management decisions and action. 

 
e. Risk Mitigation strategies:  Samunnati has developed various risk mitigation 

strategies and controls to manage identified risks viz, by devising robust credit 
policies, underwriting standards and risk acceptance criteria. 

 
f. Information, Communication and Reporting: Enterprise risk management requires 

a continual process of obtaining and sharing necessary information, from both 
internal and external sources, which flows up, down, and across the organisation. 

 
WW. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

 
Pursuant to Section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), the Directors, based on 
the representations received from the operating management after due enquiry, confirm that: 
 
a) In the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2023, the 

applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating 
to material departures; 
 

b) They have, in the selection of the accounting policies, consulted the Statutory Auditors and 
have applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 
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prudent to give a true and fair view of the Company as at March 31, 2023 and of the profit 
and loss of the Company for that period; 

 
c) The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care to the best of their knowledge and 

ability for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and 
detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

 
d) The Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; 

 
e) The Board of Directors have laid down Internal Financial Controls to be followed by the 

Company and that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating 
effectively; 

 
f) The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 

applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 
 

XX. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE 

EARNINGS AND OUTGO 

 
The disclosure of particulars regarding conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption & 
Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo in terms of Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014, are given below:  

 
Conservation of Energy 

 

Sr. 

No 
Particulars 

1. 
The steps taken or impact on 
conservation of energy  

The Company is taking adequate steps to 
conserve the energy at all the levels and 
has also implemented various measures for 
reduction in consumption of energy like: 
a. Recycling and reduced usage of paper 
b. Energy efficient lighting in its offices 
c. Introduction of mobile based training 

application for employees 
d. Virtual meetings, reviews, planning and 

mobile based learning sessions 

2. 
The steps taken by the company for 
utilising alternate sources of energy  

Not Applicable  

3. 
The capital investment on energy 
conservation equipment’s  

During the year under review, there are no 
capital investment made on energy 
consumption equipment  

 
Technology Absorption 

 
The Company has no Technology Absorption during the period under review as given below: 

 
i. the efforts made towards technology absorption; NA 
ii. the benefits derived like product improvement, cost 

reduction, product development or import substitution; 
NA 
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iii. in case of imported technology (imported during the last 
three years reckoned from the beginning of the financial 
year) -  

NA 

a) the details of technology imported;  NA 

b) the year of import;  NA 

c) whether the technology been fully absorbed; NA 

d) if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken 
place, and the reasons thereof; and 

NA 

iv. the expenditure incurred on Research and Development NA 
 

Foreign exchange earnings and outgo: 

 
Particulars Inflow Outflow 

Current Year (FY 2022-23) NIL INR 14.01 MN 
Previous Year (FY 2021-22) NIL INR 5.07 MN 
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ANNEXURE - I 

Form AOC-1 

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with  

Rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate 

companies/joint ventures 

 

Part A: Subsidiaries 

                             (INR MN) 
S. 

No. 
Particulars Details 

1. Name of the subsidiary 

Samunnati 

Agro 

Solutions 

Private 

Limited 

Samunnati 

Finance 

Private 

Limited 

Samunnati 

Agri 

Innovation 

Lab 

Private 

Limited 

(Formerly 

known as 

Kamatan 

Farm 

Tech 

Private 

Limited) 

 

Samunnati 

Investment 

Management 

Service 

Samunnati 

Foundation 

2. 
Date since when subsidiary was 
incorporated/acquired 

October 
14, 2016 

September 
22, 2021 

April 16, 
2021 

March 08, 
2022 

March 9, 
2020 

3. 

Reporting period for the 
subsidiary concerned, if 
different from the holding 
company’s reporting period 

NA NA NA NA NA 

4. 

Reporting currency and 
Exchange rate as on the last 
date of the relevant Financial 
year in the case of foreign 
subsidiaries 

NA NA NA NA NA 

5. Share capital 6.81 25.00 53.45 0.10 8.50 
6. Reserves & surplus 960.92 0.23 (148.92) (0.86) (25.08) 
7. Total assets 5,336.97 25.43 34.26 0.54 2.84 
8. Total Liabilities 5,336.97 25.43 34.26 0.54 2.84 
9. Investments 30.10 - - - - 
10. Turnover 16,940.51 - 22.95 - 5.55 
11. Profit / (Loss) before taxation (451.58) 0.27 (138.52) (0.86) (24.12) 
12. Provision for taxation (109.08) 0.07 - - - 
13. Profit / (Loss) after taxation (342.50) 0.20 (138.52) (0.86) (24.12) 
14. Proposed Dividend NIL NIL NIL NIL N.A. * 
15. Extent of Shareholding 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 

* Samunnati Foundation is a Section 8 Company and cannot declare dividend 

Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations. 
• Samunnati Finance Private Limited 

• Samunnati Investment Management Service Private Limited  

46



 

 

Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year – Not Applicable 

 

Part B : Associates and Joint Ventures 

 

Statement pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies 

and Joint Ventures 

 

Name of Associates/Joint Ventures 

Not applicable 

1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date 
2. Date on which the Associate or Joint Venture was 

associated or acquired 
3. Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by the 

company on the year end 
No. of shares 
Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint 
Venture 
Extent of Holding% 

4. Description of how there is significant influence 
5. Reason why the associate/joint venture is not 

consolidated 
6. Net worth attributable to shareholding as per 

latest audited Balance Sheet 
7. Profit/Loss for the year 

i. Considered in Consolidation 
ii. Not Considered in Consolidation 

 
1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations – Not applicable 
2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year – Not 

applicable 

 

For Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited 

 

 

                                                               
 

             Sd/-         Sd/- 

Gurunath Neelamani                                   Anil Kumar S G 

Wholetime Director                                    Director & CEO  

DIN: 02799586                                            DIN: 01189011 

  

Place: Chennai 

Date: August 11, 2023 
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Annexure II 

Form No. AOC -2 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and 

Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

 
Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with 

related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including 

certain Arm’s Length Transactions under third provision thereto. 

 
a) Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:  

Name(s) of 

the related 

party and 

nature of 

relationship 

Nature of 

contracts/ 

arrangemen

ts/ 

transaction 

Duration of the 

contracts/arran

gements/transa

ctions 

Justification for 

entering into such 

contracts or 

arrangements or 

transactions 

Date of 

Approval by 

the Board 

Amount 

paid as 

advances

, if any 

Date on which 

the special 

resolution was 

passed in 

General 

Meeting as 

required under 

first proviso to 

Section 188 

NIL 

 
b) Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis: 

 

Name(s) of the 
related party and 

nature of 
relationship 

Nature of contracts/ 
arrangements/ 
transactions 

Duration of the 
Contracts/Arrange
ments/Transaction 

Salient terms of the 
contracts or 

arrangements or 
transactions including 

the value, if any 
(Amount in INR) 

Date of 
Approval by the 

Board 

Amount 
paid as 

advances
, if any 

Samunnati Agro 
Solutions Private 
Limited, Wholly 
owned subsidiary and 
entity in which 
Director is interested 

Deputation of Employees 
of the Company to the 
Wholly owned subsidiary 

12 months Deputation of 
Employees of the 
Company to the Wholly 
owned subsidiary  
INR 2.87 MN 
(excluding taxes), 
has been charged from 
wholly owned 
subsidiary as 
Deputation Charges 

February 10, 
2022 

 

Samunnati Agro 
Solutions Private 
Limited, Wholly 
owned subsidiary and 
entity in which 
Director is interested 

Fees charged for the 
Corporate Guarantee 
granted by the Company 
in respect of the 
borrowings of its wholly 
owned subsidiary 

In accordance with 
the tenure of the 

relevant borrowing 
by the Subsidiary 

Fees charged for the 
Corporate Guarantee 
granted by the Company 
in respect of the 
borrowings of its wholly 
owned subsidiary 
INR 18.67 MN 
(excluding 
taxes) 
 

February 10, 
2022 

 

Samunnati Agro 
Solutions Private 
Limited, Wholly 
owned subsidiary and 
entity in which 
Director is interested 

Shared Services 12 months Fee charged by the 
Company from the 
Wholly owned 
subsidiary towards the 
Shared Services 
INR 
2.82 MN (excluding 
taxes) 

February 10, 
2022 
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Name(s) of the 
related party and 

nature of 
relationship 

Nature of contracts/ 
arrangements/ 
transactions 

Duration of the 
Contracts/Arrange
ments/Transaction 

Salient terms of the 
contracts or 

arrangements or 
transactions including 

the value, if any 
(Amount in INR) 

Date of 
Approval by the 

Board 

Amount 
paid as 

advances
, if any 

Samunnati Agro 
Solutions Private 
Limited, Wholly 
owned subsidiary and 
entity in which 
Director is interested 

Inter Company loans 
given to the wholly 
owned subsidiary 

12 months Loan granted during the 
year INR 4,265 MN 
 
Loan repaid during the 
year INR 5,465 MN  
 
Loan outstanding at the 
end of the year 
(including accrued 
interest) INR 200.01 MN 
 
Interest Income during 
the year INR 133.04 MN 

February 10, 
2022 

 

Samunnati 
Foundation, Wholly 
owned subsidiary 

Inter Company loans 
given to the wholly 
owned subsidiary 

12 months Loan granted during the 
year INR 1.10 MN 
 
Loan outstanding at the 
end of the year 
(including accrued 
interest) INR 1.10 MN 
 

February 06, 
2023 

 

Samunnati Agri 
Innovations Lab 
Private Limited, 
Wholly owned 
subsidiary 

Inter Company loans 
given to the wholly 
owned subsidiary 

12 months Loan granted during the 
year INR 155 MN 
 
Loan repaid during the 
year INR 69.75 MN 
 
Loan outstanding at the 
end of the year 
(including accrued 
interest) INR 92.41 MN 
 
Interest income during 
the year INR 5.57 MN 

February 10, 
2022 

 

Samunnati Investment 
Management Services 
Private Limited, 
Wholly owned 
subsidiary and entity 
in which Director is 
interested 

Inter Company loans 
given to the wholly 
owned subsidiary 

12 months Loan granted during the 
year INR 1 MN 
 
Loan outstanding at the 
end of the year 
(including accrued 
interest) INR 1.01 MN 
 
Interest income during 
the year INR 0.01 MN 

February 06, 
2023 

 

Arthan Finance Private 
Limited, entity in 
which Director is 
interested 

Loan granted by the 
Company in the ordinary 
course of business of the 
Company as a NBFC 

24 Months Loan granted during the 
year NIL 
 
Loan repaid during the 
year INR 15.20 MN 
 
Loan outstanding at the 
end of the year 
(including accrued 
interest) INR 6.55 MN 
 
Interest income during 
the year INR 2.16 MN 

June 24, 2021  
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Name(s) of the 
related party and 

nature of 
relationship 

Nature of contracts/ 
arrangements/ 
transactions 

Duration of the 
Contracts/Arrange
ments/Transaction 

Salient terms of the 
contracts or 

arrangements or 
transactions including 

the value, if any 
(Amount in INR) 

Date of 
Approval by the 

Board 

Amount 
paid as 

advances
, if any 

Ecozen Solutions 
Private Limited, entity 
in which Director is 
interested 

Loan granted by the 
Company in the ordinary 
course of business of the 
Company as a NBFC 

60 Months Loan granted during the 
year NIL 
 
Loan repaid during the 
year INR 60 MN 
 
Loan outstanding at the 
end of the year 
(including accrued 
interest) INR 101.19 MN 
 
Interest income during 
the year INR 17.67 MN 

Not 
Applicable 

since Director 
interest is 

subsequent to 
grant of loan 

 

Wheels EMI Private 
Limited, entity in 
which Director is 
interested 

Loan granted by the 
Company in the ordinary 
course of business of the 
Company as a NBFC 

24 Months Loan granted during the 
year INR 100 MN 
 
Loan repaid during the 
year INR 300 MN 
 
Loan outstanding at the 
end of the year 
(including accrued 
interest) - NIL 
 
Interest income during 
the year INR 6.20 MN 

February 12, 
2021 

 

 

 

For Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited 

                                                               
 

 

 

 

            Sd/-        Sd/- 

Gurunath Neelamani                                   Anil Kumar S G 

Wholetime Director                                    Director & CEO  

DIN: 02799586                                            DIN: 01189011 

  

Place: Chennai 

Date: August 11, 2023  
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Annexure III - Secretarial Audit report

JAYASHREE S /YER 
COMPANY SECRETARY & INSOLVENCY PROFESSIONAL 

C. P. No.21403/ IBBIIJPA-002/JP-N00741/2018-19/ 122 11/ AFA-202452 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2023 

[P11rs11an110 Section 204(/) of the Companies Act, 2013 and R11le No.9 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Rem11nera1ion of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 20/ 4) 

To, 

The Board of Directors 

Mis. Samunnati Financia l Intermediation & Services Private Limited 
CI_N No.: U65990TN20 I 4PTC096252 
Baid Hi Tech Park, 8th Floor, Nol29 8, 
East Coast Road, Thiruvanmiyur 
Chennai - 600041 

Dear Members, 

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and lhe 
adherence to good corporate practices by M/s. Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services 
Private Limited (hereinafter called the '·Company''). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner 
that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and 
expressing our opinion thereon. 

Based on my verification of the Company's books, papers. minute books, forms and returns filed and 
other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its 
oflicers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit and considering 
the relaxation granted by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and Securities and Exchange Board of 
India warranted due to the spread of COV!D-19 Pandemic, I hereby rep0r1 that in my opinion. the 
Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2023 
generally complied with the provisions of Acts, Rules, Regulations, Guidel ines, Standards listed 
hereunder, subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') and the rules made thereunder; 
(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made thereunder to 

the extent applicable 10 the Company; 

(iii) The Depositories Act, I 996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder to the 
extent applicable to the Company; 

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations to the extent 
applicable 10 the Company; 

/IVL• -> I l"l'S 103 
'1' 2140 

23 Lake Area, J rd Cross Street, Nungambakkam, CJ,e1111ai 600034 
Mobile: 9840908393 E-mail: jayashree2505@,gmail.com 
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JA YASHREE S IYER 
COMPANY SECRETARY & INSOLVENCY PROFESSIONAL 

C.P.No.21403/ IBBI/IPA-002/IP-N0074J/2018-19/l2211/ AFA-202452 

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange 
Board of lndia Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act'):-

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible 
Securities) Regulations, 2021; 

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of lndia (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 20 I 5 to the extent applicable to the Company; 

vi) Other laws, as amended from time to time, specifically applicable to the Company viz., 

(a) Reserve Bank of lndia Act, I 934, Rules, Regulations. Guidelines, Circulars, Master 
Directions. Notifications made thereunder to the extent-applicable to Systemically 
important Non-Deposit taking NBFC; 

(b) Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically important Non-Deposi t taking 
Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016; 

(c) Non-Banking Financial Companies Auditor's Report (Reserve Bank) Directions, 
2016; 

(d) Non-Banking Financial Companies - Corporate Governance (Reserve Bank) 
Directions, 20 IS; 

(e) NBFC Auditors Report Reserve Bank Directions, 1998; 
(f) Information Technology Framework for the NBFC Sector; 
(g) Liquidity Risk Management Framework for NBFCs; 
(h) Scale based Regulation (SBR): a revised regulatory framework for NBFCs. 

I report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and on examination 
of the relevant documents and records in pursuance thereof, U1e Company has complied with the 
applicable laws, rules. regulations and guidelines. 

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

(i) Secretarial Standards issued and amended by The Institute of Company Secretaries of lndia; 
(ii) The Debt Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with BS£ Limited. 

During U1c period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Acts, Rules, 
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards ment ioned above. A penalty of Rs I, 180/- was paid to BSE 
Limited for non-submission of details of interest/dividend/principal obligations for the quarter March 
2022 in respect of ISJN INE55 I U07167. 

23 Lake Area, 3rd Cross Street, Nungambakkam, Clte11nai 600034 
Mobile: 9840908393 E-mail: jayasltree2505@gmail.com 
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JAYASHREE S IYER 
COMPANY SECRETARY & INSOLVENCY PROFESSIONAL 

C. P.No.21403/ IBBJIIPA-0021/P-N0074J/2018-19/l2211/ AFA-202452 

The following Regulations and Guiddines prescribed under the SEBI Act are not applicable to the 
Company as the Equity Shares of the Company are not listed: 

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 
2015; 

(ii) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 
Takeovers) Regulations, 20 I I 

(iii) The Securities and Exchange Board oflndia (Deli sting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; 
(iv) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2009; 

(v) The Securities and Exchange Board oflndia (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations. 2009; 
(vi) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee ~tock Option Scheme and 

Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; 

(vii) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; 
(viii) The Securities and Exchange Board of lndia (Registrars to an lssue and Share Transfer 

Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and deal ing with c lient; 

I further report that 

(i) The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive 
Directors. Non-Executive Directors and Independent Di rectors. 

(ii) There was no change in the composition of the Board of Directors during the period under 
review. 

(iii) Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and 

detailed notes on agenda were sent in advance as stipulated in the Companies Act, 20 13, 
and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further infom1ation and clarifications on Lhe 
agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

(iv) As per the minutes or lhe meetings duly recorded and conlim1ed by the Directors. the 
decisions of the Board were carried through by majority whi le there were no dissenting 
views recorded as part of the minutes. 

(v) The Compliance by the Company of the applicable financial laws like di rect and indirect 
tax laws and maintenance of Ii nanciaJ records and books of accounts has not been reviewed 
in this audit since the same have been subject to review by statutory financial auditors, Lax 

auditors and other designated professionals. 

I further report that based on the infom1ation received, explanations given, process explained, records 
maintained, statutory compliance and statutory internal audit reports submitted to the Board on 
quarterly basis. and taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Company, in my opinion there 

are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of 
the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and 
guidelines. .,_brae.& 

..,.,..,,,,-- --..... ~ 
' <?. I further report that during the audit period: _. F'CS JOJ9f • 

23 Lake Area, 3rd Cross Street, N1111gt1mbakkam, Che111,ai 600034 
Mobile: 9840908393 E-mail: jayashree2505@_xmail.com 
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JAYASHREES /YER 
COMPANY SECRETARY & INSOLVENCY PROFESSIONAL 

C. P. No.21403/ JBBIIIPA-002/IP-N00741/2018-J9/ 12211/ AFA-202452 

i) The Company has issued and allo11ed 80,000 Pre-Series E compulsorily convertible cumulative 
preference shares ("CCPS") and 40,000 Pre-Series E optionally convertible redeemable 
preference shares (OCRPS), to certain existing and incoming investors through preferential 
allotment on private placement basis: 

ii) fhe Company has increased the Authorised Share Capital from INR 2.50,00,000/- to 
INR 2,65,00,000/- which was approved by the Shareholders at the Extraordinary General 
Meeting held on October 6, 2022 and has subsequently increased the Authorised Share Capital 
from INR 2,65,00,000 10 INR 3,05,00,000/- which \\US approved by the Shareholder.; nt the 
Extraordinary General Meeting held on March 15, 2023 and consequential changes have been 
made to the Capital Clause of Memorandum of Association of the Company. 

iii) The Company has amended the Articles of Association for capturing the tenns of the 
Amendment to the Shareholders Agreement in relation to issuance ofCCPS and OCRPS. by 
)ubstituting the entire Articles of Association with new set of Articles of Association. 

iv) National Company Law Tribunul, Chennai vide its Order received by the Company on January 
4, 2023 had sanctioned the Composite Scheme of Arrangement for (a) the slump sale of the 
NBFC business of the Company as a going concern to Sarnunnati Finance Private Limited: 
and (b) post giving etTeet 10 (a) above, the amalgamation of Samunnati Agro Solutions Private 
Limited \\ ith the l lolding Company 

As per approved Scheme, the L:fTective Date shall mean the later of the dates on which (i) 
Samunnati Finance Private Limited is in receipt of the Final NBFC Licence; or (ii) filing the 
copy of the order of NCLT approving the Scheme with the jurisdictional Registrnr of 
Companies. Further. the Scheme would be operative and effective only from the later of (i) or 
(ii) above. 

As on date, the Company hns only obtained the order of NCL T for the Scheme and the final 
NBFC license for Sarnunnati Finance Private Limited is under proccs~. 

\) The Company has increased the Authorised Share Capital from INR 2,50,00,000/- to 
INR 3,05,00,000/- which was approved by lhc Shareholders at the Extra Ordinary General 
Meeting held on 6. I 0.2022 and 15.03.2023 and has made consequential amendments to the 
Capital Clause of Memorandum of Association of the Company, 

vi) The Company has issued 1,20,000 preference shares aggregating to lt-.R 120,00,00,000/­

(including premium) during the period under review. 

vii) l'he Company has made equity investment oflNR 99,92,39,296/- in Samunnati Agro Solutions 
Private Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. 

23 Lake Area, 3rd Cross Street, Nungambakkam, Clte1111ai 600 ~ 
Mobile: 9840908393 E-mail: jayasltree2505@~mail.com 

{" .. 
\ ~ 

l: 

54



JAYASHREE S IYER 
COMPANY SECRETARY & INSOLVENCY PROFESSIONAL 

C. P.No.21403/ IBBIIIPA-002/IP-N00741/2018-19/1221 l / AFA-202452 

viii) The Company has made equity investment of INR 5,00,00,000/- in Samunnati /\gri 
Innovations Lab Private Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. 

ix) The Company has issued secured redeemable non-convertible debentures for INR 

58,50.00,000/-

x) The Company has redeemed secured redeemable non-convertible debentures for INR 
137 .66.83,333/-

Place: Chennai 
Date : 05.06.2023 

N01e: This report is to be read with our /euer of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and 
forms an integral part of this Report. 

23 Lake Area, 3"1 Cross Street, Nu11gambakkam, Che11nai 600034 
Mobile: 9840908393 E-nzail: jayasltree2505@gmail.com 
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JAYASHREE S IYER 
COMPAN Y SECRETARY & INSOLVENCY PROFESSIONAL 

C.P.No.21403/ JBBI/JPA-002/IP-N00741/2018-19112211/ AFA-202452 

'ANNEXURE - A' 
To, 

The Board of Di rectors 
M/s. Samunnati Financinl Intermediation & Services Private Limited 
CIN No.: U65990TN2014PTC096252 
Baid Hi Tech Park, 8th Floor, Nol29 B, 
East Coast Road, Thiruvanmiyur 
Chennai-600041 

Dear Sir 

My report of even date is lo be read along with this letter. 

I. Maintenance of Secretarial records is the responsibility oflhc management of the Mis. Samunnati 
Financial lntennediation & Services Private Limited (the 'Company'). My responsibi lity is to 
express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 

2. J have followed the audi t practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The review was done 
to ensure that correct facts are reflected in Secretarial records. We believe that the process and 
practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of 
Accounts oflhe Company. 

4. Wherever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the Compliance of 
laws, rules and regulations and happening of events, etc. 

5. The compliance of provisions of all laws, rules. regulations, standards applicable is the 
responsibility of the management of the Company. My examinarion was limited to the 

verification of records and procedures on test check basis for the purpose of issue of the 
Secretarial Audit Report. 

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to lhe future viability of the Company nor 
the elTicacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affa · 

Company. ~~ 

Jayashr 

Pince: Chennai 
Date: 05.06.2023 

Company 
FCS 10394 
CP 21403 

PR LJs2no21 
UDIN: F0 10394E000459029 

23 Lake Area, 3 rd Cross Street, Ntmgambakkam, Chennai 600034 
Mobile: 9840908393 E-mail: jayashree2505@gmail.com 
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Annexure IV 

 

Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibilities (CSR) Activities 

 

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company 

 

Samunnati goes beyond business to make a sustainable, positive social, economic and 
environmental impact on the lives of the people. The Company envisions sustainable and 
inclusive development of small holder farmers and the agriculture ecosystem as a whole. 
With the endeavour of equal prosperity to all, Samunnati as an agriculture ecosystem enabler 
strives for inclusive and sustainable development of small holder farmers with positive 
environmental, social and economic impact. 
 
The primary purpose of the Company’s CSR philosophy is to contribute to the development 
of socially and economically challenged communities of the country with specific focus on 
creating sustainable livelihoods, supporting rural development projects, promoting education 
and skill development, promoting environmental sustainability, and supporting innovations 
that largely benefit the agriculture ecosystem. 
 
The CSR activities of the Company are wheeled through various CSR entities including 
Samunnati Foundation. 
 
In line with the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has 
constituted the CSR Committee. The Company has put in place a Board approved Corporate 
Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy which governs the CSR activities of the Company. 
 
2. Composition of the CSR Committee:  

 

S. No. Name of the Member Designation 

Number of 

meetings of CSR 

Committee held 

during the year 

Number of 

meetings of CSR 

Committee 

attended during 

the year 

1 Dr. Venkatesh Tagat Chairman  
 
1 

1 
2 Ms. Jyotsna Krishnan Member - 
3 Mr. Anil Kumar S G Member 1 
4 Mr. Gurunath N Member 1 

 
a) Composition of CSR committee and CSR Policy approved by the Board are disclosed on the 

website of the Company and can be accessed at the following link: 
https://site.samunnati.com/csr/  
 
b) Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-

rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if 
applicable (attach the report): Not applicable  

 
c) Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the 

Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for 
set off for the financial year, if any: Nil 
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d) Average net profit (PBT) of the Company as per Section 135(5): NIL 
  
e) (a) Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5): NIL 

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous 
financial years: Nil 

                 (c)  Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Nil 

          (d)   Total CSR obligation for the financial year: NIL 

 

f) (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year: NIL 
 

 

Total Amount 

Spent for the 

Financial Year 

(in INR) 

Amount Unspent (in INR) 

Total Amount transferred to 

Unspent CSR Account as per 

Section 135(6) 

Amount transferred to any fund specified 

under Schedule VII as per second proviso to 

Section 135(5) 

 
Amount Date of 

transfer 
Name of the 

Fund 
Amount Date of 

transfer 

NIL 

 

       (b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11) 

Sl. 

No. 
Name 

of the 

Project 

Item 

from the 

list of 

activities 

in 

Schedule 

VII to 

the Act 

Local 

area 

(Yes/No) 

Location of 

the project. 
Project 

duration 
Amount 

allocated 

for the 

project 

(in INR) 

Amount 

spent in 

the 

current 

financial 

Year (in 

INR) 

Amount 

transferred 

to Unspent 

CSR 

Account 

for the 

project as 

per Section 

135(6) (in 

INR) 

Mode of 

Implementation 

- Direct 

(Yes/No) 

Mode of 

Implementation - 

Through 

Implementing 

Agency 

State District Name CSR 

Registration 

number 

NIL 

 

(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year: Not 
applicable  

(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads – Not Applicable 

(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable – Not Applicable 

(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year - Nil 

(g) Excess amount for set off, if any: Nil 

 
g) a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: Nil 

 
b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding 
financial year(s): Nil 
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h) In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so 
created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year: Nil 

  
 

For Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited 
 

 

 

         Sd/-          Sd/- 

Anil Kumar S G     Venkatesh Tagat 

Director & CEO     Chairman of CSR Committee 

DIN: 01189011     DIN: 02728441 

 

Place: Chennai 

Date: August 11, 2023 
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RKF SRIDHAR & SANTHANAM UP

CharterecJ Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS* REPORT

To the Members of Samunnati Financial Inlermediation & Services Pnvale Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Optnion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Samunnati
Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited (hereinafter refen-ed to as the 'Holding
Company") and its subsidiaries (Holding Company and its subsidiaries together refen'ed to
as "the Group''), which comprise the consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023, and
ihe consolidated statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flows statement for
the yearthen ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter refemed to
as "the consolidated financial statements")

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (the "Ad") in the manner so required and give a taie and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated
slate of affairs of the Group, as at 31 March 2023, and their consolidated loss, consolidated
total comprehensive income, their consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Companies act. 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report We are independent of the Group, in accordance with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to ourauditof the consolidated financial statements in
terms of the Code of Ethics issued bythe Institute ofChartered Accountants of India ( ICAl"),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.
We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion on the consolidated financial statements

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements
as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

We have determined the matter described below to be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report

T«l *41 MmT29t6M W* Fta -91 44 29U2W * EfT«<a in ' •wwpWMla.P
PW < 8AKT>VWAM UP " IftD OM OyW ' No 0192 SW» "
REGCStfUnOH HO WTTH KM • M3»M&320WU 60



Key Audit Matter
Provisign for expected credit loss (ECL) on loans
^Refer Note 6 and Note 25 to the Consolidated ind AS
Financial Statements)

Financial instruments, which Include loans to
customers, represent a significant portion of the total
assets of the Holding Company. The Holding
Company has loans aggregating Rs. 11,166 77
mllt^on as at 31 March 2023 The Holding Company
has made a provision for impairment foss aggregating
Rs 1.013 26 milhon against the loans outstanding Co
Customers as at the balance sheet date Due to the

Significance of the judgments used <n t>cth
classification of loans into vanous stsges as well as
the computation of expected credit losses cn such
financial assets as per Ind AS 109, this has been
considered as a key audit matter

Management estimates Impairment provision using
Expected Credit loss model for the loan exposure
using criteria In accordance with Ind AS 109 which
also include considering the impact of recent RBl's
regulatory circulars. Measurementof loan impairment
Involves application of significant judgement by the
management These include'

(a) Segmentation of the loan portfolio Into
homogenous pool of borrowers,

(b) Identification of exposures where there is a
significant increase in credit nsk t'SICR') and those
that are credit impaired,

(c) Deterrnination of the probability of default for each
of the segments identified, and

(d) Loss given default for various exposures based on
past trends / experience, management estimates etc..

Additionally, the economic and business
consequences of the COVID 19 pandemic as
described in Note 49 to tfie consolidated Ind AS
financial statements, slowdown of economic activity,
moratoriums granted to borrowers, ttie related
regulatory directrves and also the applicable
accounting directions, further affect provisioning
under the ECL approach

Note 2.5 to the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements explains the various matters that the
management has considered for developing this
expected credit loss model.

How the matter vras addresse<(

Read and assessed the Holding Company's
accounting policy for impairment of ftnancfal
assets and its compliance with ind AS 109, the
govemance framework approved by the Board of
Directors and moratorium pursuant to the RBI
circular and tested the implementation of such
policy on a sample basis.

Assessed the critena for staging of loans based
on their past-due status to check compliance with
requirement of Ind AS 109 Tested a sample of
performing loans (stage 1) to assess whether any
SICR or loss indicators were present requiring
them to be classified under stage 2 or 3 or vice
versa along with additional considerations applied
by the Management for staging of loans as SICR
or default categories in view of Company s policy
on moratorium.

Tested the input data used for grouping and
staging of loan portfolio into vanous categones
and default buckets for determining the
Probability of Default t^D) and Loss Given
Default (LGD) rates. Also, tallied the input data
with the underlying books of accounts and
records.

Tested assumptions used by the management in
determining the overlay for macro-economic
factors (Including COVID-19 pandemic).

Assessed and tested the inputs used in ttre
Impairment computation (Including the data
Integrity of Information extracted from the
Company's IT systems).

Tested the arithmetical accuracy of computation
of ECL provision performed by the Company in
spreadsheets.

Assessed disclosures included In the
consolidated Ind AS financial statements in

respect of expected credit losses including the
specific disclosures made with regard to the
management's evaluation of the uncertainties
arising from COVID-19 and its impact on ECL
estimation.

\
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Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditors' Report
Thereon

The Holding Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the
preparation of the other information. The other information compnses Ihe information
included in the Holding Company's Directors report but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditors' report thereon. These reports are expected to be made
available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express any fonn of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other infonnation and» in doing so, consider w/hether the other »nformation is
matenally inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained
duringthe course ofour auditor otherwise appears to be materially misstated. When we read
the reports containing the other information, if we conclude that there is a material
misslatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with
governance.

Responsibilities of the Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the
preparation and presentation of these consolidated financial statements in terms of the
requirements of the Act, that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position,
consolidated financial performance, consolidated statement of changes In equity and
consolidated cash flows of the Group m accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section
133 of the Act. The respective Management and Soard of Directors of the companies
included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements by the Management and Board of Directors of the Holding Company, as
aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Management and Board
of Directors of the companies included mthe Group are responsible for assessing the ability
of each company to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the respective
Management and Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible
for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group.
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Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated ^nancial

statements as a whole are free from matenal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs
will always detect a matenal misstatement when it exists Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered matenal if. individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also;

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audrt procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The nsk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from en-of, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the ovemde of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in
India have adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by Management and Board of
Directors.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of Management and Board of Directors use of the going
concern basts of accounting in preparation of the consolidated financial statements and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncedainiy exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditors' report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or. if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors'
report However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue
as a going concern

• Evaluate the overall presentation, stnjcture and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial infonriation of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated
financial statements of which we are the independent auditors.
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We believe that the auditevidenceobtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financiai statements.

We communicate v/lth those charged v/lth governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies m internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters thai may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current penod and are therefore the key audit matters We describe these matters in our
auditors' report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditors' Report) Order, 2020 ('the Order"), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the "Annexure
A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent
applicable.

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report, to the extent
applicable, that

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Group in
electronic mode on sen/ers physically located in India relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements so far as it appears from our examination of those books
except that we were unable to verify the back up of books of accounts maintained in
electronic mode for the period from August 5, 2022 to March 31, 2023 in respect of all the
subsidianes. as necessary logs in respect of such penod are not available with the Group.

c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including
Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding
Company and its subsidiaries as on 31 March 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors
of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries incorporated in India, none of the directors of
the Group companies, incorporated in India is disqualified as on 31 March 2023 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act,

f) With respect to adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial statements of the
Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure B". Our report
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expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internaJ
financial control over financial reporting of those companies, for reasons stated therein,

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors' Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rutes, 2014. In ouropinion and to the best of
Our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on
the consolidated financial position of the Group - Refer Note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements.

ii. Provision has been made in the consolidated financial statements, as required under
the applicable faw or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, rf any, on
long-term contracts including derivative contracts - Refer Note 17 to the consolidated
financial statements m respect of such items as tt relates to the Group

lii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiary
companies incorporated m India.

iv. (a) The respective management of Holding Company, its subsidiary companies,
incorporated in India has represented that, to the best of their knowledge and belief,
no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company, its
subsidiary companies incorporated in India to or in any other person(s) orentity{ies),
including foreign entities f Intermediaries'), with the understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend
or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies incorporated in India
("Ultimate Beneficianes") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(b) The respective management of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies
incorporated in India have represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief,
no funds have been received by the company from any per8on(s) or entity{ies),
including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies
incorporated in India shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries ") or provide any guarantee, secunty orthe likeon behalf
of the Ultimate beneficianes.

(c) Based on such audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, performed by us whose financial statements/
financial information have been audited under the Act, nothing has come to our notice
that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b)
contain any material mis-statement.

V. The Group have not paid/declared any dividend during the financial year. Accordingly,
reporting on compliancewith the provisions of Section 123 ofthe Actis not applicable,

vl. As proviso to rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules. 2014 is applicable for the
company only w e.f April 1, 2023, reporting under this clause is not applicable.
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3 With respect to the matter to be Included in ihe Auditor's Report under section 197(16):

Since the Holding Company and its subsidiaries a privatelimited company, the provisions
of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 are hot applicable to it. Accordingly, reporting on
the compliance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act is not applicable

for PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP

Chartered Accountants

Finn's Registration No.003990S/S200016

V Kothandaraman

Partner \
Membership No, 025973 ^ ,
UDIN; 23025973BGZBXN36»:^

Place of Signature; Chennai
Date: 30 May 2023
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Annexure A

Referred to In paragraph 1 on 'Report on Other LegaJ and Regulatory Requirements' of our
report of even date to the members of Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services
Private Limited (''the Holding Company") on the consolidated financial statements as of
and for the year ended 31 March 2023.

(i) As required by Paragraph (xxi) of Companies (Auditor's Report) Order (CARO), there
have been no qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors m the CARO
reports of the companies incorporated in India included in the consolidated financial
statements except.

Sr.

No.

Name CIN Holding
Company /
Subsidiary
rncorporated
in India

Clause number
of the CARO

report vi/hich is
qualified or
adverse

1 Samunnati Financial

Intemiediation & Seoirices

Private Limited

U65990TN2014PTC096252 Holding
Company

Clause 3(iii)(c},
3(iii)(d), 3(xi)(a)

2 Samunnati Agro Solutions
Pnvate Limited

U74999TN2016PTC112925 Subsidiary Clause 3(ii)(b),
3(vii)(a)

3 Samunnati Agh Innovations
Lab Private Limited

U74999TN2017PTC149059 Subsidiary Clause 3(vliXa)

As referred to in Note 1 of the consolidated financial statements, above responses in respect
of clause 3(xxi) do not include comments in respect of Samunnati Foundation which is not in
scope and hence not included in consolidated financial statements.

For PKF Sridhar & San^anam LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No 003990S/S200018

!

V Kothandaraman i '
Partner

Membership No 025973 \
UDIN. 23025973BG2BXN363^V^

Place of Signature: Chennai
Date; 30 May 2023
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Annexure B

Referred to In paragraph 2(f) on 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' of
our report of even date on the consolidated financial statements of Samunnati Financial
Intermediation & Services Private Limited.

Report on the internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause (i)of Sub
section Z of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 {"the Act"}

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Samunnati Financial
Intermediation &Services Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as "the Holding Company") as
of and for the year ended 31 March 2023, we have audited the internal financial controls over
financial reporting of the Holding Company and all itssubsidiary companies, v/hich are companies
incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Holding company, its subsidiary companies, which are companies
incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the respective
companies considering the essential components of internal contnji stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India ("the ICAI"). These responsibtlilies include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
the respective company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act,

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit of the Company and its subsidiary companies, which are companies
incorporated in India. We conducted our audit in accordance vi/ith the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescnbed under section 143(10) of the Companies
Act, 2013. to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that v/e comply ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting were established and maintained and ifsuch controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness Our
audit of internal financial controls overfinanaal reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluatingthe design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditors'judgement, including the
3ss^$sment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the
Holding Company, its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting Is a process deslgnecf to provide
reascnaOle assurance regarding tne reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's Internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that. In reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company: (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company: and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use. or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls overfinancjal reporting, including
the possibility of coilusion or improper management override of controls, matenai misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
Internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
Internal financial control over financial reporting may become Inadequate because of changes in
conditfons, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the Holding Company, its subsidiarycompanies, which are companies incorporated in India, have,
in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and
such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March
2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the respective
companies considenng the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No.0&3&90S/S2p001d

V Kothandaraman

Partner '—

Membership No. 025973 —
UDIN; 23026973BGZBXN363e

Place of Signature: Chennai
Date 30 May 2023
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Samunnsti Financial Int«fni9<tiatian ft Semces Pnvato tlmn«d

ConsoiidatMl Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023

(AOamounSs ar9 trr mfllfcfs Of ind'sri Rope&s ontesi otftewse slsieO)

Panic ula re Note Aa at Aa at

31 March 2023 31 Marrh 2022

ASSETS

Financial aasate

9) Cash and cash equivalertis 3 1,24745 Mfi7.66

b) Sank Calanoes other than (a) above 4 421.01 512,15

c) Trade receivables 5 2.646.a2 3.477.40
d) Loans 6 10,153.51 11.061 66

e) lnve$trner>ts 7 11.92 192 37

f) Oder financial assets 59.30 152.09

14 74f» fii 16.663.34

Non'flnanciaJ aaeets

a) Inventories d 1.0S6.S6 849 16

B) Non-current lax assets (net) 10 354.45 169 33

c) Deferred tax assets (net) n 824.05 396.54

d) PfOperty. plant and equipment 12 139.68 108.13

e) Biological Assets 12 0.59 0.64

f) Right of use assets 12 32 64 31.23

g) Other intangible assets 12 969.85 600.48

h) Intangible assets under develc^rr^ent 12 22 92 71.50

i) Other non*financtal assets 13 441.42 243.94

3.742.18

Total assets 1l.4«2.n 19.2MJ9

UABtLITIES AND EQUITY

Uabllities

Financial llabilitias

9) Trade payables 14

- Total outsta ndi ng du es of m icro
ft ft?

errterpnses and small enterphses U Or

-Total outstanding dues of creditors other
306.21 597.42than micro enterpnses ar\d smaJI enterprises

b) Borrowings
{!) Debt secunties 15 5,075.53 5,294.64
(ii) Borrowings (other than debt securKles) 16 7,963.48 8,017 26

C) Other financial Oabrlities 17 211.82 176 19

13.M7.W 14.188.40

Non-fNiancial ilablMles

a) Provisions 18 51.20 44.48

b) Other non<financial liabilities 19 294.37 216.69

345.66 261.16

Equity
a) Equfty share capital 20 21 25 20.46

b) Other equity 21 4.558.83 4.766.29

4 Kflrt l>tl A ftna 7A

Total Liabilttiee and Equity in AM 77 in ?K4.?fl

Sumrnary of significant accounting pofldes 2

The accompanyir^g notes form an integral part of the finanoai statements

As per our report of even dale attached

for PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP
Chartered Accountsnts

ICAIFirm Regisiratfoo flo. 003g90S/S2Q0018

V Kothandaraman

Partner

MemDership No. 0259

Place. Chennai

Data May30, 2Q23

Fofand ort benalfof tne Board olLjreclors of
SamunnatI f fnanc^l Intaonwia^ri^ Services Private Limited

S Qt^lKUnrar
Director anO CEO

DIN 01169011

Place. Chennai

Date' May 30, 2023

K
Gurunath Neatamani Arunkumar Sridharan
Who1e-&ine Director Company Secrelary
DIN 0279S5S6 Membership No. F7112

Place* Chennai

Date: May 30, 2023
Place: Chennai

Dale: May 30, 2C23

70



SamunnBti Financial iMsnTiediation A Sarvipaa Prtme LimJtad

Ce<i*DllMMd Sfiumani ef i»ref)t and le*» fortna yaat «mM0 Htartn 2023

Pankulara NMS r»er ended Year etide<a

31 Warcli 2023 31 March 2022

1 Revenue from opereclona
(IJ IntBfBM rncome 22 i.m 41 1,840.28

{II) Sate fit tredea gooOe 22 i6,eos&4 21.15S.78
(ill) Offiaroparafjng rsvanua 23 143 22 133 96

5e,n4.47 22.929.09

H OUiarirKoma 23 223.25 58 06

ni Total income (1*11) 10.997.72 22.H7.14

Eipensee
|i) Financa cqbO 24 1,491.71 1.21S.&2

(H) Impairment on flnancaal melnj(T)«nt6 iS 1,3&8 90 1,006.72

(til) Puruhasa of 6tocK>in-lraaa 26 16,727.45 21,590.20

{<v) Chan^M in inventonas olstodnn-Crade ZT {291 01) (S4S 11)
(V) Employee Denefti etpenMS 29 SH.St B79 33

(v<) Oec'^cision and amornzaDen 39 MT4 64.79

(vliOtfier BKOenMa 30 706 69 403 79

IV Total espeneee >0M« 71 H M4 74

V Lots Mora las (HI-IV} ri nn wi

VI Taiaxfwnae 81

10 Currant (ex 5 10 '

{il] Qaferredta* (427 72) (2M.T1)

VII Lms for the year {V-Vtj '1.4e$.971 (1,099.39)

VHI Otner eompreheneive income (OCI)
(j) tiams that will nol be radaasrted ts pfolil cflOM

- Rameasur^mant gasn 1 (loss) on dafinad beneM plans (0.94) <2-79)
(d) Income (a< impad thereon 31 0 21 0.34

Other comprenenaive income (0.731 (1.941

>X Total «omp^her>aJve income/<loBe) foritie year (vi*vni) tl^M) a.S84.4Sk

X Eaminfls p«re<]uttv enm (face value 11 V> per enuKy sittrej 32

&a«tc (f) (703.95) (S21.98)

Ditviad if) (709.95) (521.60)

Summarv of signtficani accounung poteeo

The aceomnnytng noies torn an Ireeg'sl part a' the ^inanasi stalefnenis

A« per our r«Don 0^6'^ Oeto anec^efl

for PKF SHdnar i Santhatiem LLP

Charteied Accountants
ICAIFirm RegiStrBtton No. CM3B90S;a2000l8

ForanO oit^a Soarfl

Samunnali PInenciel lnt«

V Kottiendanunan

Partnar

Mambe/Bhip No 0259

Place Cnennaj

Dale Uay30. 2023

:tcrand C£0

DIN 011B90I1

Piece Qiennai

Date, May 90, 2D2S

Guruneih Neali'nani

VVhote*twne Orectw

DIN 027996de

Place Chsnrui

Dal& May 30, 2033

PrivataUmttad

Aninhumar SHdhjnn

Company Secratary
Uembenhip No P7113

Piece C^^enrai

DatftUeySO. 2023
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Samunnatf nnanc^l Intermediation A Servtees PHvaM LImlMd

Comolldatetf dtatem«nt of cash ftows for the year ended 31 March 2023

Partlculara
Year ended Year ended

91 March 2023 31 March 2022

A. Operating aeiivJUaa
Profi(/(loss) Ceforatdx (1,687.99) (1,327.10)
AdiusOnents ftv*
Depreciatiort and amortizaban 60.74 64 79

Employee siedc option exptnsae 6d.29 57.03

Gratuity and leave encashmeni expenses 26.79 26.95

Loss on sale of pnsperty, plant and epulpment 0.38 0.06

Income from mutual funds {42.ia) (14.40)
Income from fleOt funds t1.31) (16.66)
Inte^sl expenses towards ^nsnclng actrvitles 250.79 194.62

1ntare«( expense on lease liability 4 05 4.37

Unwinding interest of Oebr component of OCRPS 1.03 •

MTM gam booked on ECB loans (17.84) .

impatrment on financial fnstojmenta 660.73 200.24

impa<nnent on trade recaivablas 72.51 220.86

Bad debts written o^ 661.56 815.20

Provision on Invenloiv 63 61 20.15

^ortisabon of onglnatton costs of borrowings 97.42 87J7

Caen genaraiad from operations before working capital changes 16.56 32.39

Changes inworVing capital!
Loans (404.12) (2,856.36)
Other finandal assets 92.19 3.99

Trade receivab^s 5&6.06 (978 30)

Other non-financial assets (197.46) (169.92)

Nat movement in provisions (20.91) 16 06

Other financial and non^ftnanciai liabllttles 90.89 74.84

Inveniones (291.01) (846.63)

Trade payables /391.66) 620.25

Cash used in op^ations (548,861 (3.600.69)

Income taxes paid (net of refunds) n 70,22 i (117.82)

Net cash used in operating activtUss (A) <718.901 f3,91fl,21)

B. Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets (116.63) (178.96)

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equf^ment 1.96 6.22

Movement in capital advsices - 0.57

Movement m deposits with banks and financial mstllutions 91.14 139.69

Purchase of (nveetr^er^ts (16,36024) (26,370.45)

Proceeds from sale of Investments 16,540.69 26.634.03

Interest income received on investments measured at amortised cosL n/TPL 43.49 30.98

Net cash (used in) investing activities (B) 200.21 263.96

C. Financing activities
0.69Issue of Ccmpulsorify Convertible Pr9fer«nce Shares soo.oo

Issue ofOptionally convenible redeemable preference shares 400.00 •

Proceeds from debt securpt«s 1,235.00 2,076.23

Repayment of debt securities (1.454.31) (990.62)

Repayment of pnncipe( portion of lease liability (23 74) (6 01)

Repayment of interest portion of lease liability (4 OS) (4.37)

Proceeds (rom other than debt secunties 12,827.17 9.756,36

Repayment of other than debt securities (12,635 34) (7,082.50)

Interest expenses (349.241 (282.09)

Net cash generated from financing activit^s (C) 59&49 3,489.61

rset increase m cash and cash equivaienis {A*B*C) 79.60 (184.72)

Cash and cash equivalents at the t?eginning of ttie year 1,167.88 1,352.37

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year _ 1.247.46 1,187.66
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SvnunnaQ Rnancial lr>tem)«dlatlon i Servicw Private Limited
Conaolidatad aiatement of cash flows for (ha y«ar andad 31 March 2023
(Ai/ emounls sre in millions of Indldn Rupees (f}_ unless oSherwsestated)

Particulars

Components of oaah end caeh equivalents
Cash and cash eguivalants althe end of the year (aho. rcfernota 3)
-Cash on hand

- In deposit accounts (wtth original melurlty of 3 months or kesa)
- Balances with banks in current accouftts

Total

Summary of significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes form an integral part of (he financial statements

As par our repoft of even date attached

Year ended

31 March 2023

0.23

i79.4a

1,067.76

1.247.45

Y^r ended

a March 2022

40B.23

759.42

Por PKP Sridhar & Santhanam LLP

Chartered Accour^tants

ICAI Ftm Reglsirailon No. 0039908/820001S

For and on behalf of the Boar

Samunnati Rnaneiaj Int

tors of

TatloH fit^arvlcas Private Limited

V Kothandaraman

Partner

MemberanfpNo.'025lB7d\

Place Chennai

Date May 30. 2023

I, I - '

C3;..

cumar

iU>r and CEO

DIN 011B9011
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Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited
Summary ofsignificanl accounting policies ana otnerexplanatory information for the yearended March 31
2023
(All amounts ar^ in millions ofMsn Rupees (f). unless otherwise stsled)

1. Corporate information

Samunnati Finanaal (ntermediation & Services Private Umited (The Holding Company') is a Non-
Banking Financial Institution (NBFI) incorporated on June 23, 2014,The Holding Companyhas received
certificate of registration dated February 25. 2016 from the Reserve Barrk of India to carry on the
business of Non-Bankmg Financial lnstitulior> without accepting deposits The Holdmg Company
provwJes secured and unsecured loans to farmers, farmer producer organizations, community based
organizations and Agrf-enterprises. The Holding Company commenced active NBFI operations from
Ihe month of Juty2015 The Holding Company is a N8FC • SyslemicaJly Important Non^Deposit taking
Company f NBFC-ND-Sr) per regulations of Reserve Bank of India {'RBI').

The Holding Company has fivewholly owned subsidiaries as at the year end 31 March 2023.

The following are t^e details of the subsidianes:

1. Samunnati Agro Solutions Private Limited ('Agro'} which was incorporated on 14 October 2016. and
undertakes wholesale trading activities related to agncuttur^l inputs and commodities.

2. Samunnati Agri Innovations Lab Pnvate Limited (Formerly called as Kamatan Farm Tech Private
Limited)-The Company has acquired 100% stake in Samunnati Agri Innovations Lab Private Limited
(Formerlycalled as Kamalan Farm Tech Private Limited) ("KFTPL ) ffirougha share swap on 16 April
2021. Pursuant to the agreement the Company has issued 67,624 Compulsory Convertible
Preference Shares ('CCPS') to the equity shareholders of KFTPL

3. Samunnati Finance Private Limited ( SFPU) was incorporated on 22 September 2021 and Is
registered under the Companies Act 2013 as a company limited by shares.

4. Samunnati Foundation ('the Foundation') was incorporated on 09 March 2020 and is registered
under section 8 of the Companies Act 2013 as a company with limited liability. The main objects of
the Company are to undertake social oriented programs, actjvities as deemed appropriate, refen'ed
to in schedule Vll to the CompaaiesAct20l3, read with section 13S of the Act

5. Samunnati Investment Management Services Pnvate Limited ('SIMS') was incorporated on 08
March 2022 and is registered under the Companies Act 2013 as a company limited by sharee.

The Holding Company along with its Subsidiaries, shall hereinafter, be collectively referred to as the
Group','

'Samunnati Foundation was consolidated to the group financial statements up to FY 2020-21 However
the same has not been consolidated from the previous year as the intent of the investment is not
considered to be commercial in nature so as to gel any return on the Investments.

2. 6aal$ of preparation of financial statements

2.1 Statement of cwnpliance with Ind AS and basis for preparation and presentation of financial
statements

These consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accord a nee with the Indian
Accounting Standards as per the Companies (IndianAccounting Standards) Rules 2015 as amended
and notified under SectwDn 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 f the Act"), in conformity with the accounting
pnnciples generally accepted in India and other relevant provisions of the Act.Anyapplication gukjance/
clarifications/ directions issued by RBI or other regulators are implemented as and when they are
issued/applicable.
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Samunnati Financial Intarmadlation & Servlcas Private Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and olher explanatory information for the year ended March 31
2023

(Allamounts a/B in millions of Indldn Rupees (^). unless otherwise stated}

The Group has adopted Ind AS from April 01, 2020. Accounting policies have been consistently
applied except where a newly issued Accounting Standard is initially adopted or a revision to an
existing Accounting StandanJ requires a change In the Accounting Policy hitherto adopted.

These consolidated financial statements were approved by the Holding Company Board of Directors
and au^onsed for issue on May 30, 2023.

b) Principles of consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entitles over which the Group has control The Group controls an ently when the
Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from Its involvement with the entity and can affect
those returns through its power to direct the relevant activities ot the entity. Subsidiaries are fuHy
consolidated from the dale on which control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from
Ure date that control ceases.

The Group combines the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries line by line adding
together itke items of assets, liabilities, equity, income and expenses Intercompany transactions,
balances and unrealised gains on transactions withm Group companies are elimmated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an lmpairrT>ent of the transferred
asset.

Samunnati Foundation {'the Foundation ) is not for profit company hence the same has not l>een
consolidated.

2.2 Functional and presentation currency

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees ("INR" or Rs.' or "f") whli^ is
also the Group functional cun'ency. Amounts less that the rounding off normsadopted by the Groupare
disclosed as 0. All amounts are nsunded-cff to the rrearest millions, unless o^eriVlse indicated.

2.3 Hletorical cost convention

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on tne historical cost basis except forcertain
financial instruments which are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period as
explained in the Accounting Policies set out below.

The financial statements are prepared on a 'going concern' basis using accrual conceptexceptfor
the cash flow information.

2.4 Measurement of fair value changee

Anumber of the Group's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values,
for botn financial and non-financial assets and liabilities The Group has established policies and
procedures with respect to the measurement of fair values. Fair values are categorised into different
tevels In a fairvalue hierarchy based on tne inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

. Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.

•Level 2: inputs other lt)an quoted pr«es included in Level 1that areobservable for the assetorliability,
either directly or indirectly.

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on obsen^abte market data (unobsen«ble
inputs).

/-. "-N,

; .i: V /
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Samunnati Financial Intermediation & S^rvlcee Private Limited
Summary of significani accounting policies and other explanatory inJormaOon for the year ended March 31.
2023
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2.8 Critical accounting estimates and Judgements

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, management of the Group has made judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect Uie application of the Group's accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income, expenses and the disclosures of contingent assets and
liabilities. Actual results may differ from these esQmates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates are reoognzed prospectively.

The l<ey assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below The Group based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial staterr^nts were issued
Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to
market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Group Sucti changes are
refected m the assumptions when they occur

Following are areas that involved a higher degree of estimatron and judgement or complexity In
determining the carrying amount of some assets and liabilities

Estimation of uncertainties retating to the global health pandemic from COVID-19

The Group has made detailed assessment of its liquidity position for the next year and the
fecoverability and carrying value of its assets comprising property, plant and equipment,
investments, financial and non-financial assets. Based on current indicators of future economic
conditions, the Group expects to recover the canning amount of these assets. The Group
continues to evaluate them as highly probable considering the present business trends. The
situation is changing rapidly giving rise to inherent uncertainty around the extent and timing of the
potential future impact of the COVID-19 which may be different from that estimated as at the date
of approval of the financial statements. The Group will continue to closely monttor any material
changes arising of future economic conditions and impact on its business.

Property, Plant and Equipment <PPE)
Management reviewsitsestimate of the useful lives ofdepreciable/an^rtizabte assets at each reporting
dale, based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technical
and economic obsolescence that may change the utility of assets

Income tax

Significant estimates are involved in determining the provision for income taxes, including amount
expected to be paid I recovered for uncertain tax positions.

Deferred tax assets

Significani management judgement isexercised by reviewing the deferred tax assetsateach reporting
date 10 detennine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be retained/ recognized, based upon the
lil^ly timing and the level of fijture taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

Fair value

Management uses valuation lechmques in measunng thefair value offinancial instruments where active
marl<et quotes are not available In applying the valuation techniques, management makes maximum
use of market inputs anduses estimates and assumptions that are, as far as possible, consistent with
observable data that market participants would use in pricing the instrument. Where applicable dala is
not obsen/able, management uses ils best estimate about the assumptions that marltet participants
would make. Ttiese estimates may vary from the actual prices that would beachieved in an arm's length
tfansac^on at the reporting date.
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Effective intereet Flate (EiR) Method
The iHolding Company recognizes interest income I expense using a rate of return that represents the
best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected life of the loans given / taken This
estimation, by nature, requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behaviour and life<
cycle of tJie instruments, as well as expected changes to other fee income/expense that are integrai
parts of the instrument.

impairment of financiai assets for Loans
in accordance with ind AS 109, the Group uses Expected Credit Loss' model (ECL), for evaluating
impairment of financial assets other than those measured at Fair value through profit and loss.

Overview of the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) modei
Expected Credn Loss, at each reporting date, is measured through a ioss allowance for a financiai
asset:

At an amount equai to the iifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument
has increased significantty since initial recognition. At an amount equai to 12-montn expected credit
lasses, if the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased signrftcantly since initial recognition.

Lifetime expected credit losses means expected credit losses that result from all possible default
events over the expected life of a financial asset.

12-month expected credit losses means the portion of Lifetime ECLthat represent the ECls that
result from default events on financial assets that are possible within the 12 months after the
reporting date.

Tt^e Group perfonns an assessment, at the end ofeach reporting period, ofwhether a fnanoial assets
credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition When making the assessment, the change
rn the risk of a default occuhing over the expected life of ttie financial instrument is used instead of the
change in the amount of expected credit losses

For non-Impaired financial assets (Stage 1 and Stage 2):

>Stage 1 is oompnsed of ail nonnmpaired financial assets which have not expenenoed a significant
increase in credit nsk (SICR) since initial recognition A 12-month ECL provision is made for stage 1
financial assets. In assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly, the Group compares the
nsk of a default occurring on the financial asset as at the reporting dale with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial asset as at the date of initial recognition

• Stage 2 is comprised of ail non-impaired financial assets which have experienced a significant
Increase in credit risk since initiaj recognition. The Group recognizes lifetime ECL for stage 2 financial
assets. In subsequent reporting periods, if the credit risk of the financial instrument >mproves such that
there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then entities shall revert
to recognizing 12 months ECL provision

For impaired financial assets (Stage 3):

Financial assetsareclassified as stage 3when there isobjective evidence ofimpairrr^entas a result of
one or more loss events that have occurred after initial recognition with a negative Impact on the
estimated future cash flows of a loan ora portfolio of loans and receivables from trading activities. The
Group recognizes lifetime ECL for impaired financial assets.
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The loan assets in t^e books of the Holding Company are segmented into homogenous pr^uct
categories to determine the historical PD/LGD as per similar risk profiles, this segmentation is subject
to regular review.

As part of the regular review, in line with changes in loan portfolio and their repayment pattern, the
Holding Company has revised the definition of sta9es, as under.

The loan portfolio are segmented into two broad categories i e , Farmer Collectives and Agn enterprises.

Name of the

Pool of loan

assets

Stage
Loans Days Past Due (DPD)

Adopted
UDto fr22

w.e.f FY'23

Farmer

Collectives

Stage 1 Upto 60 Days Upto 60 Days

Stage 2 61 Days to 240 Days 61 Days to 180 Days

Stage 3 More than 240 Days fvlore than 160 Days
AgrI
enterprises

Stage i Upto 60 Days Upto 60 Days

Stage 2 61 Days to 360 Days 61 Days to 180 Days

Stage 3 More than 360 Days More than 160 Days

The Group has rebutted the presumption prescribed under Ind AS 109 that the credit risk increases
signifcantly since initial recognition when contractual payments are more than 30 days (Stage 2) and
that default occurs when a financial asset is 90 days past due (Stage 3) TTie risk profiling is determined
for each business vertical indicated below based on historical and market trends and dire^ons from
RBI including guidance for Identification of NPA m agricultural advances.

Estlmatlorr of Expected Credit Loes:

The mechanics of the ECL calculations are outlined below and the key elements are, as follows:

Probability ofDefault (PD) - T>ie Probability of Default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a
given lime horizon. The Holding Company uses historical information to determine PD. Considering the
different categories ofcustomers, the Holding Company has bifurcated its loan portfolio Into five pools
For each poot of loan assets, the PD is calculated using incremental 30 DPD approach considering
fresh slippage using historical Infonnation. For receivables from trading activities, Agnp's management
had calculated ttie PD using incremental 30 DPD approach considering fresh slippage using historical
information

Exposure at Default (EAD) • The Exposure at Default is an estimate of theexposure at a future default
date, considering expected changes in the exposure after the reportmg date, including repayments of
principal and interest, whether scheduled by contract or otherwise, expected drawdowns on committed
facilities, and accrued interest from missed payments f^anagement had assumed thatthe outstanding
balance as ateach reporting dale(including interest and other components) as the exposure atdefault
for purpose of computing the ECL.
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Loss Given Default (LGD) - The Losa Given Default is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where
a default occurs at a given lime. It is teased on the difference betiiveen tfie contractual cash flows due
and those thai Ihe lender would expect to receive, including from Ihe realization of any collateral.
To miligate its credit risks on financial assets, Ihe Holding Company seeks lo use collalerai, where
possible. The collateral comes in various forrns. such as land, bujldmg, books debts, securities, letters
of crediyguarantees, etc. However, ihe fa^r value of collateral alTects the calculauon of ECL. The fair
value of the same is based on management judgements. Further the management of the subsidiary
Agro had considered the insured portion of recervable consists nil exposure at default.

Forward looking informaiion - While estimating the expected credit losses, the Group reviews macro-
economic developments occurring m the economy and market it operates in On a penodic basis, the
Group analyses if there is any relationship between key economic trends like GDP, Denchmarl^ rates
set by the Reserve Bank of India, inflation elc with the estimate of PD, LGD determined By the Group
based on ils internal data While the internal estimates of PD, LGD rates by the Group may not be
always reflective of such relaltonships, temporary overlays, if any, are embedded in the methodology lo
refect such macroeconomic trends reasonably

The impact on account of change in defaultdefinition and staging has resulted tn an additional ECL of
Rs 327 83 million for FY'23.

Impairment of financial inatruments for trade receivables from trading and allied actlvitlea

The Group applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairrrvent loss on financial asaels
measured at amortised cost trade receivables and other conlractual rights to receive cash or other
financial asset.

The Gnsup measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to Ihe lifetime
expected credit losses if the credit nsk on thai financial instrument has increased significantly stnce
initial recognition. Ifthe credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased signiflcanlfy since initial
recognrtion, Ihe Group measures the loss allowance for thatfinancial instnjment at an amount equal to
12-month expected credit losses

For trade receivablesor any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that results from
transactions thai are within the scope of Ind AS 116, the Group follows 'simplified approach* and
measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses Tliis impairment
allowance is compuled based on hisloncal credit loss experience and management assessment.

Impairment of non-financial assets (PPE)
The impairment assessment of non-financial assets isdetermined based onestimation ofrecoverable
amount of such assets. The assumptjons used in computing the recoverable amount are based on
management judgement considering the timing offuture cash flows, discountrates and the nsksspecifc
to the asset

Defined benefit plans and other long term employee benefHs
The cost of the defined benefit plan and other long term employee benefits, and Ihe present value of
such obligation are detennined by the independent actuarial valuer An actuarial valuation Involves
making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in future. Management believes
that theassumptions used by the actuarv in determination ofthediscount rale, future salary increases,
mortality rates and attntion rates are reasonable Due to the complexrties involved in the valuation and
its long-term nature, this obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions All assumptions
are reviewed at each reporting date.
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Provisions and oUier contingent liabilities
The reliable measure of the estimates and judgements pertsining to litigations and the regulatory
proceedings in the ordinary course of the Group's business are disclosed as contingent liab^tities.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical expehence and other
factors, including expectations of future events that may nave a financial impact on the Group and that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances

2.6 Revenue recognition

a) Recognitiort of interest Income on loans

Interest income is recognized in Statement of profitand loss using the effective interest method for all
financial instruments measured at amortised cost, debt instruments measured at FVTOCl and debt
instnjments designated at FVTPL The 'effective interest method" is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payn^ents or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument
The calculation of the effective interest rate includes transaction costs and fees that are an integral part
of the contract. Transaction costs include incremental costs that are directly attnbutable to the
acquisition of financial asset

If expectations regarding the cash flows on the financial asset are revised for reasons other than credit
risk, the ad|ustment is reconjed as a positive or negative adjustmentto the carrying amount of the asset
in the balance sheet with an increase or reduction in interest income. The adjustment is subsequently
amortised through Interest Income in the Statement of profit and loss.

a) Recognition of Interest income on loans

The Holding Company calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the gross carrytng amount of
financial assets other than credit'impalred assets.

When a financial asset becomes credit*impaired, the Holding Company calculates interest income by
applying the effective interest rate to the net amortised cost of the financial asset If the financial asset
cures and is no longer credrt impaired, the Hol0^ng Company reverts to calculaQng interest income on
a gross ba&s.

Additional interest and interest on trade advances, are recognized when they become measurable and
when it is not unreasonable to expect their ultimate collection.

b) Sale of goods

To determine whether to recognise revenue from contracts with customers, Agro follows a 6-8tep
process

1 Identifying the contract with customer
2 Ident^ing the performance obligations
3 Oeterminmg the transaction price
4 Allocating the transaction price to the performance obligations
5 Recognising revenue when/as performance obligation(s) are satisfied-

Revenue from saleofproducts or services is recognized upon transfer of control ofpromised products
or servkces to customers in an anKJunt that reflects the consideration expected to be received in
exchange for those pn?ducts or services

• ^

//
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Revenue is measured based on the trar^sactior^ price, which fs the consideration, adjusted for volume
discounts, price concessions and incentives, if any. as specified In the contract with the customer
Revenue also excludes taxes collected from customers.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of t^e consideration received or receivable, taking into account
contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes and duty. Agro has assessed its revenue
arrangements based on the substance of the transaction and business model against specific criteria
to determine if it is acting as principal or agent."

c) Dhridend and Interest Income on Investments

Dividends are recognized In Statement of profit and loss only when the right to receive payment is
established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated withthe dividend wil) flowto the Group
and the arrvaunt of the dividend can be measured reliably

Interest income from investments is recognized when it is certain that the economic benefits willflow to
the Group and the amount of Income can be measured reiiably Interest income is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable.

2.7 Property. Plant and Equipment {PRE)

PPE are stated at cost of acquisition (including incidental expenses), less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated Impairment loss, if any

Assets held for sa^ or disposals are stated at the lowerof their net book value and net realizable value.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of PPE outstanding at each balance sheet date are disdosed
separately under other non-financial assets. Capital work in progress comprises the cost of PRE that
are not ready for its intended use at the reporting date.
Depreciation on PPE is provided on straighi-lme basis in acconSance with the useful lives specified in
Schedule II totheCompaniesAct. 2013 on a pro-rata basis Assets costing less than Rs 5,000 are fully
depreciated in the period of purchase

Asset Classification Life in Years

Furniture and fittinas 10

Office eouipment 5

Comouters and accessories 3

Vehicles 4-8

Leasehold imorovements 5

PPE isderecognized ondisposal orwhen no future economic benefits areexpected from its use. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognibon of the asset (calcuiated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the net carrying amount of the asset) is recognized in other income / netted off from any
loss on disposal in the Statement of profit and loss in the year the asset is derecognized.

Intangible assets

intangible assets are slated atcost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment loss. If
any

Intangible assetscomprises ofcomputer software which isamortized over the estimated useful life. The
amortization period Is lower of license period or30 months which isbased on management's estimates
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of u&eful life.Amortisation is calculated using ttie straight line method to write down the cost of Intangible
assets over their estimated useful lives.

The intangible assets are amortised within three years.

2.6 Foreign exchange transactions and translations

a) Inltlat recognition

Transactions in foreign currencies are recognized at the prevailing exchange rates t>etween the
reporting currency and a foreign currency on the transaction date.

b) Conversion

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign e>cchange gams and losses resulting from the settlement of
such yansactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabiftties denominated In foreign
currencies at year end exchange rates are generally recognized in Statement of profit end loss

Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustmerit to borrowing costs are presented in the
statement of profit and loss, within fnance costs. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the Statement of profit and loss on a net basis.

f^on-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined Translation differences on assets and
liabilities earned at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gam or loss Thus, translation
differences on non-monetary assets and liabilities such as equity instruments held at Fair valuethrough
profit or loss are recognized in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss and translation
differences on non-monetary assets suchas equity investments classified as FVTOCI are recognized
mother comprehensive income Non-monetar/ items that are measured at historical cost in foreign
currency are not retranslated at reporting date

2.9 Financial Instruments

a) Recognition and Initial meaaurements

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when ttie Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments

Fmancial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the fair value of tt>e
financial assets or fmancial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
atiributaWe to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognized
immediately in Statement of profit and loss.

b) Classificationsand 8ut)sequent measurement of financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at
• Amortised cost;

- Fair value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI) • debt Instruments;
- Fair value Through Other Comprehensive income (FVTOCI) - equity Instruments; and
- Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)
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Amortteed cost

The Group's business model is not assessed on an in$trument-by>instrument basis, but at a higher level
of aggregated portfolios being the level at which they are managed. The financial asset held with the
objecti^^e to hold financial aseet in order to collect contractual cash flows as per the contractual terms
that giva rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely paymantof principal and interest (SPPI)
on the pnnctpal ar>ount outstanding Accordingly, the Group measures Bank balances. Loans, Trade
receivables and other financial instruments at amortised cost

FVTOCI' debt Inatrumenta

The Group measures its debt instruments at FVTOCI when the instrument is held wilhin a business
model, the objective of which is achieved by Doth collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets; and the contractual terms of the financial asset meet the SPPI test

FVTOCI • equity Instruments

The Group suDsequer^tly measures all equity investments at fair value through profit or loss, unless the
Group's management has elected to classify irrevocably some of its equity instruments at FVTOCj,
when such instruments meet the definition of Equity under Ind AS 32 Financial Instruments and are not
held for trading.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in tiie period
the Group changes its business model for managing firranciai assets.

FVTPL

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.
This includes alf denvative financial assets.

Subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective interest
method The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains
and losses and impairment are recognized in Statement of profit and loss Any gain and loss on
derecognition is recognized in Statement of profit and loss. Debt investment at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fairvalue. Interest Income undereffective interest method, foreign exchange
gams and losses and impairment are recognized in Statement of profit and loss. Other net gams ar^d
lossesare recognized in OCI. On derecogninon, gainsand losses accumulated in OCl are reclassified
to Statement of profit and loss Forequity investments, the Group makes an election on an instrument-
by-instnjment basis to designate equity investments as measured at FVTOCI. These elected
investments are measured at fair value with gams and losses ansing from changes in fair value
recognized in othercomprehensive income and accumulated in the reserves. The cumulative gam or
loss IS not reclassified to Statement of profit and loss on disposal of the investments These investments
in equity are not held for trading. Instead, they are held for strategic purpose. Dividend income received
on such equity investments are recognized in Statement of profit and loss.
Equity ir>vestments that are not designated as measured at FVTOCI are designated as measured at
FVTPL and subsequent changes in fair value are recognized in Statement of profit and loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gainsand losses, including
any mterest or dividend income, are recognized in Statement of profit and loss. *••

.s
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c) Financial llabllittea and equity Instruments

Classification of debt and equity

Debt and equity ins^ments issued by the Group are classified as either financial liabilities ores equ^
in accordance witn the substance of the contractual arrangements and the deftnitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instrumente

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of (ts liabilities. Equity instruments issued by Group are recognized at the proceeds
received Transaction costs of an equity transaction are recognized as a deduction from equity.

Financial JiabilitJes

Financial liabilities are cfasstfted as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL A financial liability is
classifted as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for trading or it is a derivative or it is designated as such
on initial reco9nition Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost usmg the
eflecttve interest method, interest expense and foreign exchange gams and losses are recognized in
Statement of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on derecognjtion is also recognized tn Statement of profit
and loss

d) Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by a Group are initially measured at their fair values and, if not
designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher of:
- the amount of loss allowance determined in accordance with impairment requirements of Ind AS 109
"Financial Instruments", and

-the amount initially recognized less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of incorr^ recognized
In accordance with the pnnciples of Ind AS 115 "Revenue fromcontracts with customers"

e) DerecognlUon

Financial assets

The Group derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or ittransfers the rights to receive ttie contractual cash flows in a transaction in
which substantially all of the nsks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in
which the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the nsks and rewards of ownership and
does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Group enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized on its balance sheet, but
retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred
assets are not derecognized.
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Financial llablHtlee

Afinancial liabilrty is dereco^nized when the obligation in respect of the liability is discharged, cancelled
or expires. The difference between the carrying value of the financial liablflty and the consideration paid
is recognized in Statement of profit and loss.

f) Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and Uie net amount presented in the balance sheet
when, and only when, the Group currently has a legally enforceable nght to set off the amounts and it
intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously

g) WrtteofFs

Financial assets are written of! (either partially or in full) when there is no realistic prospect of recovery.
This is generally the case when the Group determines that the borrower/customer does not have assets
or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subjected to write
offs Any subsequent recoveries against such loans are credited to the Statement of Proft and Loss.

2.10 Employee benefits

a) Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefrts are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognized
for the amount expected to be paid if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay
tnis amount as a result of past sen/ice provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated
reliably.

b) Contribution to provident fund and other funds

Group's contribution paid/payable during the year to provident fund and employees state insurance Is
recognized in the Statement of profit and loss. The Group has no further oDIigatlon other than the
contributions made.

c) Gratuity

TTie Group's liability towards gratuity scheme is determined by independent actuaries, using the
projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by
discounting the estimated futurecash outflows by referenceto marketyields at the end of the reporting
per>od on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Past
sen/ices are recognized at the earlier of the plan amendment / curtailment and recognition of related
resti'ucturing costs/ termination benefits.

The net interestcost is calculated by applying the discount rale to the net balance of the defined benefit
obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the
Statement of profit and loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses

Remeasurement of defined benefit plans, compnsing of actuarial gains f losses, return on plan assets
excluding interest income are recognized immediately in the talance sheet with correspopdfhg deW-or

\
•

V'",

11.'

^ . . 'X

86



Samunnati Financial fntermediatlon & Services Private Limited

Summary of significant accounting policias and other explanatory inforniatlon for ^ year ended March 31,
2023
(All amounts ar^ in mHllons of Indian Rupees (f), unless otherwise sieteC)

credit to Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). Remessurements are not reclassified to Statement of
proft and loss In the subsequent period

d) Leave encashment/ compensate<f absences /sick leave

The Group provides for the encasfiment / availment of leave with pay subject to certain rules. The
employees are entitled to accumulate leave subject to certain limits for future encashment I availment
The liability is provided teased on the numt>er of days of unutilized leave at each balance sheet date on
the basis of an independent actuarial valuation.

e) Employee stock options

The fair value of options granted under Employee Stock Option Plan is recognized as an employee
benefits expense with a corresponding increase in equity. The total amount to be expensed is
determined by reference to the fairvalue of the options. The total expense is recognized over the vesting
period, which is the penod over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied At ^e
end of each period, the entity revises its estimates of the number of options ttiat are expected to vest
based on the non«market vesting and sen/ice conditions It recognizes the impact of the revision to
original estimates, if any, in pnsfit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to equity. Upon exercise of
share options, the proceeds received are allocated to share capital up to the par value of the shares
issued with any excess being recorded as share premium.

2.11 Finance cost

Finance costs include interest expense computed by applying the effective interest rate on respective
financial instruments measured at Amortised cost Financial instruments include term loans» fixed
deposits mobilized, debt instruments, commercial papers and subordinated debts Finance costs are
charged to the Staterient of prof>l and loss.

2.12 Taxation - current tax and deferred tax

Income tax expense comprises of current tax and deferred tax. It is recognized in Statement of proft
and loss except to the extent that it relates to an item recognized directly in equity or In other
comprehensive income.

a) Current tax
Current lax comprises amount of lax payable in respect of the taxable income or loss for the year
determined in accordance with Income Tax Act, 1961 and any adjustment to the tax payable or
receivable in respect of previous years. The Group's current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period

Minimum alternate tax ('MAT') credit entitlement is recognized as an asset only when and to the extent
there is convincing evidence that normal income tax will be paid during thespecifed period. In the year
in which MAT credit becomes eligible to be recognized as an asset, the said asset is created by way of
a credit to the Statement of Proft and Loss and shown as MAT credit entitlement. This is reviewed at
each balancesheet date and the carrying amount of f^AT credit entitlement is written downtothe extent
It IS notreasonably certain mat normal income tax will be paid dunng me specified period.

b) Deferred tax

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences of temporary
differences between the carrying values of assets and liabilities and their respective tax bas^. Deferred
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tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the penod in which
the liaDility is settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantive^ enacted by the end of the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities
and assets reflects the tax consequence that would follow frorri the manner in which the Group expects,
at the end of the reporting penod, to recover or settle the carryinQ amount of rts assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable income wilt be
available against which the deductible temporary difference could be utilized. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognized if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. The carrying
arrtount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that It IS no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits wilt be available to allow all or part of the asset
to be recovered

2.13 Impairment of assets other than financial tseeta

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets at the end of each
reporting period, to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have impaired. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impainnent loss (if any). Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless ^e
asset does not generate cash fiows that are largely independent of those fn?m other assets or group of
assets.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value m use. in assessing value in
use. the estimated future cash flows are discounted to thejr present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the nsks specific to the asset
for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted. Ifthe recoverable amount of an
asset (orcash-generating unit) is estimated to l>e less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.

When an Impainnent lc«s subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit} is Increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount such thatthe Increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined if no
impaim^ent loss had been recognized for theasset (orcash-generating unit) In prior years. Thereversal
ofan impairment loss is recogntzed in Statement of profit and loss.

2.14 Provisions* contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present legal orconstructive obligation as a result of
a past event. It is probable that an outflow ofeconomic resources will be required from the Group and
amounts can be estimated reliably. Timing or amount of the outflow may still be uncertain. Provisions
are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present obligation, based on the most
reliable evidence available at the reporting date. Inctuding the risks and uncertainties associated with
the present obligation. Provisions arediscounted to their present values, where the time vatue ofmoney
is material

Contingent liability Is disclosed for:
• Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the
Group, or
• Present obligations arising fnsm past evenswhere it is not probable that anoutftow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.
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In those cases, where the outflowof economic resources as a result of present ooiigations is considered
improbable or remote, no liability ts recognized or disclosure is made.

Any reimbursement that the Group can te virtually certain to collect from a third party witn respect to
the obligation (such as from insurance) is recognized as a separate asset However, this asset may not
exceed the amount of the related provision.

Contingent assets are not recognized However, when inflow of economic benefits (s probable, the
related asset is disclosed.

2.15 Leases

The Croup's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for office premises. The Group assesses
whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract A contract is. or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time In exchange for
consideration To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control ^e use of an identifred asset,
the Group assesses whether.
(i) the contract involves the use of an Identified asset
(ii) the Group has substantially all of the economKi; benefits from use of the asset thn^ugh the period of
the lease and

(iii) the Group nas the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Group recognizes a right-of-use asset ("ROU") and a
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a
terrr^ of tv/elve months or less (short-term leases} and low value leases For these short-term and low
value leases, the Group recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease Before the end of the
lease term ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when tt is reasonably certain mat
they will be exercised.

The hght'Of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencementdate of the lease plus
any initial direct coats less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Right'Of'Use assets are depreciated from the commencement dale on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease
payments. The lease payrvents are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or. if not
readily determinable. using the incremental borrowing rates in the country ofdomicile ofthese leases.
Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right ofuse asset ifthe
Group changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option.

2.16 Cash and cash equivalents

Cashand cash equivalents in the balance ^eet comprise cash on hand, chequesand drafts on hand,
balance with banks in currentaccounts and short-term depositswith an original maturity ofthree fTwnths
or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

2.17 Earnings per share
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Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the penod attributable to
equity sharahoiders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.
Earnings conskjered in ascertaining the Group's earnings per sfiare is the net profit for the period after
deducting preference dividends and any attributable tax thereto for the period. The weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding dunng the period and for all periods presented is adjusted for
events, such as bonus shares, sub*division of shares etc that have changed the number of equity
shares outstanding, without s corresponding change in resources. For the purpose of calculating diluted
earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders Is divided by
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period, considered for deriving
basic earnings per share and weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued
upon conversion of 3)1 dilutive potential equity shares.

2.16 inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and the net realizable value Costs includes cost of

purchase and other costs incurred In bringing the inventories to the present location and condition, net
of discounts and rebates and is determined on weighted average basis Cost is determined on FIFO
basis Net realizable value represents the estimated selling price of inventories in the ordinary course
of business, less the estimated costs necessary to make the sale

2.19 OperaUng segments
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). The Chief Executive Officer ('CEO') of the Group has been
identified as the CODM as defined by ind-AS 10S Operating Segments, who assesses the financial
performance and position of the Group and maizes strategic decisions

Operating segments identified by the Group comprises as under
1. Financing • Providing loans to borrowers and secuntisation of such loans.
2 Trading and allied activities • Trading of agricultural products and allied activities

The accounting policies consistently used in the preparation of the financial statements are also applied
to items of revenue and expenditure in individual segments. Revenue and expenses have been
identified to a segment on the basis of relationship to operating activities of the segment Revenue and
expenses which relate to enterprises as a whole and are not allocable to a segment on a reasonable
basis have been disclosed as Unallocated', if any Segment assets and segment liabilities represent
assets and liabilities in respective segments. Tax related assets and other assets and liabilities that
cannot be allocated to a segment on reasonable basis have been discJosed as 'Unallocated', if any.

2.20Recent accounting pronouncements

New and amended standards adopted by the Group:

The Group has applied the following amendments (wherever applicable) for the first timefortheir
annual reporting period commencing Apnl 1, 2022

Ind AS 16 - PnDperPy Plant and equipment-

The amendment clarifies that excess of net sale proceeds of items produced over the cost of
testing, if any, shall not be recognised in theproft or loss but deducted from thedirectly attributable
costs considered as part of cost of an item of property^ plant, and equipment.

Ind AS 37 - Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets -
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The aiTkendment spectfies that the 'cost of fulfiKing' a contract comprises the costs that relate
directly to the contract'. Costs that related directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of
fulfilling that contract (Examples would be direct labour, matenals) or an allocation of other costs
that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (an example would be the allocation of the depreciation
charge for an Item of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract).

The above amendments did not have any material Impact on the amounts recognised in prior
periods and are not expected to significantly affect the current or future periods.

New Standards/Amendments notified but not yet effective:

Ministry of Corporate AffaIr^(MCA), on March 31,2023, through the Companies (IndianAccounting
Standards (Ind AS)) Amendment Rules, 2023 amended certain existing Ind ASs on miscellaneous
issues with effect from 1st April 2023 Following are few key amendments relevant to the Group;

(i) Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements & ind AS 34 - Interim Financial Reporting
- Material accounting policy information (including focus on how an entity applied the reQuirements
of Ind AS) shall be disclosed instead of significant accounting policies as part of financial
statements.

(ii) Ind AS 107 - Financial Instruments. Disclosures - Information about the measurement
basis for financial instruments shall be disclosed as part of material accounting policy information.

(liO Ind AS 8 - Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimate and errors-Clarification on
what constitutes an accounting estimate provided.

(iv) ind AS 12 - Income Taxes - In case of a transaction which give rise to eaual taxable and
deductible temporary differences, the initial recognition exemption from deferred tax is no longer
applicable and deferred tax liability & deferred tax asset shall be recognized on gross basis for
such cases.

The Holding Company does not expect the effect of this on the financial statements to be material,
based on preliminary evaluation. However, it may be noted that we expect there would be a
change in Accounting policies section of the financial statements as the standard would require
presentation ofmaterial accounting policies' as against 'signifcant accounting policies' disclosed
so far.

2.21 Events afler reporting date

Where events occurring after the balance sheet date provide evidence of conditions that existed at the
end of the reporting period, the impact of such events is adjusted within the financial statements
Otherwise, events after the balance sheet dale of matenal size or nature are only disclosed.
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(i)

(ii)

(A)

(B)

{0

{")

(ili)

A* at

$1tfarch2(n9

As«

ai March 2022

Cash and cash equivalerrts
Cash'on*hana 0.23 .

Balances with banks

(i) In current account 1,067 76 759 42

{U) In deposit account (wllh odgrnel Fneiunty vp to 3 months) 179.46 409^

1247^5 1.187.B6

Bank balances otherthan cash and cash equivalents

Deposjt account with tunks •

• Belences with b^r^s to e>lent Keid es merlin money or security aQarnst the 2^6 06 221 45

borrowings, 9uarBntdes other commctments (Refer note twiow)
• with an9lnal matuniy af more inar> 3 morit^e but less than 12 months ?02.93 290.70

421,01 912.16

Details of beldnces with benks to the eifient tie^d as n^argm money ot security against the borrowing, guarsntees, otiier
commitments

Maturity period of lass than 12 months
Held as cotialsreJ against borrowings and SMunusaUon transaeliens 196.QS 160.21

1M.06 160.21

Matunty period of more than 12 months
Held as colleteral against borrowngs end secudtisatiori transactions 22.09 6124

22.03 61^

Total 22146

Trade receivables

Unsecur^a

ConsidareC good 2,5$1.37 3,299 03

t^ss' Allowance far e;q>ected credit loss f14.87i (31.42)

2.&46.$0 ).296.61

Having sigrTlficem Increase in credit nsk 323.49 25?.97

Less Allowance for enpeded credrt loss <42.00 f42.9n

261.49 210.08

Credfl impaired 22].$6 328 52

Lass. AJ(owar\ce for expected creflrt loss f202.r3> fai7.7fi>

16.83 10.73

2.M6.92 S477^

(Ffehr Afofe 4? fQr$g9lng sch90ui9 ofiraOe recavaUesj

Loans

Tarm Loans at am ortised cost

To clients 11 166.77 11,414.21

Total* Gross 11,168.77 1M14.21

Lsss. Impa^rmeni loss allowance n.013.261 f352.53>

Total* Net miM.fil 11.061.69

Secured/ Unsecured bteak up

Secured agafnst langlbie assets:
Cress 1.07S.49 1,081.22

Less* Impairment loss alfowarcss 183.691 *

Net 991.60 1.081.22

Secured egalnst receivsbles:
Gross -

•

Less impairrrenl toss allowances - •

Net ♦ •

Unsecured

Grose 10.091.28 10,332.99

Lees Impatmient loss alowancas fS29 57i (afi2.S3l

Nat 9181.71 89KU9

Total |B)e(l)*|ii}*^(l"i 11,061.69
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As at

31 March im

As at

31 March 2022

{C} Loans in' outslda India
0} Loana in India

(a) PLBlie &aelDr

(b) Others 111RR n 11414 ?1

Less: Impftrmenl loaa allowsnca
ii,i86.n
Ii

11,414.21

f352.53i

Total (1) 10.163.61 11.061.69

(H) Loans outskte India - •

Total(C)-(IJ*(li) iniMsi iinitiM

Nota. Thttffl IS no loan assal maasured at FVTOQ or FVTPL

Summary of loans bv staas diatritaution

Gross Carrying
Amount

(A)

Impairment Loss
Ai^wance

^0^

Net Carrying
Amount

(k^)

As at 31 March 2Q23 10,353 18

Stage 1 • ConsiQereQ good 1&4.$1
Sfaoa 2 • Siar^ificant inereasa >n credit risk 656.99

347.21

31.26

634.77

10.00S.97

123.33

24i1

fifaftp ^ - CrM\\\ lmnair*t 111W.77 1.013.26 IflIMM

As at 31 March 2022

Stage 1 • Considered good 1Q.312 26
Stage 2 • Significant incr«asa In crsdK risk 767.04
s>ane ? - C.rPrtW imr>AinM 334.69

29.48

43.03

260.02

1Q,2B2.B0

724.01

54.87

11,41421 3S2.63 11 rwi RR

7 Invastmsflts

(A) At amortised cost

(!) In Pdss Through Cenificalea f'V IC")
(ii) Samun/iatl FoundaUort

850,000 (proviokiB yaar 650,000) equity scares of <iO each

3.42

8.50

IB3.e7

6 50

iin 192.37

Mb-No imooirrmni iois hes b0M prD^xM on the ebovi rmstmofis

Out of above

In India

OutS)^ Indta

11 42 192.37

11.92 192.37

0 OUiar financial asacu

Ufs»6urea, co^srdsrsO goocf
Sacurtty deposits
Employaa advaneas
Daposns wnn rmancal mstllvtlons
Interest eccr\jad but not Cue on depaslU wflh financial (nstitutlons
Olh«r racsivables

27 S3

3 90

9 13

19.24

ie06

5 22

111 50

13.17

4.14

$9.90 162.09

«7TMs 9«e» 4 AnsAnonMy M fi«M»

•• V:. I

y \'
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SiiDMnnati Flnin^al IntormetSetlen & SMVkM PrIvMe Limited

Sumrfltry Qftlgnrtkuil •ceeurttkr); peHein «nd otner exptantfory infoimillon for yMr •r»Md 31 March

As at
ii March 2023

Aa al

31 March 2022

WrventDrtea

AIICMxr of COM w net realtesM vekje

SioeK In iTMe

L6M. Previsiori (or Imeniory

1 160 3?

nniTfei

666.31

(20 151

MMfl

10 Noo^urrentraK assets |ne<|

AcNance <ncom« lax (net of provisions for (a«> 3S4.4» 196.33

*•« n

11 DaferrM tea aeaeta |n«<)

Tai efeot of Kama convtRiitlng daferrvd tcx aMett /
niablliljesj:

Bilirca leeit

April 01, 3022

(Charps) 1crBdn
le lUteme^to'

ortifit and tots

(Charge) 1
credit le OCI

Otner*

Adjuetmenta

finance as at

MlfCK 31.
2023

(•5.1-)
i2?e

1776

317 SO

307 13

175.&8

8.83

"mw

Fl*ed 389916

Pttfisioris for emploree ben«fiu
Prcvi«iO(^ for triventoTY
Impskment (oa» aikrnsnce
CamsO (ormnj Iom«6

Employee »ioe« oM<ori expme*
Oihere
ToMi

(6.05)
1296

176.71
3S 73

175 M

%.9Z
"iiiu

Taa effKtot Ksms ccrstiUitlng d«r*rr«d t«ii imM* I Baliru at
(IkibMlUM): A0«I01.3021

Fixed M»«t»

Provisions for employ«e MneHU
Imc^eirTTienl loss attowance
Cameo remark losses

Enoioyee stock option expefiMs
Oi'»er8

Total

2 17

6 02

74 6S

16.06

36.77

5.61
i4S.ei

(8.-9)

17,76

1<C79

275 4(}

4 70

447.7S

lCfi«r9«)' crvdil
to stateiT*9nt of

prom ind le*i

(6.82)
6.29

10217

24.97

199 09

(1.9B1
2«0,71

««TX apece la tfinnoontitf reft MniV>»

(0.21)

•wirr

{Charge) I
Qr«(iJt to OCI

iOM)

{&.34I

Mien

Adju*tmenu

SMrKeee al

Umh 31.

2022

10.1-)
(8.30)

(6.441

(6.65)
12.66

17« 71

35 73

175 86

5 93

396,B4
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SimurwM PInindil hrtemedlttlen A SetvlcH PiWeti UnriM

Smmiry ef significantaccounting porciM and atfi«rtxplinctory (irfennrton tethe yMr viaad 31 Mareh 2023

Aeal As It

a Mervh 20» 31 March 3022

13 Other non-financial saseta

Prepaid expensM SI.H 01.89

Advance paid (o vendors 302 63 129 29

Belaneee with government aothgrrBea Sd.Bfi

Advances U employees 1.75 •

441^ a4S,»4

14 Trade My^ee
0 87i)Total c<jtat3nding dues of micro and smal enlerpnaea -

II) Totat Outstanding dues di creditors other tnsn nHcro and small Bnierpr«as 30e.21 0B7.O

SM.21

^Aisenwnon *8 'or spring of the frMe osysfiWt/
0«clcaurB» r«quir«d Cv Micro. Smtil and Medium Emsrprlses Davalopxnent (HSIiCO}
Act 2006 are as under

The principal smouni rerrveirun) unpaia at ine end of the year*
(b> The detayeO peymenu 01prinoDBl amourx peiO Myortd Uie eppcinted Qile Otmog the year
(c) InleresI sctudlty p«a unoe< Seoon i€ or USMED Acl
(d) Normalintere*! due payeble dunng v>e year, as per Ihe agreed terms
(e) Tola! inleiest accrw^O dunr^ tne year ar>d remairiin)unpaid

0.67

JOL

TTiera are no mlao, smel ana medium ertie<0nsea toMdeni iheCroup dues wfiicA are eutaUMmg ^more Vwias days el t^e Balance
Sheel date. eempvKS on urit«M basis
Theabovemrcnnalion has beandeiermirwd !o the«;rteni suenpirHes hsve bee^ idenirad on Oh Ms^s at (ntennsliGr gyaii^ie wtth theGro^.

IS Debiaeeunnes

MomortMefl coet

Ne«>*conveniDle r«daematife deMfiturai

No(s Th«re are no Qebl aecunt)es meeaured at f^VTPL orflevgnated n FVTPL

OeOt eecbrfijeB cn inAa

Oei3( sacuruieb ouUidQ India
TeU

laKo. refer n(Ma44 A)

IB Bcrrewlngi (other »an 4aM seoudflea}
At amortised coat

Term loans

from OBnk&

from oCher parOes
Commercial paper
Working capital loan
Intsfest acoued bul not di>e on borTowr^ga

Note.Thare ara no donvnngs m«»aured at PVTPt or desisnaled ai fVTPl

Gorrmmga in India
fierroMnga out^de India

(alM, refernoleMS)

«< riw mce « nreiuio.'q'/

&.07&S3 5^04 94

SU21 777.es

4 477 « 4.ST0 BO

K n7K It3 K9MA4

1,046 07 2,201.06

$.t4\.D0 4,44S.8I3
. 260.00

1.747.00 1,092 09

2S 92 2fi.54

7«0«l n ai7 7*

7,25142 7,&U20

732 OS 309.U
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SamunnaU Pin«nelil IntennediiUen & $«rriu9 Prtvsts Umltad

9ufflm4ry of•l0niflc«ntaeceunttng ptMiA— and other tiplonitery Informetion tartha y«ar andM 31 Hareh 2029

Ae«t A* si

31 Uiren 2029 91 Mareh M22

17 0(htrflnindillt*wne»

UnamoflKad lrvt«re»i Income V61 23 03

lease btflty 34 91 30.35

EmpteyM r^itso psyeMes 74.84 72 57

PmvtBion for aocpMMa 1.2S -

Finartcid itabbTyof compound flnaneial instrumtfR ^62i •

MTN( Coe( on ECS Bommins 9 00 26.S4

Otne'p0yaUee 53.22 1B41

Inleiflsl accrvfld but not Me en banvMngft t9.73 -

178.19

1ft ProvUlon*

Provl&ion tot «mtlfiyn een^ito
Grttunr 28.07 20 39

Campensa(«d aOMnen 2e.2t 24.07

m M 44.44

Otpor nen4lnancl«t (leUllllfv

Atfv9nce receivea Irom cjalomcf* 29S.78 170.64

SleliJlory dua9 payaUs 5r.2« 37.S1

arieis 0.34 034

2R37 2iR.69

MfPus cpK* «inHftttoMCSy
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f SWvUm Prlvila LMtMftiB—mi I

BgnHMry ol atgntflejM acMinfe^ potieiM at^deEMt txparfwiorr nfontnttoftlerM yMranoad Hvdiaau
imvrounamf\'mKrt9'\'-avPM*9ti'}

13 PF»P«nv, ngN ortaoMMti. intn^el* MM(*aneirrlwt^W MMtt yAMrI tmuu

ProftMlv un and »Motn«w OOwrl tannlbia ai «U
Hw^la

OMt* llfSMf

dnMptfiMPartlClian
rrMiNaM

M

FwfTi*uf« atM Olfiea

«<ii4ptn«n
Compifare ^
aMMMrM

wriKtm
LfcaMhokt

ftTipi«vtni*RB

Ptam4

VKimn'
BuiMng Total MM)* i,aa MMta

OSMMOon

Catootabofl

Ccmpunr
Soflwan

TMd

Otm Mock

laimt a attn A»rflmi
Aa3"io<^

2 31

5r76

9 IS

2»

itie3>

•1 17

fO

25 ie

l«»

<0 14^

noi

13 n

f4-9k

23 37

<0 02)

e>6

-

Mt7

T7 43

<6 731

046

017

33 9i

33.10

f(148l

775 C7
aoas
19 57

303?

'U&24

1&.3S

0619

19 oe^

Mane* a* n )1 i*«nh azi mftt ittc 1441 M.«7 ]}ji 23JS S.1I 1K47 e.w M.I1 //i»7 ttjt nkH 71,H

AaaBpr« 4203 021

'Q

30« 3/1

t4flJ1

>36

<4 951

1.01

It,321

11 n S4£9

fit 041

27 94

f1.«7> ;
109 Si

t«7n

lOOEA

<49.711

76 87

imsfti

n.ic \14> 17.M 4A,M sue 33Jf lUB »1l.12 0.M n.u 771J? 1M.71 ••S.S4 B.M

WctvnuUM dipfMUIwnand afvofiialio
ajtonee at at 01 AfM 2031

U'Va rear

n

1 M

1 18
r^<y•^

3 13

3 02

rocei

14 03

«S1

7.H

'65
f7

7&4

523

a.»

Q3S

-
34.73

2Sa3

1132^
GDI

1&80

1B«S

-
iti

1®.«7

511

•9 97

-

2^ 3US 19J3 HM «.3ft . •7.74 t.ai 347) • KX9 2S.M -

*» ne>w -

15a

<0 111

1137

I4«»1

17»

<2 Ol

48d 092

.0 041

&v 9 69

17 HI

0.0$ 24 '6
,

7M

nssw

7Da

|165e^ ;

Rjlanra m at it Hatvft , ro? J0.» 1M2 tSiM 043 Lit 7M4 (I0« $aM
- i«.M 1S.&3 •

W«l Uock

aialll Uarcn aMT 9.44 • 12 7146 tX9f lias 4H 44< sx^ r7M7 2AA1 ««L4« 7ije

*f II ai HttrK *71 n.ie ?.1l laJi lt.10 •.»1 <« i«.ia 1M.M «49 itu nM7 M.1I M46 SSJ2

imin«ftWAn«a wtf*' D«wN«»'ii«*t »^S)«SdwMe • 0«tU4ren31, ana

Amaum 11 lr«4"0iua AneB fo* a OH^d •!

naAfllfeli AaMts wfMr DavMpfMrt
Kn (ticn

1 y«w
1>l ya«r« 2 J

tnera iniA s

yHn
Tiul

SS 1726 - -
27 S

PrfMmanmM* . -

iml 17.3( U.M

T>«r« s<« pttwatvvi'ictvBsiaxMOaaina o«g«i or iimocosi lufi Tr«t»*i«t« ro prajacit*rtcfi is iatf«9ar»

|ra««^lbk AbmU wnMtMvftcfmcnla^ns 8tn>—a a»»n HimIi 31,2142

AmouM Ht iNa^b'a'UMbfara 0«)«4«T

Wngl»l» Aiiti laMif DaviM»«>lwl
LMa inan

1 VMr
i«2rMn 3-iy«an

itiOH Mn 3
Total

9699 12&3 239 7150

-

r«(ar ftM MSi U9 -
71J9

ThM»fttprqeaier*nc;ita*iat««MMlhceu^taiPt«ove'rtfi T>t9e'«Mr«eW«ei«'>tii9ilsWnp3rinya«pma3a>»MlKP»l.2022

." \-T.
I / ' 'I- \3:
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Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited
Summaryof aignificant accounting pcliciea and other exptanatory Informationfor the year ended 91 March 2023
(Ali amounts are in millions of Indian Rup99$ (f). unless otherwise sfated)

As at 31 March VU23

Nr.nfithani« Ammmt

As at 31 March 2022

No, of aharAS Amount

20 Equity share capital
Authorleed share capital
Equity shares of ^ 10 each
Compulsariiy convertible preference shares o) ^ ^0 each

760,000

2,300,000

7 50

23,00

750.000

1,750,000
7,50

17,50

Total 3,0».000 90.60 2^500.000 2B.Q0

Issued

Eflufty shares of ? l Deach
CopDpuisorily convertible preference shares of f 10 each

573,861

1,763,019

6.74

17,64

573,861

1,683,819

5,74

16.16

Subscribed and paidHipt

Equity shares of ^ 1Q eacti
Less: Equity shares held under trust For employees
under ESOP scherne (a(so, refer note h) below
Ccmpulsorlly converCble preference snares of 110 each

573,861
(213 523)

1,763.819

6,74

(2,14)

17.64

573.861
{213.523)

1 653 819

5,74

(2.14)

16,84

Total 2,124,157 21.25 2,044,167 20.46

a) Reconciliation of number of equity ehares and amount outatanding
lesiied, aubscribad and paidnip
Balance at the beginning of (he year 573,861
Shares issued dunng the year
Shares &ouqt)t back flunng ttie year

5.74 573,861 5,74

Less' EQuily shares held under tnjst for emoloyees
ynder 550P scheme

573,861

(213.523)

5.74

(2,14)

573,861

(213,523)

5 74

(2.14)

BaUnce at the end of the vear 360,396 3.60 360.398 9.60

b| Reconciliation of number of preferanca shares and amount outstanding
i&sued, subscribed and paid-up:

Balance at the beginning of fte year 1,683,019 18 84
Shares issued dunna the vear 80,000 0.80

1,616,195
67,624

18 16

0.66

Balance at the end of the year 1.769,819 17.S4 1.€89.819 16.84

c) Shareholder* holding more than 6 percent
No. of eharas % of holding No. of aharet %0f

holdino

Equity shares of f 10 each
S Q Anil Kumar

Samunnati ESOP Welfare Trust

Aceel Ind^a V (MaunOus) Ltd

238,257

213,523

75,733

42"^

37%

13'^

238,257

213,523

75,733

42%)

37%

13%

Compulaorily converttble preference sharee of f 10 each
421,522 24% 421,522 25%

364,949 22% 374,949 22%

366,594 21% 366,694 22%

286,730 15% 226,730 13%

110075 6% 110.076 7%

148.957 0% 118,967 7%

Elevar U-lil

Accel India V (Mauntius) Ltd
Respcn&Acility Agneulture I, SLP
Teacfiers Inaurance and Annuity Asaodaljon of Amenca
Accel Growth Fund V LP

Elevar l-IV AIF repfeaented by ils Trustee Vialra (TCL

March 31.2029

Promoter Name
Number of

shares

Percentage of
total shares

Percentage
chanfie during

the vear

Mr. Anij Kumar S G 238,257 41,52% •

FflWRESWtfc
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Samunnail Financial IntemiedlaUon & Servlees Private Limited
Summary ofslgnlflear^t accounting policies and otl)erexplar>atory Information forthe year ended 31 March 3023
(All emounts ere in miiuonsof Inaian Rupees (f) unless oi^emise stated)

g}

March 31,2022

Promoter Name
Number of

shares

Percentage of
total sliereB

Percentage

ctiange during
the year

Mr Anil Kumar S G 238 25? 41 52% -

way of bonus laaues since jncorporation of lha Holding Compeny

Terms and rights attached to equity shares
The Hoidiog Coinpany has only one clesd of eauity shares having a face value of ^ 10 per share. Each holderofequity
shares is entitied to one vole per share. The IHolding Conipany shall deciere arid pay dividends m Indian rupees. The
drvidend proposed by the BoanS of Directors shall be subject to the apprcvsl of (he shareholders m the ensuing Anr>ual
GeneralMeeling, eicepl inter>m dividend which can be approved by the Board ofDirectors. In the event ofliquidation of
the Hoiding Company, the holders Of equity shares will be entiUed to receiveremsimng assets of the Holding Company,
after distnbution of dll preferennal amounts. The dislnbudon will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by
the shareholders.

Terms and rights attached to preference shares
The holding Conipany has issued Senes A1. A2. A3. B. C, D. Dl and Pre^Sertes E series compulsorily convertible
preference shares havrng a face value Of Rs 10per share. At the option ofthe holders, these shares, eitherm whole or
in part, may be converted mto equity shares m the ratio of i 1 before »hee*piry of 10 years from the Issuance of such
compulsonly converlibfe preference shares Each holder of the cornpuisonly convertible preference shares is entitJed lo
one vote per share. Dividend on each compulsonly convertible preference shares is C.01% per annum, subject to cash
flow solvency, and such dividend shall be a preferred dividend In the event of uquidaljan of the Company, the holders
of compulsonly convertible preference shares shall have a preference over other share holders of the holding

The holding Company has issued Pre-Senes E Optionally Converbble Redeemable Preference Shares ("Pre-Senes E
OCRPS") having a face value o' Rs 10 per share At the option of the holders of Pre-Serles E OCRPS. these shares,
may be converted into Pre-Serles E Compuisortly Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares ("Pre-Senes E CCPS*).
The Pre-Senes E OCRPS Conversion Ratio s^^all initially be i l and shall be subject (o adjustments as per ^e terms of
issue fPre-Senes E OCRPS Conversion Ratio') The holders of Pre-Senes E OCRPS shall, at any time pnor to 19
(nineteen) years from ihe date of issuance ofthe seme, be entitled (o call upon the holding Company to convert all [and
no( less than all) of the Pre-Senes E OCfiPS m accordance with the Pre-Senes E OCRPS Conversion Ratio by issuing
a Nofice to the Company Ttie Pre-Series E OCRPS, ifnot converted earlier shall aulomabcaHy convertmlo Pre-Senes
E CCPS at the then applicable conversion rate on the latest permissible date pnor to the issue of Shares to the
public in connection with the occurrence of a Public Offer under Applicable Law, or (ii) on the day following the
completion of 19 years from the date of issuance ofthe same The holders of Pre-Senes E OCRPS shall not be entitled
toattend meetings ofShareholders ofthe Company andwill not beentitled to any voting rights pnor to conversion of the
Pre-Series E OCRPS into Pre-Senes E CCPS. Only so long as the Pre-Senes E OCRPS have not Been converted to
Pre-Senes E CCP5, the holder of the Pre-Senes E OCRPS shall be entitled to seek redemption of all or any of the Pre*
Senes E OCRPS at such IRR and wilhin such timelines, as per the terms of issue.

Terms of oonvefsion

Series Date Amount

Senes A1 25 Feb 2034 0.99

Series A2 25 Jul 2034 1 26

Series A3 31 Mar 2035 0.61

Senes B 25 2036 2.76

SerresC 27 Dec 2036 5 6Q

Senes D 23 May 2038 4.94

Senes Dl 15 Apr 2CI40 0.6d

Pre-Serles £ 10 Get 2041 0.70

Pre'Series E 12 0ct 2041 0,10

Pre-Serles E OCRPS 30NOV 2041 0.40

18.04
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Samunnati Financial Intemiedlstlon 8> Services Private Limited
Summarv of8iflr\Jficant accounting policies and otherexplanatory Information for the yearended 31 March 2023
(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees (f), unless olhonvise stated}

h) The Holding Company has given en interest and collateral free loan to ESOP Tnjsf to provde financial assistance for
purchase of eguity shares of the HoiOing Company under Employee Slock Option Scheme The Holding Company has
established the ESOP Taist to which the stock options issuable have been transferred. The Molding Company treats
ESOP tnjst as its extension end shares held by ESOP trust are treated as treasury shares. Own equity inslruments thai
are r^acquired (treasury shares) are recognised at cost and deducted from Equity sha/e caortai (to tl>e extent of face
value) and from Other equity (tothe extentofpremium on shares). Also refer note 33.

As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Statutory Reserve 40.59 40.59

Securities Premium 6,554.51 6,755.45

Employee stock options outstanding 320.61 262 32

Capital Redemption Reserve 0.07 0,07

Equitycomponent of compound financial Instruments 382.77 (23.55)

Other comprehensive income 6.09 5.67

Retained earn inas* fR^fpr Nnte below^ 12 747,811 f1 254 26)

4,S5B.d3

• Note Samunnati Foundation was consolidated in the FY 20-21. However ihe same has not been consolidatedfrom the
FY 21'22 as the Intent of the investment is not commercial in nature so as to get any return on the investments.
Consequently the retained earnings impact Of the FY 20'21 amounting Rs. 1.13 million has been eliminated in the
previous year consolidation Regrouping with corrections have been carried out in the cun-ent year pertaining to the
previous year in the equity component of compound financial instruments, other comprehensive income and retained
earnings.

Description of t^e nature and purpose of other equity

Statuioiy reserve
Reserve furrd is created as per the terms of section 45-IC(1) of the Reserve Bank of Indie Act, 1934 as a statutory
resen/e. An amount equal to 20% of the Holding Company's profits after tax is transferred to this reserve every year. This
is3 restricted reserve and any appropriation from this reserve can only be made after prior approval from RBI.
Securities premium
Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. This amount can be utilised in accordance vi/ith the
orovisions of the Comoames Act 2013.

EmpIoyee stock options o ut^ta nding
The employee stock options outstanding represents amount of reserve created by recognition of compensation cost at
grant date fair value on stock options vested but not exercised by employees and unvested stock options In the
Statement of profit and loss in respect of €qu^ty•settled share options granted to the eligible employees of the Holding
Company and its subsidianes in pursuance of the Employee Slock Opton Plan.
Capital redemption reserve
Capital Redemption Reserve is created as per the provisions of the Companies Act. 2013 in respect of the shares bought
back bv the Holdmc Company.

Equity component of compound financial Instruments
Equity component of compound financial instruments r^resents the EQUity portion of Debt Secunttes.
Other comprehensive income
Represents remeasuremeni of defined benefit liability which compnses of actuahal gams and losses excluding amounts
included In net interest on the net defined benefit liabilities and income lax impact thereon.

Retained earnings or accumulated surplus/ {loss) represents total of all profits/ (losses) retained since Group s inception.
Retained earnings are credited with current year profits, reduced by losses, if any, dividend pay»outs, transfers to
General resen/e or anv such other aoproohations to specific reserves.
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Samunnati Financial Intermedia Uon & Services Private UmiteO
Summary &f significant accounting policies and otherexplanatory infomietlon for the yearended March 2023
(All amounts ars <n millions of Indid" Rup9es ff>, unfess o/henvise sfaleOJ ended Year end»tf

31 March 202d Jl Mafch 2Q^
22 Revenue (rom operations

a) Interest income onfinanclel instruments measured atamortleed cost
Loar^&

Investment rn Pass Through Ce'li'icsles
Security flSDOSits held with lenders
Fixed deposits

b) Sale of traded goods
Agncultural products

c^ Other opentiii9 revenue

Total (a*b+c|

23 Otner income

Other non-ei>erating income
Interest income on delayed payment of dues by customers
Income from mutual furvd mveatFrients

Interest income on Fixed deposits
Recovery of defaults m loan serviced
income from debt fund

Other income

24 Finance coats

On financial Habilltias measured at amortlssd cost

Interest aipense on:
Borrowings (other than debt seeurrt^s)
Debt secunOes

Lee»e liability
Other borrowrng costs

25 Impairment on financial instrumsfits
At amortised cost

Impaim^em o' loans
Impairment Oftrade receivables
Bad debts wntten off

26 Purchases of stock*in-trade

Purchese of $toci<-4n-tfade

27 Changes in inventories of stock In trade
Openif>g stock
Closing slocK

28 Employee bsnerit expenses
Salaries and wages (also, refer note 45)
Gratuity and leaveencashmentexpo^ses (Also refernote 34)
Contnbution to provident and eWer funds
Employee stock opoon expenses (also, refer note 33)
Staff werfare expenses

29 Dspraciation & emortlzaUon
{Alec, refer note 12)
Dspreciat>on on prroerty, p^snt and equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets
Depreciation on nght of use assets

1.702.92 1,592.75
10.97 24.42

15.12 16.56

1640 4 55

1.74S41 1.640.26

16 885 84 21,155 79

16,885.94 21,186.79

143.22 132 99

143.22 132.99

18.774.47 f7 979.08

49 96 14.46

42.18 14.40

16.80 -

- •,92

1.31 16.SB

113.00 11.72

?23.25 66.08

773.49 596 19

616 75 532.06

4.05 4.37

67.42 82 90

1.481.71 1 ?1*fi7

660.73 200.24

. 220.56

64d.23 585.92

i.sns.K 1 M6.72

16 727.45 21 590 20

1«.727.4fi 21^.20

869.31 24 20

1.160.32 869.31

f?(l1 IMKMS

741.20 735.93

26.79 26.95

31.29 30 62

58.29 57.03

23.30 27.60

M0.67 878.33

26.94 25.64

7.04 19.97

24.70 16.98

60.74 64.78

FlPWRf^Nhj.
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S«munnAii Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited
Suminsry of slgniricdntaec&unting policies end other ovplanatory information for the year ended 31 Mefeh2023
(AH amounts mmillions of SnOian Rupees (f), oni&ss ofh&rv/ise staled) Veer ended Year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

30 Other expenses
L^al and professional chdrges
Servrce Fee expenses
Technology and €oniniun»cation expenses
Membership and auOscnption charges
Trevellmg and conveyance
Insurance

Paymeme to auditors (also, refer note befcwj
Repair3 end maintenance • others
Rates and taxes

Rent

lmpe>rtnent o' trade receivaUes
Prrnlng er>ia stationery
Powat and fuel

Sitting lees
Loss on sale of property, plant and equcpment
Maiiettng atcpenses
Provision for Inventory
Bad Oabts written off

Miscellaneous expenses (aJso, refer note 39)

31 Tax expenses

a) /neome tax ncognizad In sfefemenf ofprofit and tesa
Current tax:

In respect of current year
In resoect of pnor years

Deferred tax:

In respect of current year origination and reversal of temeo'sry differences
Total Income tax recognized in stat^ent of profit and lose

b) Income tax neogoU^ in othar comprehensive income
Deferredtax related to Hems recognized In Other Comprehanelve Income during the year:
Rerneasurement of defined employee benefits
Total income tax recognized in other comprehensive income

32 Samlnge Per Share (EPS) after coneidering compulscrity convertible preference eharea
Net (loss) attributabie loeQuilyshareholders f m millions {8as<c and Dili/ted)
Weigtvted averege number ofequity shares used in computing basic EPS (in numbers)
Weighted average number ofCCPS used incomputing basic EPS (in numbers)
Total weighted average number of shares used in coniputing Basic EPS (in numbere)
Basic EPS (f) • face value of share f 10 each
Diluted EPS (t) • face value of share 910 each

«7/iis 9}9ce's imentionall/M e)Ief>k*>

179.S4 144.45

16.45 2.24

39.06 31.46

15.42 17.5B

70.40 42.33

29.3& 45 39

10.68 9.63

tO.61 11,73

304 2.15

16.29 16.02

72.51 .

3.7S 4.14

6.04 3.32

2.65 3,37

0.36 o.oe

12.45 10.49

83.61 20.15

3,33 .

129 27 39,04

706.99 403.79

0,07

5.03 -

6.10

/427.72i f260.71J

r427.721 1360.71)

0.21 0,34

0.21 O.M

(1,465,37) (1.066.39)
S0.336 360,336

1,721,290 1,663,619

2,061,636 2,044.157

(7C3.9&) (521.66)

{703.95) (521.66)

?. SvV-^

r«"rsmNc. \y
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Svnunnsti Financiai iniemiedtitl«n i Services Private Limited
Summary at slsrtifKanl accouming poficlee and other explsnetory inform ation forthe year ended 31 Mareh 3023
(AH 9mounf% are tn mWiorts of Ir\ei9»RuQSSS t^) unless oWetw^segfflfM)

33 gmcMoyee eliate based F>ay^»ni«
EdOP 2015 Scheme

a) On SeotemMf 08, 2015 , me Board of DirsctofS approvec and Che Holding Company afloptefl Che 'EmDioyeee Stock Opnor Plan 2015* (the 'Plwi) ufWer
whicfi notmoie *han 62,500 sharesofDie HoJdfig Co«npeny's aqinPv snares *fa9 reaerveO for aesuance toemployees IntheBoart meewig Mted Jer»usfy 29,
20t7. DecofTiber 20, 201? ^0 Apni 25, 2019addiuonef srares of5 794 (nos), 70,366 (t*o»> and 11S,000 (fws) respectvaly were added to ffie n»i, lesueO and
aMotteO io ISOR Tmsi

Theoptorvs are toM framed tothe eliQiUe erMoyeas as per(he eliglCulKy cntena eft determined by Vie bcerdorDirector? The Bhare opttons vest tn e graded
marmerovera period of 1-4 y«arsar>8 are eterase^ «Tthin 2 monthsof exordse event,fai^n^ the optKMis snail laose

On Ji.tfie 21, 2010. friB Board Of D'rectCKS spewed eno the Hoidjr»g Company adooted the ' Amendment to t;ia Employee® Stoc» Oelion Plan 2015" {"The
Plan") The amendTienl pertams to vesting pencd. exercise artd grant ofopuorstg new toners Tha options to De gremed to the eligible employees as perthe
eligibility cntena as determined by the froard ofDirectors The share opoons vest n a graded m8r\ner ever a period ot 1-4 years and eter^saOte within ?
months o« exerase event failing i*t^i(3i tPeemployees snaH have to hold ontill ih® nefl event ariMe Oi May 2^, 20^9, tJie Boa'dofDirectors approved enij
the i-^jng Company adopted the "Erticdoyeee Stock Option Plan 2019*. Tne amerament pertains to vesting period Vesting of^rtiorts triaynow tsKe place
betwevi three ar«j four years in Ihemenner, as may bedeaded by (he Nctftiinatjon and Renuneraiian Commioee On Fetruary 10, 202? the Board ae^roved
the Employees Sw* Option Plan 2022 to broaden the ferms encf con#tons including those ci vesting, exer^se lapse surrendw, etc ar*d the samewes
SDproved Oythe Holding Company on March 07, 2022

Dunng i^ia cur^e^^t vea' board of director? did not scprove any to employees

Partlculaf*
No, of opttor>s ss at

Merch 31,2023

III

No. of options as at

March 31,2022

Weighted
Average

Rate

Options ou(fitar>d;ng at (he beginning of the year 65,713 3,173 57.S65 2,156

GranBd during the year - -

43,360 S,022

Exerosed Ounrtg ffie year - -
- -

£;q)lred/ lapsed during the yeair (11 259)
-

<15.252)
-

Options Oi>tstand'ng at the end of the year 74.454 3441 65.713 3,173

Ootiona exeroseble as ai rhe An<i nt the r^enod 10.930 739 10.930 739

The lAeighteQ average remainl<^g contractual ^ for the staci< options culst^ndlnQ atthe end otthe year was I9i days (previous year 383 dayej
t) The felt value of Ihe opClorH granted isctetermined on tha date qI (he grant usin^ the 'Blad(-Schclea optiori pnong modeT wrih the rcHawIng assummrs. es

cstjlles by an mdeperideni vgiuer

Psrtlculare PV 20t6-16 FY 2016-17 Fv aoiT'ifi PY 201M9 FY2f11Ji-7n PY2D2Q>21 PY 2021>22 FY 20Z3-23

Fair market value of opoc^ cr the date of grant 606 1,030 40 1.726,61 2,970 4< 3.316.07 5.022.43 -

ExsTQse flrice range (we«gnted avera^ey 10.00 319.00 E1S 00 1.46445 3,203 50 7.500.00 13 069.77 -

Expected vdatHity {U) 60 29"4 50 29% 60 29H 60 29% €0 29% 50 29% 56 96% 56.96%

Expected fc^ferrure percentage on each veettng date - • - - - - • •

exp«cied opDon Itfe {weighted average <nyears) 3.67 3.57 3 22 310 2.47 a.oo 3.00 3.00

Eipedsfl dividends v^e^tl - • - • - •

Risk free interest rat* 7.55% 6 66% 7 62% 6.S1% 5 66% 6 60% 6 60%

lAanagemerTt Stock Option Scheme 2Q17

On Decer^oer 20 2017 the Boand ef Directors aporpveo and the Holding Ccnpeny adopted (he 'Wanagement Sto<> Opuon Scheme 2057" haremfter
referred as ihe-Scheme" Under tJie Scheme. 20,829 opoorrs weiegr^neO 1o thepromo'̂ r (Anil Kumar S G- Brectorar»d CEO> veetng ever 1 yearfrom the
date ot Ihe gr»f On Apni 29 3019, the Holding Company's BoarO of Ofteaors apcr&yed and the HciiJiig Company adopted the 'Msnagerrtent StocX OpBon
Scheme 2tii9" Under the reviseo Scheme, 45.000 options were granted io the procnoter, vesting over 1 year frcm thedate ofthe gram Oft t^e happermg of
any hguidi^ everri asflefineo mthe Sctieme the Nomir^atior and rgmoneratjcri commirtee has Che disaelion to provide ceshJess e^efase

The weiflJited average remaininu ccilraciual life for (he stock options ou(standir»g atthe end o'the year was 0days< prevoos year 0flays)

Particulars
No. of opNoos ae at

March 31,2023

Welghtsd
Averega

Rate

No. of oplions ae al

htarch 31,2922

WelQhted
Average

Rate

Options outstanding etthe b«glnnlns of the yeer 45.000 ?.9Q2 45 000 2.902

Granted dunng the year -
-

E*ercisM Ounr^ the yeer - - *

Expired/ lapsed dunng the year - • •

Options outstanding at the aruj of the year* 45.000 2,902 46.000 3.902

Oncons axerasable as at the end of (he peoM dfvOOO 2 902 AS fino 2.902

rne fair vaioe or ffie options granted de(em^ir>ed ef^ the dale of grant using the Black SOioles cMon pnong model with the foflwing assumpt^c*i» ae certJllefl

Fai r market value of ophon on the dale of grem 2.936.71

Number o< cotlons granted 45.000

EveroM price range (weighted aveiagei 3.752 55

Expected votatil^ry 60 29%

Expected forfeiture percer^ge on eacn vesting date 0.00%

Expected cpuon l<fe (wei^ted average in yean) 1

EipectM) dividends yteld 0 00%

RiV frve mteresi ral^ 741%

Note Since the ImISOP shsr^ lesued on Deesmber 20, 2017 were
^arda. HenceaPove diadosure lanotprMcnlaO forthe same
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Sdmunnetl Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited
Summery ofelBniflcem accounting pclklee «nd wner enpiaftstery Irtformalian for they«er ended y March 2039
lAU amavn/s are \l m<<lton3 ollnOian Rup9«i(fl. untess o^herw.se yfetfrfl

Empktyee benefits

Qenarat deecHptlon of defined benefn plsria
Si GraUjir^

In accoraarK® win applicable ^ndlan lawi. ihe Grogp pfl>-W» iv greitjify, s aefir«ed benefll retreiwent e*8n (The G^BWry Plen^) eov^mg
digrbte empioyees Th« gmjitf pten prtiyide for a lump sum payin»nt to veMefl emyoyBas onrelremem {subject locompialren of fh,* ye«
of conlWuoui empioymeni), Oeslh incawcllaiion or tennination ol emptoymervt that are baeefl on ls«l drwr wlary ana tenure et
ampioymeni TneGroup does notniamiam arty pleri assera toAmd its obiigalion lowa/Qs g/9luicy Gabii^y.

Through iis detirwi) Qeneni plari» ineGroup isecpcsed los riumber ofrtsKs the inost «gnfte«nt ofwhtdi are MUtiea below.
Infletlon risk

The prea^t value ofsome oH me de^neo Denern p(an obiigaijont are cs^leted wnn reference toiTie wlar>ea ofplan pafwtp«fils. A*
MCfi, am ifweaee m the salary of ihe plan 0<ntc)par<t& m«i inoeaee the fiianft habHty.

Ltfe Mpeetaney
The preeent value oidef^nea t»ne})i pl^ cbJigation 4 celcwIeteO ty rerer«nce lo (he Msl eatimete ne mcraiity ofplan Mrtldpanis, bocn
during and aner iNe empiov^enl Ar irvease in meiife eipectancy0' the piar partictpanis will Increase the plan's itabHity

DIscDunt rate

Redudjcn m fltscouH rate m ^bde^uem valuations car ihe plan'} babtiity

OetSis of denned MneAl plena bs per actuarial veiuetion are e» foliows

Amount recognWd in the aUlement of Profit and Losa
Current aeiv^ce co»t

Nei lnja<esl coat

Total «K|>e«isae Included In employM benafH eipenaet

Junount recognized in Other Comprenenslve Income
ftemeeauremeni jgainey losaee:

Acoianat (gamy losaes anaing fn»n changes m
• E^penerce adjuslmenis

Total vnounl recognized in other comprehenaJva ineome

Changes In the Oeflned benem oUigetlon
•pening 0«fined benafiloeligMen
Openirig »3ditlcr from acquisition ofK^atan Farm Tech PnvaieLimiieQ
Cure«Ti «erv(ce eoe)

Interest »>p«nse
Remeasuf^eri (gamsjflossee ansirg from tfiargee in •

- E^nence edjudiments
Benefits paid
(OtaposaiayAoMiaHions {Nel)

Ctoemg defined Mnafit oCdigatiDn

, Het defined benefit obllgtfon

Dsflred Dene^K obligation
Cunvnt poitlon of ine above
Ncm cuTTBHt pQiiion of V>e above

V. lilaturtlypnsniaordaflrtad beneAtoUlgat)9n{undiacaymedj

Wrthin 1 year

itoSyears
Ucye tnanSyeer^

Veer endeO yeBreT>ded

yar 71)7^ Uaf :M 2022

e45 fi r2

1 70 1 25

inu 7,J7

<0 645 f2 2ei

(0.94l_

vear ended As at

MarrJi.11 Mli Mar^Atl 9lU2

20.39 16.86

. 1.35

e<6 «.12

t.7i5 1.25

(0.«4) [2.26)

(0 91) (2.9'J
li 621 -

28JI7 TOM

Yeerended Aaal

Um*rh 7fl2A UarrH 11 W7

26 07 20.9B

3 60 246

21.57 17 gj

Aaal At at

MAfrh 2n29 MarrH A1. ttlii

jar 2 46

10,79 e.Tfi

39.63 2C.71
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SBmunnAi Financid Intermediatkin & Service* Prtvste UmRefj

Summery ofelgnlflcant accoundng pdleles and oth»f eiplenstofv InromiMloii foe the yearentfed 91 H»reh 2023
lASamounis ^ mWWs of inOian ifi. unless wftei^viwSfflWtfJ —

Mat

Mireh 31.2023

Actuarial assumpUone en<3 aeraittvlty
Otacounl lale LPe )
Artntson

Rale of aalary incrvase
Jr>* service Uo/diFy 'ate

l^nUiative aenaiUvity anilytli tor input at aignifleant eisumpttona on
defined tMrelll obl^itiona are aa followa

percerttaoe pont inaaeu in c»KOuni rale
Ona panenUge pcsnt fleoesse m discount >ala
One pefcenlage pcmt increase tfi salary grciNvtn rate
One pefcentage DO<rit dwesw msalary gro«in <9ie

Asal

March 91,2033

7.M%

i&60%

7.00*

IAL20t2*14UA

Year ended

March 31.2023

M3l)
1.<I7

1.49

n.37)

9.7%'6-9%

i6.m

7 00%

IAL2012-14JII

VMr ended

March 31. 2D22_
n.M)
1.M
t.21

(f 11>

D) Cotnpentew) abaancee
Tne Groitf wnnnaancaahmefit of«mcen»i« aMenoea acojmwiaied b* iTe^r employees onraDremeot. separation anddunng me VMt99
of service. Tne Wttlrry m respect of Uie Orou©. fv owtsianding o^arca ol privilege leave at the Mlance eftec Oat© is detenninM end
provided on inetiM ©f acoianai veluatiofi provided By an indepenOam bcSi«i> Tne Groop doesnotmaintain anye'en asaela to funo it»
obligation towards comDervMted absences

Actuarial aasumpUons tor eompeneated ebeencee
Particulars

I. Actuarial aMumpOone artd aenalQvity
Qiacount rate (p a.)

Rete ol aaiary maaasa
AtJntiQn rate ove^ different age bracKQts

Vearer>4ed

htanhSI. 202a

7.20%

7.«%

7 00%

Yearended

March 31.2022

e.7%-B.9%

15.00*

7.00%

The eelmate of fuiura salary inereaeea corisiOerea mactuana veKistoa, oanadan infiallon. serioniy, p«omc<(on ana other relevant factors,
such as Supplyand demand m the empioyfnent mer^et.

II gxpeneea recognized tnStatement of profttand lo«e
(ndudeO under gratuity and leave encsehment expenses

III. Net deflned benefit oWffation
Denr>ed Cene^ otriigation
Currant pcf1>on o( ttia above
Noo cbnent pctiofi Of Che above

Yev entfed Yearended

l«a»rh M 7n71 March 31.2022

16 64 1d.S8

Yew ended Veer ended

March 21. 2023 Mar^ 31.2022

34 07

b 20

15.87

2fl 21

7 €2

1859

9$ Capttrf management

The Group's cspftai management strategy Blo aflaOlvWy oeiennine. raiae ena deploy caprtai so m to creala vSue for its shareholder. The
same is done through a mi* oferthe* e^itv enfl/or converuw an®©r comi)»natKHi of tfcn termjteng larm debt as may beappropnaie.
The Grtrup dfllemaies the amount of capital raqujrad cr ine wsia oCopaations. ceptial ejipendilu/e and ynsiegc pi»i8. Tne capital
staKJue IS moniioreO on ihe basrt of netde« to equtty ane matuniy profile ofoyeral deWporifoW

Nat«ebt to equity retio

Debt

Lett Cash and catfi eooivalenis and otnar benk Dalarcei
f^et debt

Total equity

rjsi debt lo equity thdo (%)

«Truspacats inwtSmuP^^ M

Aa at Aeat

31 Karch 2023 31 March 2022

>9,099.01 13.942 12

MAM 4€1 ri «7B 0t^^

11.370.S6 11.B32.32

4,sao.u 4,806.74

24&2B% 242.00%

; >,

*N ' \
ry ..... . Y-.^\

- J

/ ^

y.^y
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SamunnvTl FInancltf InttrmaOaUdn ft Stfvlcm Prlvita LIkIM
SuAimary ofUgnltlMffi ««c9unflng polieiaft anfl oth«r««plafvctetv IntennaUeti tor Via yaarart4M Ukrelt 803S
lASamotygi av in miWW tflnfflan ftjpeas ff9. ytvaw

K L*MW

As a iMaaa

a) Aadiii«nB to riflht of ij«a taMt
Paitieuia^

lbmM wPiaa

bt CarrytAQ vtf ue of rlQin of um aatat
Panlcuia^
Righn 9 use asset as on (he cf«n«ig da«
Aooiucxf dunng the year
DuoosaU/ QediMicn*
DeBr«aajcn oiarge (or lha yes
Balance ae ai ifie year end

Yw ended YearaiMad
X14lar^3 »1-«lar.82

27.54 39.10

A»«t Aa al

91-«ar-& M4IV42

91.23 17 59

27 M » 10

(107) i048^
r?4 7ai MiSftds

a2.«4 11

24ff7 20.09

13.89 KSV

M.M 40.11

M.91

Yar ended Year ended

MJJar.9^ MJiarO?

4.0s 4.37

24.76 18.90

1529 )S02

c) Umnty etiah^ks of !•»« UUftv
CenVAcQMl UndlacoutiM Caaft Fkw*

Leufftan > i«er
Onetcliye ivars
Tefe<uri(3i8eoi*'4adiaaea haDil*v

Leau batiBief lAduded a m eietemem offuwicial cwMn

d) Amownu rvcogntted In 3tauitv»n| of profit or lose

fiteresi cn laaao llabillMs

PBti'wJaiai ciu(9« rc« m* fBar

E*pensee r«latu«9 lo vnn«lem

ST ConUng«m iiaMiitias and eoffimimiems |(b tii« erteninot prvviM for]
C«nDng«m HaMIRIes
Ciairta agemef IM Qroup not aekneude^ed aa 4abu :
TM Notflng Co(i«»viy h«d rvcctvvd orde** froni Vteome Tbi Asaewmg CAcs (AO) pwmci^ to AV 20t6-t7. AY ?CT7«19. AV 201B<19 ane AV 202^1
«nsain c«rUin addttfcna A«r« made underse<l>9i i6, aecticn Cdand s»c»9> 143^) gf ineaxia Tan An 1961.Tlta Hotting Cvnpany hat etUfwd a ffaj en
ectecuonorffie demarid noi'«d*tf MIm. Tne nclSAg CompLyiy cisns^ersVie clams ie be arrortaous and as noteaystae me piouiMna offemn* Tut
Afl 1961

U

Aft at 11 WlKn2023 ivwia-i? 1 AY20ie-19 AV2020-t1

frriOiM c< demoiB 10 241 0.2« 106.03

Amomw ft»d eoeifist siev 2 10I
-

21 21

As 1131 Metr-h »» AY Wl^lJI AY W17'1( AY 2018.11

Arickjrii flK^and 10>8| iS7 02d

amiiiKTi rutti »naln» 2. id 08D

Cprponu 96e\*l ^nooFiatOHlPf ^ ^
ln« l>o*ip has noi incwrW aojeamatun dunng Vie ajfT*nl jw (P.Y »04' miBiona) itwW CSR Wvllrfe «filtfi indudea tantn^tVi Idonaoons mada to
ine<(3unaaiKVi whicTi a<e engegM Aaeeyniaa praecnbad unde< S«cM<^ i»flfvia Conmntee AcL 2019r«« wst ScMiMe VB («•)« wd Act.
OetaU* «P amourK epent toward* CSf) actlvMee:
a] &06» amojnt required (o be &Mnt by t* Group during iheyear isNH (previous ye» R* OS' millions)

F««lh* viMrAnrtart

Uareh 31.903? 11 2031
PanieuM

In
Yet 10 Be

Raid Iff
Tom In eeafi

Yaltob*

M)d In eaeh

In p9nmialCA^8cquias)on of siy a*s«) - - *

0.7 017 n87

W RMMMHallen of mcwnerRlA berfeWnga to <iah ne«« fr«n flrtinelng acltvHili

ParMularv

(1) Dablseojrtlet
1 Borrowas (oJxr Wn Baot eeajnacM

TaU

Parackdan

li)OMaaajnt«i
< BorrpNwnoa folPgVtin 8e« sagunm]

T«9M

»1 Uanh 20K

6.017 29

ia,si2i3

li Maren 20»

4.2T3.92

B.5S7.32

MreiiMsia nnarton^ and opefibr>8afKiOM
*rmaras pa^ntenis in the nawe a operajng adivfliei

niftraal

eipenawM

61S7$

773.49

iniatast

eipeftMaS

S32.C6

586 19

V12L2L

Caa^ noMlneQ

(2iS31)
(6 17L

tai7.4<]

Ca»n flow* (n«i)

106741

2599.72

inWfws

Ikmenlanon 01

loan

9riBin«IMn
ec«t

<ei6.r5)
<916,54) 97.42

97.42

imerMi

paymanta*

AfliofQMOon er

lean

ortQtfiatlon

-SfilL
S45

S2 03

(5MC0>
<e74 Ul

a7i71» sa.21

91 HMh »n

&.07S 63
?.B63 48

1>,M1J1

)1 Mann »n

&mB4

B.fll7 28

ixaiii
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&«(nunn«tl FJnmOtf IniamMUOon 4 9«rvlcm PrtvM Lrnlted
Sumntftry ef •Ignlflcinf »eMuftllft0 pellelMan4 otMr »ipl«nitefy lo' ma yurMMd 91MircH MU

I jnwunfa <re "t nuThons fluoeiM ifl. u^ltss oWg W^gj' afjfeqj

Th« mcjot guUaHnm <et attKrlen «(th« cllettt iacIuOm.
1 The a«filB tooame and indKudnew leiir«Brrvit be wfihin me (reecnoad guideiinMC^Resenia Bank «<Ml,
2 tne (3«rH must poss««sVi« legutrcd KYC doumenlt
} Tr« cltsti must M wigpged m seme 'e"*i of ecenoi^tc M.vttv ensures regulsi inc9ne.
4 Cl«ni mud 93^ lofollv M nuiessno 'e^uiaiions oi Vieorgdnission and
5 CrMit Amu 0wc)>- Ifl aw Id deal ««n iri« prooiant d ouer «<ie^ion el creM ma nstfedneis of i^e den. on cagmuKfi undofiiMi Wi
criec*«cc<rtpviiaariiyrer'e^4arT cieM the aedi! bureau chacli helps IMotp^isaUcn in idenuyng tiieme Mffi poo* tapa^mn hiwiirtea vid munipleMns.

CrMIt risk ecposura

in Enpectcd craCil letw* for flAiAeUI a»*ets oOier tnan loan* and trada raceiTabfo*
The Grvyp have ruM eapestt aedit losses rorOnai^ai as$«s otherman lovts and I'Me •ecBvaB'ea

Penicylarv
Cash and S4«h

aQulvUentt
CHMrbanh

iRvastnenw
OV«r

financial

ee»«a

4sal»1 Utnh 3039

i^asi carrying anount 1 ?47.45 421 Ot 11 62 SS90

1 m\ FfTW^ rmltt IrSlM . . -

Nflcatr^no smMtn 1.347.«l 4:i.Di 11.« 69 9C

As alSl MarcK 3033

^ttsea'^rig anount 1 l&T 6S &13 IS 192.37 isacd

1 MC EinertfKl rmflit lras«« . - .

Net cat^iAn awdunl t 1»7B6 &i9.1S 199^7 1(3.09

li M^vafhem df carryng am«unlanB expaeteo credit loe« for loana
Deflniildfi et default

Tha HdAig Company has mwtled Bie prasumpllen piMolbcd btfiOtf ind AS 109 mat ma cradA Hall raaasea up\ficmBi ttttt InrOit r«cegn«an wnen
untr^Tuai paynMrns9« mm than 30 days iSiige *^d n« defaun 0ccur« «nen a fiianciai assai is 0 d8|« pMt Qua 3). The }MAang la
deiem>ned <ar»»sh sagtrv^sd tov port'olle indicaled ba$ad en niaien^ endnw>:at (rende and ditsoicnsfrem RBI xicludB>s gyidV^ea *0'idantfl^len
01NPA r agrlojlu/al advancss

Staoa ^^•.'l.l«>l l.«. .,#.M

9aee 1
S1age2
si«n-ri

upio eudvys
91 4^110 *90 day!
Mere (hivt 160 aavs

Psnicwisrs
At At

»1 Narch 303)

As al

M MatrH 9t>n

Siaqa t io.mi« 10.31329
Sla^s2 767 04

334 99

T'-il ii 1«ATT 11.4H.J1

AnenalyaUof changes Inthe groM carrying emcunt ana tne coriMowdtng SCLattomneM tt, M tollewt:

Par^ylan KlMfit 1 SlAoea tefie^

10.3(2 39 797.0- 334.09

Ad|uctm«fits 10op^nfi^ belancM Aieio ctiange - [Ti 36) 76.M

Revised g'Ots taTytvq vtfio al ooaning Polxces ic.si2.n 6»t.U 410.26

assets c^inaSM dynng ihe yev. netted an 907 " (*41 69) 165 291

reftayrrteivs ano dsr^co^ted KiiMio'

Ttansrerio stMe i 3SS 39 (254 931 to i6\

i224.B9> 224 go (0 Oil

rransf? i« Usge 3 1991 7t) (66411 aS71S

li 63^ ffVOfli V,i

rs—rt* •alna nf rlfwlnn rulentM 10.9M.t9 ifUsi ftW.99

AtAoal CiecM3 SlaM)

GrM9 earning vslus 9( opening BalarieM B.101 17 1.109 7S 169 29

assets oif/itteo dvnng ihe year, netted ofl 2^2t -

rapaymrnis and afecsgniaao porTfolia
26f 01 r263.9l) lO 101

Tinsfet :o siaaa 2 <346 5'l 346.51 •

<99.i4> 1437 301 636.64

n60X«k m nil t355 1fli

Rmet urtMtAe value of cloalno haUnree 10.312.29 797.94 mw

' *Yr- I'Pt'ili. \ ".
[i.O , i:!

icM
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&«fFiunftfU FlrufWal lnl«m«til4tton & StrvicM »nv«1« Uwiua

Summtryor significantacwwnling poUclM •net Mter eiplarisrofy lnrenii4llBn forth* rHr»nQ«(l 91Waren 2023
f«manwunra jr» In m/nons o' JfJ, wWw9 oWeww srsiM

foreign currvnc^r 'Isk
roteHp oinver iisr ismensii tAB iajr voje orMur^ ca» r)ow« a 9financptt wi nuajsra bacMu of9«anffe« In fcretgn e>tfianea rBs.Tha

14 agowd Il» aJMeney tiek io ne e«eni o^B ihsie is a mfimal9i belsMen (he avfen««s r ntiioi rsuanuaf anQ swrMiee m dwtiinBad. e(4 iTia
runctioi^M e^BT9'1Cr or me Gioup Tne funcional cyn«Kv of li^e Grojfl le I'le ridian Rupaa <f| The curroncy m WM9 Mae VftfteaUim are (imarlty
fteK«ninB4d arv In InCtaft Rupee(') C^aln exptfl «aie(rv^aaioneoi <he Oroup arett9t«minateSbiJ8 OOtOn (l.>$0).

Partculef* A«at Mafcn 2029 Aa«t»^Uanii«U
Amoum lA Eure^ Amoufit^n Bvrv^

n 13 OGO

Far value AiMaurenems
.« Binn—igi at afDArtlrerf rr«r

Aa at AS ait

M It/n ai March 2022

carrying value Carrylfig vaCue

Ceah Bto ca*n e«uwa«nta i,2«r45 1.167 6S
421 n\ S12 16

34rr.40
Loans 1C 1&9&1 11.061^

Ini/aalmerts 11 « 192.37

Other rpBtctsl easels 59 90 i"rft

14 74rt 16

Flnantlel IMIIIHes

Trade c«>Wee 306.21 6BB.Q9

10 secuntiet 6.07SS3 S.294^
(U) Sorromngs (other than detn seculUes^ 7 9«14« S017A

OihB rmiMBi ueMies :iiA? 176 (9

UMTIU UiSSiA

The nianagen«ii Meeseeo M lalrvaliA c< above ^wiclal ln«rum«ni» wmmw b snoraead ooB aopromaW i
t^0(V1erm^>«urntea of tneie mgnifnenu

FiMfttftl iftttftSTiawtt at falrvalm tnrouah p«^t Of l&e>
Pairvalu* Peir value

' |^9 ma^'g ainountj largelydue lo the

PartteuUm Ce^KQ value
LMell Level: Uvaia

Rnamlal assets

Intwncnta

As B 31 2023 - - - -

A» B J1 fiitfch 2022 - • • • -

42 OperaUng segnterrts
1)CNat OpefeUngOe«lslan HaMf
OpWig fcfcgfnemj ae itporaa ma manner conw^ *vt tneniejTNB reponingto Cne Oft««»ig Oeclawo Maker (COOM). TTm 0»d txtcuwn Cmkf
fCEO) Ihe G'Ou» has been laanudad as9^ COOM eeOetlnea by Ind AS tCQ Operettg $egn*«nu. «*)« aneMas thelinviM parMnneriee end p«anMr> of
ihe Group and msKes sitaiegic deciMns

8) Opming Segmem
Prttfitry Sagmeni jfiueineee Segment)
The Group « «^»ni*ed ft(waniy «Mot*© opetBing tegmotta i.« e) Pinanwig - Prowfling le»u leAgneiwerpfieea. c«im«»WyeHee ergeniaSms and fwrnsr
Wcduces otga^uetiw^ eeajntisaicm ofsi/Cfi Icens t) Treflirig anaaiM aonflliea -Tf*»ra ofajfiftjItofaJ p«oOutfs allied •OWIHe*

^eeendafv Segment (Geograpntut Segment)
Sinw ifie t)u»fne»s opeiabciis atme Grm» are pom»«> in Vidla. Jfia GrogpiJ «Bpn«afefl lotveiWorily In I* flemewc ae^iwit b^
mere -i no r«c<^abie geogracfitc sagmeTi

c) Segifl^nl Revenue and Enseneet
Rev^ue ano r>p««<ses have been Mituriea toa setpieni onir« eaeis oirebcnahiptoOMWVestusiasof thea^meM.

4) Segmem Aaseo sntf uaWBUa
SagnwM assets bM fte9*ient laMiiesretFwent eueu and iiaMtiesmrespecMeMgntema.

e) AecB«i"Bng Pellclee _ ^ ,
The atawBing polioej e®u«BTBy uwO » Ihe ftfeparwon of Cm llnanas) «iBa»»iant« Be also to farm t^wenij# wi ejpanJtrt n mwM

PorBia Vaar nndM M lUah 2029

Firuftelftg
Trading and

allied ectivlUe*
Others TobI

Tdtal income

Co«d( goods s«M
RnanceOBs

Oepreeiaiienand amortzslBi
Envhryee benefit ^^aneee
PrtflVflOM) before Is
Tveie^Me
ProfUnicesiaftwtto

1.887 7t

1,t'5.76
49.92

4M94

(1.44A.S0V
015511

r1130

17,11001
16,06 44

27&se

114?

msi

(443 49)
<109.11)
(334 38)

-

16.997 72
16,43644

1 491 71

60 74

660 6?

(1.W7 99)
(42262)

M 4«3ri

110



MrfiuniMD PlMftcltl PlannMlcliVi ft PrlvM* UmnM
SumAtrv ef •ignirietni iccMnOns pefieW* ttid otner e«pl»n«lory Irrlermitlon fertnt yetr enM }1 lUnh SOS)
(AS,

Kiv ti»» y aa* anrlwl V tUr-h atm

Ptrvcuton Pln4f»clnfl
Tr«0irKi iM

«lltM 4C(tvttl«S
OV)«rv Tea*

Tgtoi inCQTe

Cosi cf goods tM
Rnsnce Ccsia

0«|]rebatJon and AntonaatHn
EniF*o>«e Benvftf E9«>^s
Pt0f)ii(Le») e»rere Tm
T«i g;cp«nae
0rciAliYLo«i^tfterT«i

1,723 7fl

977 1'

47.61

M7 70

(MS 92)
(149911
^ei9.ni

»,743.09
239 W

17,ia

330.63

(110 90)
f^7.2ei

•

ii.ki'fM
30,745J»

1.21 S.S2
73

BTS S3
(1,927 10)

(2M 711
fi rxw^ti

f'of Dt« VMr«nd«d 91 Hirtfl ma

P«ntou^ Pknsf)cln9
Tnd)ng and

•01*4 aellvrasB
OViSf* TCttI

S«gmMM A«Ml» xiMi el
4711 as

S UO 16

4 190 94
;

I».4a2 77

n soi6»

Brvtha Vna' fitlri-fl S^ UtfZh »&

PsrVeutor* Plrtjittlfig
TridlnQ end

allMfl MIMUm
0IM<1 Teal

S«9tT>«m MMit 19,123 4fi 6.131 94 19.3S4JD
uesWee inRUM 3.6» S2 •

14 447 (A

«7?w sMc« ^ss wen ^ UMir»

— -*
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Sanunntti Financi>Mritefmed<atien & 3«fvlceft Private Limited
Summary ofslgnlflMnt accounting ppflcias andotharaxplanatofy information for1h» yaarentfed 31 MarcN 2023
(Au amoc/fljsare >f\ mdiiors of ^ncs^an Pc/peea ff] u^»ess offienvise stated)

49 htotuHty analysis of a«««t and iiabilltis*
TTia laCHe Mlow show? t»ie maiunry snalysts ofa&ssts andlia^ictied sccor<jir>g lo wTien (hey arB expected to b« rscovarM oruiMd.

AAStSf March 20il Aaatd)Wirel|2i a

^rtieuiart mthin After Within After
Total

12 months 12 mentiie 12 menlh* 12 montiiB

A&8ET8

financial asaatt

Cash and cash e^uival^nte 1.J47.45 . 1.247.45 1,167.65 • 1,167.95

Other bank belancas 304.26 116.73 421 01 450 91 61.24 51215

Trade recetvables 2,846.02 . 2.a4ed2 3,477.40 3,477 40

Loar^s 5.404 23 4.749 28 10163 51 6.026.50 3.035.18 11.061.66

Inveftmatits 3.42 6.50 11.82 176 90 13.47 192.37

c^thar ifnancial asae^ 37 53 22.37 69 90 134.52 17.57 152 09

S.M3.73 4.8M.88 14.740.61 1343&6S 3,127.46 18.663.34

Nen* financial assets

inverrlQnes 1,056.5$ . 1.056.&6 649.16 • 64816

Non-current lax assets (net) . 3&4 45 354.45 • f6S.33 163 33

Deferrso tax assals (nel) . 824 Q5 624.1:)$ • 396.54 396.54

Propeiy, plant and equ^enl - t39.&6 139.66 • t0613 106.13

3<oiogicai As&ats - 0.59 0.59 • 064 0.64

RJgtii Qp use assets . 32 64 32.64 • 31.23 31.23

Other Iniangibie asaela - 369 65 969.65 •
600.46 6Q0 48

Intangrbie 8S»eB under Mvalepmam - 22.92 22.92 • 7UM 71.50

Other norvfinanc^sl aasela 435 35 5.67 441.42 243,94 -
243.94

1.492.4t 2,249.76 3,74116 1.093,10 1,697.86 2,690.96

uabiuhes

Financial LiablUti9s

Trade payafiles 306.21 . 306.21 696 09 -
698.09

DeOI &ecutliMs 2.Q80.15 2,985.36 5.075.53 914 70 4,360.14 5.294,84

Borrowings {oiKdf than debt secuntles' 6.413.35 1.550.15 7.963.46 6.11096 1,906 32 8,017.28

rMherfirtsnort liabilitiM 182.36 20.76 211.62 134.09 42.IQ 176.19

BM1.7S 4,575.39 1d,W7.04 7,867^ 9.326.H 14,m40

Hon* flnancisi liabiMn
44.46

Prcvistons 11.12 40.16 S1.28 10.66 33.60

Other nopHtruinrvtl liabiPtiea »4 03 0.34 294 37 216.35 034 216.69

30S.16 40.$0 M6.65 227.01 34.14 S61.16

;cTfttsapac« flas oeerr jr?fenfroina^y bianK> '•

V -• • •

112



Samunnatk Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited
Summary of signrficant accouniing policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 Merely 2023
{Alt amounts are m miil'onsof inO'dn Bupges ffj, an^ess or^fvwse s^afedj

44 Borrowing detatls ae at March 31,2023

A. Debt securities

Original maturtty of loan
Face value

{amount)
Date of

allotment

Maturity
date

Rate of

Interest

Amount due

within one

vear

Amount

due beyond
one vear

Total
Security
details

Non Convertible Redeemable Debeni inus

72 Months

72 Months

72 Months

1.000,000
1,000,000
1.000,000

24-Sep-l8
24-5ep-l6
10^ug>22

24-Sep.24
24.Sep-2d
02-Aug-28

12 06%

12.27%

10,75%

0 33

0.66

9.28

150 00

300,00

585.00

150 33

300 66

594.28

60 monms

60 months

5,000
100.000

20^ug-20
26-Jul-21

20-Aug-25
IS-Jul-26

12.39%

10.70%

513.67

7.17

0.05

346.00

613.72

352.17

4d Monthe 1,000,000 15-F€b.22 16^eb-26 12.16% 8.22 594.00 602.22

36 Months 500.000 17-Jon-20 17-JuD'23 12.75% 25.13 - 25 13

36 Months 1.000,000 19-Jun.20 19-Jun-23 13.00% 50.20 - 50.20 Book debts

36 Months 1,000,000 17-Jul-20 17-Jul-23 12 00% 271.12 . 271.12

3B Mon\hi 1,000.000 15-Dec-20 l5.Deo.23 12.06% 694.80 - 694 80

36 Months

36 months

1,000.000

1,000.000
31-Map-21

05-Apr-21
01-Acr-24
0S.Apf.24

12.30%

11.64%

0 11

121.34

354.00

300.00

354.11

421 34

36 months

36 months

1,000,000
100.000

06-Sep-21
26-000-21

06-5ap-24
27.Dec.24

10.65%

11,60%

1 71

128.43

244 00

123.33

246.71

251.76

33 months 875 000 25-Se&-20 25-Jun-23 12.40% 247 98 • 247,98

2.080.15 2.095.36 5.075.53

Sorrowings (other than debt securities)
i. Long*term

DuewHhln one year Due beyond one year

Original maturity of loan Rate of Interest No of

instalmenta
Amount

No of

Instalments
Amount

Total Security details

Monthly repayment of principal
36 months

36 months

36 monlhs

36 months

39 n^onths

40 months

12 50%

11.00%

9.50%

14.50%

11.65%

11.65%

6

7

12

1

12

12

30.77

33.40

50 00

5.30

67.20

67.20

0

0

9

0

3

4

37.50

15.20

20.60

38 77

3340

87.50

5.30

82.40

68.00

Book debts

Book debts

Cash Collateral

Cash Collateral

Boo>( debts and Cash Collateral

Book debts and Cash Collateral

18 months

18 rnonttis

24 months

24 months

26 months

24 months

13 months

12.75%

13.25%
11^%

10.60%

12.00%

13.25%

13.05%

1

1

9

12

12

12

1

45.15

fi.13

107 56

150.00

36 18

151.67

11.19

0

0

0

0

11

12

0

36.60

150.00

45.15

9.13

107.56

150.00

72.79

301 67

11.19

Book debts

Book debts

Book dsbts

Book debts and Cash Collateral

Boo^ debts

Book debts

Book debts . -\
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Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited

Summary of si9nlfk:antaceaunting policies and other enptonatory information for the yaar ended 31 March 2023

Quarterly repayment of principal
35 months

36 months

36 months

30 months

11.75%

11.50%

3.75%

11.60%

2

4

4

4

25.22

50.77

10.33

300.00

0

3

6

2

37.50

27,50

150.00

25.22

8SJ7

45.63

450.QO

Book debts

Book debts

Book debts

Book debts

Book debts

24 months

12 months

12 months

Annual repayment of principal
A& months

Bullet Repayment of principal
37 months

14.50%

13.35%

13.75%

10.69%

11.10%

4

2

2

1

0

126.00

75,44

176.01

122.28

10.56

3

9

0

2

1

62.50

240.70

350.43

187.50

75,44

176.01

362.90

368 99

Book dabis and corporate
guarantee of holding company

Book debts

6ook debts

Book debts

Book debts

3S months

Half Yearly repayn>e/it of principal
24 months

24 months

Pledge Loan

14.50%

5.25%

5.50%

0

2

1

25.00

50.00

1

2

3

250.00

25.00

150,00

250.00

50.00
200 03

Book debts and corporsie
guarantee of holding company

Book debis end Cash Collateral

Book debts and Cash Collateral

1310 20 months 7.75% to 8 75% 464,41
• 454,41

Book debts and corporate
guarantee of holdingcompany

2.218.78 1.561.73 3,7T7,M

Ih Short>term

Original maturity of loan Rate of interest
No of

Instalments
Amount Security detaila

BuDat Reoavment of orlncloal

12 monlt^a 9.30% 1 95.00 Book debts and Cash Coltaterai

12 months

12 months

3 months

3 months

10.25%

11.00%

9.95%

11.25%

1

1

1

1

50.00

155.00

500.00

50.00

8oQ*( debis and Cash Collateral

Bool< debis and Cash Collateral
Book debts anO corporate

Quarantee of holdina comoanv
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Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited

Summary of significant accounting pciiciea and other explanatory informatfon for the year anded 31 March 2029

Monthly Repayment of Principal
12 moDtrts 14.50% 1 9.16 Book deots and Ca&h Colldlera

12 months 12.75% 5 417 71 Book debts and Cash Collaleral
P^rst c^a^ge over all the current

9S&et& and movable fixed

12 months 12.7f)% 6 113.33 assets and corporate
guarantee (ssued by HolOing

5 months 12 60% 3 201.3a
comosnv

Book debts and Cash Collatera'

6 months 13.40% 4 201 12 Book debts and Cash Collateral

6 mtsnlhs 12.00% 6 601.51 Book debts and Cash Collaierai

S mon^s 12 90% 3 50,00

S moflths 11.60% 1 86.36 Book Debts and corporate
6 months

4 months

3 n^onths

11.50%

12.00%

12.25%

5

3

1

500,00

150.00

66.68

guarantee issued by HoiOing
company

Ptadoa Lnan

2 to 12 months 7.75 to 8,75% 270.92
Book debts and corporate

guarantee ot hofding company
Bill Oificountino Facility

1 to 3 monies 8,15 to 12.75% 365.57 Book debts

Factoring 7 B5%to 10.05% Kot Applicable 262.84 Book debts

III.OD backed bv FO 11.25% Not AooilcdCie SO.12

4.216.79

Borrcwkng detafla as at March 91,2022

A Del)t securities

OH^Inal Maturtty of Loan Face Value
Date of

Allotinent
Maturity Date

RaUof

Interest

Balance outstanding
Security
Details

Due within

one yaar

Due beyond
one year

Total

Non Convertible Redeemable Debentures

72 Months 1,000.000 24.Sep-1fi 24'Sep.24 12.71% 0 40 150 00 150.40
72 Months 1.000,000 24-Sep-18 24-Sep-24 12 94% 0.79 300.00 300.79

48 MOAths 50,000 12-Dec-1G 12.Dec.22 12.30% 366 19 . 386.19
36 Mortlhs 500.000 17-Jgn-20 17-Jun-23 12.75% 50.39 25.00 75,39
36 Months 1.000.000 19-Jun.20 l9.Jun.23 13.00% 0 20 50.00 50.20
33 months 875,000 25-Sep.20 25.Jun.23 12.40% 41.90 247.50 269.40 .- -

36 Months 1,000,000 17-JUI-20 17-JU1.23 12 00% 21.21 250.00 271.21 .•

36 Months 1,000,000 15.Dec.20 t5.Dec-23 i2.oe% 127 64 336.00 463.64
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Summary of slgnificanl accounting poiicies and other expianatory information for the year ended 31 March 2i)23
fAlf amounts are in millions ol irKjian f^uoees uniess dherwse sialed)

36 Months 1.000,000 l5-Dec-20 15-Dec-23 12 06% 126.04 336 00 462.04
36 Months 1.000,000 31.Mar.21 Q1*ADr.24 12,30% 0 23 354.00 354.23
60 monlhs 5.000 20^ug-20 20^u9-25 12.39% 7.64 506.25 513.09
36 months 1,000,000 05-ADr-21 Q5.Apr.24 11.64% 21.46 400.00 421.46
60 months 100,000 26-Jut-21 16-Jui-2e 10.70% 7.27 345.00 352.27
36 months 1,000,000 06'S£p-21 0&>Sep-24 10.05% 1 78 244.00 245.78
36 months 100,000 28-Dec-21 27.Dec.24 11.60% 134.39 246.67 361 06
40 Months lOtWflOO 15.Feb.22 i&^eb-26 12.16% 8.41 594.00 602.41

916.91 4.364.42 S.301.33

BorrowInga (other Oian <labt aeeurtttea}
l.Long Term

Original MaturKy of Loan

Monthly rapayment of principai
36 months

36 months

24 month?

39 months

18 months

18 months

24 mcnfhs

24 months

37 Months

1S Months

Months

Quarterly repaymant of principal
36 months

35 months

36 months

30 months

Annuai repayment of principsi
48 months

Rate of

interest

12 50%

11.00%

11.75%

9.45%

11.50%

12 25%

11.26%

10.60%

9.50%

12.25%

14,50%

12.00%

11.50%

11.603i

10.69%

Due within one year
Baia nee outata nding

Dub beyond one year

No. of

inataimeats

12 00

1200

6.00

12.00

12.00

12.00

12.00

12.00

12 CC

12.00

12,00

4.00

4.00

4.00

4,00

Amount

70.71

52.26

94.71

134,40

478.77

102.66

143.63

150.00

44,59

11.34

25.04

250.00

50.00

51.21

300.00

4.65

1.»64.00

No. of

instain>ent8

6.00

7,00

Amount

38.72

33 40

Totai

109.43

85.67

94.71

16.00 170.40 304.80

1.00 43 62 522.60

1.00 9.07 111.75

9.00 107.20 250,83

1200 150.00 300.00

25.00 92.91 137.50

7.00 6.62 17.96
24.00 50,00 75 12

2.00

700

6 00

3.00

25.00

87.50

450 00

365 02

1,S29.74

250.00

7S 00

130 71

750.00

369.67

3^d9.74

Security Detaiis

Book Debts

Book Debts

6ool( Debts. Post dated cheques
and Cash Collateral

Book De&ts

Book DeDts

Book Debts. Postdated cheques

Promissory Note and Book Debts
Promissory Note snQ Book Debts

Book Debts and Post dafed

Book Debts
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{All amounis are 'n millions ol Indian Rupees (f). unless otherwise slat9d}

li.$hortTerm

Original maturity of loan Rate of interest
No of

inatalmen(s
Amount Security details

RtillM RAoavment of orinciMl

6 months

12 months

e.75%

10.90%

1

1

199.00

95.00 8ook debts and Cash Coltatera!

12 months 10.75% 1 155 00

Mnnthlv Renavmant of PflnciDal

9 months

9 months

11,50%

11.35%

9

9

167.28

285 31 Book debts and Cash Colkaterel

6 months 11.35% 6 250.70

12 m©f>th$ 10.75% 12 25 67

12 months n.25% 12 503.33 Bocik Debts

12 months 12.00% 9 245.44

12 months 12.50% 12 100.07 Book debts and Cash Coileteral

3 Months 7.75% 2 64.47

2 Months 7.95% 1 94.74

2Monm$ 8 16% 1 300.00

2 Months a 50% 1 50.00

7 Months B 50% 3 5 64

3 Months B75% 2 100.59

1 Months 11.15% 1 300.00

12 Months 11.25% 10 135.00

6 Months 11.00% 6 186.66

6 Monlt)3 11.70% 5 100.00

9 Months 11 50% 9 362.37

12 Months 12 00% 9 180.00

nM»rN>riv Rftnavmant ofPrinclDal

3 monlhs

4 months

7.75%

11.75%

1

1

90.19

250,00

3 months 7.50% 1 14.58

3 months 7.80% 1 6.43

3 months 8.40% 1 17.99

3 months a.50% 1 17.76

1 mnnlhR 9.10% 1 61.56

MaH Vjiartv Ronavmf^nt of Prinrioal

7 months 6.50% 1 87 69 Book debts and Cash Collateral

lll.OD backed bvFD Not Aopiicabla 23 77

4^4S1.22
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Summary of significant accounting policies dnd other explanatory fnformatlcn for tha yoar anded 31 Uard> 2023
(Alldn}Oui'ts ara in milhans of inOiarr Rupees (f). unless olherwse sfeWdJ
4S Relatad party disclosure

a) Names of retaled parties antf relationship
Name of the reload party.Relatlor^shlp

K»y manadament personneJ (KMP) Anil Kumar S G • Director and CEO

Gurunath N - Director

Pravesh Sherm^ - Director Subsidiary Cwnpany (w.e.f April 27.2021))
Kamendrs Mathur, Director of Subsidiary Company
Ani^jVijay Kumar Director ot Subs^iary Corrpany {w.e.f November 16.20211
Ninri Chau^hary • Head Strategy (Director tiR OctoOer 30. 2Q21)
Ashok Dhamankar • Group Chief Fmenclal OfrH:er
Mr. Laht Malik - CFO (w e.f April 72, 2022 to May 2d. 2023)
Mr Ashwrni VeoKataram^n • Company Sacrelary (up to September 15, 2021)
Mr AnjnKumar Sndharan Company Secretary (w e.f Uarcli t1, 2022)
Independent d^ractofs-
Sunil Sa(yapal GulalJ
Natasimtisn Srmiva&an

Venkate^ Tagat
Nominee directors:

Md^endran Balachandran

Jyoiena Knsnnsn
Aiishay Dua
R^hs Nairsian UDr^ithan

Nature of transactions
Year ended

31 March 2023

Year ended

31 March 2022

Anil Kumar S G

Remuneratjon • 23.02 21.75

Guruna^ N

Remuneration * 8.20 11.66

NItin Chaudhary
9.12Remuneration • •

Loans repaid -
0.15

Anuj Vljsy Kumar Narang
9.74Remunerallo" * •

Piavesh Sharma
1.43Remuneration paid 5,99

Salary deduction of Director (Loan recovery) 23.20 MO

Aanok Ohemankar

Remuneration • • 16.94

Mr. Lalit Uallk

Remuneration • 1J.71 •

Ashwfni VenKatafaman
0.28Remuneration * -

Arunkumar Sridharan

Rernuriaration * 320 0.10

Sitting fees paid
1.26SunilSaryapal Gutati o.es

Narasimhan Srinivasan 0.65 1,11

Venkatesh Taget 0.95 0.68

Hemendra Mathur 0.02 0 02

• The proviwon for gratuity and compensated absences is msde on the basis of actuarial valuation for eS the employees of the Group,
including the mansgenai personftet. Proportionate wnoynl of gratuity and ccmpensatad absences e not Included in the above dJsciosure,
since the exact amount is not ascertamaDte. x

«««./ »!.» »-> ^1-. fV~« _

Particulars
As at

31 Mafch 2023

As at

31 Marrh M92

Pravesh Shanna

Loan receivable •

2 32

y
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Samumatl f)n«rKlal intsrmodWIon & Services PHvato LiirilteS
Summaiv oT tk9)i(fleAnt tccounting poMdeft andotJier exfsUnatary Inrennadon forthe yearat^dM H*rch 2023
fAN emounis i" mWi<ifTa otin^in Rupees ifI. unless oir)9fwi9 ffafggj

M AddfUonalInfonnaiian orv|}ie tntRMt IneSixletf (n tha consoitdafd htmndat atatamero
Aa at 31 Mareh 2023

NatTi«of the antit)f in tha Gceup

Parsrl t Tha HolQ^ng Compariy
Subsiaiar^llndtsnj:
Sdmunn^ii Agio Solulians PrivtM Itmlad
Samunnati Agn Innovaiiont Lao PrrsraeeUmitad (Forn^ariy
"Katnelaji Farm TeOi Prorate Limttsfl")
&arrHjnra<i FinanM Privaie Umaed
Samurwiait Irtvafetmew Msnaaament Services Prtvale UmBsil

NM A»««t» Le total

aaaeta miiua total

(iaUIRiaa

3426.20

1,147.25

07.94)

26 31

0 24

4^0,08

As a parcarrta^* ^
cofttolidatsa nef

asset!

7i 7B%

2i.06%

•0 36%

o.ss%

0.0

AS IU1 Usrch 2022

Nsi Assms i.fl msi

asseta minus (Ml

tisbllibaa

s.oss.es

1.763.fl7

10.»

D.»

4.B0I.74

As s percentage erf
eonsolldatad net

ns«ts

OAa%

0 00%
0 00%

Nanie Q?the snttxy ^ Qrcup Shara In profit or loaa
As a psresnuge of

cor>BoRdBtad profit

4IQM)

Shat In other

comprsMnslve ^ncoma

As a parcantB^e of
consolidalad otnsr

conutrehenalva

ineom*

Shsrs In total

comprah^sh/e Income

Ae a psrcentaga of
total C9mpr»n«neive

Income

PatenV Tha Haidin^ Company 130.31) 77 13% 0 6& 69.04% (1 126 66) 77 13%

Subtidisnss:

Sami/nnati A9ro Soiulions Pmata umilM (181 eo^ 1241«) (0 06) -6.22% (131 99) 12 42%

Ssmi^nrxad Agn Innovaiana Lat Private Lnriitad iFormarly
'Kamalen Farm Tecii Pr>vsi« LIrrtfTsd')
Samunnali Fir^nce Ptrvste Limited

(152.60)

0.20

^0A^%

-0.01%

O.U 16.18%

0.00%

(152.49)
0 20

1041%

-0.01%

SatnufKia" Irwestmert Msnaner^^i^t ^i^ices Prwsta lJniir«d (oaai 0.06% -
0 00% fO.ed) 0.06%

(1,48&S7) LSSiSSL

»tem« of the ertOty 0^ Group &hara In proRt or loss

As apercenbge of
conaolUstM profh or

(IH»

Shara in olhaf

eomp^hefwive income

Aa e percanta^ of
eonffllhlatod otnsr

coiwehanaiva
income

SKara Intottf

comprshanilvs Income

Ass psrcsnU9«of
total comprehensive

Irtcome

Parvnf Tbe HoldirigCompany (BiS.M) 76.4«% 2.07 106 70% (813 48) 76 42%

Subsitfariss:
19 07%$8munrtali Agrc Sotifi«ns Pnvata Limited <209 56) ie.s5% 0.>3 6 70% <209 42)

Kamatan Farm TflC^ Privaia Lrnted (41.311 3 67% (0.26) .1340% (41 57) 3.91%

Ramurtnali f Irtancv Privaw Limilpd 0 03 0 00% 0 00% 0.03 0.00%
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Summary gf slgnlfl&antaecountjng policiee and other explanatgry information fortha year ended 31 March 2023
(AH amoonis ars tr> mfOtons ol Indian Fupees (f). uniess offtemvge staled)

47 Trade receivatotee ageing sefledula

Current but

not due

Oulslending for following period from due dau of payment
TotalLess t^en 6

moniha

i monttie •

1 veer
1-2 years 2 • 3 years

More then

Svears

As at March 31. 2033

U'^dispule<] Trade Receivables - considered good 2.31130 246.06 . .
- . 2,561.36

UndlspulM Trade Recefvables -which have
signiftcant increase m credit r^k 237.00 ae.&Q . .

323.50

UndiiDuted Trede receivable - eredil impaired . . - 86.27 6.38 138 91 22T.56

Disputed Trade receivables • coneidered good . - . - - • -

Disputed Trade receivables - which have
Sionificant increase In nr«<1li nitk

. , . . .

•

Disputed Trade receivdblee - credit impaired . • - . - • -

rotal 2,315.30 483.06 dS.SO 8S.27 1^9.»1

Less AHowanc« forexoecied credit [OSS i269.HV]
NeMotal 2.846.02

CurfenI bul

ng(due

niiKtAnrlino for followlna period from due aate ot oevment

TotalLess than 6

months

6 months •

1 veer
1•2 years 2 -3 years

More than

A veers

As at March 41.2022

Undisouted Trade Rfrt^lvnblea - considered oooO 2 817 03 471 00 . - • - 3286.03

Undispuled Trade Receivables - which have
sionificsnt increase In rjmdftnak

•
133.00 119 97 - • -

252.97

1inflivHipfl TrArip mmivable - credit impaired . . 4 60 96 80 125.16 101 96 328.52

Disputed Trsde receivablAS • considered oood . . . - . • •

Disputed Tr^de receivables - which have
♦Iflftififani Ifir/pa^ In rjprtil link

• • -
• - • -

rifartiitart Tnarfa r*^ivahl»»« - rrprtiT imnflir«d . . - • - • -

Net Total

Trade payabies ageing scneouia
As at March 31.2023

Particulars Not Due
Lees then 1

vear
1-2 years 2*3 yea re

More then

^ vAars
Total

. . - . - •

(li^ mhAnt 3.47 281 92 6.06 6.54 4.23 306.21

(Hi) ninrxtMH rtiip*• MAMP. . . - - • •

fkvi n)«nitt«>H HiM**-f«h-*fs . - -
-

•

Total 3,47 28^.«2 8.0$ 6.64 4,23 306.21

As at March 31.2022

Particulars Not Due
Lees than 1

vear
1-2 years 2>3 years

More

.) veers
Total

^11 meiijc 0.67 . . . •
0 67

mhAn 32 62 643.19 17.51 1.36 2B2 607,42

/Cll« n>«n<f*«rt ritiAC . UftMF . . - • •
•

('nA r^fanict»H HiiPft- rWMre . - - •
-

Te«a» 33.19 643.19 17.51 1.38 2.82 698.09

57t\t$soace 'las Men tfifenJicaJiy htt

r

(392.12)
3,477.40
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(A<i amounts are jn mrJ/jons of lr\fSidn jf). t/nfess of^erwse stated}

49 Covld>19 Impact

The Gr9up continues to monitor and assess the impact of COVIO 19 pandemic on its operation and flnancials, induding the possibility
of hi^er defaults by the customers. The Group has considered the infomiation avafleEHe upto the date o( these financial statements
and have made adequate provjskins m this regard to the e>^nt it is required.

Estimates and associdtec} fudgments / assumptions applied in c^eparetion of these finanda staten^ents induding detennlning 0^e
Impairment loss allowance and expected future cash inflows / oueflows are based on a c«mOinatvon of historical experience and
emerging ' forward looking indicators resulting from t^e ongoing pandemic, (n sddr&on to these eariy indicators svai^Dle. the Group
has aLso used potential stress on the expected credit lossee on loans and accordingly recogn^ed an expected credit loss (including
write-offs) amounting to Rs 1.304 80 million Qunng the year. The impact assessment of COVID-19 is a cor^tinuing process given its
uncertainty mnature andduraoon, this mayhave corresponding impact inthefinancial position. TheGroup will continue to mttiHor any
material changes to the future economic conditions.

50 Additional regulatory disclosurea

a The Group ownsfreehold (andand the tide deeds ofthe freehold (and is hefd inthe name of the Group.

b The Group does not hoJd any investment property and hence the disclosure on fan vakjation of investment property Is not
applicable to the Group.

c The Group has not revalued its property, p^ant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) and miangible assets and hence
the disclosure on revaluation of property, plant and equipment (including right-cf'Use assets) and Intangible assets i9 not
aoplicable to the Group.

d. The Group hasborrowings from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of boc* debts and cash collaterals The
book debts ars separatety assigned to each bofrower / financial msbtubon and end use certificates are being filed with the
borrower / financial msttutions

e. No benami property are held by the Group and or no proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Group for
holding any bsnami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1980 (45 of IMS) and rules made thereunder.

f. The Group has not been declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution orany other lender.
g. The Group has reviewed tr^naacliorts to idenbfy if there are any transactions with struck off companies To the extent

Name of the atrucV offcompany'

Nature of

transactlona with

struck off

romoanv

Balance outstanding
as at March 3i. 2023

Balance

outstanding aa at
March 31, 2022

Harsi Oils & Flours Private Lmited
Advance to

Suppliers
- D3«

*The Group floes not hcdd any relatsonshtp with the struck offCompanies.

There is no charges or saOsfacticn in relation to any debt I borrowings yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory
period.

The Group has complied with the number of layers prescnbed under clause (87) of section 2of the Act read with Compemes
(Restnction on number of Layers) Rules. 2017

The Group has not entered into any scheme(5) of arrangements and hence the disclosure on compliance with approved
scheme(s) of arrangements ts not ap^icable to the Group.
Otherthan the transactions that are earned out as part of Group's normal lending business
A) The Group has not advanced c loaned or invested hjnds (either bornwed funds or share premium or any other iovrce%or
kind of funds) to any other person(s) or emitydes), including foreign entties (Intermedianes) with the understanding (whether
recorded in vrfiting orotherwise) that theIntermediary shail •
(a) directly or indirecdy lend or invest in other persons or entities identified In any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Group (Ultimate Beneftcianes) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ulbmate Seneficianes;
B) The Group has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity^ies), including foreign enbbes (Funding Party) with the
understanding (whether recorded in wnting or otherwise) that the Group shall - . u u
(a) directly or indirectly lend ck Invest mother persons or entities tdentified in any manner whatsoever pi or on-Dehalf of ine
Funding Party (UElimate Benefioanes) or \
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Summary of slgnlflCAnt accounting policies and other explanstory Information for the year ended 31 March 2023
{All amounts are infr}il'iof)s ofIn^an Rupees (f). w^less otrierwise stated)

(b) provide any gusrantee, secuTTly or (he like on behalf of the Ultimate Benefrcianee.

I. There are no transactions which have not been recorded in the books of accounts and has been surrendered or dlsdoeed ee

income during the yeer In l^ie lax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961. Also, there are no Dfevlously unrecorded
income and related assets.

m The Group has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency dunng l^ie financial year.

61 The Code on Social Security, 2020 ('Cede'} relabng to en^ployee benefits dunng emcdoyment and post-employment benefits received
Presidential assent in September 2020 The Code has bee^ published fn the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the Code
willcome tnto effect has not been notified. The Group will assess the impact of the Code wt>en it comes into effect end v^l record ariy
related impact in the period the Code becomes effective.

62 The Holding Company has since issued Compul&orily Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) amounting to Rs. 1,340 miBion on Apnl
05, 2023. This Pre*Series E hjnding will be ut»ltzedby the Company towards expansion of its business.

63 Previous yearfsures have been regrouped / rearranged, wherever considered necessary, to conform to the classification / disctosure
adopted in the current year.

As per our repon of even date attached

For PKP SridHar & Santhanam LLP

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Reglstre^No.; 0039daS/S200018

V Kothandaraman

Partner - ^
Membership No.'025873, r

Place: Chennai

Date. May 30. 2023

A

•;7/

For and on behaK of the Boa

Samunnatl Financial lnten)<raatio i

Irectors of

er^ces Private Limited

Director and CEO

DiN 01109011

Gururtw NeelamanI

Whole-time Director

DIN 02799585

Place. Chennai Place Chennai

Date May 30, 2023 Date May 30. 2023

Arunhumar Srfdharan

Company Secretary
Membership No.• F7112

Place Chennai

Date: May 30, 2023

122



PKF SRIDHAR & SANTHANAM LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

Independent Auditors' Report 

To the Members of Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Samunnati Financial 

Intermediation & Services Private Limited ("the Company"), which comprise the standalone balance 

sheet as at 31 March 2023, and the standalone statement of Profit and Loss (including other 

comprehensive income), standalone statement of changes in equity and standalone statement of cash 

flows for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements, including a summary 

of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as 

"standalone financial statements"). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 

aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 

('the Act') in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting 

principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2023, and 

loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that 

date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 

143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's 

Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are 

independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India ("ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 

standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have 

fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. 

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 

our opinion on the standalone financial statements 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our 

audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the 

context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion 

thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matter 

described below to be the key audit matter to be communicated in our report. 

Key Audit Matter 

Provision for expected credit loss (ECL) on loans 
(Refer Note 5 and Note 23 to the Standalone Ind AS 
Financial Statements) 

Financial instruments, which include loans to 
customers, represent a significant portion of the total 
assets of the Company. The Company has loans 

aggregating Rs. 11,461.30 million as at 31 March 
2023. The Company has made a provision for 
impairment loss aggregating Rs. 1,013.26 million 
against the loans outstanding to Customers as at the 
balance sheet date. Due to the significance of the 
judgments used in both classification of loans into 
various stages as well as the computation of expected 
credit losses on such financial assets as per Ind AS 
109, this has been considered as a key audit matter. 

How the matter was addressed 

Read and assessed the Company's accounting 

policy for impairment of financial assets and its 
compliance with Ind AS 109, the governance 
framework approved by the Board of Directors 
and moratorium pursuant to the RBI circular and 
tested the implementation of such policy on a 
sample basis. 

Assessed the criteria for staging of loans based 
on their past-due status to check compliance with 
requirement of Ind AS 109. Tested a sample of 
performing loans (stage 1) to assess whether any 
SICR or loss indicators were present requiring 
them to be classified under stage 2 or 3 or vice 
versa along with additional considerations applied 
by the Management for staging of loans as SICR 
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Management estimates impairment provIsIon using 
Expected Credit Loss model for the loan exposure 
using criteria in accordance with Ind AS 109 which 
also include considering the impact of recent RBl's 
regulatory circulars. Measurement of loan impairment 

involves application of significant judgement by the 
management. These include: 

(a) Segmentation of the loan portfolio into 

homogenous pool of borrowers; 

or default categories in view of Company's policy 
on moratorium. 

Tested the input data used for grouping and 
staging of loan portfolio into various categories 
and default buckets for determining the 
Probability of Default (PD) and Loss Given 
Default (LGD) rates. Also, tall ied the input data 
with the underlying books of accounts and 

records. 

(b) Identification of exposures where there is a Tested assumptions used by the management in 
significant increase in credit risk ('SICR') and those determining the overlay for macro-economic 
that are credit impaired; factors (including COVID-19 pandemic). 

(c) Determination of the probability of default for each 
of the segments identified; and 

(d) Loss given default for various exposures based on 
past trends/ experience, management estimates etc., 

Additionally, the economic and business 

consequences of the COVID 19 pandemic as 
described in Note 46 to the standalone Ind AS 
financial statements, slowdown of economic activity, 
moratoriums granted to borrowers, the related 
regulatory directives and also the applicable 
accounting directions, further affect provisioning 
under the ECL approach. 
Note 2.5 to the standalone Ind AS financial 

statements explains the various matters that the 
management has considered for developing this 
expected credit loss model. 

Assessed and tested the inputs used in the 

impairment computation (including the data 
integrity of information extracted from the 
Company's IT systems). 

Tested the arithmetical accuracy of computation 
of ECL provision performed by the Company in 

spreadsheets. 

Assessed disclosures included in the standalone 
Ind AS financial statements in respect of 
expected credit losses including the specific 
disclosures made with regard to the 
management's evaluation of the uncertainties 
arising from COVID-19 and its impact on ECL 
estimation. 

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditors' Report Thereon 

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation of the other 
information. The other information comprises the information included in the Directors report but does 
not include the financial statements and our auditors' report thereon. These reports are expected to be 
made available to us after the date of this auditor's report. 

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 

information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 

standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the audit or otherwise appears to be 

materially misstated. When we read the reports containing the other information, if we conclude that 

there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged 

with governance. 

Responsibilities of the Management and Board of Directors for Standalone Financial Statements 

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 

134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a 

true and fair view of the state of affairs, loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and 

cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, 

including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This 

responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 

provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting 

frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making 

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and 

maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the 

accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of 
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the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the standalone financial statements, Management and Board of Directors are responsible 

for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 

related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors 

either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do 
so. 

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process. 

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements 

as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' 

report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a 

guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement 

when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually 

or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users 

taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain aud it evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk 
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are 
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial 
controls with reference to the standalone financial statements in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by Management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern 
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to 
draw attention in our auditors' report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements 
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the 

audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors' report. However, future events or conditions 
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern; and 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 

ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 

safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that 

were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and 
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are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors' report unless law or 

. regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we 

determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences 

of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 

communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditors' Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), issued by the 
Central Government of India in terms of Section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the "Annexure 

A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent 
applicable. 

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 

knowledge and bel ief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so · 

far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

(c) The standalone Balance Sheet, the standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including other 

comprehensive income), the standalone Statement of Changes in Equity and the standalone 

statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account. 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting 

Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2023 

taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 

2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to the standalone 

financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to 

our separate Report in "Annexure B". 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors' Report in accordance with Rule 

11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our 

information and according to the explanations given to us: 

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2023 on its 

financial position in its standalone financial statements - Refer Note 38 to the standalone 

financial statements; 

ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting 

standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative 

contracts - Refer Note 15 to the standalone financial statements; 

ii i. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 

Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2023; and 

iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, . as 

disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested 

(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the 

company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 

("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 

Intermediary shall , whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities 

identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company ("Ultimate 

Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 

Beneficiaries 

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as 

disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the company from 

any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with th~ 
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understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, 

directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 

whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any 

guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries 

(c) Based on such audit procedures that the we have considered reasonable and appropriate 

in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the 

representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material mis-statement. 

v. The Company has not paid/declared any dividend during the financial year. Accordingly, 

reporting on compliance with the provisions of Section 123 of the Act is not applicable. 

vi. As proviso to rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the 

Company only w.e.f. 01 April 2023, reporting under this clause is not applicable. 

3. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors' Report under Section 197(16) of the 

Act: 

Since the Company is a private limited company, the provisions of Section 197 of the Act are 

not applicable to it. Accordingly, reporting on the compliance with the provisions of Section 197 

of the Act is not applicable. 

For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP 

Chartered Accountants 
Firm's Registration No.003990S/S200018 

(~ ev::l~~ 
V Kothandaraman 
Partner 
Membership No. 025973 
UDIN: 23025973BGZBXK3431 

Place of Signature: Chennai 
Date: 30 May 2023 
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Annexure A 

Referred to in paragraph 1 on 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' of our report of 

even date to the members of Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited ("the 

Company") on the standalone financial statements as of and for the year ended 31 March 2023. 

(i) (a) 

(ii) 

(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative 

details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment. 

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets 

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its Property, Plant and 

Equipment by which all Property , Plant and Equipment are verified in a phased manner over a 

period of three years. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having 

regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the programme, 
certain Property, Plant and Equipment were physically verified by the management during the 

year. In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, no material 

discrepancies were n·oticed on such verification. 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the records examined by us and 

based on the examination of the conveyance deeds provided to us, we report that, the title deeds, 

comprising all the immovable properties (other than properties where the company is the lessee 

and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed in the financial 

statements are held in the name of the Company as at Balance Sheet date. 

In respect of immovable properties of land and building that have been taken on lease and 

disclosed as right of use assets in the standalone financial statements, the lease agreements 

are in the name of the Company. 

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property , Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) 

or intangible assets during the year and hence this clause is not applic·able to the Company. 

(e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami 

property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibitions) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made 

thereunder. 

a) The Company does not have any tangible inventory. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ii) of the 

Order are not applicable. 

b) Based on our audit procedures & according to the information and explanation given to us, the 

Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees from banks or 

financial institution on the basis of security of current assets and hence the question of filing quarterly 

returns or statements by the company with such banks or financial institutions does not arise. 

Accordingly, paragraph 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(iii) Based on our audit procedures & according to the information and explanation given to us, the 

Company has made investments in and granted loans or advances in the nature of the loans, secured 

or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties in respect of which: 

(a) The Company's principal business is to give loans, and hence reporting under clause 3(iii)(a) of the 

Order is not applicable. 

(b) The investments made and the terms and conditions of the grant of all the above-mentioned loans and 

advances in the nature of loans provided, during the year are, in our opinion, prima facie, not prejudicial 

to the Company's interest. 
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(c) In respect of loans granted or advances in the nature of loans provided by the Company, the schedule 

of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated. Note 2.5 to the Standalone 

Financial Statements explains the Company's accounting policy relating to impairment of financial 

assets which include loan assets. In accordance with that policy, loan assets with balances as at 31 

March 2023, aggregating Rs. 658.98 million were categorised as credit impaired ("Stage 3") and Rs. 

154.61 million were categorised as those where the credit risk has increased significantly since initial 

recognition ("Stage 2"). Disclosures in respect of such loans have been provided in Note 5 to the 

Standalone Financial Statements. Additionally, out of loans and advances in the nature of loans with 

balances as at the year-end aggregating Rs. 10,647.71 million, where credit risk has not significantly 

increased since initial recognition (categorised as "Stage 1 "), delay in the repayment of interest and/or 
principal in respect of loans aggregating to Rs. 964.02 million were also identified. In all other cases, 

the repayment of principal and interest is regular. Having regard to the nature of the Company's 
business and the volume of information involved, it is not practicable to provide an itemised list of loan 

assets where delinquencies in the repayment of principal and interest have been identified. 

(d) The total amount overdue for more than ninety days, in respect of loans and advances in the nature 

of loans, as at the year-end is Rs. 681 .06 million. Reasonable steps are being taken by the Company 

for recovery of the principal and interest as stated in the applicable Regulations and Loan agreements. 

(e) The Company's principal business is to give loans, and hence reporting under clause 3(iii)(e) of the 

Order is not applicable. 

(f) Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanation given to us, the 

Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand · 

or without specifying any terms or period of repayment and hence the question of aggregate amount,· 

percentage thereof to the total loans granted, aggregate amount of loans granted to Promoters, 

related parties as defined in clause 76 of section 2 of the Act does not arise. Accordingly, paragraph 

3(iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable. 

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 

granted any loans or provided any guarantee or security to any director of the Company and hence 

the provisions of Section 185 of the Act is not applicable to the Company. The Company has complied 

with the provisions of Section 186 as applicable. 

(v) Based on our audit procedures & according to the information and explanation given to us, the 

Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the 

meaning of the Act and the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of 

sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed thereunder. 

Accordingly, paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(vi) The Company is not required to maintain cost records specified by the Central Government under 

sub section (1) of section 148 of the Act. Accordingly, paragraph 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable 

to the Company. 

(vii) 

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined 

by us, the Company has been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods and 
Service Tax, provident fund , employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of 
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other material statutory dues as applicable 
with the appropriate authorities. 

According to the information and explanation given to us and the records of the Company 
examined by us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of statutory dues were in arrears, 
as at 31 March 2023 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the 

records of the Company, there are no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) as at 31 March 

2023, which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute, 

except as stated below: 
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Period to 
Amount Amount paid 

Name of the Nature of which Forum where dispute 
demanded (Rsin 

Statute the Dues amount is pending 
(Rs. in millions) millions) 

relates 

Income Tax Income tax 
10.24 2.10 AY 2016-17 

Commissioner of 

Act, 1961 and interest Income tax (Appeals) 

Income Tax Income tax 
0.26 AY 2018-19 Assessing Officer -

Act, 1961 and interest 

Income Tax Income tax 
106.03 21.21 AY 2020-21 Assessing Officer 

Act, 1961 and interest 

(viii) Based on our audit procedures and as per the information and explanations given by the management, 

no amount has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under 

the Income Tax Act, 1961. Accordingly, paragraph 3(viii) of the order is not applicable to the Company. 

(ix) 

(x) 

(xi) 

(a) Based on our audit procedures and as per the information and explanations given by the management, 
the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in payment of interest 
thereon to any lender. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a declared willful 
defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix)(b) of the 
Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined 
by us, term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained. 

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined 
by us, no funds raised on short term basis have been utilized for long term purposes. 

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined 
by us, the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the 
obligations of its subsidiaries. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the 

Company. 

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined 
by us, the Company has not raised any loans during the year on pledge of securities held in its 
subsidiaries. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(a) The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer/further public 
offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not 

applicable to the Company. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has made preferential 
allotment or private placement of preference shares (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the 
year and requirements of section 42 and section 62 of the Companies Act, 2013 have been complied 
with and the funds raised have been used for the purposes for which the funds were raised. 

(a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in 
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, except for 1 instance aggregating to Rs.175.69 million for which the 
Management has initiated necessary legal proceedings for recovery of the amount, we have neither 
come across any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company, noticed or reported 
during the year, nor have we been informed of such case by the Management (Refer Note 45 to the 

standalone financial statements). 

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Act has been filed by us in Form ADT-4 as 
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prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government 

(c) To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to 
us, we report that no whistle blower complaints were received during the year by the Company. 

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi company in accordance with Nidhi Rules 2014. Accordingly, paragraph 

3(xii)(a) to (c) of the Order is not applicable. 

(xiii) Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given to us, all the 

transactions entered into with the related parties during the year are in compliance with Section 177 

and Section 188 of the Act where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the standalone 

financial statements as required by the Indian accounting standard Related Party Disclosures (Ind AS 

24) 

(xiv) 

(a) To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to 
us, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business. 

(b) We have considered the reports of the Internal Auditors for the period under audit. 

(xv) On the basis of the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion, during the year the 

Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with 

its directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the 

Company. 

(xvi) 
(a) Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 

Company is required to be registered under Section 45-IA of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934_(2 of 

1934). 

(b) Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
Company has conducted Non-Banking Financial activities with a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) 
from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 

(c) Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve 
Bank of India and hence the questions of fulfilling criteria of a CIC, and in case the Company is an 
exempted or unregistered CIC, whether it continues to fulfill such criteria, do not arise. Accordingly, 

paragraph 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(d) Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given to us, none 
of the group companies are Core Investment Company (CIC) and hence the question of number of 
CICs which are part of the Group does not arise. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not 

applicable to the Company. 

(xvii) The company has incurred cash losses of Rs. 1,248.05 in the financial year and Rs. 768.39 million in 

the immediately preceding financial year. 

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly this clause is 

not applicable. 

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, 

ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other 

information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and 

management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, 

nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as 

on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the 

date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet 

date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We 

further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither 

give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the 

balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when they fal l due. 
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(xx) Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 

company is not required to spend the amount for corporate social responsibil ities and Accordingly, 

paragraph 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP 

Chartered Accountants 
Firm's Registration No.003990S/S200018 

1 u~A.AS::Jc~,~, 
V Kothandaraman 

Partner 
Membership No. 025973 

UDIN: 23025973BGZBXK3431 

Place of Signature: Chennai 
Date: 30 May 2023 
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Annexure B 

Referred to in paragraph 2(f) on 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' of our report 

of even date 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to the aforesaid standalone financial 

statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements of 

Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited ("the Company") as of 31 March 2023 in 

conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that 

date. 

Management's and Board of Directors' Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining 

internal financial controls based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria 

established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance 

Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India (the "Guidance Note"). These responsibil ities include the design, implementation and 

maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly 

and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its 

assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 

records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to 

financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and 

the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit 

of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note 

require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 

assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were 

established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 

controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal fina~cial 

controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial 

controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and 

operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on 

the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone 

financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 

audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone financial statements 

A Company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide 

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 

statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's 

internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that 

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 

transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 

transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with 

generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being 

made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide 

reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or 

disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone financial statements 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, 

including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements 

due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 

financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the 

internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes 

in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference 

to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2023, 

based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company 

considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note. 

For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP 

Chartered Accountants 
Firm's Registration No.003990S/S200018 

I ~ JrC~:JAOVWg 
V Kothandaraman 
Partner 
Membership No. 025973 
UDIN: 23025973BGZBXK3431 

. Place of Signature: Chennai 
Date: 30 May 2023 
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Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited 

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023 

{All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees (Rs.), unless otherwise stated) 

Assets 

Financial assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Particulars 

Bank balances other than (a) above 

Loans 

Investments 

Other financial assets 

Non-financial assets 

Current tax assets (net) 

Deferred tax assets (net) 

Property. plant and equipment 

Right of use assets 

Intangible assets under development 

Other intangible assets 

Other non-financial assets 

Total assets 

Liabilities and Equity 

Liabilities 

Financial liabilities 

Payables 

Trade Payables 

(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 

(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 

and small enterprises 

Debt securities 

Borrowings (other than debt securities) 

Other financial liabilities 

Non-financial liabilities 

Provisions 

Other non-financial liab ilities 

Equity 

Share cap ital 

Other equity 

Total liabilities and equity 

Summary of sign ificant accounting policies 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements. 

As per our report of even date attached 

Note 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

10 

10 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

2 

As at As at 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

935.83 990.48 

218.08 221.45 

10,448.04 12,481 .26 

2,679.90 1,811 .11 

32.38 81.74 

14,314.23 15,586.04 

296.23 175.89 

563.60 245.22 

42.77 59.97 

13.61 12.37 

22.92 27.68 

38.96 24.76 

31 .25 37.63 

1,009.34 583.52 

15,323.57 16,169.56 

0.67 

22.84 45.45 

5,075.53 5,301 .33 

4,437.07 5,300.64 

127.90 116.77 

9,663.34 10,764.86 

31.88 34.43 

26.89 26.73 

58.77 61.16 

21 .25 20.45 

5,580.21 5,323.09 

5,601.46 5,343.54 

15,323.57 16,169.56 

For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP 

Chartered Accountants Samunnati Financial Int & Services Private Limited 

ICAI Firm Re ( ation NQ 003990S/S200018 

/ ,d!/ t'~ tvv ~ 
V Kothandaraman 

Partner 

Membership No. : 025973 

Place: Chennai 

Date: May 30. 2023 

\J» 
Director and CEO 

DIN : 01189011 

Place : Chennai 

Date: May 30, 7.023 

Whole-time Director 

DIN : 02799586 

Place: Chennai 

Date : May 30, 2023 

Arunkumar Sridharan 

Company Secretary 

Membership No.: F7112 

Place: Chennai 

Date: May 30, 2023 
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Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited 

Standalone Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2023 

(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees (Rs.), unless otherwise stated) 

Particulars 

Revenue from operations 

1 Interest income 

ii Bad debts recovered 

II Other income 

Ill Total income (1+11) 

Expenses 

i Finance costs 

ii Impairment on financial instruments 

iii Employee benefit expenses 

iv Depreciation and amortization 

v Other expenses 

IV Total expenses 

V Profit I (Loss) before tax (Ill-IV) 

VI Tax expense 

i Current tax 

ii Deferred tax 

Vil Profit/ (loss) for the year (V-VI) 

VIII Other comprehensive income (OCI) 

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 

a) Remeasurement gains and (losses) on defined benefit plans 

ii Income tax impact thereon 

Other comprehensive income (i)+(ii) 

IX Total comprehensive income for the year (Vll+VIII) 

X Earnings per equity share: after considering Compulsorily 

convertible preference shares (face value Rs. 10/- per 

equity share) 

Basic (Rs.) 

Diluted (Rs.) 

Summary of significant accounting policies 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements. 

As per our report of even date attached 

Note 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

27 

29 

2 

FY ended FY ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

1,884.03 1,703.16 

88.25 30.01 

1,972.28 1,733.17 

78.99 82.73 

2,051.27 1,815.90 

1,215.74 977.17 

1,308.96 756.15 

484.34 627.70 

49.32 47.61 

290.28 223.27 

3,348.64 2,631.90 

(1,297.37) (816.00) 

5.03 

(318.60) (149.81) 

(313.57) (149.81) 

(983.80) (666.19) 

0.88 2.45 

(0.22) (0.38) 

0.66 2.07 

(983.14) (664.12) 

(472.61) (325.90) 

(472.61) (325.90) 

For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

ICAI Firm Registration No.: 003990S/S200018 

V Kothandaraman 

Partner 

Membership No.: 025973 

Place: Chennai 

Date: May 30 , 2023 

Samunnati Financial In~ & SeNices; ~:;;~ 

~~ 
Director and CEO 

DIN : 01189011 

Place: Chennai 

Date : May 30 , 2023 

Gurunath Neelamani 

Whole-time Director 

DIN : 02799586 

Place: Chennai 

Date: May 30 , 2023 

Arunkumar Sridharan 

Company Secretary 

Membersh ip No.: F7112 

Place: Chennai 

Date: May 30, 2023 
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Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited 

Statement of Audited Standalone Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2023 

(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees (Rs.) , unless otherwise stated) 

A. Operating activities 

Profit/ (loss) before tax 

Adjustments for: 

Depreciation and amortization 

Employee stock option expenses 

Particulars 

Gratuity and leave encashment expenses 

Loss/(Profit) on sale of property, plant and equipment 

Income from mutual funds 

Income from debt funds 

Interest expenses towards financing activities 

Interest expense on lease liability 

Unwinding interest of debt component of OCRPS 

MTM gain booked on ECB loans 

Impairment on financia l instruments 

Bad debts written off 

Amortisation of origination costs of borrowings 

Cash generated from operations before working capital changes 

Changes in working capital: 

Loans 

Other financial assets 

Other non-financial assets 

Net movement in provisions 

Trade payables 

Other financial and non-financial liabilities 

Cash used in operations 

Income taxes paid (net of refunds) 

Net cash generated from/ (used in) operating activities (A) 

B. Investing activities 

Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 

Movement in capital advances 

Movement in deposits with banks and financial institutions 

Purchase of investments 

Proceeds from sale of investments 

Interest income received on investments measured at amortised cost, FVTPL and at cost 

Net cash generated from I (used in) investing activities (B) 

C. Financing activities 

Utilisation of securities premium 

Issue of Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares 

Issue of Optionally convertible redeemable preference shares 

Proceeds from debt securities 

Repayment of debt securities 

Repayment of principal portion of lease liability 

Repayment of interest portion of lease liability 

Proceeds from other ·than debt securities 

Repayment of other than debt securities 

Interest paid 

Net cash generated from/ (used in) financing activities (C) 

Net (decrease) I increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 

Year ended 

March 31, 2023 

(1 ,297.37) 

49.32 

58.29 

12.42 

(0.92) 

(35.66) 

(1.31) 

1,214.02 

1.72 

1.03 

(17.84) 

660.73 

648.23 

75.60 

2,665.63 

1,368.26 

724.26 

49.36 

6.38 

(14.09) 

(23.28) 

10.27 

2,121 .16 

(125.37) 

1,995.79 

(30.50) 

1.96 

3.37 

(17 ,155.17) 

16,286.38 

36.97 

(856.99) 

800.00 

400.00 

585.00 

(810.80) 

(12.74) 

(1.72) 

4,541.71 

(5,487.39) 

(1 ,207.51) 

(1,193.45) 

(54.65) 

990.48 

935.83 

Year ended 

March 31, 2022 

(816.00) 

47.61 

57.03 

17.39 

(0.27) 

(13.84) 

(16.58) 

975.19 

1.98 

200.24 

555.91 

43.74 

1,868.40 

1,052.40 

(3,561 .22) 

29.02 

(9.61) 

(7.81) 

30.03 

70.13 

(2,397.06) 

(108.17) 

(2,505.23) 

(74.07) 

2.59 

0.57 

302.10 

(23,686.62) 

23,845.29 

30.42 

420.28 

10.72 

0.68 

2,078.23 

(990.82) 

(9.35) 

(1 .98) 

6,466.97 

(4,675.02) 

(961 .74) 

1,917.69 

(167.26) 

1,157.74 

990.48 

~ --
.. 
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Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited 

Statement of Audited Standalone Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2023 

(Alf amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees (Rs.) , unless otherwise stated) 

Particulars 

Components of cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 

- Cash on hand 

- Balances with banks in current accounts 

-in deposit account (with original maturity up to 3 months) 

Total 

Summary of significant accounting policies 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements. 

As per our report of even date attached 

Year ended 

March 31, 2023 

935.83 

935.83 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

Year ended 

March 31, 2022 

582.44 

408.04 

990.48 

For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

ICAI Firm Registration No.: 003990S/S200018 
Samunnati Financial I~ ·& Services;;;:~ 

~ V Kothandaraman 

Partner 

Membership No.: 025973 

Place: Chennai 

Date: May 30, 2023 

Director and CEO 

DIN : 01189011 

Place: Chennai 

Date: May 30, 2023 

G r_unath Neelamani 

Whole-time Director 

DIN : 02799586 

Place: Chennai 

Date: May 30, 2023 

Arunkumar Sridharan 

Company Secretary 

Membership No.: F7112 

Place: Chennai 

Date: May 30, 2023 
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Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited 

Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2023 

(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees (Rs.). unless otherwise staled) 

A. Sha re capital 

Equity share capital 

Particulars 

Balance at the beginning of the year 

Changes m Share Capital due to prior period errors 

Issued dunnq the year 

Sub-total 

Equity shares held under trust for employees under ESOP scheme 

Balance at the end of the year 

8 . Other equity 

Particulars 

Balance as at April 01 , 2021 

Changes ,n accounting policies or prior period errors 

Comprehensive mcome for the year 

Premium on issue of shares 

Employee stock options expense 

Issue expenses for debt securities 

Balance as at March 31, 2022 

Changes in accounting policies or prior period errors 

Comprehensive income for the year 

Premium on issue of shares 

Employee stock options expense 

Issued during the year 

Balance as at March 31 , 2023 

Summary of significant accounting policies 

The accompanymg notes form an integral part of the financial statements. 

As per our report of even date attached 

For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

ICAI Firm Registration No.- 990SIS2 

{~ 
V Kothandaraman 

Partner 

Membership No.: 025973 

Place· Chennai 

Date: May 30. 2023 

Year ended Year ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

5.74 5.74 

5.74 5.74 

(2.14) (2. 14) 

3.60 3.60 

Statutory Securities 

Reserve Premium 

40.59 4,931.10 

812.96 

11.39 

40.59 5,755.45 

799.20 

40.59 6,554.65 

Compulsorily convertible 
Total 

preference shares ("CCPS") 

Year ended Year ended Year ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31 , 2022 March 31, 2023 

16.84 16.1 6 22 .58 

0.80 0.68 0.80 

17.64 16.84 23.38 

(2.14) 

17.64 16.84 21.25 

Capital 
Equity Component of 

Stock Options Optionally Convertible 

Outstanding 
Redemption 

Redeemable Preferen ce 
Reserve 

shares (OCRPS) 

205.29 0.07 

57.03 

262.32 0.07 

58.29 

382 .77 

320.61 0.07 382.77 

Place: Chennai Place: Chennai 

Date: May 30, 2023 Date: May 30 . 2D23 

Year ended 

March 31, 2022 

21 .90 

0.68 

22.58 

(2.14) 

20.45 

Other 
Retained 

comprehensive 
Earnings 

income 

3.00 (74.22) 

2.07 (666.19) 

5.07 (740.41) 

0.66 (983.80) 

5.73 (1,724.21) 

Arunkumar Sridharan 

Company Secretary 

Membership No.: F7112 

Place: Chennai 

- Date: May 30, 2023 

Total 

5,105.83 

(664 .12) 

812 .96 

57 .03 

11.39 

5,323.09 

(983.14) 

799.20 

58.29 

382 .77 

5,580.21 
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Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited 
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended March 31 , 2023 

(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees (?), unless otherwise stated) 

1. Corporate information: 

Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited ('The Company') is a Non-Banking Financial 

Institution (NBFI) incorporated on June 23, 2014. The Company has received certificate of registration 

dated February 25, 2016 from the Reserve Bank of India to carry on the business of Non-Banking Financial 

Institution without accepting deposits. The Company provides secured and unsecured loans to farmers , 

farmer producer organizations, community based organizations and Agri-enterprises. The company 
commenced active NBFI operations from the month of July 2016. The Company is a NBFC - Systemically 

Important Non-Deposit taking Company ('NBFC-ND-SI') per regulations of Reserve Bank of India ('RBl1). 

2. Basis of preparation of financial statements 

2.1. Statement of compliance with Ind AS and basis for preparation and presentation of financial 

statements 

These standalone financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian 

Accounting Standards as· per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as amended and 

notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act"), in conformity with the accounting 

principles generally accepted in India and other relevant provisions of the Act. Any application guidance/ 

clarifications/ directions issued by RBI or other regulators are implemented as and when they are issued/ 

applicable. 

The company has adopted Ind AS from April 01, 2020, Accounting policies have been consistently applied 

except where a newly issued Accounting Standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing Accounting 

Standard requires a change in the Accounting Policy hitherto adopted. 

· These standalone financial statements were approved by the Company's Board of Directors and authorized 

for issue on May 30, 2023. · 

2.2. Functional and presentation currency 

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees ('INR' or 'Rs.') which is also the Company's 

functional currency. Amounts less that the rounding off norms adopted by the Company are disclosed as 

0. All amounts are rounded-off to the nearest millions, unless otherwise indicated . 

2.3. Historical cost convention 

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial 

instruments which are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period as explained in the 

Accounting Policies set out below. 

The financial statements are prepared on a 'going concern ' basis using accrual concept except for the cash 

flow information . 

2.4. Measurement of fair value changes 

A number of the Company's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, 

for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. The Company has established policies and 

procedures with respect to the measurement of fair values. Fair values are categorized into different levels 

in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows: 

- Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets and liabilities. 

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, 

either directly or indirectly. 
- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable 

inputs). -
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Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited 
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended March 31 , 2023 
(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees (~), unless otherwise stated) 

2.5. Critical accounting estimates and judgements 

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions 

that affect the application of the Company's accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, 
liabilities, income, expenses and the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities. Actual results may 
differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. 
Revisions to estimates are recognized prospectively. 

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting 
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and 

liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and 

estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were issued. Existing circumstances and 
assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances 

arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when 
they occur. 

Following are areas that involved a higher degree of estimation and judgement or complexity in determining 
the carrying amount of some assets and liabilities. 

Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from COVID-19 

The Company has made detailed assessment of its liquidity position for the next year and the recoverability 
and carrying value of its assets comprising property, plant and equipment, investments, financial and non­
financial assets . Based on current indicators of future economic conditions, the Company expects to 
recover the carrying amount of these assets. The Company continues to evaluate them as highly probable 
considering the present business trends . The situation is changing rapid ly giving rise to inherent uncertainty 
around the extent and timing of the potential future impad of the COVID-19 which may be -different from 
that estimated as at the date of approval of the financial statements. The Company will continue to closely 
monitor any material changes arising of future economic conditions and impact on its business. 

Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) 

Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of depreciable/amortizable assets at each reporting 
date , based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technical and 

economic obsolescence that may change the utility of assets. 

Income tax 

Significant estimates are involved in determining the provision for income taxes, including amount expected 
to be paid/ recovered for uncertain tax positions. 

Deferred tax assets 

Significant management judgement is exercised by reviewing the deferred tax assets at each reporting 
date to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be retained/ recognized , based upon the 
likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. 

Fair value 

Management uses valuation techniques in measuring the fair value of financia l instruments where active 
market quotes are not available. In applying the valuation techniques, management makes maximum use 
of market inputs and uses estimates and assumptions that are, as far as possible, consistent with 
observable data that market participants would use in pricing the instrument. Where applicable data is not 
observable, management uses its best estimate about the assumptions that market participants would 
make. These estimates may vary from the actual prices that would be achieved in an arm's length 

transaction at the reporting date. 
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Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited 
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended March 31, 2023 
(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees (f), unless otherwise stated) 

Effective Interest (EIR) Method 

The Company recognizes interest income/ expense using a rate of return that represents the best estimate 
of a constant rate of return over the expected life of the loans given/ taken. This estimation, by nature, 

requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behaviour and life cycle of the instruments, as 

well as expected changes to other fee income/expense that are integral parts of the instrument. 

Impairment of financial assets 

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company uses 'Expected Credit Loss' model (ECL), for evaluating 
impairment of financial assets other than those measured at Fair value through profit and loss. 

Overview of the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model 

Expected Credit Loss, at each reporting date, is measured through a loss allowance for a financial asset: 

At an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has 
increased significantly since initial recognition. At an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses if 
the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition. 

Lifetime expected credit losses means expected credit losses that result from all possible default events 
over the expected life of a financial asset. 

12-month expected credit losses means the portion of Lifetime ECL that represent the ECLs that result 
from default events on financia l assets that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date. 

The Company performs an assessment, at the end of each reporting period, of whether a financial assets 
credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition. When making the assessment, the change 
in the risk of a default occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument is used instead of the 

change in the amount of expected credit losses. 

For non-impaired financial assets (Stage 1 and Stage 2): 

• Stage 1 is comprised of all non-impaired financial assets which have not experienced a significant 
increase in credit risk (SICR) since initial recognition. A 12-month ECL provision is made for stage 1 
financial assets. In assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly, the Company compares 
the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as at the reporting date with the risk of a default 

occurring on the financial asset as at the date of initial recognition. 

• Stage 2 is comprised of all non-impaired financial assets which have experienced a significant increase 
in credit risk since initial recognition. The Company recognizes lifetime ECL for stage 2 financial assets .. 
In subsequent reporting periods, if the credit risk of the financial instrument improves such that there· is 
no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then entities shall revert to 

recognizing 12 months ECL provision. 

For impaired financial assets (Stage 3): 

Financial assets are classified as stage 3 when there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one 
or more loss events that have occurred after initial recognition with a negative impact on the estimated 
future cash flows of a loan or a portfolio of loans. The Company recognizes lifetime ECL for impaired 

financial assets. 

The loans are segmented into homogenous product categories to determine the historical PD/LGD as per 

similar risk profiles, this segmentation is subject to regular review. 

As part of the regular review, in line with changes in loan portfolio and their repayment pattern, the 
Company has revised the definition of stages, as under. 
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Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited 
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended March 31 , 2023 

(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees (r), unless otherwise stated) 

The loan portfolio are segmented into two broad categories i.e., Farmer Collectives and Agri enterprises. 

Name of the Loans Days Past Due (DPD) 
Pool of loan Stage 

Adopted 
assets 

upto FY'22 
w.e.f FY'23 

Farmer 
Collectives 

Stage 1 Upto 60 Days Upto 60 Days 

Stage 2 61 Days to 240 Days 61 Days to 180 Days 

Stage 3 More than 240 Days More than 180 Days 

Agri 

enterprises 

Stage 1 Upto 60 Days Upto 60 Days 

Stage 2 61 Days to 360 Days 61 Days to 180 Days 

Stage 3 More than 360 Days More than 180 Days 

The company has rebutted the presumption prescribed under Ind AS 109 that the credit risk increases 
significantly since initial recogn ition when contractual payments are more than 30 days (Stage 2) and that 
default occurs when a financial asset is 90 days past due (Stage 3). The risk profil ing is determined for 
each business vertical based on historical and market trends and directions from RBI including guidance 
for identification of NPA in agricu ltural advances. 

Estimation of Expected Credit Loss: 

The mechanics of the ECL calculations are outlined below and the key elements are, as follows: 

Probability of Default (PD) - The Probability of Default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given 
time horizon. The Company uses historical information to determine PD. Considering the different 
categories of customers, loan type etc the Company has bifurcated its loan portfolio into five pools. For 
each pool of loan assets, the PD is calculated using Incremental 30 DPD approach considering fresh 
slippage using historical information. 

Exposure at Default (EAD) - The Exposure at Default is an estimate of the exposure at a futu re default 
date, considering expected changes in the exposure after the reporting date, including repayments of 
principal and interest, whether scheduled by contract or otherwise, expected drawdowns on committed 
facil ities , and accrued interest from missed payments. Management had assumed that the outstanding 
balance as at each reporting date (including interest and other components) as the exposure at default for 

purpose of computing the ECL. 

Loss Given Default (LGD) - The Loss Given Default is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a 
default occurs at a given time. It is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due and 
those that the lender would expect to receive , including from the realization of any collateral. 

To mitigate its credit risks on financial assets, the Company seeks to use collateral, where possible. The 
collateral comes in various forms, such as land , building, books debts , securities, letters of 
credit/guarantees, etc. However, the fair value of collateral affects the calculation of ECL. The fair value of 
the same is based on management judgements. 

Forward looking information - While estimating the expected cred it losses, the Company reviews macro­
economic developments occurring in the economy and market it operates in. On a periodic basis, the 
Company analyses if there is any relationship between key economic trends like GDP, benchmark rates 
set by the Reserve Bank of India, inflation etc. with the estimate of PD, LGD determined by the Company 
based on its internal data. While the internal estimates of PD, LGD rates by the Company may not be 
always reflective of such relationships , temporary overlays, if any, are embedded in the methodology to 
reflect such macroeconomic trends reasonably. 
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The impact on account of change in default definition and staging has resu lted in an additional ECL of Rs. 
327 .83 mi llion for FY'23 . 

Impairment of non-financial assets (PPE) 

The impairment assessment of non-financial assets is determined based on estimation of recoverable 

amount of such assets. The assumptions used in computing the recoverable amount are based on 
management judgement considering the timing of future cash flows, discount rates and the risks specific 
to the asset. 

Defined benefit plans and other long term employee benefits 

The cost of the defined benefit plan and other long term employee benefits , and the present value of such 
obligation are determined by the independent actuarial valuer. An actuarial valuation involves making 
various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in future . Management believes that the 
assumptions used by the actuary in determination of the discount rate , future salary increases, mortality 
rates and attrition rates are reasonable. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term 
nature, this obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed 
at each reporting date. 

Provisions and other contingent liabilities 

The reliable measure of the estimates and judgements pertaining to litigations and the regu latory 

proceedings in the ordinary course of the Company's business ar~ disclosed as contingent liabilities . 

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other 
factors, including expectations of futu re events that may have a financia l impact on the Company and that 
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. 

2.6. Revenue recognition 

a) Recogn ition of interest income on loans 

Interest income is recognized in Statement of profit and loss using the effective interest method for all 
financial instruments measured at amortised cost, debt instruments measured at FVTOCI and debt 
instruments designated at FVTPL. The 'effective interest method' is the rate that exactly discounts estimated -
future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument. 

The calculation of the effective interest rate includes transaction costs and fees that are an integral part of 
the contract. Transaction costs include incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of 

financial asset. 

If expectations regarding the cash flows on the financial asset are revised for reasons other than credit risk, 
the adjustment is recorded as a positive or negative adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset in the 
ba lance sheet with an increase or reduction in interest income. The adjustment is subsequently amortised 

through Interest income in the Statement of profit and loss. 

The Company calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of financial 

assets other than credit-impaired assets. 

When a financial asset becomes credit-impaired, the Company calculates interest income by applying the 
effective interest rate to the net amortised cost of the financial asset. If the financial asset cures and is no 
longer credit impaired, the Company reverts to calculating interest income on a gross basis. 

Additional interest and interest on trade advances, are recognized when they become measurable and 
when it is not unreasonable to expect their ultimate collection. 
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b) Dividend and interest income on investments 

Dividends are recognized in Statement of profit and loss only when the right to receive payment is 

established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Company 

and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably. 

Interest income from investments is recognized when it is certain that the economic benefits will flow to the 

company and the amount of income can be measured Feliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, 
by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable. 

2.7. Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) 

PPE are stated at cost of acquisition (including incidental expenses), less accumulated depreciation and 

accumulated impairment loss, if any. 

Assets held for sale or disposals are stated at the lower of their net book value and net realizable value. 

Advances paid towards the acquisition of PPE outstanding at each balance sheet date are disclosed 

separately under other non-financial assets. Capital work in progress comprises the cost of PPE that are 
not ready for its intended use at the reporting date. 

Depreciation on PPE is provided on straight-line basis in accordance with the useful lives specified in 

Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 on a pro-rata basis. Assets costing less than Rs .5,000 are fu lly 

depreciated in the period of purchase. 

Asset Classification Life in Years 

Furniture and fittings 10 

Office equipment 5 

Computers and accessories 3 

Vehicles 4-8 
Leasehold improvements 5 

PPE is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use. Any gain 

or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds 

and the net carrying amount of the asset) is recognized in other income/ netted off from any loss on disposal 

in the Statement of profit and loss in the year the asset is derecognized. 

2.8. Intangible assets 

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment loss, if any. 

Intangible assets comprises of computer software which is amortized over the estimated useful life. The 

amortization period is lower of license period or 36 months which is based on management's estimates of 

useful life. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-l ine method to write down the cost of intangible 

assets over their estimated useful lives. 

The Intangible assets are amortised with in three years. 

2.9. Investment in subsidiaries 

Investments in subsidiaries are measured at cost less accumulated impairment, if any. 

2.10. Foreign exchange transactions and translations 

a) Initial recognition 

Transactions in foreign currencies are recognized at the prevailing exchange rates between the reporting 

currency and a foreign currency on the transaction date. 
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b) Conversion 

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at 

the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resu lting from the settlement of such 
transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies 

at year end exchange rates are generally recognized in Statement of profit and loss. 

Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs are presented in the statement 
of profit and loss, within finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the 
Statement of profit and loss on a net basis. 

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange 
rates at the date when the fair value was determined . Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried 
at fair va lue are reported as part of the fa ir value gain or loss. Thus, translation differences on non-monetary 
assets and liabil ities such as equity instruments held at fair value through profit or loss are recognized in 
profit or loss as part of the fa ir va lue gain or loss and translation differences on non-monetary assets such 
as equity investments classified as FVTOCI are recognized in other comprehensive income. Non-monetary 
items that are measured at historical cost in foreign currency are not retranslated at reporting date . 

2.11. Financial Instruments 

a) Recognition and initial measurements 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recogn ized when the Company becomes a party to the 

contractual provisions of the instruments. 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fa ir value. Transaction costs that are di rectly 

attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets 
and financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financia l assets or 
financial liabilities , as appropriate , on in itial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the 
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognized immediately in Statement of 

profit and loss. 

b) Classifications and subsequent measurement of financial assets 

On initial recognition , a financia l asset is classified as measured at 

- Amortised cost; 
- Fair value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI) - debt instruments; 
- Fair value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI) - equity instruments; and 

- Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL) 

Amortised cost 

The Company's business model is not assessed on an instrument-by-instrument basis , but at a higher level 
of aggregated portfolios being the level at which they are managed. The financial asset is held with the · 
objective to hold financial asset in order to collect contractual cash flows as per the contractual terms that 
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payment of principal and interest (SPPI) on the 
principal amount outstanding. Accordingly , the Company measures Bank balances, Loans , Trade 

receivables and other financial instruments at amortised cost. 

FVTOCI - debt instruments 

The Company measures its debt instruments at FVTOCI when the instrument is held within a business 

model, the objective of which is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financ.ial 
assets; and the contractual terms of the financial asset meet the SPPI test. 
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FVTOCI - equity instruments 

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value through profit or loss, unless the 
Company's management has elected to classify irrevocably some of its equity instruments at FVTOCI , when 
such instruments meet the defin ition of Equity under Ind AS 32 Financial Instruments and are not held for 
trading. 

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to the ir initial recognition , except if and in the period the 
Company changes its business model for managing financial assets. 

FVTPL 

Al l financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL. This 
includes all derivative financial assets. 

Subsequent measurement of financial assets 

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective interest 
method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and 
losses and impairment are recognized in Statement of profit and loss. Any gain and loss on derecognition 
is recognized in Statement of profit and loss. Debt investment at FVTOCI are subsequently measured at 
fair value. Interest income under effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and 
impairment are recogn ized in Statement of profit and loss. Other net gains and losses are recognized in 
OCI. On derecognition , gains and losses accumulated in OCI are reclassified to Statement of profit and 
loss . For equity investments , the Company makes an election on an instrument-by-instrument basis to 
designate equity investments as measured at FVTOCI. These elected investments are measured at fa ir 
value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recognized in other comprehensive income 
and accumulated in the reserves . The cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified to Statement of profit and 
loss on disposal of the investments. These investments in equity are not held for trad ing. Instead, they are 
held for strategic purpose. Dividend income received on such equity investments are recognized in 

Statement of profit and loss. 

Equity investments that are not designated as measured at FVTOCI are designated as measured at FVTPL 
and subsequent changes in fair value are recognized in Statement of profit and loss. 

Financial assets at FVTPL are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any 

interest or dividend income, are recogn ized in Statement of profit and loss. 

c) Financial liabilities and equity instruments 

Classification of debt and equity 

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity 
in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability 

and an equity instrument. 

Equity instruments 

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after 
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by Company are recognized at the proceeds 
received. Transaction costs of an equity transaction are recognized as a deduction from equity. 

Financial liabilities 

Financial liabi lities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified 
as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for trading or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial 
recogn ition . Other financia l liabi lities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective 
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interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in Statement of 
profit and loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognized in Statement of profit and loss. 

d) Financial guarantee contracts 

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse 

the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fa ils to make payments when due in accordance 
with the terms of a debt instrument. 

Financial guarantee contracts issued by a Company are initially measured at their fair values and, if not 
designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher of: 

- the amount of loss allowance determined in accordance with impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 
"Financial Instruments"; and 

- the amount initially recognized less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognized in 
accordance with the principles of Ind AS 115 "Revenue from contracts with customers". 

e) Derecogn ition 

Financial assets 

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial 
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which 
substantially al l of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the 
Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not 
retain control of the financial asset. 

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized on its balance sheet, but 
retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets 
are not derecognized. 

Financia l liabilities 

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation in respect of the liability is discharged , cancelled or 
expires . The difference between the carrying value of the financial liability and the consideration paid is 

recognized in Statement of profit and loss. 

f) Offsetting 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, 
and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends 
either to settle them on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liabil ity simultaneously. 

g) Write offs 

Loans are written off (either partially or in full) when there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is 
genera lly the case when the Company determines that the borrower does not have assets or sources of 
income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subjected to write-offs. Any 
subsequent recoveries against such loans are cred ited to the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

2.12. Employee benefits 

a) Short- term employee benefits 

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liabil ity is recognized for 
the amount expected to be paid if the Company has a present legal or constructive obl igation to pay this 
amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated rel iably. 

V 148



Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited 
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended March 31, 2023 
(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees {{} , unless otherwise stated) 

b) Contribution to provident fund and other funds 

. Company's contribution paid/payable during the year to provident fund and employees state insurance is 

recognized in the Statement of profit and loss. The Company has no further obligation other than the 
contributions made. 

c) Gratuity 

The Company's liability towards gratuity scheme is determined by independent actuaries, using the 
projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by 

discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting 

period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Past 

services are recognized at the earlier of the plan amendment / curtailment and recognition of related 
restructuring costs/ termination benefits. 

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit 
obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the 
Statement of profit and loss. 

Remeasurement gains and losses 

Remeasurement of defined benefit plans, comprising of actuarial gains / losses, return on plan assets 
excluding interest income are recognized immediately in the balance sheet with corresponding debit or 
credit to Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). Remeasurements are not reclassified to Statement of profit 
and loss in the subsequent period. 

d) Leave encashment/ compensated absences/ sick leave. 

The Company provides for the encashment / availment of leave with pay subject to certain rules. The 

employees are entitled to accumulate leave subject to certain limits for future encashment / avai lment. The 
liability is provided based on the number of days of unutilized leave at each balance sheet date on the basis 

of an independent actuarial valuation. 

e) Employee stock options 

The fair value of options granted under Employee Stock Option Plan is recognized as an employee benefits 
expense with a corresponding increase in equity. The total amount to be expensed is determined by 
reference to the fair value of the options. The total expense is recognized over the vesting period, which is 
the period over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of each period, 
the entity revises its estimates of the number of options that are expected to vest based on the non-market 
vesting and service conditions. It recognizes the impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in profit 
or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to equity. Upon exercise of share options, the proceeds received 
are allocated to share capital up to the par value of the shares issued with any excess being recorded as 

share premium. 

2.13. Finance cost 

Finance costs include interest expense computed by applying the effective interest rate on respective 
financial instruments measured at Amortised cost. Financial instruments include term loans, fixed deposits 
mobilized, debt instruments, commercial papers and subordinated debts. Finance costs are charged to the 

Statement of profit and loss. 
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2.14. Taxation - current tax and deferred tax 

Income tax expense comprises of current tax and deferred tax. It is recognized in Statement of profit and 

loss except to the extent that it relates to an item recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive 
income. 

a) Current tax 

Current tax comprises amount of tax payable in respect of the taxable income or loss for the year determined 
in accordance with Income Tax Act, 1961 and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of 
previous years. The Company's current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

Minimum alternate tax ('MAT') credit entitlement is recognized as an asset only when and to the extent 
there is convincing evidence that normal income tax will be paid during the specified period . In the year in 
which MAT credit becomes eligible to be recognized as an asset, the said asset is created by way of a credit 
to the Statement of Profit and Loss and shown as MAT credit entitlement. This is reviewed at each balance 
sheet date and the carrying ,amount of MAT credit entitlement is written down to the extent it is not 
reasonably certain that normal income tax will be paid during the specified period. 

b) Deferred tax 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences of temporary differences 
between the carrying values of assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax liabilities 
and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is 
settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and. tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted by the end of the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects 
the tax consequence that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the 
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. 

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable income will be 
available against which the deductible temporary difference could be uti lized. Such deferred tax assets and 
liabilities are not recognized if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of assets and 
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. The carrying 
amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent 
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to 
be recovered. 

2.15. Impairment of assets other than financial assets 

The Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets at the end of each 
reporting period, to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have impaired . If any such 
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the 
impairment loss (if any). Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does 
not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets or group of assets. 

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in 
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that 
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which 
the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted. If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash­
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash­
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. 

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating 
unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount such that the increased carrying amount 
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined if no impairment loss had been 
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recognized for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. The reversal of an impairment loss is 
recognized in Statement of profit and loss. 

2.16. Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets 

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of 

a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required from the Company and 
amounts can be estimated reliably. Timing or amount of the outflow may still be uncertain. Provisions are 
measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present obligation, based on the most reliable 
evidence available at the reporting date, including the risks and uncertainties associated with the present 

obligation. Provisions are discounted to their present values, where the time value of money is material. 

Contingent liability is disclosed for: 

• Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the 

Company; or 

• Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will 
be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be 
made. 

In those cases, where the outflow of economic resources as a result of present obligations is considered 
improbable or remote, no liability is recognized or disclosure is made. 

Any reimbursement that the Company can be virtually certain to collect from a third party with respect to 
the obligation (such as from insurance) is recognized as a separate asset. However, this asset may not 
exceed the amount of the related provision. 

Contingent assets are not recognized. However, when inflow of economic benefits is probable, the related 

asset is disclosed. 

2.17. Leases 

. The Company's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for office premises. The Company assesses 
whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease inhe 
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for 
consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the 

Company assesses whether: 
(i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset 
(ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of 

the lease and 
(iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset. 

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset ("ROU") and a 
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term 
of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value 
leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over 

the term of the lease. 

Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease 
term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be 

exercised. 

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease 
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any 
initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and impairment losses. 

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter 
of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. 
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The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. 
The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily 
determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases. Lease 
liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Company 
changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option. 

2.18. Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash on hand, cheques and drafts on hand , 

balance with banks in current accounts and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months 
or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. 

2.19. Earnings per share 

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity 
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Earnings 
considered in ascertaining the Company's earnings per share is the net profit for the period after deducting 
preference dividends and any attributable tax thereto for the period. The weighted average number of 
equity shares outstanding during the period and for all periods presented is adjusted for events, such as 
bonus shares, sub-division of shares etc. that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, 
without a corresponding change in resources. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, 
the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders is divided by the weighted average 
number of equity shares outstanding during the period, considered for deriving basic earnings per share 
and weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive 
potential equity shares. 

2.20. Segment reporting 

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief 
operating decision maker. The Company is primarily engaged in financing agri businesses. The Company's 
activity falls within a single primary business segment. The Company operates primarily in India and there 
is no other geographical segment. 

2.21. Recent accounting pronouncements 

New and amended standards adopted by the Company: 

The Company has applied the following amendments (wherever applicable) for the first time for their annual 
reporting period commencing April 1, 2022: 

Ind AS 16 - Property Plant and equipment-

The amendment clarifies that excess of net sale proceeds of items produced over the cost of testing, if 
any, shall not be recognised in the profit or loss but deducted from the directly attributable costs considered 

as part of cost of an item of property, plant, and equipment. 

Ind AS 37 - Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets -

The amendment specifies that the 'cost of fulfilling' a contract comprises the 'costs that relate directly to 
the contract' . Costs that related directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract 
(Examples would be direct labour, materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling 
contracts (an example would be the allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and 

equipment used in fulfilling the contract). 

The above amendments did not have any material impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods and 

are not expected to significantly affect the current or future periods. 
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New Standards/Amendments notified but not yet effective: 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), on March 31, 2023, through the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards (Ind AS)) Amendment Rules, 2023 amended certain existing Ind ASs on miscellaneous issues 

with effect from 1st April 2023. Following are few key amendments relevant to the Company: 

(i) _ Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements & Ind AS 34 - Interim Financial Reporting -
Material accounting policy information (including focus on how an entity applied the requirements of Ind 
AS) shall be disclosed instead of significant accounting policies as part of financial statements. 

(ii) Ind AS 107 - Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Information about the measurement basis for 
financial instruments shall be disclosed as part of material accounting policy information. 

(iii) Ind AS 8 - Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimate and errors-Clarification on what 

constitutes an accounting estimate provided. 

(iv) Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes - In case of a transaction which give rise to equal taxable and deductible 
temporary differences, the initial recognition exemption from deferred tax is no longer applicable and 

deferred tax liability & deferred tax asset shall be recognized on gross basis for such cases. 

The Company does not expect the effect of this on the financial statements to be material, based on 
preliminary evaluation. However, it may be noted that we expect there would be a change in Accounting 
policies section of the financial statements as the standard would require presentation of 'material 

accounting policies' as against 'significant accounting policies' disclosed so far. 

2.22. Events after reporting date 

Where events occurring after the balance sheet date provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end 
of the reporting period, the impact of such events is adjusted within the financial statements. Otherwise, 

events after the balance sheet date of material size or nature are only disclosed. · 
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Note Particulars 

3 Cash and cash equivalents 

Balances with banks 

4 

(i) In current account 

(ii) in deposit account (with original maturity up to 3 months) 

Total 

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 

Deposit account with banks 

Balances with banks to the extent held as margin money (Refer note below) 

Total 

Details of balances with banks to the extent held as margin money or security against 

the borrowings 

Maturity period of less than 12 months 

(i) Held as collateral against borrowings and securitization transactions 

Maturity period of more than 12 months 

(ii) Held as collateral against borrowings and securitization transactions 

Total 

5 Loans 

(A) Term Loans at amortised cost 

To clients 

To subsidiary (also, refer note 42) 

Total Gross 

Less : Impairment loss allowance 

Total 

(B) Secured/ Unsecured Break-up 

(i) Secured against tangible assets 

Gross 

Less: Impairment allowance 

(ii) Secured against receivables 

Gross 

Less: Impairment allowance 

(iii) Unsecured 

Gross 

Less: Impairment allowance 

Total (B) - (i) + (ii) + (iii) 

(C) Loans in/ outside India 

(i) Loans in India 

(a) Public sector 

(b) Others 

Less : Impairment loss allowance 

Total (i) 

(ii) Loans outside India 

Less : Impairment loss allowance 

Total (i i) 

Total (C) = (i) + (ii) 

Note : There is no loan asset measured at FVTOCI or FVTPL. 

As at 

March 31, 2023 

935.83 

935.83 

218.08 

218.08 

196.05 

196.05 

22.03 

22.03 

218.08 

11,166.77 

294.53 

11,461.30 

(1,013.26} 
10,448.04 

1,075.49 

(83.69) 

991.80 

10,385.81 

(929.57} 

9,456.24 

10,448.04 

11,461.30 

11 ,461.30 

(1,013.26) 

10,448.04 

10,448.04 

As at 

March 31, 2022 

582.44 

408.04 

990.48 

221.45 

221.45 

160.21 

160.21 

61.24 

61.24 

221.45 

11,414.21 

1,419.58 

12,833.79 

(352.53} 
12,481.26 

1,081.22 

1,081.22 

11,752.57 

(352.53} 

11,400.04 

12,481.26 

12,833.79 

12,833.79 

(352.53) 

12,481.26 

12,481.26 

154



Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited 

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended March 31, 2023 

(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees (Rs.) , unless otherwise stated) 

Note Particulars 

Summary of loans by stage distribution 

As at March 31, 2023 

Stage 1 - Considered good 

Stage 2 - Significant increase in credit risk 

Stage 3 - Credit impaired 

As at March 31, 2022 

Stage 1 - Considered good 

Stage 2 - Significant increase in credit risk 

Stage 3 - Credit impaired 

6 Investments 

(A) Investments in subsidiaries carried at cost 

(i) In equity shares of subsidiaries (Unquoted) : 

Samunnati Agro Solutions Private Limited 

680 ,883 (previous year: 632,483) equity shares of Rs.1 O each 

Samunnati Foundation 

8,50,000 (previous year: 8,50,000) equity shares of Rs.1 O each 

Samunnati Agri Innovations Lab Private Limited (formerly known as 

'Kamatan Farm Tech Private Limited') 

5,344 ,848 (previous year: 344,848) equity shares of Rs.1 O each 

Samunnati Finance Private Limited 

25 ,00,000 (previous year: 25,00,000) equity shares of Rs .1 O each 

{B) Investments carried at amortised cost 

(i) In Pass Through Certificates ('PTC') 

Total 

Note. No impairment loss has been provided on the above investments. 

Out of above 

In India 

Outside India 

Total 

As at 

March 31, 2023 

Gross Carrying Impairment Loss 

Amount Allowance 

(A) (B) 

10,647.71 

154.61 

658.98 

11,461.30 

11,731 .86 

767.04 

334.89 

12,833.79 

347 .21 

31.28 

634.77 

1,013.26 

29.48 

43.03 

280.02 

352.53 

1,779.34 

8.50 

863.64 

25.00 

3.42 

2,679.90 

2,679.90 

2,679.90 

« This space has been intentionally left blank» 

As at 

March 31, 2022 

Net Carrying 

Amount 

(A-8) 

10,300.50 

123.33 

24.21 

10,448.04 

11,702.38 

724.01 

54.87 

12,481.26 

780.10 

8.50 

813.64 

25.00 

183.87 

1,811.11 

1,811 .11 

1,811 .11 
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Note Particulars 

7 Other financial assets 

Unsecured, considered good 

Security deposits 

Employee advances 

Deposits with financial institutions 

Interest accrued but not due on deposits with financial institutions 

Other receivables (also , refer note 42) 

Total 

8 Current tax assets (Net) 

Advance tax (net of provisions) 

Total 

9 Deferred tax assets (net) 

Deferred tax 

Total 

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax 

assets/ (liabilities) : 

Fixed assets 

Provisions for employee benefits 

Impairment loss allowance 

Employee stock option expenses 

Carried forward losses 

Lease Liability 

Total 

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax 

assets/ (liabilities) : 

Fixed assets 

Provisions for employee benefits 

Impairment loss allowance 

Employee stock option expenses 

Carried forward losses 

Others 

Total 

Balance as at 

April 01, 2022 

0.65 

10.43 

82.68 

147.53 

3.93 

245.22 

Balance as at 

April 01, 2021 

2.01 

7.90 

34.76 

36.77 

17.74 

5.91 

105.09 

(Charge)/ 

credit to 

Statement of 

profit and loss 

(1.75) 

(2.19) 

174.10 

148.73 

(0.29) 

318.60 

(Charge)/ 

credit to 

Statement of 

profit and loss 

(1.36) 

2.91 

47 .92 

(36.77) 

139.09 

(1 .98) 

149.81 

(Charge)/ 

credit to OCI 

(0 .22) 

(0.22) 

(Charge)/ 

credit to OCI 

(0.38) 

(0.38) 

« This space has been intentionally left blank» 

As at As at 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

10.32 8.03 

3.90 5.22 

57.50 

0.06 1.26 

18.10 9.73 

32.38 81 .74 

296.23 175.89 

296.23 175.89 

563.60 245.22 

563.60 245.22 

Others Balance as at 

Adjustments March 31, 2023 

(1.10) 

8.02 

256.78 

296.26 

3.64 

563.60 

Others Balance as at 

Adjustments March 31, 2022 

0.65 

10.43 

82.68 

(9.30) 147.53 

3.93 

(9.30) 245.22 
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10 Property, plant and equipment, right of use assets, intangible assets and Intangible assets under development 

Property, Plant and Equipment 

Particulars 
Freehold Furniture and Office Computers & 

Vehicles 
Leasehold 

I 

land fittings equipment accessories improvements 

Gross block 

Balance as at April 01, 2021 2.31 7.61 10.57 20.07 21.51 

Additions - 0.83 1.64 15.06 11 .64 

Disposals/ deductions - (0.13) (0.06) (0.14) (4.49) 

Balance as at March 31, 2022 2.31 8.31 12.15 34.99 28.66 

Additions - 0.25 2.74 3.61 0.03 

Disposals/ deductions - (0.19) - (4.83) (2.67) 

Balance as at March 31 , 2023 2.31 8.37 14.89 33.77 26.02 

Accumulated depreciation and amortisation 

Balance as at April 01, 2021 - 1.19 2.87 11.04 7.34 

Charge for the year - 0.99 1.71 7.43 6.29 

Disposals - (0.04) (0.04) (0.12) (2.28) 

Balance as at March 31, 2022 - 2.14 4.54 18.35 11.35 

Charge for the year - 1.05 1.64 8.85 6.48 

Disposals - (0.12) - (4.59) (1.93) 

Balance as at March 31, 2023 - 3.07 6.18 22.61 15.90 

Net block 

Balance as at March 31 2022 2.31 6.17 7.61 16.64 17.31 

Balance as at March 31. 2023 2.31 5.30 8.71 11.16 10.12 

Intangible Assets under Development ageing Schedule as on March 31, 2023 

Amount in Intangible Assets for a period of 

Less than 1 More than 3 
Intangible Assets under Development 

year 
1-2 years 2-3 years 

years 
Total 

Projects in Progress 5.66 17.26 - - 22.92 

Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -

Total 5.66 17.26 - - 22.92 

There is no project for which cost exceeded the budget or time over run. There were no projects which is temporarily suspended as at March 31, 2023. 

Intangible Assets under Development ageing Schedule as on March 31, 2022 

Amount in Intangible Assets for a period of 

Intangible Assets under Development 
Less than 1 

1-2 years 2-3 years 
More than 3 

Total 
year years 

Projects in Progress 27.68 - - - 27.68 

Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
Total 27.68 - - - 27.68 

There is no project for which cost exceeded the budget or time over run . There were no projects which is temporarily suspended as at March 31, 2022. 

22.39 

-
(0.02) 

22.37 

-

-

22.37 

7.64 

4.82 

(0.02) 

12.44 

4.76 

-

17.20 

9.93 

5.17 

Intangible 
Intangible 

Right of assets 
assets under 

Total 
use assets Computer 

development 
Software 

84.46 20.87 30.00 0.46 

29.17 7.77 19.28 36.28 

(4.84) - - (9.06) 

108.79 28.64 49.28 27.68 

6.62 15.00 28.64 22.92 

(7.69) (1.66) (16.59) (27.68) 

107.72 41.98 61.33 22.92 

30.08 9.65 4.77 -

21.24 6.62 19.75 -
(2.50) - - -
48.82 16.27 24.52 -
22.78 12.10 14.44 

(6.65) - (16.59) -

64.95 28.37 22.37 -

59.97 12.37 24.76 27.68 

42.77 13.61 38.96 22.92 
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Note Particulars 
As at 

March 31, 2023 

11 Other non-financial assets 

Unsecured, considered good 

Prepaid expenses 19.59 

Advance paid to vendors 7.88 

Balances with government authorities 3.78 

Total 31.25 

12 Payables 

Trade Payables 

a) Total outstanding dues of micro and small and medium enterprise 

b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small and medium enterprise 22.84 

22.84 

As at 

March 31, 2022 

26.86 

8.51 

2.26 

37.63 

0.67 

45.45 

46.12 

(i) The classification of the suppliers under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 is made on the basis of 

information made available to the Company. 

(ii) Disclosure requirement as required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small, & Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 is as 

follows · 

i) Principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to each supplier at the end of 

each accounting year. 

ii) Interest paid by the Company in terms of section 16 of Micro , Small and Medium Enterprises 

Development Act, 2006, along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the 

appointed day during each accounting year. 

iii) Interest due and payable for the year of delay in making payment (which have been paid but 

beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under Micro, 

Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. 

iv) Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accountina vear: 

v) Interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the 

interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise 

Trade Payables Ageing 

Particulars Not Due 

(i) MSME -
(ii) Others 3.47 

(iii) Disputed dues - MSME -
(iv) Disputed dues - Others -
Total 3.47 

Trade Payables Ageing 

Particulars Not Due 

(i) MSME 0.67 

(ii) Others 33.40 

(iii) Disputed dues - MSME -
(iv) Disputed dues - Others -
Total 34.07 

13 Debt securities 

At amortised cost 

Non-convertible redeemable debentures (secured) 

Total 

Debt securities in India 

Debt securities outside India 

Total 

(also, refer note 32(a)) 

Less than 1 

year 

-
18.87 

-
-

18.87 

Less than 1 

vear 

-
11.81 

-
-

11.81 

As at March 31, 2023 

1-2 years 2-3 years 

- -
0.41 0.09 

- -
- -

0.41 0.09 

As at March 31, 2022 

1-2 years 2-3 years 

- -
0.24 -
- -
- -

0.24 -

- 0.67 

- -

- -

- -

- -

More than 3 
Total 

years 

- -

- 22.84 

- -
- -

- 22.84 

More than 3 
Total 

years 

- 0.67 

- 45.45 

- -
- -
- 46.12 

5,075.53 5,301.33 

5,075.53 5,301.33 

598.21 777.85 

4,477.32 4,523.48 

5,075.53 5,301.33 

V 
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Note Particulars 

14 Borrowings (other than debt securities) 

At amortised cost 

Secured: 

Term loans: (also, refer note 32(b)) 

from banks 

from other parties 

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 

Total 

Borrowings in India 

Borrowings outside India 

As at As at 

March 31 , 2023 March 31 , 2022 

1,048.67 2,201.06 

3,362.48 3,080.1 7 

25.92 19.41 

4,437.07 5,300.64 

3,705.01 4,961.46 

732.06 339.18 

4,437.07 5,300.64 

There is no default as on March 31 , 2023 and March 31 , 2022 in repayment of borrowings and interest in all the above categories of 

the borrowings. 

15 Other financial liabilities 

At amottised cost 

Lease liabilities (also refer note 36) 14.46 15.62 

Employee related payables 35.97 49.96 

Income received in advance 1.61 16.53 

Payable to subsidiaries (also , refer note 42) 10.77 

Other payables* 38.83 8.82 

Mark-to-Market cost on external commercia l borrowing 8.00 25.84 

Liability component of OCRPS 18.26 

Total 127.90 116.77 

*Includes the amount received of Rs. 3.53 million (March 31, 2022 : Rs. 6.73 million) by invoking the bank guarantee of the borrower in 

default. 

16 Provisions 

Provision for employee benefits: (also, refer note 31) 

Gratuity 

Compensated absences 

Total 

17 Other non-financial liabilities 

Statutory dues payable 

Others 

Total 

«This space has been intentionally left blank» 

16.96 17.21 

14.92 17.22 

31.88 34.43 

26.55 26.39 

0.34 0.34 

26.89 26.73 
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As at As at 
Particulars 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount 

18 Share capital 

Authorised share capital 

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 750,000 7.50 750,000 7.50 

Compulsorily convertible preference shares of Rs. 10 each 2,300,000 23.00 1,750,000 17.50 

Total 3,050,000 30.50 2,500,000 25.00 

Issued, subscribed and paid-up: 

Equity shares of Rs. 1 O each 573,861 5.74 573,861 5.74 

Less: Equity shares held under trust for employees under ESOP 

scheme (also, refer note 18(i)) (213,523) (2.1 4) (213,523) (2.14) 

Compulsorily convertible preference shares of Rs. 1 O each 1,763,819 17.64 1,683,819 16.84 

Total 2,124,157 21.25 2,044,157 20.45 

a) Reconciliation of number of equity shares and amount 

outstanding 

Issued, subscribed and paid-up 

Balance at the beginning of the year 573,861 5.74 573,861 5.74 

Shares issued during the year 

Shares bought back during the year 

573,861 5.74 573,861 5.74 

Less: Equity shares held under trust for employees under ESOP 

scheme (213,523) (2.14) (213,523) (2.14) 

Balance at the end of the year 360,338 3.60 360,338 3.60 

b) Reconciliation of number of Compulsorily convertible preference 

shares and amount outstanding 

Issued, subscribed and paid-up: 

Balance at the beginning of the year 1,683,819 16.84 1,616,195 16.16 

Shares issued during the year 80,000 0.80 67,624 0.68 

Balance at the end of the year 1,763,819 17.64 1,683,819 16.84 

c) Shareholders holding more than 5 percent 

No. of shares % of holding No. of shares % of holding 

Equity shares of Rs. 1 0 each 

S G Anil Kumar 238,257 42% 238,257 42% 

Samunnati ESOP Welfare Trust 213,523 37% 213,523 37% 

Accel India V (Mauritius) Ltd 75,733 13% 75,733 13% 

Compulsorily convertible preference shares of Rs. 10 each 

Elevar M-I11 421,522 24% 421,522 25% 

Accel India V (Mauritius) Ltd 384,949 22% 374,949 22% 

ResponsAbil ity Agriculture I, SLP 366,594 21% 366,594 22% 

Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association of America 266,730 15% 226,730 13% 

Accel Growth Fund V L.P 110,075 6% 110,075 7% 

Elevar I-IV AIF represented by its Trustee Vistra ITCL India Ltd 148,957 8% 118,957 7% 

d) Shares held by promoters at the end of the year 

March 31, 2023 

Number of Percentage of 
Percentage 

Promoter Name 
shares total shares 

change during 

the vear 

Mr. Anil Kumar S G 238,257 41.52% -

March 31, 2022 

Number of Percentage of 
Percentage 

Promoter Name change during 
shares total shares 

the vear 

Mr. Anil Kumar S G 238,257 41 .52% -

e) There were no shares issued pursuant to contract without payment being received in cash, allotted as fully paid up by way of bonus issues 

since incorporation of the Company. 

f) The Company has acquired 100% stake in Samunnati Agri Innovations Lab Private Limited ('SAIL')(formerly known as "Kamatan Farm Tech 

Private Limited") through a share swap on April 16, 2021. Pursuant to the agreement the Company has issued 67,624 Compulsory Convertible 

Preference Shares ('CCPS') to the equity shareholders of SAIL. 

g) Terms and rights attached to equity shares 

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a face value of Rs. 1 O per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote 

per share. The Company shall declare and pay dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors shall be subject to 

the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except interim dividend which can be approved by the Board of 

Directors. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, 

after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders. 

160



Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited 

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended March 31, 2023 

(Alf amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees (Rs.) , unless otherwise stated) 

h) Terms and rights attached to preference shares 

The Company has issued Series A 1, A2 , A3 , B, C, D, D1 and Pre-Series E series compulsorily convertible preference shares having a face 

value of Rs. 1 o per share. At the option of the holders, these shares, either in whole or in part, may be converted into equity shares in the ratio 

of 1:1 before the expiry of 19 years from the issuance of such compulsorily convertible preference shares. Each holder of the compulsorily 

convertible preference shares is entitled to one vote per share. Dividend on each compulsorily convertible preference shares is 0.01% per 

annum, subject to cash flow solvency, and such dividend shall be a preferred dividend. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders 

of compulsorily convertible preference shares shall have a preference over other share holders of the Company. 

The Company has issued Pre-Series E Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares ("Pre-Series E OCRPS") having a face value of 

Rs. 1 o per share. At the option of the holders of Pre-Series E OCRPS, these shares, may be converted into Pre-Series E Compulsorily 

Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares ("Pre-Series E CCPS"). The Pre-Series E OCRPS Conversion Ratio shall initially be 1: 1 and shall 

be subject to adjustments as per the terms of issue ("Pre-Series E OCRPS Conversion Ratio"). The holders of Pre-Series E OCRPS shall, at 

any time prior to 19 (nineteen) years from the date of issuance of the same, be entitled to call upon the Company to convert all (and not less 

than all) of the Pre-Series E OCRPS in accordance with the Pre-Series E OCRPS Conversion Ratio by issuing a Notice to the Company. The 

Pre-Series E OCRPS, if not converted earlier, shall automatically convert into Pre-Series E CCPS at the then applicable conversion rate, (i) on 

the latest permissible date prior to the issue of Shares to the public in connection with the occurrence of a Public Offer under Applicable Law, 

or (ii) on the day following the completion of 19 years from the date of issuance of the same. The holders of Pre-Series E OCRPS shall not be 

entitled to attend meetings of Shareholders of the Company and will not be entitled to any voting rights prior to conversion of the Pre-Series E 

OCRPS into Pre-Series E CCPS. Only so long as the Pre-Series E OCRPS have not been converted to Pre-Series E CCPS, the holder of the 

Pre-Series E OCRPS shall be entitled to seek redemption of all or any of the Pre-Series E OCRPS at such IRR and within such timelines, as 

per the terms of issue. 

Terms of conversion 

Series Date Amount 
Series A1 25 Feb 2034 0.99 

Series A2 25 Jul 2034 1.26 

Series A3 31 Mar 2035 0.61 

Series B 25 Feb 2036 2.76 

Series C 27 Dec 2036 5.60 

Series D 23 May 2038 4.94 

Series 01 15 Apr 2040 0.68 

Pre-Series E 10 Oct 2041 0.70 

Pre-Series E 12 Oct 2041 0.10 

Pre-Series E OCRPS 30 Nov 2041 0.40 

18.04 

i ) The Company has given an interest and collateral free loan to Samunnati Employee Stock Option Plan Welfare Trust {"ESOP Trust") to provide 

financial assistance for purchase of equity shares of the Company under Employee Stock Option Scheme. The Company has established the 

ESOP Trust to which the stock options issuable have been transferred. The Company treats ESOP trust as its extension and shares held by 

ESOP trust are treated as treasury shares. Own equity instruments that are re-acquired (treasury shares) are recognised at cost and deducted 

from Equity share capital (to the extent of face value) and from Other equity (to the extent of premium on shares). (Also refer note 30). 

19 Other equity 

As at As at 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Statutory Reserve 

Opening balance 40.59 40.59 

Add : Transfer from retained earnings - -
Balance as at the end of the year 40.59 40.59 

Securities Premium 

Balance as at the beginning of the year 5,755.45 4,931 .10 

Premium on shares issued during the year 799.20 812.96 

Debenture issue expenses 11.39 

Balance as at the end of the year 6,554.65 5,755.45 

Employee stock options outstanding 

Balance as at the beginning of the year 262.32 205.29 

Additions during the year 58.29 57.03 

Less: Utilised during the year on exercise of options - -
Balance as at the end of the year 320.61 262.32 

Capital Redemption Reserve 

Balance as at the beginning of the year 0.07 0.07 

Add : Additions during the year - -
Less : Adjustments during the year - -
Balance as at the end of the year 0.07 0.07 

Equity Component of Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference shares (OCRPS) 

Balance as at the beginning of the year - -
Issued during the year 382.77 -
Less: Redeemed / converted during the year - -
Balance as at the end of the year 382.77 -
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Other comprehensive income 

Balance as at the beginning of the year 

Add : Other comprehensive income for the year 

Less: Transferred to retained earnings 

Balance as at the end of the year 

Retained earnings 

Balance as at the beginning of the year 

Add: Comprehensive income for the year 

Less : Transfer to statutory reserve 

Balance as at the end of the year 

Total other equity 

Description of the nature and purpose of other equity 

Statutory reserve 

As at 

March 31, 2023 

5.07 

0.66 

-
5.73 

(740.41) 

{983.80) 

-
(1,724.21) 

5,580.21 

As at 

March 31 , 2022 

3.00 

2.07 

-
5.07 

(74.22) 

(666.19) 

-
(740.41) 

5,323.09 

Reserve fund is created as per the terms of section 45-IC(1) of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 as a statutory reserve. An amount equal to 

20% of profits after tax is transferred to this reserve every year. This is a restricted reserve and any appropriation from this reserve can only be 

made after prior approval from RBI. 

Securities premium 

Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. This amount can be utilised in accordance with the provisions of the 

Companies Act 2013. 

Employee stock options outstanding 

The employee stock options outstanding represents amount of reserve created by recognition of compensation cost at grant date fair value on 

stock options vested but not exercised by employees and unvested stock options in the Statement of profit and loss in respect of equity-settled 

share options granted to the eligible employees of the Company and its subsidiaries in pursuance of the Employee Stock Option Plan. 

Capital redemption reserve 

Capital Redemption Reserve is created as per the provisions of the Companies Act , 2013 in respect of the shares bought back by the 

Company. 

Other comprehensive income 

Represents remeasurement of defined benefit liability which comprises of actuarial gains and losses excluding amounts included in net interest 

on the net defined benefit liabilities and income tax impact thereon. 

Retained earnings 

Retained earnings or accumulated surplus/ (loss) represents total of all profits/ (losses) retained since Company's inception. Retained earnings 

are credited with current year profits, reduced by losses, if any, dividend pay-outs, transfers to General reserve or any such other 

appropriations to specific reserves. 

<< This space has been intentionally left blank>> 
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Note Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

20 Interest income 

On financial instruments measured at amortised cost 

Loans 

Investments in Pass Through Certificates 

Security deposits held with lenders 

Fixed deposits 

Loans to subsidiary (also, refer note 42(b)) 

Total 

Recovery of defaults in loan serviced 

21 Other income 

Income from subsidiary for shared services ( also, refer note 42(b)) 

Income from debt fund investments 

Income from mutual fund investments 

Recovery of defaults in loan serviced 

Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment 

Miscellaneous income 

Total 

22 Finance costs 

On financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 

Interest expense on: 

Borrowings (other than debt securities) 

Debt securities 

Lease liability 

Other borrowing costs 

Total 

23 Impairment on financial instruments 

At amortised cost 

Impairment of loans 

Bad debts written off 

Total 

24 Employee benefit expenses 

Salaries and wages (also, refer note 42) 

Gratuity and leave encashment expenses (also, refer note 31) 

Contribution to provident and other funds 

Employee stock option expenses (also, refer note 30) 

Staff welfare expenses 

Total 

25 Depreciation and amortization 

(Also, refer note 10) 

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 

Depreciation on right of use assets 

Amortization of intangible assets 

Total 

«This space has been intentionally left blank» 

1,702.92 

10.97 

15.12 

16.40 

138.62 

1,884.03 

88.25 

24.36 

1.31 

35.66 

0.92 

16.74 

78.99 

521.67 

616.75 

1.72 

75.60 

1,215.74 

660.73 

648.23 

1,308.96 

382.92 

12.42 

15.22 

58.29 

15.49 

484.34 

22.78 

12.10 

14.44 

49.32 

1,562.74 

24.42 

15.53 

4.55 

95.92 

1,703.16 

30.01 

44.59 

16.58 

13.84 

0.92 

0.27 

6.53 

82.73 

401.37 

530.08 

1.98 

43.74 

977.17 

200.24 

555.91 

756.15 

507.25 

17.39 

23.12 

57.03 

22.91 

627.70 

21.24 

6.62 

19.75 

47.61 
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Note Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

26 Otherexpenses 

Legal and professional charges 

Service fee expenses 

Technology and communication expenses 

Membersh ip and subscription charges 

Travelling and conveyance 

Insurance 

Payments to auditors (also, refer note 28) 

Repairs and maintenance - others 

Rates and taxes 

Rent (also, refer note 36) 

Printing and stationery 

Power and fuel 

Sitt ing fees 

Marketing expenses 

CSR contribut ion (also, refer note 39) 

Miscel laneous expenses 

Total 

27 Tax expense 

a) Income tax recognized in statement of profit and loss 

Current tax: 

In respect of current year 

In respect of prior years 

Deferred tax: 

In respect of current year origination and reversal of temporary differences 

Total income tax recognized in statement of profit and loss 

Total 

b) Income tax recognized in other comprehensive income 

110.23 

15.63 

39.04 

15.42 

38.85 

1.91 

7.46 

8.14 

0.76 

7.82 

3.70 

4.37 

2.23 

12.18 

22.54 

290.28 

5.03 

5.03 

(318 .60) 

(318.60) 

(313.57) 

Deferred tax related to items recognized in Other Comprehensive Income during the year: 

Remeasurement of defined employee benefits 

Total income tax recognized in other comprehensive income 

28 Payments to auditors* 

Statutory audit (Balance for FY2020-21 for previous auditors)# 

Statutory audit 

Limited reviewt 

Tax audit (FY2021-22 & FY 2022-23) 

Certification# 

Others# 

Out of pocket expenses# 

*Includes ineligible GST of 9% charged off to P&L in the current year 

# Includes inelig ible GST of 9% charged off to P&L in the previous year 

(0.22) 

(0.22) 

4.02 

1.64 

0.46 

0.22 

1.09 

0.03 

7.46 

29 Earnings Per Share (EPS) after considering compulsorily convertible preference shares: 

Net profiU (loss) attributable to equity shareholders Rs . in millions (Basic and Diluted) (983.80) 

Weighted average number of equity shares used in computing basic EPS (in 

numbers) 

Weighted average number of CCPS used in computing basic EPS (in numbers) 

Total weighted average number of shares used in computing Basic EPS (in numbers) 

Basic EPS (Rs.) - face value of share Rs.10 each 

Diluted EPS (Rs .) - face value of share Rs .10 each 

-~ 

360 ,338 

1,721 ,298 

2,081,636 

(472 .61) 

(472 .61) 

c::~ ·":~ -
r....... .. "', . -_,. __ 

93.46 

2.24 

31.35 

17.58 

25.80 

3.23 

7.14 

6.73 

0.72 

9.35 

3.98 

2.27 

3.13 

10.34 

0.87 

5.08 

223.27 

(149.81) 

(149.81) 

(149.81) 

(0.38) 

(0.38) 

2.00 

3.13 

1.85 

0. 11 

0.04 

0.01 

7.14 

(666.19) 

360,338 

1,683,819 

2,044,157 

(325.90) 

(325.90) 
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30 Employee share based payments 

ESOP 2015 Scheme 

a) On September 08, 2015 , the Board of Directors approved and the Company adopted the "Employees Stock Option Plan 2015" (the "Plan") under which not more than 62,500 

shares of the Company's equity shares was reserved for issuance to employees. In the Board meeting dated January 28, 2017, December 20, 2017 and April 29, 2019 

additional shares of 6,794 (nos), 70,368 (nos) and 115,000 (nos) respectively were added to the Plan, issued and allotted to ESOP Trust. 

The options are to be granted to the eligible employees as per the eligibility criteria as determined by the Board of Directors. The share options vest in a graded manner over a 

period of 1- 4 years and are exercisable within 2 months of exercise event, failing which the options shall lapse. 

On June 21, 2018, the Board of Directors approved and the Company adopted the "Amendment to the Employees Stock Option Plan 2015" ("The Plan"}. The amendment 

pertains lo vesting period, exercise and grant of options to new joiners. The options to be granted to the eligible employees as per the eligibility criteria as determined by the 

Board of Directors. The share options vest in a graded manner over a period of 1-4 years and are exercisable within 2 months of exercise event, failing which the employees 

shall have to hold on till the next event arises. On May 24, 2019, the Board of Directors approved and the Company adopted the "Employees Stock Option Plan 2019". The 

amendment pertains to vesting period. Vesting of Options may now take place between three and four years in the manner, as may be decided by the Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee. On February 10, 2022 the Board approved the Employees Stock Option Plan 2022 to broaden the terms and conditions, including those on vesting, 

exercise, lapse, surrender, etc. and the same was approved by the Company on March 07, 2022. 

During the current year board of di rectors did not approve any ESOP to employees. 

No. of options 
No.of 

Weighted options as Weighted 

Particulars 
as at 

Average at Average 
March 31, 

2023 
Rate March 31, Rate 

2022 

Options outstanding at the beginning of the year 85,713 3,173 57,565 2,156 

Granted during the year 43,380 5,022 

Exercised during the year -
Expired/ lapsed during the year (11 ,259) (15,232) -

Options outstanding at the end of the year 74,454 3,441 85,713 3,173 

Options exercisable as at the end of the period 10,930 739 10,930 739 

The weighted average remaining contractual life for the stock options outstanding at the end of the year was 191 days (previous year 393 days} 

b) The fair value of the options granted is determined on the date of the grant using the "Black-Scholes option pricing model" with the following assumptions, as certified by an 

independent valuer. 

Particulars FY 2015-16 FY 2016-17 FY 2017-18 FY 2018-19 FY 2019-20 FY 2020-21 FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 

Fair market value of option on the date of grant 582.86 806.84 1,030.40 1,726.61 2,970.44 3,318. 07 5,022.43 -

Exercise price range (weighted average) 10.00 319.00 618.00 1,484.45 3,203.50 7,500.00 13,059.77 

Expected volatili ty (%) 60.29% 60.29% 60.29% 60.29% 60.29% 60.29% 56.98% 56.98% 

Expected forfeiture percentage on each vesting date - -

Expected option life (weighted average in years) 3.87 3.57 3.22 3.10 2.47 3.00 3.00 3.00 

Expected dividends yield -
Risk free interest rate(%) 7.55% 6.85% 6.66% 7.62% 6.81% 5.86% 6.80% 6.80% 

Management Stock Option Scheme 2017 

On December 20, 2017, the Board of Directors approved and the Company adopted the "Management Stock Option Scheme 2017" hereinafter referred as the "Scheme". 

Under the Scheme, 28,529 options were granted to the promoter (Anil Kumar S G - Director and CEO), vesting over 1 year from the date of the grant. On April 29, 2019, the 

Board of Directors approved and the Company adopted the "Management Stock Option Scheme 2019". Under the revised Scheme, 45,000 options were granted to the 

promoter, vesting over 1 year from the date of the grant. On the happening of any liquidity event as defined in the Scheme, the Nomination and remuneration committee has the 

discretion to provide cashless exercise. 

The weighted average rem aining contractual life for the stock options outstanding at the end of the year was O days( previous year: O days) 

No. of No. of 

options as Weighted options as Weighted 

Particulars at Average at Average 

March 31, Rate March 31, Rate 

2023 2022 
Options outstanding at the beginning of the year 45,000 2,902 45,000 2,902 

Granted during the year - - - -
Exercised during the year - -
Expired/ lapsed during the year - -
Options outstanding at the end of the year 45,000 2,902 45,000 2,902 

Options exercisable as at the end of the period 45 ,000 2,902 45 ,000 2,902 

The fa ir value of the options granted is determined on the date of grant using the Black Scholes option pricing model with the following assumptions as certified by an 

independent valuer. 

Fair market value of option on the date of grant 

Number of options granted 

Exercise price range (weighted average) 

Expected volatility('%) 

Expected forfeiture percentage on each vesting date 

Expected option life (weighted average in years) 

Expected dividends yield 

Risk free interest rate(%) 

2,938.71 

45,000 

3,752.55 

60.29% 

0.00% 

0.00% 

7.41% 

Note: Since the MSOP shares issued on December 20, 2017 were vested before the date of trans it ion to IND-AS, the Company has not fair valued such grants. Hence above 

disclosure is not presented for the same. 
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31 Employee benefits 

General description of defined benefit 

a) Gratuity 

In accordance with applicable Indian laws , the Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan ("The Gratuity 

Plan") covering eligible employees. The gratuity plan provide for a lump sum payment to vested employees on retirement 

(subject to completion of five years of continuous employment) , death, incapacitation or termination of employment that are 

based on last drawn salary and tenure of employment. The Company does not maintain any plan assets to fund its obligation 

towards gratuity liability. 

Through its defined benefit plans the Company is exposed to a number of risks , the most significant of which are detailed 

below: 

Inflation risk 

The present value of some of the defined benefit plan obligations are calculated with reference to the future salaries of plan 

participants. As such , an increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan's liability. 

Life expectancy 

The present value of defined benefit plan obligation is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan 

participants, both during and after the employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the 

plan's liability. 

Discount rate 

Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan 's liability. 

Details of defined benefit plans as per actuarial valuation are as follows: 

I. Amount recognized in the statement of Profit and Loss 

Current service cost 

Net Interest cost 

Total expenses included in employee benefit expenses 

II. Amount recognized in Other Comprehensive income 

Remeasurement (gains)/ losses: 

Actuarial (gain)/ losses arising from changes in 

- Experience adjustments 

Total amount recognized in other comprehensive income 

Ill. Changes in the defined benefit obligation 

Opening defined benefit obligation 

Current service cost 

Interest expense 

Remeasurement (gains)/losses arising from changes in -

- Experience adjustments 

- Disposals 

Benefits paid 

Closing defined benefit obligation 

IV. Net defined benefit obligation 

Defined benefit obligation 

Current portion of the above 

Non current portion of the above 

V. Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation (undiscounted) 

Within 1 year 

Year2 

Year3 

Year4 

Years 

Years 6-10 

Years 11-15 

Years 15+ 

Year ended Year ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

3.94 4.69 

1.21 1.10 

5.15 5.79 

Year ended Year ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

(0.88) (2.45) 

(0.88) (2.45) 

As at As at 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

17.21 15.22 

3.94 4.69 

1.21 1.10 

(0.88) (2.45) 

(4.00) 

(0.52) (1.35) 

16.96 17.21 

As at As at 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

16.96 17.21 

3.37 2.45 

13.59 14.76 

As at As at 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

3.37 2.45 

1.86 1.87 

2.05 1.96 

2.17 2.09 

1.94 2.72 

8.06 8.93 

3.40 3.24 

3.08 3.01 
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As at As at 

I. Actuarial assumptions and sensitivity March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Discount rate (p.a.) 7.20% 6.90% 

Attrition rate 15.00% 15.00% 

Rate of sa lary increase 7.00% 7.00% 

In- service Morality rate IAL2012-14Ult IAL2012-14Ult 

II. Quantitative sensitivity analysis for input of significant Year ended Year ended 

assumptions on defined benefit obligations are as follows March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

One percentage point increase in discount rate (0.79) (0.85) 

One percentage po int decrease in discount rate 0.87 0.94 

One percentage po int increase in salary growth rate 0.87 0.94 

One percentage point decrease in salary growth rate (0.81) (0.87) 

Ten percentage point increase in attrition rate (0.18) (0.30) 

Ten percentage point decrease in attrition rate 0.18 0.31 

b} Compensated absences 

The company permits encashment of compensated absences accumulated by their employees on retirement, separation and 

during the cou rse of service . The liabil ity in respect of the Company, for outstand ing balance of privilege leave at the balance 

sheet date is determined and provided on the basis of actuarial valuation provided by an independent actuary. The company 

does not maintain any plan assets to fund its obligation towards compensated absences . 

Actuarial assumptions for compensated absences 

I. Actuarial assumptions and sensitivity 

Discount rate (p.a.) 

Rate of salary increase 

Attri tion rate over different age brackets 

Year ended 

March 31, 2023 

7.20% 

7.00% 

15.00% 

Year ended 

March 31, 2022 

6.70% 

7.00% 

15.00% 

The estimate of future salary increases, cons idered in actuarial va luation, cons iders inflation , seniority, promotion and other 

re levant factors , such as supply and demand in the employment market. 

II. Expenses recognized in Statement of profit and loss 

Included under gratuity and leave encashment expenses 

Ill. Net defined benefit obligation 

Defined benefit obligation 

Current portion of the above 

Non current portion of the above 
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Year ended 

March 31, 2023 

7.27 

As at 

March 31 , 2023 

14.92 

4.41 

10.51 

Year ended 

March 31, 2022 

11.60 

As at 

March 31, 2022 

17.22 

6.21 

11 .01 
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32 Details of security, repayment terms and applicable interest rates on debt securities and borrowings 

a) Debt securities 

For balances outstanding as at March 31, 2023 

Original 
Face value Date of Maturity Rate of 

Amount due Amount due 

maturity of 
(amount) allotment date interest 

within one beyond one 

loan year year 

Non Convertible Redeemable Debentures 

72 Months 1,000,000 24-Sep-18 24-Sep-24 12.06% 0.33 150.00 

72 Months 1,000,000 24-Sep-18 24-Sep-24 12.27% 0.66 300.00 

72 Months 1,000,000 10-Aug-22 02-Aug-28 10.75% 9.28 585.00 

60 months 5,000 20-Aug-20 20-Aug-25 12.39% 513.67 0.05 

60 months 100,000 26-Jul-21 15-Jul-26 10.70% 7.17 345.00 

48 Months 1,000,000 15-Feb-22 15-Feb-26 12.16% 8.22 594.00 

36 Months 500,000 17-Jun-20 17-Jun-23 12.75% 25.13 -
36 Months 1,000,000 19-Jun-20 19-Jun-23 13.00% 50.20 -
36 Months 1,000,000 17-Jul-20 17-Jul-23 12.00% 271 .12 -
36 Months 1,000,000 15-Dec-20 15-Dec-23 12.06% 694.80 -
36 Months 1,000,000 31-Mar-21 01-Apr-24 12.30% 0.11 354.00 

36 months 1,000,000 05-Apr-21 05-Apr-24 11.64% 121.34 300.00 

36 months 1,000,000 06-Sep-21 06-Sep-24 10.85% 1.71 244.00 

36 months 100,000 28-Dec-21 27-Dec-24 11.60% 128.43 123.33 

33 months 875 ,000 25-Sep-20 25-Jun-23 12.40% 247.98 -
2,080.15 2,995.38 

For balances outstanding as at March 31, 2022 

Original 
Face value Date of Maturity Rate of 

Amount due Amount due 

maturity of within one beyond one 
(amount) allotment date interest 

I loan year year 

Non Convertible Redeemable Debentures 

72 Months 1,000,000 24-Sep-18 24-Sep-24 12.94% 0.79 300.00 

72 Months 1,000,000 24-Sep-18 24-Sep-24 12.71% 0.40 150.00 

60 months 5,000 20-Aug-20 20-Aug-25 12.39% 7.64 506.25 

60 months 100,000 26-Jul-21 15-Jul-26 10.70% 7.27 345.00 

48 Months 50,000 12-Dec-18 12-Dec-22 12.30% 366.19 -
48 Months 1,000,000 15-Feb-22 15-Feb-26 12.16% 8.41 594.00 

36 Months 500,000 17-Jun-20 17-Jun-23 12.75% 50.39 25.00 

36 Months 1,000,000 19-Jun-20 19-Jun-23 13.00% 0.20 50.00 

36 Months 1,000,000 17-Jul-20 17-Jul-23 12.00% 21.21 250.00 

36 Months 1,000,000 15-Dec-20 15-Dec-23 12.06% 127.84 336.00 

36 Months 1,000,000 15-Dec-20 15-Dec-23 12.06% 126.81 336.00 

36 Months 1,000,000 31-Mar-21 01-Apr-24 12.30% 0.23 354.00 

36 months 1,000,000 05-Apr-21 05-Apr-24 11.64% 21.46 400.00 

36 months 1,000,000 06-Sep-21 06-Sep-24 10.85% 1.78 244.00 

36 months 100,000 28-Dec-21 27-Dec-24 11.60% 134.39 246.67 

33 months 875,000 25-Sep-20 25-Jun-23 12.40% 41.90 247.50 

916.91 4,384.42 
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Total 

150.33 

300.66 

594.28 

513.72 

352.17 

602.22 

25.13 

50.20 

271.12 

694.80 

354.11 

421.34 

245 .71 

251.76 

247.98 

5,075.53 

Total 

300.79 

150.40 

513.89 

352.27 

366.19 

602.41 

75.39 

50.20 

271 .21 

463.84 

462.81 

354.23 

421.46 

245.78 

381.06 

289.40 

5,301.33 

Security 

details 

Book debts 

Security 

details 

Book debts 

168



Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited 

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended March 31, 2023 

(A ll amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees (Rs.), unless otherwise stated) 

32 Details of security, repayment terms and applicable interest rates on debt securities and borrowings 

b) Borrowings (other than debt securities) 

For balances outstanding as at March 31, 2023 

I. Long-term 

Due within one year Due beyond one year 

Original maturity of loan Rate of interest No of 
Amount 

No of 

instalments instalments 
Amount 

Monthly repayment of principal 

36 months 12.50% 6 38.77 0 -
36 months 11 .80% 7 33.40 0 -

39 months 11 .65% 12 67.20 3 15.20 

40 months 11.65% 12 67.20 4 20.80 

18 months 12.75% 1 45.15 0 -

18 months 12.25% 1 9.13 0 -
24 months 11.25% 9 107.56 0 -

24 months 10.60% 12 150.00 0 -
25 months 12.00% 12 36.18 11 36.60 

24 months 13.25% 12 151.67 12 150.00 

13 months 13.05% 1 11.19 0 -

Quarterly repayment of principal 

35 months 11 .75% 2 25.22 0 -

36 months 11.50% 4 50.77 3 37.50 

30 months 11.60% 4 300.00 2 150.00 

12 months 13.35% 2 75.44 9 -
12 months 13.75% 2 176.01 0 -

Annual repayment of principal 

48 months 10.69% 1 122.28 2 240.70 

Bullet Repayment of principal 

37 months 11.18% 0 10.56 1 358.43 

Half Yearly repayment of principal 

24 months 5.25% 2 25.00 2 25.00 

24 months 5.50% 1 50.00 3 150.00 

1,552.73 1,184.23 

II. Short-term 

Original maturity of loan Rate of interest 
No of 

Amount Security details 
instalments 

Bullet Repayment of principal 

12 months 9.30% 1 95.00 
Book debts and Cash 

12 months 10.25% 1 50.00 
Collateral 

12 months 11 .00% 1 155.00 

Monthly Repayment of Principal 

6 months 12.60% 3 201.38 

6 months 13.40% 4 201.12 
Book debts and Cash 

12 months 12.75% 5 417.71 
Collateral 

6 months 12.00% 6 601.51 

12 months 14.50% 1 9.16 

Ill.OD backed by FD Not Applicable -

1,730.88 

Total Security details 

38.77 Book debts 

33.40 Book debts 

82.40 Book debts and Cash Collateral 

88.00 Book debts and Cash Collateral 

45.15 Book debts 

9.13 Book debts 

107.56 Book debts 

150.00 Book debts and Cash Collateral 

72.79 Book debts 

301 .67 Book debts 

11.19 Book debts 

25.22 Book debts 

88.27 Book debts 

450.00 Book debts 

75.44 Book debts 

176.01 Book debts 

362.98 Book debts 

368.99 Book debts 

50.00 Book debts and Cash Collateral 

200.03 Book debts and Cash Collateral 

2,737.00 
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For balances outstanding as at March 31, 2022 

I. Long-term 

Original maturity of loan Rate of interest 

Monthly repayment of principal 

36 months 12.50% 

36 months 11.80% 

24 months 11.75% 

39 months 9.45% 

18 months 11.50% 

18 months 12.25% 

24 months 11 .25% 

24 months 10.60% 

Quarterly repayment of principal 

36 months 12.00% 

35 months 11 .75% 

36 months 11 .50% 

30 months 11 .60% 

Annual repayment of principal 

48 months 10.69% 

II. Short-term 

Original maturity of loan Rate of interest 

Bullet Repayment of principal 

6 months 8.75% 

12 months 10.90% 

12 months 10.75% 

Monthly Repayment of Principal 

9 months 11.50% 

9 months 11.35% 

6 months 11.35% 

12 months 10.75% 

12 months 11 .25% 

12 months 12.00% 

12 months 12.50% 

Ill.OD backed by FD 

Due within one year 

No of 

instalments 
Amount 

12 70.71 

12 52.26 

8 94.71 

12 134.40 

12 478.77 

12 102.68 

12 143.63 

12 150.00 

4 250.00 

4 50.00 

4 51.21 

4 300.00 

0 4.65 

1,883.02 

No of 
Amount 

instalments 

1 199.00 

1 95.00 

1 155.00 

9 167.28 

9 268.31 

6 250.70 

12 25.67 

12 503.33 

9 245.44 

12 100.07 

Not Applicable -

2,009.80 

Due beyond one year 

No of 

instalments 
Amount 

6 38.72 

7 33.40 

0 -
16 170.40 

1 43.82 

1 9.07 

9 107.20 

12 150.00 

0 -
2 25.00 

7 87.50 

6 450.00 

3 365.02 

1,480.14 

Security details 

Book debts and Cash 

Collateral 

Book debts and Cash 

Collateral 

Book Debts 

Book debts and Cash 

Collateral 

Total Security details 

109.43 Book debts 

85.67 Book debts 

94.71 Book debts and Cash Collateral 

304.80 Book debts and Cash Collateral 

522.60 Book debts 

111.75 Book debts 

250.83 Book debts 

300.00 Book debts and Cash Collateral 

250.00 Book debts 

75.00 Book debts 

138.71 Book debts 

750.00 Book debts 

369.67 Book debts 

3,363.16 
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33 Fair value measurement 

33.1 Financial instruments by category 

a) Financial instruments measured at amortized cost 

As at 

Particulars March 31, 2023 

Carrying value 

Financial assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 935.83 

Other bank balances 218.08 

Loans 10,448.04 

Investments 2,679.90 

Other financial assets 32.38 

141314.23 

Financial liabilities 

Trade payables 22.84 

Debt securities 5,075.53 

Borrowings (other than debt securities) 4,437.07 

Other financial liabilities 127.90 

91663.34 

As at 

March 31 , 2022 

Carrying value 

990.48 

221.45 

12,481.26 

1,811.11 

81 .74 

151586.04 

46.12 

5,301.33 

5,300.64 

116.77 

10z764.86 

The management assessed that fair value of above financial instruments measured at amortised cost approximate to their 

carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments. 

b) Financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss 

Particulars Carrying value Fair value 

As at March 31, 2023 

Financial assets 

Investments 

As at March 31 , 2022 

Financial assets 

Investments 

33.2 Fair value measurement hierarchy 

Fair value 

Level1 Level2 Level3 

The Company records certain financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value on a recurring basis. The Company determines 

fair values based on the price it would receive to sell an asset or pay to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market 

participants at the measurement date and in the principal or most advantageous market for that asset or liability. 

The guidance specifies a hierarchy of valuation techniques based on whether the inputs to each measurement are observable or 

unobservable. Observable inputs reflect market data obtained from independent sources, while unobservable inputs reflect the 

Company's assumptions about current market conditions. The fair value hierarchy also requires an entity to maximize the use of 

observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value. 

The Company determines fair values of its financial instruments according to the following hierarchy: 

Level 1 - Valuation based on quoted market price: Financial instruments with quoted prices for identical instruments in active 

markets that the Company can access at the measurement date. 

Level 2- Valuation using observable inputs: Financial instruments with quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets or 

quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in inactive markets and financial instruments valued using models where all 

significant inputs are observable. 

Level 3 - Valuation technique with significant unobservable inputs: Financial instruments valued using valuation techniques 

where one or more significant inputs are unobservable. 
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34 Financial Risk Management Framework 

The Company's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establ ishment and oversight of the Company's risk 

management framework. The Company manages financial risk relating to the operations through internal risk reports which 

analyse exposure by degree and magnitude of risk. These risks include market risk (including interest rate risk and other price 

risk) , credit risk and liquidity risk. Compliance with policies and exposure limits is reviewed by the management on a continuous 

basis. 

(a) Credit risk 

Credit risk is the risk that the Company will incur a loss because its customers or counterparties fail to discharge their contractual 

obligations. The Company's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, 

investments, loan assets and other financial assets. The Company continuously monitors defaults of customers and other 

counterparties and incorporates this information into its credit risk controls. 

(b) Credit risk management 

Based on business environment in which the Company operates, a default on a financial asset is considered when the counter 

party fails to make payments within the agreed time period as per contract. The Company assesses and manages credit risk 

based on internal credit rating system. Internal credit rating is performed for each class of financial instruments with different 

characteristics. The Company has established a credit quality review process to provide early identification of possible changes in 

the creditworthiness of counterparties, including regular collateral revisions. The Company assigns the following credit ratings to 

each class of financial assets based on the assumptions, inputs and factors specific to the class of financial assets. 

The Company provides for expected credit loss based on the following.· 

Assets covered Nature 

Cash and cash equivalents (excluding cash on hand) , 

other bank balances, investments and other financial Low credit risk 

assets 

Loans Low credit risk 

Loans Moderate credit risk 

Loans High credit risk 

Financial assets that expose the entity to credit risk 

Particulars Nature 
As at 

March 31, 2023 

Cash and cash equivalents (excluding cash on hand) Low credit risk 935.83 

Bank balance other than above Low _credit risk 218.08 

Loans* Low credit risk 10,647.71 

Loans* Moderate credit rii 154.61 

Loans* High credit risk 658.98 

Investments Low credit risk 2,679.90 

Other financial assets Low credit risk 32.38 

(*) These represent gross carrying values of loans, without netting off ImpaIrment loss allowance 

Cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits 

Basis of expected credit loss 

Life time expected credit loss 

12 month expected credit loss 

Life time expected credit loss 

Life time expected credit loss or 

fully provided for 

As at 

March 31, 2022 

990.48 

221.45 

11 ,731.86 

767.04 

334.89 

1,811.11 

81.74 

Credit risk related to cash and cash equivalents (excluding cash on hand) and bank deposits is managed by only investing in 

highly rated deposits of banks across the country. 

Other financial assets 

Other financial assets measured at amortized cost includes security deposits, employee advances, deposits with financial 

institutions, payment receivable on securitisation, interest strip assets and other receivables. Credit risk related to these other 

financia l assets is managed by monitoring the recoverability of such amounts continuously. 

Loans 

The Company closely monitors the credit-worthiness of the borrower's through internal systems and appraisal process to assess 

the credit risk and define credit limits of borrower, thereby, limiting the credit risk by setting limits on the amount of risk it is willing 

to accept for the counterparties. These processes include a detailed appraisal methodology, identification of risks and suitable 

structuring and credit risk mitigation measures. The Company assesses increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis for amounts 

loan receivables that become past due and default is considered to have occurred when amounts receivable become 60 days. 
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The major guidelines for selection of the client includes: 

1. The client's income and indebtedness levels must be within the prescribed guidelines of Reserve Bank of India; 

2. The client must possess the required KYC documents 

3. The client must be engaged in some form of economic activity which ensures regular income; 

4. Client must agree to follow the rules and regulations of the organisation and 

5. Credit bureau check - In order to deal with the problem of over extension of credit and indebtedness of the client, the 

organisation undertakes credit bureau checks compulsorily for every client. The credit bureau check helps the organisation in 

identifying clients with poor repayment histories and multiple loans. 

Credit risk exposure 

(i) Expected credit losses for financial assets other than loans 

The Company have not made expected credit losses for financial assets other than loans . 

Particulars 
Cash and cash Other bank 

equivalents balance 

As at March 31, 2023 

Gross carrying amount 935.83 218.08 

Less: Expected credit losses - -

Net carrying amount 935.83 218.08 

As at March 31, 2022 

Gross carrying amount 990.48 221.45 

Less: Expected credit losses - -
Net carrying amount 990.48 221.45 

(ii) Movement of carrying amount and expected credit loss for loans 

Definition of default: 

Investments 

2,679.90 

-
2,679.90 

1,811.11 

-
1,811.11 

Other financial 

assets 

32.38 

-
32.38 

81 .74 

-
81.74 

The company has rebutted the presumption prescribed under Ind AS 109 that the credit risk increases significantly since initial 

recognition when contractual payments are more than 30 days (Stage 2) and that default occurs when a financial asset is 90 days 

past due (Stage 3) . The risk profiling is determined for each segmented loan portfolio indicated below based on historical and 

market trends and directions from RBI including guidance for identification of NPA in agricultural advances. 

Stage Loans Days past due (DPD) 

Stage 1 Upto 60 days 

Stage 2 61 days to 180 days 

Stage 3 More than 180 days 

Credit Quality of Loan Assets 

Particulars 
As at As at 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Stage 1 10,647.71 11,731 .86 

Stage 2 154.61 767.04 

Stage 3 658.98 334.89 

Total 11,461.30 12,833.79 

An analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECL allowances is, as follows: 

As at March 31, 2023 

Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 

Gross carrying value of opening balances 11,731 .86 767.04 334.89 

Adjustments to opening balances due to change in definition of default - (75.36) 75.36 

Revised gross carrying value of opening balances 11,731.86 691.68 410.25 

New assets originated during the year, netted off repayments and 
(217.28) (441 .69) (65.29) 

derecognised portfolio* 

Transfer to stage 1 255.39 (254.83) (0.56) 

Transfer to stage 2 (224.89) 224.90 (0.01) 

Transfer to stage 3 (891 .74) (65.41) 957.15 

Amounts written off (5.63) (0 .04) (642.56) 

Gross carrying value of closing balances 10,647.71 154.61 658.98 
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As at March 31, 2022 

Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 

Gross carrying value of opening balances 8,556.60 1,109.75 

New assets originated during the year, netted off repayments and 
3,519.36 

derecognised portfolio* 
-

Transfer to stage 1 264.01 (263.91) 

Transfer to stage 2 (348.51) 348.51 

Transfer to stage 3 (99.54) (427.30) 

Amounts written off (160.06) (0.01) 

Gross carrying value of closing balances 11,731.86 767.04 

As at March 31, 2023 

Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 

ECL allowance - opening balances 29.48 43.03 

New assets originated during the year, netted off repayments and 
(0.55) (27.48) 

derecognised portfolio* 

Transfer to stage 1 0.64 (0.64) 

Transfer to stage 2 (13.99) 13.99 

Transfer to stage 3 (608.66) (44.64) 
Impact of ECL on exposures transferred between stages during the year 945.92 47.07 

Amounts written off (5.63) (0.05) 

ECL allowance - closing balances 347.21 31.28 

As at March 31, 2022 

Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 

ECL allowance - opening balances 27.46 26.54 

New assets originated during the year, netted off repayments and 
11 .29 

derecognised portfolio* 
-

Transfer to stage 1 0.85 (0.85) 

Transfer to stage 2 (8.33) 8.33 

Transfer to stage 3 (60.62) (260.23) 

Impact of ECL on exposures transferred between stages during the year 218.89 269.25 

Amounts written off (160.06) (0 .01) 

ECL allowance - closing balances 29.48 43.03 

Stage 3 

163.28 

-

(0.10) 

-
526.84 

(355.13) 

334.89 

Stage 3 

280.02 

(44.57) 

-
-

653.31 

388.57 

(642.56) 

634.77 

Stage 3 

99.44 

-

-
-

320.85 

214.86 

(355.13) 

280.02 

If the probabi lity of default and loss given default increases or decrease by 100 basis point the expected credit loss will increase or 

decrease by Rs . 67 .89 millions and Rs.(83.06) millions respectively (As at March 31 , 2022: Rs. 60.72 millions and Rs . (16.21) 

millions respectively) . 

*Assets originated during the year has been presented on net basis i.e. the collections towards fresh loans has been netted off. 

(c) Liquidity Risk Management: 

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company cannot meet its financial obligations as they become due. The Company 

manages its liquidity risk by ensuring as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabil ities when due, 

under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risk to the Company's reputation. The 

Company maintains adequate reserves and banking facilities, and continuously monitors the forecast and actual cash flows by 

matching maturing profiles of financial assets and financial liabilities in accordance with the approved risk management policy of 

the Company periodically. The Company believes that the working capital (including banking limits not utilised) and its cash and 

cash equivalent are sufficient to meet its short and medium term requ irements. 

Refer Note 32(a), 32(b) and 41 which details the Company's remaining contractual maturity for its financial liabil ities with agreed 

repayment periods. The contractual maturity is based on the earliest date on which the Company may be required to pay. 

(d) Market Risk 

Market Risk is the risk that the fa ir value or the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 

market factor. Such changes in the values of financial instruments may result from changes in the interest rates , credit, liquidity, 

and other market changes . The Company is exposed to two types of market risk as follows : 

Interest Rate Risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest 

rates. 
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The Company is subject to interest rate risk, principally because the Company lend to customers at fixed interest rates and for 

periods that may differ from our funding sources, while the borrowings are at both fixed and variable interest rates for different 

periods. The Company assess and manage the interest rate risk by managing the assets and liabilities. The Asset liability 

Management Committee ensures that all significant mismatches, if any, are being managed appropriately. The Company has 

Board approved Asset liability Management (ALM) policy for managing interest rate risk and policy for determining the interest 

rate to be charged on the loans given. 

Sensitivity 

The sensitivity of the statement of profit and loss is the effect of the changes in market interest rates on bank and other 

borrowings. Below is the sensitivity of profit and loss in interest rates. 

Year ended 
Year ended 

Particulars 
March 31, 2023 

March 31, 

2022 

Interest sensitivity* 

Interest rates - increase by 0.50% 4.59 14.61 

Interest rates - decrease by 0. 50% (4.59) (14.61) 

* Holding all other variables constant 

Price Risk 

The Company's exposure to price risk is not material and it is primarily on account of investment of temporary treasury surpluses 

in the highly liquid debt funds for very short durations. The Company has a board approved policy of investing its surplus funds in 

highly rated debt mutual funds and other instruments having insignificant price risk, not being equity funds/ risk bearing 

instruments. 

Foreign currency risk 

The Company does not have any unhedged foreign currency exposure and hence does not have any foreign currency risk. 
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35 Capital management 

36 

The Company's capital management objectives are: 

- to ensure the Company's ability to continue as a going concern 

- to comply with externally imposed capital requirement and maintain strong credit ratings 

- to provide an adequate return to shareholders 

The Company's capital management strategy is to effectively determine, raise and deploy capital so as to create value for its shareholders. 

The same is done through a mix of either equity and/or convertible and/or combination of short term/long term debt as may be appropriate. 

The Company determines the amount of capital required on the basis of operations , capital expenditure and strategic investment plans. 

The capital structure is monitored on the basis of net debt to equity and maturity profile of overall debt portfolio. 

As at As at 

Net debt to equity ratio March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Debt 9,512.60 10,601.97 

Less: Cash and bank balances & other bank balances (1 ,153.91) (1,211.93) 

Net debt 8,358.69 9,390.04 

Total equity 5,601.46 5,343.54 

Net debt to equity ratio(%) 149.22% 175.73% 

Leases 

As a lessee 

a) Additions to right of use asset Year ended Year ended 

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31 , 2022 

Leased premises 15.00 7.77 

b) Carrying value of right of use asset As at As at 

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31 1 2022 

Right of use asset as on the opening date 12.37 11.22 

Additions during the year 15.00 7.77 

Deletions during the year (1.66) 

Depreciation charge for the year (12.10) (6.62) 

Balance as at the year end 13.61 12.37 

c) Maturity analysis of lease liability 

Contractual Undiscounted Cash Flows 

Less than 1 year 10.71 8.45 

One to five years 5.10 8.72 

Total undiscounted lease liability 15.81 17.17 

Lease liabilities included in the statement of financial position 14.46 15.62 

d) Amounts recognized in Statement of profit or loss Year ended Year ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Interest on lease liabilities 1.72 1.98 

Depreciation charge for the year 12.10 6.62 

Expenses relating to short-term leases 7.82 9.35 

37 Operating segments 

The Company has only one business segment and geographical segment , since it is only into the business of loan financing and operates 

only within India. Therefore , reporting under Ind AS 108 on 'Operating Segments', is not appl icable for its financial statements. 

38 Contingent liabilities 

Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts : 

The Company had received orders from Income Tax Assessing Officer (AO) pertaining to AY 2016-17, AY 2017-18, AY 18-19 and AY 20-

21 wherein certain additions were made under section 56, section 68 and section 143(3) of Income Tax Act, 1961. The Company has 

obtained a stay on collection of the demand provided below. The Company considers the claims to be erroneous and as not payable under 

the provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961 . 

As at March 31, 2023 

Amount of demand 

Amount paid against stay 

As at March 31 2022 

Amount of demand 

Amount aid a ainst sta 

AV 2016-17 

10.24 

2.10 

AY 2016-17 

10.18 

2.10 

AY 2017-18 

AY 2017-18 

3.57 

0.80 

AY 2018-19 

0.26 

AY 2018-19 

0.29 

AY 2020-21 

106.03 

21.21 
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39 Corporate Social Responsibility 

The Company has not incurred any expenditure in the current year (Previous year Rs.0.87 millions) towards CSR activities which includes 

contribution / donations made to the foundation which are engaged in activities prescribed under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 

read with Schedule VII to the said Act. 

Details of amount spent towards CSR activities : 

a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year is Nil (previous year: Rs. 0.87 millions) 

b) For the vear ended 

Particulars 
March 31, 2023 March 31. 2022 

Yet to be Yet to be 
In cash 

paid in cash 
Total In cash 

paid in cash 
Total 

In construction/ - - - - - -
acquisition of any asset 

On other purposes - - - 0.70 0.17 0.87 

40 Reconciliation of movement in borrowings to cash flows from financing activities 

Particulars March 31, 2022 Cash flows (net) 
Exchange Amortisation of 

March 31, 2023 
difference loan origination 

Debt securities 5,301.33 (225.80) 5,075.53 

Borrowings {other than debt securities} 5,300.64 {949.47} 45.10 40.80 4,437.07 

Total 10!601.97 (1!175.27} 45.10 40.80 9!512.60 

Particulars March 31, 2021 Cash flows (net) 
Exchange Amortisation of 

March 31, 2022 
difference loan origination 

Debt securities 4,213.92 1,081 .96 5.45 5,301.33 

Borrowings {other than debt securities} 3,479.32 1,808.87 {14.54} 26.99 5,300.64 

Total 7!693.24 2!890.83 (14.54) 32.44 10!601.97 
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41 Maturity analysis of asset and liabilities 

The table below shows the maturity analysis of assets and liabilities according to when they are expected to be recovered or settled. 

As at March 31 , 2023 As at March 31, 2022 

Particulars Within After 
Total 

Within After 
Total 

12 months 12 months 12 months 12 months 

ASSETS 

Financial assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 935.83 935.83 990.48 990.48 

Other bank balances 196.05 22.03 218.08 160.21 61 .24 221.45 

Loans 5,698.76 4 ,749.28 10,448.04 9,446.08 3,035.18 12,481.26 

Investments 3.42 2,676.48 2,679.90 178.90 1,632.21 1,811 .11 

Other financial assets 27.31 5.07 32.38 73.71 8.03 81 .74 

6,861.37 7,452.86 14,314.23 10,849.38 4,736.66 15,586.04 

Non- financial assets 

Current tax assets (net) 296.23 296.23 175.89 175.89 

Deferred tax assets (net) 563.60 563.60 245.22 245.22 

Property, plant and equipment 42.77 42.77 59.97 59.97 

Right of use assets 13.61 13.61 12.37 12.37 

Intangible assets under development 22.92 22.92 27.68 27.68 

Other intangible assets 38.96 38 .96 24.76 24.76 

Other non-financial assets 25.70 5.55 31 .25 37.63 37.63 

25.70 983.64 1,009.34 37.63 545.89 583.52 

LIABILITIES 

Financial liabilities 

Trade payables 22.84 22.84 45.88 0.24 46.12 

Debt securities 2,080.15 2,995.38 5,075.53 916.91 4,384.42 5,301.33 

Borrowings (Other than debt securities) 3,264.43 1,1 72.64 4,437.07 3,853.32 1,473.16 5,326.48 

Other financial liabilities 107.78 20.12 127.90 25.35 65.58 90.93 

5,475.20 4,188.14 9,663.34 4,841.46 5,923.40 10,764.86 

Non- financial liabilities 

Provisions 7.78 24.10 31.88 8.66 25.77 34.43 

Other non-financial liabilities 26.55 0.34 26.89 26.39 0.34 26.73 

34.33 24.44 58.77 35.05 26.11 61.16 
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42 Related party disclosures 

a) Names of related parties and relationship 

Relationship Name of the related party 

Wholly owned subsidiaries Samunnati Agro Solutions Private Limited 

Samunnati Foundation 

Samunnati Finance Private Limited (w.e.f September 22, 2021) 

Samunnati Agri Innovations Lab Private Limited (w.e.f. April 16, 2021) 

Step-down subsidiary Samunnati Investment Management Services Private Limited (w.e.f. 

March 08, 2022) 

Key management personnel (KMP) Executive Director 

Mr. Anil Kumar S G - Director and CEO 

Mr. Gurunath Neelamani - Whole-time Director 

KMP 

Mr. Lalit Malik - CFO (w.e.f April 22, 2022 to May 29, 2023) 

Mr. Arunkumar Sridharan - Company Secretary (w.e. f. March 11 , 2022) 

Independent directors: 

Mr. Narasimhan Srinivasan 

Mr. Sunil Satyapal Gulati 

Mr. Venkatesh Tagat 

Nominee directors: 

Ms. Jyotsna Krishnan 

Mr. Mahendran Balachandran 

Mr. Akshay Dua 

Ms. Rekha Natraian Unnithan 

Entity in which KMP has significant influence Samunnati ESOP Welfare Trust 

b) Related party transactions 

Nature of transactions 
Year ended Year ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Samunnati Agro Solutions Private Limited 

Loans given 4,265.00 3,000.00 

Loans repaid 5,465.00 2,050.00 

Interest income on loans 133.04 95.75 

Corporate guarantee provided 2,199.23 249.77 

Investment in equity shares (Non-current investments) 999.24 -
Income from subsidiary for shared services 21.49 44.59 

Salaries and wages (deputation charges) 2.87 2.10 

Samunnati Foundation 

Investment in share capital - 8.40 

Loans given 1.10 -

Samunnati Agri Innovations Lab Private Limited 

Investment in equity shares 50.00 813.64 

Loans given 155.00 5.50 

Loans repaid 69.75 -
Interest income 5.57 0.17 

Samunnati Finance Private Limited 

Investment in equity shares - 25.00 

Reimbursement of expenses - 0.32 

Samunnati Investment Management Services Private Limited 

Loans given 1.00 -
Interest income 0.01 -

Mr. Anil Kumar S G 

Remuneration * 23.02 21 .75 
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Nature of transactions 
Year ended Year ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Mr. Gurunath Neelamani 

Remuneration * 8.20 11 .86 

Mr. Nitin Chaudhary 

Remuneration * - 9.1 2 

Loans repaid - 0.15 

Mr. Ashok Dhamankar 

Remuneration * - 16.94 

Mr. Ashwini Venkataraman 

Remuneration * - 0 .28 

Mr. Arunkumar Sridharan 

Remuneration * 3.20 0.10 

Mr. Lalit Malik 

Remuneration * 1.98 -

Sitting fees paid 

Mr. Sunil Satyapal Gulati 0.85 1.26 

Mr. Narasimhan Srinivasan 0.65 1.11 

Mr. Venkatesh Tagat 0.55 0.76 

* The provision for gratuity and compensated absences is made on the basis of actuarial valuation for all the employees of the 

Company, including the managerial personnel. Proportionate amount of gratuity and compensated absences is not included in the 

above disclosure, since the exact amount is not ascertainable. 

c) Balances at the end of the year 

Particulars 
As at As at 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Samunnati Agro Solutions Private Limited 

Loans and advances ( including interest accrued) 200.01 1,413.91 

Corporate guarantee provided by Company towards borrowings 2,799.00 599 .77 

Deputation cost payable 0.59 0.61 

Deputation cost receivable 7.63 -

Samunnati Agri Innovations Lab Private Limited 

Loans and advances (including interest accrued) 92.41 5.67 

Deputation cost payable 17.80 -

Samunnati Foundation 

Loans and advances (including interest accrued) 1.10 

Other receivables 12.73 0.51 

Samunnati Finance Private Limited 

Other receivables 0.08 -

Samunnati Investment Management Services Private Limited 

Loans and advances (including interest accrued) 1.01 -

Samunnati ESOP Welfare Trust 

Advances given - -
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43 Additional disclosure pursuant to the Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit 

taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016, (as amended) issued by the RBI 

Liabilities side: 

Loans and advances availed by the non-banking 

1 ) financial company inclusive of interest accrued thereon 

but not paid: 

(a) Debentures 

-Secured 

-Unsecured 

(b)Deferred credits 

(c)Term loans 

(d)lnter-corporate loans and borrowing 

(e)Commercial paper 

(f) Public deposits 

(g)Cash credit 

Assets side: 

As at 

March 31, 2023 

Amount 

outstanding 

5,075.53 

4,437.07 

As at 

March 31, 2023 

Amount overdue 

2 ) Break up of loans and advances including bills receivable (receivable from financing activity) 

(a) Secured 

(b) Unsecured - includes loans to subsidiary 

3 ) Break up of leased assets and stock on hire and other assets counting towards AFC activities 

(i) Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors : 

(a) Financial lease 

(b) Operating lease 

(ii) Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors : 

(a) Assets on hire 

(b) Repossessed Assets 

(iii) Other loans counting towards AFC activities 

(a) Loans where assets have been repossessed 

(b) Loans other than (a) above 

4 ) Break-up of Investments 

Current Investments 

Quoted 

(i) Shares 

(a) Equity 

(b) Preference 

(ii) Debentures and Bonds 

(iii) Units of mutual funds 

(iv) Government Securities 

(v) Pass through certificates 

Unquoted 

(i) Shares 

(ii) Debentures and Bonds 

(ii i) Units of mutual funds 

(iv) Government Securities 

(v) Pass through certificates 

Long term investments 

Quoted 

(i) Shares 

(a) Equity 

(b) Preference 

(ii) Debentures and Bonds 

(iii) Units of mutual funds 

(iv) Government Securities 

(v) Others (please specify) 

As at 

March 31, 2022 

Amount 

outstanding 

5,301.33 

5,325.48 

As at 

March 31, 2023 

Amount 

outstanding 

991.80 

9,456.24 

3.42 

As at 

March 31, 2022 

Amount overdue 

As at 

March 31, 2022 

Amount 

outstanding 

1,081 .22 

11,400.04 

183.87 
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Unquoted 

(i) Shares 

(a) Equity 

(b) Preference 

(ii) Debentures and Bonds 

(ii i) Units of mutual funds 

(iv) Government Securities 

(v) Investment in securi tized assets 

5 ) Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in 2 (a) and (b) above: 

As at March 31, 2023 

Category 

1) Related parties 

(a) Subsidiaries 

(b) Companies in the same group 

(c) Other related part ies 

2) Other than related parties 

Total 

As at March 31 , 2022 

Category 

1) Related parties 

(a) Subsidiaries 

(b) Companies in the same group 

(c) Other related parties 

2) Other than related parties 

Total 

Secured 

991.80 

991.80 

Secured 

1,081.22 

1,081.22 

As at 

March 31, 2023 

Amount 

outstanding 

2,676.48 

Unsecured 

294.53 

9, 161 .71 

9,456.24 

Unsecured 

1,419.58 

9,980.46 

11,400.04 

As at 

March 31, 2022 

Amount 

outstanding 

1,627.24 

Total 

294.53 

10,153.51 

10,448.04 

Total 

1,419.58 

11 ,061.68 

12,481.26 

6 
) Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long term) in shares and securities (both quoted and unquoted): 

As at March 31, 2023 

Category 

1) Related Parties 

(a) Subsidiaries 

(b) Companies in the same group 

(c) Other related parties 

2) Other than related parties 

Total 

As at March 31, 2022 

Category 

1) Related Parties 

(a) Subsidiaries 

(b) Companies in the same group 

(c) Other related parties 

2) Other than related parties 

Total 

7 ) Other Information 

(i) Gross Non-Performing Assets 

(a) Related parties 

(b) Other than related parties 

(ii) Net Non-Performing Assets 

(a) Related parties 

(b) Other than related parties 

(ii i) Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt 

Book Value 

(Net of 

Provisions} 

2,676.48 

3.42 

2,679.90 

Book Value 

(Net of 

Provisions) 

1,627.24 

183.87 

1,811.11 

As at 

March 31, 2023 

681.06 

40.85 

Market value/ 

Break up or fair 

value or NAV 

Not applicable 

3.42 

3.42 

Market value/ 

Break up or fair 

value orNAV 

Not applicable 

183.87 

183.87 

As at 

March 31, 2022 

473.92 

172.86 
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8 ) Capital to Risk Asset Ratio ('CRAR'): 

Particulars 

CRAR (percent) 

CRAR - Tier I Capital (percent) 

CRAR - Tier II Capital (percent) 

Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier-II capital 

Amount raised by issue of perpetual debt instruments 

9 ) Investments 

Particulars 

Value of Investments 

(i) Gross value of investments 

(a) In India 

(b) Outside India 

(ii) Provisions for impairment 

(a) In India 

(b) Outside India 

(iii) Net value of investments 

(a) In India 

(b) Outside India 

Particulars 

Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on investments 

(i) Opening Balance 

(ii) Add: Provisions made during the year 

(iii) Less: Write-off/write-back of excess provisions during the year 

(iv) Closing Balance 

10 ) Derivatives 

As at 

March 31, 2023 

20.18% 

14.81% 

5.37% 

As at 

March 31, 2023 

2,679.90 

2,679.90 

As at 

March 31, 2023 

i) Forward Rate Agreement (FRA) / Interest Rate Swap (IRS) (also includes currency interest rate swaps) 

Particulars 

The notional principal of swap agreements 

Losses wh ich would be incurred if counterparties failed to fulfil their obligations under the 

Collateral required by the Company upon entering into swaps 

Concentration of credit risk arising from the swaps 

The fair value of the swap book (Asset/ (Liability) 

The above instrument is for hedging the External Commercial Borrowing in foreign currency. 

ii) Exchange Traded Interest Rate (IR) Derivatives 

As at 

March 31, 2023 

685.82 

8.00 

As at 

March 31, 2022 

20.43% 

20.16% 

0.27% 

As at 

March 31, 2022 

1,811 .11 

1,811.11 

As at 

March 31, 2022 

As at 

March 31, 2022 

353.18 

25.84 

The Company has not entered into any exchange traded derivative. The Company is not carrying out any activity of providing Derivative 

cover to third parties. 

iii) Disclosures on Risk Exposure in Derivatives 

The Company has a Treasury Risk Management Policy approved by the Assets Liability Committee and the Board. This policy provides the 

framework for managing various risks includ ing interest rate risk and currency risk. The policy provides for use of derivative instruments in 

Quantitative Disclosures: 

Foreign currency non-repatriate loans availed: 

Particulars 

(i) Derivatives (Notional principal amount) for Hedging 

(ii) Market to Market position 

(a) Asset(+) Estimated gain 

(b) Liability(-) Estimated loss 

(i ii) Credit exposure 

(iv) Unhedged exposure 

<<This space has been intentionally left blank>> 

As at 

March 31, 2023 

As at 

March 31, 2022 

Currency Derivatives 

685.82 353.18 

8.00 25.84 
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11 ) Disclosure related to securitisation 

During the year, the Company has not transferred any loans through securitisation. 

Particulars 

SPVs relating to outstanding securitisation transactions 

1. Number of SPVs sponsored by the NBFC for securiti sation transactions as on the date of the 

balance sheet 

2. Total amount of securitised assets as per books of the SPVs sponsored as on the date of the 

balance sheet 

3.Total amount of exposures retained by the NBFC to comply with minimum retention requirement 

('MRR') 

Off-balance sheet exposures 

First loss 

Others 

On-balance sheet exposures 

First loss (cash collateral) 

Others (credit enhancement) 

Amount of exposures to securitisation transactions other than MRR 

Off-balance sheet exposures 

Exposure to own securitizations 

First loss 

Others 

Exposure to third party 

securitisations 

First loss 

Others 

Exposure to third party 

securitisations 

First loss 

Others 

Year ended 

March 31, 2023 

12 ) Details of financial assets sold to securitisation/reconstruction companies for asset reconstruction 

Year ended 

March 31, 2022 

The Company has not sold financial assets to securitisation/reconstruction companies for asset reconstruction in the current and previous 

year. 

13 ) Details of assignment transactions undertaken 

There were no assets sold through assignment transactions during the current and previous year. 

14 ) Details of non-performing financial assets purchased or sold 

The Company has not purchased or sold any non performing financial assets during the current and previous year. 

<<This space has been intentionally left blank>> 
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15 ) Asset liability management maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities 

As at March 31 2023 

Maturity pattern 
Assets Liabilities 

Advances Investments Deposits Total Borrowings 

1 to 7 days 616.73 - 9.95 626.68 194.22 

8 to 14 days 388.86 - 2.17 391.03 9.13 

14 days to 1 month 716.57 2.41 - 718.98 400.98 

1 - 2 months 2,601.89 1.01 2.60 2,605.50 405.14 

2 - 3 months 1,342.41 - 86.49 1,428.90 580.33 

3 - 6 months 1,515.09 - 1.13 1,516.22 2,521.12 

6 - 12 months 1,634.52 - 93.77 1,728.29 1,252.90 

1 - 3 years 1,349.61 - 22.03 1,371 .64 3,594.53 

3 - 5 years 1,113.81 - - 1,11 3.81 584.98 

> 5 years 181.81 - - 181.81 0.06 

Total 11,461.30 3.42 218.14 11,682.86 9,543.39 

As at March 31 2022 

Maturity pattern 
Assets Liabilities 

Advances Investments Deposits Total Borrowings 

1 to 7 days 844.42 1.00 474.45 1,319.87 48 .20 

8 to 14 days 259.88 2.08 261.96 24.68 

14 days to 1 month 1,206.46 17.50 - 1,223.96 240.69 

1 - 2 months 1,329.35 19.06 2.59 1,351 .00 399.41 

2 - 3 months 1,519.97 19.00 33.82 1,572.79 729.15 

3- 6 months 2,000.42 53.97 39.07 2,093.46 1,340.02 

6- 12 months 2,638.11 68.37 75.00 2,781.48 2,018.52 

1 - 3 years 2,070.22 4.97 61.24 2,136.43 5,298.46 

3 - 5 years 699.17 - - 699.17 575.16 

> 5 years 265.79 1,627.24 - 1,893.03 -
Total 12,833.79 1,811.11 688.25 15,333.15 10,674.29 

Note: 

i) Amounts overdue against standard assets are considered under 1 to 7 days bucket. 

ii) Amounts overdue against non-performing assets are considered under 3 to 5 years bucket. 

16 ) Exposure to real estate sector 

The Company does not have any d irect exposures to real estate sector. 

17 ) Exposure to capital market 

The Company does not have any exposure to capital market as at March 31 , 2023 and March 31, 2022. 

18 ) Details of financing of parent company products 

This disclosure is not applicable as the Company does not have any holding/ parent company. 

19 ) Details of Single Borrower Limit (SGL)/ Group Borrower Limit (GBL) exceeded 

The Company has not exceeded Single Borrower Limit (SGL) nor has exceeded the Group Borrower Limit (GBL). 

20 ) Advances against intangible securities 

The Company has not given any advances against the rights, licenses, authorisations, etc. 

21 ) Registration obtained from other financial regulators 

During the year Company has not obtained any approvals from other financial regulators. 

22 ) Disclosure of penalties imposed by RBI and other regulators 

As per Regulation 57 of SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015, the Company had inadvertently missed giving prior intimation to BSE 

regarding one ISIN (INE551 U07167) for the quarter ended June 30, 2022. BSE has levied a fine of Rs. 1,1 80 on account of the 

non-intimation. 

23 ) Related party transactions 

Refer note 42 for Related party transactions . 
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24 ) Ratings assigned by credit rating agencies and migration of ratings during the year 

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 

Instrument 
Name of the Amount rated Rating Amount rated 

rating agency (in millions) assigned (in millions) 

Non Convertible Debentures CARE 450.00 BBB (stable) 450.00 

Term loans (Long Term rating) -CRISIL 3,000.00 BBB (stable) 3,000.00 

Term loans (Short Term rating) CRISIL 3,000.00 A2 3,000.00 

Commercia l Paper CRISIL 400.00 A2 400.00 

Non Convertible Debentures ( Short Term) CRISIL 350.00 A2 350.00 

Non Convertible Debentures ( Long Term ) CRISIL 5,835.00 BBB (stable) 4,285.00 

Term loans (Proposed) lnfomerics NA NA 2,000.00 

25 ) Provisions and contingencies (shown under the head expenditure in Statement of profit and loss} 

Particulars 

Provision for depreciation on investments 

Provision towards NPA 

Provision made towards income tax 

Provision for standard assets 

Provision for depreciation and amortisation on property, plant and equipment, 

right of use assets and other intangible assets 

Provision for employee benefits (Gratuity and compensated absences) 

26 ) Draw down from reserves 

Year ended Year ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

321 .58 194.99 

5.03 

339.15 5.25 

49.32 47.61 

12.42 17.39 

Refer Statement of Changes in Equity for details relating to draw down from reserves. 

27 ) Concentration of deposits, advances, exposures and NPAs 

Particulars 

i. Concentration of advances 

Total advances to twenty largest borrowers 

Percentage of advances to twenty largest borrowers to total advances of the 

· NBFC 

ii. Concentration of exposures (undrawn limits not considered) 

As at As at 

March 31, 2023. March 31, 2022 

"2,945.93 

28.20% 

2,945.66 

26.17% 

Total exposures to twenty largest borrowers/customers* 5,744.93 3,545.43 

Percentage of exposures to twenty largest borrowers/customers to total 43.37% 27.10% 

exposure of the NBFC on borrowers/ customers* 

*The total exposure includes the corporate guarantee given to the subsidiary company. Refer Note 42. 

iii. Concentration of exposures 

Total exposures to top four NPA accounts 

iv. Sector-wise NPAs 

Sector wise exposure and NPA is disclosed. Refer Note 44(3). 

v. Movement of NPAs 

A Net NPAs to Net Advances(%) 

B Movement of NPAs (Gross) 

a) Opening balance 

b) Additions during the year 

c) Reductions during the year 

d) Write-off during the year 

e) Closing balance 

C Movement of Net NPAs 

a) Opening balance 

b) Additions during the year 

c) Reductions during the year 

d) Closing balance 

Particulars 

D Movement of provisions for NPAs (excluding provision on standard assets) 

a) Opening balance 

b) Provisions made during the year 

c) Utilisation during the year 

d) Write-back of excess provisions 

e) Closing balance 

217.58 63.99 

Year ended Year ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

0.39% 1.38% 

473.92 424.50 

891.86 563.07 

36.48 42.55 

648.23 471 .10 

681 .06 473.92 

172.86 307.60 

40.80 154.23 

172.82 288.97 

40.85 172.86 

301.06 116.90 

851.06 408.84 

417.07 167.68 

94.84 57.00 

640.21 301 .06 

Rating 

assigned 

BBB (stable) 

BBB+ (stable) 

(Reaffirmed) 

A2+ 

(Reaffirmed) 

A2+ 

(Reaffirmed) 

A2+ 

(Reaffirmed) 

BBB+ (stable 

(Reaffirmed) 

BBB+ (stable) 
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vi. Overseas assets 

The Company does not have any overseas assets as at March 31 , 2023 and March 31 , 2022. 

28 ) There are no off-balance sheet SPVs sponsored by the Company as at March 31 , 2023 and March 31 , 2022 that are required to 

be consolidated. 

29 ) Customer complaints* 

Particulars 

i) No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year 

ii) No. of complaints received during the year 

iii) No. of complaints redressed during the year 

iv) No. of complaints pending at the end of the year 

Year ended Year ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

22 

22 

10 

10 

*Based on the information available with the management and relied upon by the auditors 

30 ) Public Disclosure on Liquidity risk Management 

(i) Funding Concentration based on significant Counterparty (both deposits and borrowings) 

As at March 31, 2023 

S.No. 

1 

As at March 31, 2022 

S.No. 

Number of Significant 

Counterparties 

22 

Number of Significant 

Counterparties 

22 

Amount 

9,330 .51 

Amount 

10,162.72 

% of Total 

borrowings 

98.09% 

% of Total 

borrowings 

95.86% 

(ii) Top 20 large deposits as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 (amount in 

millions and % of Total Deposits) 

(iii) Top 10 borrowings ( amount in millions and% of Total Borrowings) 

As at March 31, 2023 

Amount % of Total Borrowings 

6,748.12 70.94% 

As at March 31, 2022 

Amount % of Total Borrowings 

7,345.74 69.29% 

(iv) Funding concentration based on significant instrumenUproduct 

As at March 31, 2023 

S.No. Name of the instrument Amount 
% of Total 

liabilities 

1 Cash credit - 0.00% 

2 Commercial paper - 0.00% 

3 Non convertible debentures 5,075.53 53.36% 

4 Overdraft facilities - 0.00% 

5 Short-term Loans 1,730.88 18.20% 

6 Long-term loans 2,706.19 28.45% 

Total 9,512.60 100.00% 

As at March 31, 2022 

S.No. Name of the instrument Amount 
% of Total 

liabilities 

1 Cash credit - 0.00% 

2 Commercial paper - 0.00% 

3 Non convertible debentures 5,301.33 55.73% 

4 Overdraft facilities - 0.00% 

5 Short-term Loans 2,009.80 21.13% 

6 Long-term loans 3,290 .84 34.59% 

Total 10,601.97 111.45% 

% of Total 

liabilities 

95.97% 

% of Total 

liabilities 

93.87% 

Nil 

A "significant instrument/product" is defined as a single instrument/product of group of similar instruments/products which in 

aggregate amount to more than 1 % of the liabil ities of the Company. Total liabilities has been computed as Total Assets less 

Equity share capital less Reserve & Surplus and computed basis extant regulatory ALM guidelines. 
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(v) Stock Ratios 

As at March 31, 2023 

S.No Particulars 

Commercia l Paper as a % of total public funds, total 
a 

liabilities and total assets 

Non-convertible debentures (Original Maturity less than 1 

b year) as a % of total public funds, total liabilities and total 

assets 

Short Term Liabilities as a % of total public funds, total 
C liabilities and total assets 

As at March 31, 2022 

S.No Particulars 

Commercial Paper as a % of total public funds , total 
a 

liabilities and total assets 

Non-convertible debentures (Original Maturity less than 1 

b year) as a % of total public funds , total liabilities and total 

assets 

Short Term Liabilities as a % of total public funds , total 
C liabilities and total assets 

(vi) Institutional set-up for Liquidity risk management 

Nature of risk: 

¾of Public 

funds 

Not applicable 

Not applicable 

57.92% 

% of Public 

funds 

Not applicable 

Not applicable 

46.00% 

a) Liquid ity risk arises from mismatches in the timing of cash flows and loan collection defaults. 

b) Funding risk arises from: 

i) Inability to raise incremental borrowings to fund business requirement or repayment obligations 

ii) When assets cannot be funded at the expected term resulting in cashflow mismatches 

iii) Volatile market conditions impacting sourcing of funds from banks and money markets 

Measurement, monitoring and management of risk 

Liquidity and funding risk is measured by: 

i) Identification of gaps in the structural and dynamic liquidity statements. 

% of Total 

liabilities 

Not 

applicable 

Not 

applicable 

56.67% 

% of Total 

liabilities 

Not 

applicable 

Not 

applicable 

45.04% 

% of Total 

assets 

Not 

applicable 

Not 

applicable 

35.95% 

% of Total 

assets 

Not 

applicable 

Not 

applicable 

30.16% 

ii) Assessment of incremental borrowings required for meeting the repayment obligation as well as the Company's business plan 

in line with prevailing market conditions. 

Monitored by: 

i) assessment of the gap between visibility of funds and the near term liabilities given current liquidity conditions and evolving 

regulatory di rections for NBFCs. 

ii) a constant calibration of sources of funds in line with emerging market conditions in banking and money markets 

iii) periodic reviews by Asset Liability Committee (ALCO) relating to the liquidity position and stress tests assuming varied 'what if 

scenarios and comparing probable gaps with the liquidity buffers maintained by the Company. 

Managed by: 

The Company's treasury team under the guidance of ALCO through various means like liquidity buffers, sourcing of long term 

funds, positive asset liability mismatch, keeping strong pipel ine of sanctions and approvals from banks and assignment of loans. 

Executive governance structure- Management level Asset Liability Committee (ALCO): The Company's ALCO monitors Asset 

Liability mismatches to ensure that there are no imbalances or excessive concentrations on either side of the Balance Sheet. The 

Company continuously monitors liquidity in the market. As a part of its Asset-Liability Management (ALM) strategy, the Company 

maintains a liquidity buffer managed by an active investment to reduce thi s risk. As on March 31 , 2023 , the Company has liquidity 

of Rs. 935.83 mill ions. The Company maintains a judicious mix of borrowings from banks, Agri Development Institutes, NBFCs 

and other impact investors and continues to diversify its sources of borrowings. This strategy of balancing varied sources of funds 

has helped the Company to maintain a healthy asset liability position and contain interest rate movements. During the financial 

year 2022-23 , the weighted average cost of borrowings moved up by 19 basis points despite volatile market conditions. The 

Company continues to evaluate new sources of borrowing by way of new routes of funding like Commercial Papers, NCDs, Market 

Linked Debentures, Special Liquidity Schemes of RBI etc. 
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43) Asset classification as per IRAC norms 

Asset 
Gross Carrying 

Loss Allowances 

Asset Classification as per RBI Norms 
classification 

Amount as per 
(Provisions) as Net Carrying 

as per 
Ind AS 

required under Ind Amount 

Ind AS 109 AS 109 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5)=(3)-(4) 

Performing assets 

Standard 
Stage 1 10,647.71 347.21 10,300.50 

Stage 2 133.61 25.85 107.76 

Subtotal 10,781.32 373.06 10,408.26 

Non-Performing Assets (NPA) 

Substandard Stage 2 21.00 5.43 15.57 

Substandard Stage 3 658.98 634.77 24.21 

Doubtful - up to 1 year Stage 3 

1 to 3 years Stage 3 

More than 3 years Stage 3 - - -

Subtotal for doubtful - - -

Loss Stage 3 - - -

Subtotal for NPA 679.98 640.20 39.78 

Other items such as guarantees, loan Stage 1 - - -

commitments, etc. which are in the scope of Stage 2 - - -

Ind AS 109 but not covered under current 

Income Recognition, Asset Classification and Stage 3 - - -
Provisioning (IRACP) norms 

Subtotal - - -

Stage 1 10,647.71 347.21 10,300.50 

Total 
Stage 2 154.61 31.28 123.33 

Stage 3 658.98 634.77 24.21 

Total 11,461.30 1,013.26 10,448.04 

Provisions Difference between 

required as per Ind AS 109 provisions Remarks 

IRACP norms and IRACP norms 

(6) (7)=(4)-(6) 

52.00 295.21 0 - 60 days 

0.64 25.21 60 - 90 days 

52.64 320.42 

4 .58 0.85 90 - 180 days 

44.09 590.68 More than 180 days 

- -

- -

- -

48.67 591.53 

- -
- -

- -

- -

52.00 295.21 

5.22 26.06 

44.09 590.68 

101.31 911.95 
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44) Additional disclosure pursuant to circular RBl/2022-23/26 DOR.ACC.REC.No.20/21.04.018/2022-23 dated April 19, 2022 on 

additional disclosures in financial statements w.r.t. 'Scale Based Regulation (SBR): A Revised Regulatory Framework' for NBFCs 

issued by the RBI 

Section I 

A) Exposure 

1) Exposure to real estate sector 

The Company does not have any direct exposures to real estate sector. 

2) Exposure to capital market 

There is no exposure to capital markets as on March 31 , 2023 and March 31, 2022. 

3) Sectoral Exposure 

Current Year 

Total Exposure 

(includes on Percentage of 

Sectors balance sheet Gross NPAs Gross NPAs to 

and off-balance (Rs. Million) total exposure 

sheet exposure) in that sector 

(Rs. Million) 

1. Agriculture and 
7,915.80 340.14 4.30% 

Allied Activities 

2. Industry 478.57 - 0.00% 

3. Services 1,826.77 208.68 11.42% 

4. Personal Loans 1,240.1 5 132.24 10.66% 

4) Intra-group exposures 

i) Total amount of intra-group exposures 

Name of Group company 
Loans Given 

(Outstanding) 

Samunnati Agro Solutions Private Limited 200.01 

Samunnati Agri Innovations Lab Private Limited (formerly known 
92.41 

as "Kamatan Farm Tech Private Limited") 

Samunnati Foundation 1.10 

Samunnati Finance Private Limited 

Samunnati Investment Management Services Private Limited 1.01 

294.53 

ii) Total amount of top 20 intra-group exposures (includes loans to subsidiaries, 

investment in subsid iaries and corporate guarantees given) 

Percentage of intra-group exposures to total exposure of the NBFC on 

iii) borrowers/customers (includes loans to subsidiaries, investment in subsidiaries and 

corporate guarantees given) 

5) Unhedged foreign currency exposure 

Total Exposure 

(includes on 

balance sheet 

and off-balance 

sheet exposure) 

(Rs. Million) 

9,141.20 

160.41 

2,340.25 

1,191.93 

Investment in 

Equity 

1,779.34 

863.64 

8.50 

25.00 

-
2,676.48 

Amount (Rs) 

5,770.01 

34% 

Previous Year 

Gross NPAs 

(Rs. Million) 

266.76 

-
-

207.16 

Corporate 

Guarantees 

2,799.00 

-

-

-

-
2,799.00 

The Company does not have any unhedged foreign currency exposure and hence does not have any foreign currency risk. 

B) Related Party Disclosure 

Refer note 42 for Related party disclosures. 

C) Disclosure of complaints 

Percentage of 

Gross NPAs to 

total exposure 

in that sector 

2.92% 

0.00% 

0.00% 

17.38% 

1) Summary information on complaints received by the NBFCs from customers and from the Offices of Ombudsman 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 

Complaints received by the NBFC from its customers 

1. Number of complaints pending at beginning of the year - -
2. Number of complaints received during the year 22 10 

3. Number of complaints disposed during the year 22 10 
3. 1 Of which , number of complaints rejected by the NBFC - -
4. Number of complaints pending at the end of the year - -
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Particulars Current Year Previous Year 

Maintainable complaints received by the NBFC from Office of Ombudsman 

5. Number of maintainable complaints received by the NBFC 
3.00 1.00 

from Office of Ombudsman 

5.1. Of 5, number of complaints resolved in favour of the NBFC 
- -

by Office of Ombudsman 

5.2 Of 5, number of complaints resolved through 

conciliation/mediation/advisories issued by Office of Ombudsman 

5.3 Of 5, number of complaints resolved after passing of Awards 

by Office of Ombudsman aga inst the NBFC 

6. Number of Awards unimplemented within the stipulated t ime 
- -

(other than those appealed) 

2) Top five grounds of complaints received by the NBFCs from customers 

% increase/ 

Number of 
Number of 

decrease in the 
Number of Of 5, number of 

Grounds of complaints, complaints 
complaints 

number of 
complaints complaints 

(i.e. complaints relating pending at the 
received during 

complaints 
pending at the pending beyond 

to) beginning of the 
the year 

received over 
end of the year 30 days 

year the previous 

year 

1 2 3 4 5 6 

Current Year 

Loans and advances 22.00 120% (increase) Nil 

Total 22.00 120% (increase) Nil 

Previous Year 

Loans and advances 10 9% (decrease) - -
Total - 10 9% (decrease) -

Section II 

A) Breach of covenant 

There have been some breach of financial covenants during the year, however the Company has not classified any of its borrowings as 

immediately due during the year due to such breach of covenants since the management is confident that there will not be any recall of 

such loans based on their discussion with lenders. 

45) The disclosures as required by the Master Direction - Monitoring of frauds in NBFCs issued by RBI dated September 29, 2016 

During the year ended March 31 , 2023, 1 fraud aggregating to Rs. 175.69 million by the customer have been reported by the Company. The 

un-recovered amount aggregating to Rs. 175.69 million have been fully provided for/ written-off. The Company has initiated necessary legal 

proceedings for recovery of the amount. 

<<This space has been intentionally left blank>> 
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46 Covid-19 impact 

The company continues to monitor and assess the impact of COVID 19 pandemic on its operation and financials , including the 

possibility of higher defaults by the customers. The company has considered the information available upto the date of these results 

and have made adequate provisions in this regard to the extent it is required . 

Estimates and associated judgments / assumptions applied in preparation of these financial results including determining the 

impairment loss allowance and expected future cash inflows / outflows are based on a combination of historical experience and 

emerging / forward looking indicators resulting from the ongoing pandemic. In addition to these early indicators available, the 

Company has also used potential stress on the expected cred it losses on loans and accordingly recognized an expected credit loss 

(including write-offs) amounting to Rs. 1308.96 million during the period. The impact assessment of COVID-19 is a continuing 

process given its uncertainty in nature and duration, this may have corresponding impact in the financial position. The Company will 

continue to monitor any material changes to the future economic conditions. 

47 Additional regulatory disclosures 

a. The Company owns freehold land and the title deeds of the freehold land is held in the name of the Company. 

b. The Company does not hold any investment property and hence the disclosure on fa ir valuation of investment property is 

not applicable to the Company. 

c. The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) and intangible assets and 

hence the disclosure on revaluation of property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) and intangible assets is 

not applicable to the Company. 

d. The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related 

parties (as defined under the Companies Act, 2013) , either severally or jointly with any other person that are either: 

(a) repayable on demand or 

(b) without specifying any terms or period of repayment. 

during the current year. 

e. The Company has borrowings from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of book debts and cash collaterals. 

The book debts are separately assigned to each borrower / financial institution and end use certificates are being filed with 

the borrower/ financial institutions. 

f. No benami property are held by the Company and or no proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the 

company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules 

made thereunder. 

g. The Company has not been declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or any other lender. 

h. The Company has reviewed transactions to identify if there are any transactions with struck off companies. To the extent 

information is available on struck off companies , no companies have been identified as struck off companies. 

i. There is no charges or satisfaction in relation to any debt / borrowings yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory 

period. 

j. The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with 

Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017. 

k. Ratios 

Particulars 
Year ended March Year ended 

31,2023 March 31 , 2022 

Capital to risk-weighted assets ratio (CRAR) 20.18% 20.43% 

CRAR - Tier I Capital (percent) 14.81% 20.16% 

CRAR - Tier II Capital (percent) 5.37% 0.27% 

I. The Company has not entered into any scheme(s) of arrangements and hence the disclosure on compliance with approved 

scheme(s) of arrangements is not applicable to the Company. 
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m. Other than the transactions that are carried out as part of Company's normal lending business: 

A) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or share premium or any other 

sources or kind of funds) to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the 

understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Intermediary shall -

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 

Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

B) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with 

the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the company shall -

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 

Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

n. There are no transactions which have not been recorded in the books of accounts and has been surrendered or disclosed 

as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 . Also, there are no previously 

unrecorded income and related assets. 

o. Ttie Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year. 

48 The Code on Social Security, 2020 ('Code') relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment benefits 

received Presidential assent in September 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which 

the Code will come into effect has not been notified. The Company will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and 

will record any related impact in the period the Code becomes effective. 

49 Subsequent Events 

The Company has since issued Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) amounting to Rs. 1,340 million on April 05, 

2023. This Pre-Series E funding will be utilized by the Company towards expansion of its business. 

50 Previous year figures have been regrouped / rearranged, wherever considered necessary, to conform to the classification / 

disclosure adopted in the current year. 
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